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Reaching 
NEW HEI GHTS



In 2020, SEBL has celebrated its glorious journey of 25 years, 

a quarter of a century. The year was full of challenges and 

uncertainties due to the mounting human toll and global 

economic fallout triggered by the COVID-19 pandemic. But 

the Bank has always been ahead of the curve in deploying 

strategies to reach new heights in building resilience and 

ensuring sustainability.

of customers through its extensive network of branches and 

sub-branches over the country. The Bank offers state of the 

art technological support, advanced internet banking 

solution, fast and easy mobile banking services and most 

Just as our customers’ needs have grown and evolved, the 

Bank is offering an expanded selection of products and 

services to meet those changing needs. The Bank strives to 

promote a culture of excellence in customer service with each 

member enabled with superior knowledge of the products 

and services we offer.

SEBL has a strong and stable capital base as well as shock 
resilience capacity which has provided the strength to 
operate and grow consistently and sustainably towards 
reaching new heights. Over the course of 25-years of 
history, SEBL’s business model has continuously proven its 

economic headwinds. A professionally strong Board of 
Directors, skilled management, transparent and dynamic 

quality customer services and innovative products made this 
Bank a leader in this sector. Most fundamentally, people are 
the core of our business. The Bank has a thriving workplace 
that attracts, retains and rewards the most talented and 
committed people. It also offers extensive Training Courses, 
Workshops, Executive Development Programs which 
enhance employees’ knowledge and skills. Investing in 
employee education is an important part of building a loyal, 
motivated and skilled workforce. This will serve as a key 
component of our success and in turn, the success of our 
customers and communities.

Bearing in mind the slogan “A Bank with vision” SEBL puts 
continual effort to add new feather of achievement to its 
crown in each year. But the Bank in no way is resting on its 
laurels rather it relies on its core competencies which plays 
vital role for achieving robust business performance to take its 
organizational achievements to new heights. We give topmost 
priority to the interest of our shareholders in our decision 
making process. For a more inclusive and sustainable future 

end, SEBL creates and generates an environment of banking 
practices that demonstrates its commitment toward reaching 
new heights of success in coming years. 
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CORE FINANCIALS AND KEY RATIOS

Core Financials

2020Particulars

422,313 10.18%

296,753 8.59%

77,311 25.56%

329,251 9.20%

36,094 11.86%

313,317 (10.19)%

(3,072) 269.24%

Non Performing Loan

465,294

322,252

97,074

359,536

40,373

281,393

5,199

9,940 14,376 (30.86)%

2019 Change (% )

Total Assets

Total Loans & Advances

Total Investments

Total Deposits

Total Regulatory Capital

Risk Weighted Assets 

Capital Surplus/(Deficit) 

Non Performing
Loan (%)

3.10%
2020

4.87%
2019

(1.77)%
Change

Capital to Risk 
Weighted Assets
Ratio (%)

14.35%
2020

11.52%
2019

2.83%
Change

Cost of Fund (%)

6.79%
2020

8.08%
2019

(1.29)%
Change

Cost to Income
Ratio (%)

39.98%
2020

37.58%
2019

2.40%
Change
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BALANCED
SCORE CARD

INTERNAL
BUSINESS
PROCESSES

LEARNING
AND GROWTH CUSTOMERS

FINANCIAL
PERSPECTIVE

- Improved ROE & 
ROI

- Improved operating 

- Maintaining 

- Lower NPL

margin

expenses

training 

development
- Personnel goal 

alignment

organization

- Development of 

- Developing new 

- Growth of Banking 

- Cross-selling 

environment
- Development in 

Software 

share

timeliness
- Expanding banking 

horizon to address 

scorecard (BSC). A BSC is a visual tool used to measure the effectiveness of an activity against the strategic plans of a business. 

Bank’s vision and thereby attaining the optimum outcome. There are four elements of the model which demonstrate how different 
short-term actions are contributing to the long-term strategic objectives of the Bank.

This diagram elucidates the interconnection of the four BSC perspectives which indicates that they are all congruent when it 
comes to achieving the Bank’s vision. The process of implementation of the BSC system proved very successful for SEBL because 
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ACCOLADES

th 

Mastercard Excellence Award 2020
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Dhaka Wasa Bill
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26 YEARS OF
GLORIOUS JOURNEY

1995

12.03.1995
 Incorporation of 

Southeast Bank 
Limited

12.03.1995
 

Commencement of 
Business 

23.03.1995
 License Issued by 

Bangladesh Bank 

25.05.1995
 Formal Inauguration 

25.05.1995
 Inauguration of 1st 

Branch 

1999

Initial Public Offer (IPO)

25.11.1999
 Subscription Opened

05.12.1999
 Subscription Closed

2002

12.03.2002
 Formation of SEBL 

Foundation 

2003

15.02.2003
 1st Rights Share Issue 

Subscription Opened

15.03.2003
 1st Rights Share Issue 

Subscription Closed

28.07.2003
 Commencement of Islamic 

Banking business from 
Chhagalnaiya Islamic Banking 
Branch, Feni 

28.10.2003
 License Issued from Bangladesh 

Bank as a Primary Dealer 

2000

12.04.2000
 Listing with Dhaka 

Stock Exchange 
Limited

24.04.2000
 Listing with 

Chittagong Stock 
Exchange Limited 

2010

27.03.2010
 Launching of ATM and 

ATM Cards with own 
System 

07.07.2010
 3rd Rights Share Issue 

Subscription Opened 

29.07.2010
 3rd Rights Share Issue 

Subscription Closed

23.09.2010
 Incorporation of 

Southeast Bank Capital 
Services Limited

2011

28.02.2011
 Introduced of Internet 

Banking

23.05.2011
 Launching of SEBL 1st Mutual 

Fund

28.06.2011
 

Rollover Loan Agreement with 
International Finance 
Corporation (IFC)

15.09.2011
 Incorporation of Southeast 

Financial Services (UK) 
Limited  

17.09.2011
 100% Online Banking

11.11.2014
 Issuance of 

Subordinated Bond 
for BDT 3,000.00 
million

15.11.2014
 Introduction of 

Green Award

15.12.2014
 Incorporation of 

Southeast Exchange 
Company (South 
Africa) Pty Limited

29.12.2014
 Opening of Ladies 

Branches

2014 2015

29.01.2015
 Launching of Telecash as Mobile Financial 

Services Product

25.02.2015
 Signed Unsecured Facility Agreement 

with Global Climate Partnership Fund 
(GCPF)

21.05.2015
 Introduction of Bank’s Modern and 

05.08.2015
 Signed funded Loan Agreement with 

International Finance Corporation (IFC)

30.08.2015
 Commissioning of ‘SWIFT Sanction 

Screening Solution’

25.10.2015
 Introduction of Central Monitory System 

(CMS) to monitor (24X7) all branches

29.10.2015
 Introduction of Real Time Gross 

Settlement (RTGS)
 
23.11.2015
 Implementation of Credit Card 

Management Software

15.12.2015
 Partnership with MasterCard Bangladesh 

and launched the complete range of 
Credit Cards (World, Platinum, Titanium 
and Gold) and Prepaid Card 

16.12.2015
 Introduction of Bank’s Call Centre 24X7

31.12.2015
 Introduction of Chip-based Credit Card

2013

15.01.2013
 Established Central 

Payment Centre 

for International 
Trade Payments 

18.03.2013
 Incorporation of 

Southeast Financial 
Services (Australia) 
Pty Limited

30.06.2013
 Formation of 

Southeast Bank-The 
Financial 
Express-Policy 
Research Institute 
Green Award Trust

12.09.2013
 Establishment of 

Southeast Bank 
Green School
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2004

17.02.2004
Registered as Depository 
Participant of CDBL 

16.05.2004
1st to Demat Shares in CDS of 
CDBL in Banking Sector 

20.10.2004
Became a member of Trade 
Finance Program (TFP) of 
Asian Development Bank 
(ADB) 

2006

15.10.2006
2nd Rights Share Issue 
Subscription Opened 

31.10.2006
2nd Rights Share Issue 
Subscription Closed

2007

23.04.2007
Became a member of Global 
Trade Finance Program (GTFP) 
of International Finance 
Corporation (IFC) 

2005

01.01.2005
Launching of 
Credit Card 

2009

14.02.2009
Introduced of 
new Core 
Banking 
Software 

30.12.2009
Launching of 1st 
Off-shore 
Banking Unit 

2016

31.03.2016
Signed revolving Credit 
agreement for USD 5.00 million 
with Asian Development Bank 
(ADB)

15.05.2016
Launching of client acquisition 
drive through ‘Nibir’ Campaign

02.08.2016
Issuance of Subordinated Bond 
for BDT 5,000.00 million

29.09.2016
Introduction of Bank’s Health 
Care Centre

29.09.2016
Introduction of Bank’s E-Library

08.10.2016
Launching of ‘Cash Express Remit 

Wage Earner Expatriates

26.10.2016
Awarded 1st position in “ICMAB 
Best Corporate Award-2015”

24.11.2016
Awarded ‘Tax Card and Trophy’ as 
6th highest Tax Payers of the 
Country in the Banking Sector

01.12.2016
Signed agreement with 
Bangladesh Bank for ‘Green 
Transformation Fund’

2018

31.01.2018
Awarded 1st Runner Up 
by South Asian 
Federation of 
Accountants (SAFA) for 
Best Presented Annual 
Report 2016 in the 
Private Sector Banking 
Category

31.01.2018
Won Joint 2nd Runner 
Up Award in SAARC 
Anniversary Award for 
Corporate Governance

12.08.2018
Issuance of 
Subordinated Bond for 
BDT 5,000.00 million

10.11.2018
Received Silver Award 
for Corporate 
Governance Excellence, 
2017 by the Institute of 
Chartered Secretaries 
of Bangladesh (ICSB).

12.11.2018
Awarded ‘‘Tax Card & 
Trophy’’ as the 4th highest 
Tax Payer of the Country 
in the Banking Sector.

2019

14.07.2019
Signed an Agreement with iPay 
Services Limited for providing 
Payment Services to iPay users

29.07.2019
Inaugurated transportation 
services for the employees of 
Southeast Bank Limited

12.09.2019

prepaid card for Ecommerce 
merchants in collaboration with 
Mastercard and SSLcommerz.

16.09.2019
Achieved Second Position for 
collecting Dhaka WASA’s bill in the 

14.11.2019
Awarded “Tax Card & Trophy” as 
the highest Tax Payer of the 
Country in the Banking Sector

19.11.2019
Awarded for Excellence in 
Mastercard Prepaid Business 
2018-19 category

30.11.2019

Corporate Governance among 
private sector banks by Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of 
Bangladesh (ICAB)

30.11.2019
Won Joint 2nd position under the 
category of Private Sector Banks 
by Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of Bangladesh (ICAB)

30.11.2019
Awarded 1st Runner-up for the 
Corporate Governance Disclosure 
by South Asian Federation of 
Accountants (SAFA) for Best 
Presented Annual Report-2018 in 
the Private Sector Banking 
Category

30.11.2019
Awarded 2nd Runner-up for the 
category of the Private Sector 
Banks (including Co-operative 
Banks) by South Asian Federation 
of Accountants (SAFA) for Annual 
Report-2018.

2017

26.01.2017
Obtained license from 
Bangladesh Bank for 
Centralizing 
International Trade and 
Foreign Exchange 
Transactions 

04.03.2017
Launching of ‘Priority 
Banking Products’ 
“ESTEEM”

05.04.2017
Southeast Bank 
distributed Green 
Award

20.05.2017
Organized Scholarship 

challenged meritorious 
students

25.05.2017
Launching of Payment 
Gateway

25.11.2017

for the best Corporate 
Governance among 
private sector banks by 
Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of 
Bangladesh (ICAB)

30.11.2017
Received Silver Award 
for Corporate 
Governance 
Excellence, 2016” by 
The Institute of 
Chartered Secretaries 
of Bangladesh (ICSB)

21.12.2017
Establishment of 
Cafeteria for Safe food 
for Bank’s employees

2020

01.01.2020
Inauguration of Online 
Training and 
Examination for the 
Employees of the Bank.

02.01.2020
Launching of EMV VISA 
Dual Currency Debit 
Card

08.02.2020
Won the “Top Ten 
Remittance Award 
2020” for its 
Outstanding Remittance 
Services to the Non 
Resident Bangladeshi 
(NRB) in the year 2019 
at the inauguration of 
World Conference 
Series 2020 (WCS 
2020).

18.02.2020
Launching of integrated 
vending station for 
providing Prepaid Meter 
Recharge Service to the 
subscribers of DESCO

08.03.2020
Bangladesh Bank 
awarded 1st prize for 
outstanding 
contribution in Financial 
Inclusion activities

19.03.2020
Inauguration of Mujib 
Corner

21.09.2020
Opening of Credit Card 
Center

26.11.2020
Awarded for excellence 
in MasterCard Prepaid 
Business and 
MasterCard Online 
Acquiring Business 
2019-2020 Category.

22.12.2020
Launching of new 
Payroll Banking services 
named “Beton Card and 
Beton Plus Card” for 
Corporate Clients.
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LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL

All Shareholders of Southeast Bank Limited, 

Bangladesh Bank, 

Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission, 

Financial Reporting Council,

Registrar of Joint Stock Companies and Firms, 

Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited and

Chittagong Stock Exchange Limited

Annual Report of Southeast Bank Limited for the Year-2020

Dear Sir(s),

Thank you for supporting us in the preceding years. It is our immense 

pleasure to lay before you the Bank’s Annual Report-2020 along with the 

Audited Financial Statements (consolidated and solo) as at and for the year 

ended December 31, 2020. The Annual Report-2020 of the Bank comprises 

Cash Flow Statement along with notes to the Accounts. We hope that the 

report will be of use to you today and tomorrow.

Best regards,

Yours sincerely,

A.K.M. Nazmul Haider 
Company Secretary
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FORWARD LOOKING
STATEMENTS
This annual report may contain projections, estimates, 

forecasts, targets, opinions, prospects, results, returns and 

condition, results of operations, capital position, business and 

anticipated actions of the Bank. These statements are not 

historical facts, but include statements about Bank’s beliefs 

and expectations or possibilities. These statements are not 

guarantees of future performance and undue reliance should 

not be placed on them. Such forward-looking statements 

necessarily involve known and unknown risks and 

uncertainties, which may cause actual performance and 

projections of future performance or result expressed or 

implied by such statements. Few of the factors that may affect 

the overall business condition of the Bank can be as follows:

 Changes in domestic and global economy 

 Natural calamities and political disturbances

 Changes in consumer behavior, technologies, 

commodity price levels

 Changes in interest rates both in lending and 

deposits

 Changes in legal and regulatory framework locally 

and internationally

 Withdrawal of incentives given to any sector

We caution that the foregoing list of risk factors is not 

exhaustive and other factors could also adversely affect our 

results. When relying on our forward-looking statements to 

make decisions with respect to us, investors and others 

should carefully consider the foregoing factors and other 

uncertainties and potential events. The Bank will not 

undertake any obligation to revise or update any one of the 

forward-looking statements contained in this report, 

regardless of whether those statements are affected as a 

result of new information, future events or otherwise. These 

statements are valid only for the date of publication as 

external factors can materially change after publication date. 

The Bank is not obliged to publicly revise the statement if 

such changes occur following the publication of the report.
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NOTICE OF THE
26TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
Notice is hereby given to all Members of Southeast Bank Limited that the 26th Annual General Meeting of the 
Shareholders of the Company will be held virtually by on  
to transact the following businesses and adopt necessary resolutions:

AGENDA:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended   

 December 31, 2020 together with the Reports of the Directors’ and Auditors’ thereon.

3. To elect / re-elect Directors of the Bank.

6. Miscellaneous, if any, with the permission of the chair. 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                By order of the Board

                                                                                                                                                                                                        A.K.M. Nazmul Haider
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                     Company Secretary

NOTES:

a) The “Record Date” was on  The Shareholders whose name would appear in the CDS/Register of 
Members of the Company on Record date will be eligible to attend/participate in the Annual General Meeting through 
Digital Platform and received dividend.

b) Shareholders entitled to attend/participate and vote at the Annual General Meeting, may appoint a proxy to attend and 

irdsebl@southeastbank.com.bd of the bank not later than 48 hours before the meeting.

c) Annual Report-2020 of the Bank containing among other papers and Notice of the AGM will be sent in soft form to the 

Report-2020 will also be available in the Bank’s website at: www.southeastbank.com.bd 

d) Pursuant to the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission’s Order No.SEC/SRMIC/94-231/91 dated March 31, 
2021, the AGM will be held virtually (using digital platform), which will be conducted via live webcast.

e) The Shareholders will join the virtual AGM through the link: https://southeastbank.bdvirtualagm.com. The Shareholders 
will be able to submit their questions/comments before commencement of the AGM and during the AGM. For login to the 

number and other credential as proof of their identity by visiting the Link: https://southeastbank.bdvirtualagm.com The 
detailed participation process for the Digital Platform Meeting will also be available in the Bank’s website: 
www.southeastbank.com.bd

f) For any IT related guidance and help with the login process, the respective members may contact at +8801918615100, 
+88 01700706532 or visit www.southeastbank.com.bd

(e-TIN), Bank Account Number, E-mail Address, Cell Phone No., Mailing Address and other related information through 
their respective Depository Participants (DP).

h) As per Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission’s Circular No.SEC/CMRRCD/2009-193/154 dated October 

than in the form of cash dividend or stock dividend, shall be paid to the holders of equity securities” for attending the 26th 
Annual General Meeting of the Bank.

Dated: Dhaka
June 08, 2021
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VIRTUAL AGM
ATTENDANCE PROCEDURE
Southeast Bank Limited convened its 26th AGM virtually through digital platform on  in 
compliance with BSEC’s Order No.SEC/SRMIC/94-231/25 dated 8 July 2020; BSEC/CMRRCD/2009-193/08 dated 10 
March, 2021 and SEC/SRMIC/94-231/91 dated March 31, 2021 respectively.

Shareholders/Members are requested to attend/participate in the Bank’s 26th AGM by considering following procedures:

through the link:  please call before 
or during the AGM to +8801918615100, +8801700706532 or visit 

This section will show agenda for the meeting with options for 
proposing, seconding, agreeing or disagreeing of individual agenda.

This section will show the webcast of the virtual AGM by using 
digital platform

Please click on the link and put your 16-digit BOID/Folio number 
and other credential as proof of your identity to login in the system.

Bank Limited as on “Record Date” i.e Thursday, June 03, 2021. 

Please visit link:  from your 
Desktop /Laptop/Smartphone.

This section will show the total attendance of present shareholders 
and shareholdings at their possession.

This section will preserve your questions / comments before commencement 
of the AGM and during the AGM, additional to send queries and comments 
directly to irdsebl@southeastbank.com.bd or in writing.

Southeast Bank Limited will try to answer all relevant questions during the 
live Q & A session of the AGM, but reserves the right to edit and/or reject 
questions if it deems irrelevant or inappropriate.

Step - 1

Step - 2

Step - 3

Sections
of the AGM

Website

Login 
Procedure

Live Streaming

Attendance with 
No. of Share

Agenda List

Technical Guidance

Register of
Questions or

Comments

Created by popcornartsfrom the Noun Project

Date:
Wednesday,
June 30, 2021

Time:
11:00 AM
Dhaka Live Webcast:

https://southeastbank.bdvirtualagm.com
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Bismillahir Rahmanir Rahim

Dear Shareholders,

It is indeed a great pleasure and privilege for me to welcome 
you all to the 26th Annual General Meeting of Southeast Bank 
Limited. On behalf of the Board of Directors and myself, I 
would like to express my cordial thanks and gratitude for your 
continued patronization, co-operation and support to attain 
Bank’s sustained success by overcoming all challenges. I am 
delighted to present before you the Annual Report of the 
Bank for the year 2020 along with the Audited Financial 

the steady performance of the Bank for your review and 
approval.  

1. Bank’s Performance in 2020

The COVID-19 pandemic has severely affected all areas of 
economic activities throughout the world. Inspite of that, the 
Bank has registered steady growth in all key areas of business 
by the grace of Almighty Allah.

Bank’s total Asset increased by 10.18 percent in line with the 
Bank’s policy of maintaining optimum liquidity. Liquid Assets 
to total Assets stood at 6.08 percent at the end of 2020. 
During the year, adequate focus was put on recovery and 
Liability and Asset Management. It resulted cash recovery 
against NPLs and written off loans BDT 355.34 million and 
BDT 501.43 million respectively in the year 2020. The Bank 
emphasized on restructuring the deposit base to increase the 
portion of the low-cost deposit segment in deposit portfolio 
in order to build up a sustainable deposit base by reducing 
overdependence on big chunk corporate deposits. As a result, 
the bank succeeded in trimming down the high-cost deposit 

base in 2020. In the deposit composition of the Bank, the 
cost-free and low cost deposit reached 41.97 percent from 
35.69 percent as compared to last year. The total deposits of 
the Bank, including Islamic Banking deposits increased by 
9.20 percent over that of last year. It led to a prudent Loan to 
Deposit Ratio of  80.26 percent. The Net Interest Margin of 

of the Bank for the year 2020 was BDT. 2,149.10 million. 
Investment income during the year 2020 had a visible growth 

contribution of investment income to Bank’s total income is a 

asset increased by 10.18 percent from BDT 422.31 billion to 
BDT 465.29 billion over the last year and Shareholders’ 
Equity stood at BDT 29.70 billion in 2020. 

Towards the end of the 1st quarter of the year 2020, the 
outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic created unprecedented 
global crisis and disruption in international trade and 
business. Like all other sectors the banking industry as a 
whole has also been facing tremendous challenges emanating 
from the pandemic. 

The net interest margin of the Bank has narrowed and dealing 
spread squeezed. To maintain sustainability of Bank’s growth 

options and a preferred priority. We are trying to increase 
low and no-cost deposit in our deposit-mix through reducing 
the portion of high cost corporate deposit. We are trying to 
increase fee-based income. We have taken initiatives to make 

MESSAGE FROM THE
OFFICE OF THE CHAIRMAN

Southeast Bank Limited began its journey in 1995 and held excellent position consecutively over the 

Due to our long presence and successful journey over the last 26 years, we have been able to deepen 
our relationship with our valued customers. We started the year with the expectation to achieve 
higher growth in all the parameters. The sudden outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic since the 
beginning of 2020, however has severely affected all economic activities throughout the world. 
Governments worldwide have taken appropriate measures to contain the devastating impact of the 
pandemic on human lives and economic well being of the people at large. All economic projections 

countries across the world. 

Alamgir Kabir, FCA
Chairman
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measures to minimize operating cost and enhance employee 
productivity. 

We are migrating our customers to electronic banking and 
providing them various services through online banking, SMS 

awareness among our employees about the need for 
automation of our services through adoption of latest 
technology. Our stringent cost management has bolstered 

According to an analysis of different banks’ cost-to income 
ratio, Southeast Bank Limited was adjudged as the most 

Southeast Bank’s Cost-to Income Ratio was less than 37.58 
percent, meaning that it had to spend BDT 0.38 for BDT 1.00 

cost to income ratio was 39.98 percent in 2020. Bank’s per 

was BDT 15.92 million in 2020.

3. Corporate Governance Practices in SEBL

Our Corporate Governance is the framework of rules and 
practices by which the Board of Directors of the Bank 
ensures accountability, fairness and transparency in the 
Bank’s relationship with its all stakeholders. The Bank’s 
Corporate Governance policies are updated time to time in 
order to comply with the proper governance principles and 
relevant regulatory requirements. Backed with a strong 

visionary bank, the Board of Directors committed to ensure 
highest standards of corporate governance throughout the 
organization with the objectives of safeguarding and 
enhancing the shareholders’ value and performance of the 
Bank.

The Board of Directors exerts governance over all employees 
including the Managing Director. It makes sure that the 
business operations of the Bank adhere to all applicable rules 
of corporate governance and regulatory requirements. This 
governance culture is included in its own customer values, 
policies and laws relating to its employees from the highest to 
the lowest level. The intent is to increase the accountability of 
the company and avoid any deviation before they occur. The 
Board’s supervision results in a clear and more ethical 
organization and makes the Bank appealing to the customers 
and investors. The Bank has always acknowledged the rights 
of all its stakeholders through focusing on creating and 
delivering sustainable shareholder value and adhering 
strictly to the regulatory guideline on corporate governance. 
An elaborate report on Corporate Governance is appended in 
this Annual Report.

4. Enhanced Customer Relationship

We pay utmost attention to the interests of our customers. 

customers. We have a wide range of products and services and 
we continuously redesign our products to meet the changing 
customer demand at a competitive price. We provide 
integrated banking services to different segments of client 
portfolio including individuals, small and medium enterprises 
(SMEs) and corporate bodies.

Unfortunately, there is no single formula for success for 
customer engagement in banking. Customer engagement 
cannot be achieved in a day, week or a month. It is the 
foundation of a relationship that includes trust, service 
diversity, customer service skills, customer interactions, 
proactive customer service strategy etc. SEBL builds trust of 
customers before selling its products. To increase customer 
touch points in terms of Branches, Sub-branches, Agent 
banking points, Mobile banking system, ATM Booths, POS 
machines our priority will be to reach the potential segments 

of currently unbanked segments of the community. All of 

processes supported by integrated and scalable IT Systems. 
We will invest more in information technology for secured 
and advanced digitalization process and create multi tasking 
delivery channels. Our resources will go into system security 
to protect our customers and we will work closely with the 

believe that we are becoming a Financial Partner of the 
customers and our customers strongly agree that their bank 

more enjoyable and secure. 

5. Coping with Change of Business Scenario

Change is a natural phenomenon in the corporate arena. The 
Bank has always been willing to use new technology in a bid to 

arising from the changing business environment, the Bank 
sets its strategies and policies to meet the demand of 
competitive environment. We are shaping our business 
model through integrating new technology based on market 
demand. Now, we are in a position to utilize every single bit of 
information to serve our clients for pursuit of Bank’s business 

are linked with our commitment to achieve excellence in 
service, pragmatic planning, right choice of cutting-edge 
technologies and innovative business models. We always 
emphasize the importance of required investment in 
information technology and innovation for sustainable 
business growth.

6. Societal Relationship

We believe that a stable environment and a strong economy 
are correlated and preconditions of progress of the country. 
The Bank is closely related with the communities where it 
runs its business. We always extend our hands towards 
underprivileged groups of the society and consistently 
promote social and economic upliftment of the people at the 
hour of need. Our focus is on sports, arts & culture, education 
and entrepreneurship as well as on identifying the links 
between them. We launched and contributed in different 
programs with the desire to generate more social impact 
through our activities. Our CSR goes far beyond charity and 
the engagements of our CSR are steadily increasing in depth 

greening the internal practices and processes, and in lending 
to environment friendly projects.

We acknowledge our social responsibility well and align our 
business strategies with our culture. We created Southeast 
Bank Green Foundation to carry out CSR related activities in the 
most organized way. We are serving the society as part of our 
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Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) by giving stipends to poor 
and meritorious students, distributing warm clothes to winter-hit 
people and contributing to the different relief funds for 
under-privileged people. In the year 2020, we spent                                    
BDT 260.50 million for activities related to CSR which is inclusive of 
the CSR expenditures incurred by Southeast Bank Green 
Foundation. Southeast Bank Limited (SEBL) acted both promptly 
and responsibly by adapting to the ‘new normal’ situation and 
successfully implemented some relevant crisis management 
practices in the pandemic period. In alignment with the 
Government’s strategies to contain the immediate effect of 
COVID-19, SEBL as a trustworthy brand redirected its CSR funds 
for donation of BDT 108.28 million to the Prime Minister’s Relief 
and Welfare Fund through Bangladesh Association of Banks (BAB). 
The Bank also prioritized the containment of spread of COVID-19 
pandemic in different ways by providing fund and 
safety/disinfectant materials.

7. Outlook

Southeast Bank Limited began its journey in 1995 and held 
excellent position consecutively over the years. It earned good 

shareholders. Due to our long presence and successful journey 
over the last 26 years, we have been able to deepen our relationship 
with our valued customers. We started the year with the 
expectation to achieve higher growth in all the parameters. The 
sudden outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic since the beginning 
of 2020, however has severely affected all economic activities 
throughout the world. Governments worldwide have taken 
appropriate measures to contain the devastating impact of the 
pandemic on human lives and economic well being of the people at 
large. All economic projections depend on how long the pandemic 

countries across the world. Almost all major indicators of the 

pandemic. Bangladesh Government has proactively ramped up 
various actions and declared wide ranging stimulus packages 
involving Tk. 1.24 lac crore, about 4.4% of GDP, to contain the 
adverse impact on human life and economy at large. In addition to 
the above stimulus packages, the Govt. has also been scaling up 
allocations for Social Safety Net (SSN) Programmes and taking new 
initiatives to minimize the sufferings of the poor, unemployed and 
marginalized people.   Bangladesh has shown strong resilience and 
successfully adopted proactive measures compared to many other 
countries in containing the adverse impact of the pandemic and has 

has been estimated at 8.20%. 

Despite all uncertainties and challenges, we will continue to strive to 

our business network with the main focus on creating wealth for 
shareholders. We shall protect and treat equitably the interests of 
all stakeholders. We identify the tone of our business intelligence. 
We are deeply committed to deliver our promise. We shall continue 
to enhance our unique capability and competitive advantage. Our 
pursuit of growth will be driven by new avenues of investment, new 

We have understood ever-changing needs of customers. We hope 

to continue setting high standard of excellence in our products, 
services and innovation.

We expect a better future for our bank in 2021 based on the 
progress of the national economy. We strive for continuous 
improvement. We plan to maintain our discipline and further 

technology. We will continue to capitalize on our strengths, 
overcome vulnerabilities, exploit opportunities and reduce threats 
to reach new heights of operational excellence. The Board of 
Directors of the Bank expects further progress in the coming years. 

innovation and modern technology to provide them with 

commitment to navigate the Bank in the right direction with hope 
and faith in Almighty Allah.

8. Acknowledgement

I express my gratitude once again to the Almighty Allah for the 
business success of the Bank in 2020 despite a very competitive 
and unfavorable business environment resulting from the 
COVID-19 pandemic. I also take the opportunity to thank fellow 
Members of the Board of Directors of the Bank for their generous 
co-operation with great personal commitments and support during 
the year under review. Their collective wisdom substantially 
contributed to our success. I also thank our Managing Director 
along with his team for their commitment, dedication, loyalty, 
support and relentless efforts for Bank’s qualitative and 
quantitative improvements. I respect their zeal to work hard to 
attain a new level of excellence and dynamism. Our shareholders’ 

and development. We thank them for their support and 
co-operation.

I convey my special thanks to the Government of the People’s 
Republic of Bangladesh, Bangladesh Bank, Bangladesh Securities 

Companies and Firms, Financial Reporting Council, Dhaka Stock 
Exchange Limited, Chittagong Stock Exchange Limited and all other 
connected bodies for their continued support. I also like to express 
my thanks to all of our customers, patrons, well-wishers for their 
continued support, co-operation and guidance that are our 
constant source of encouragement in the days ahead. We reiterate 

and result-oriented in all our endeavors and in return seek their 
continued co-operation.

I also thank the respected shareholders for attending the 26th 
Annual General Meeting and contributing meaningfully to the 
deliberations and adoption of resolutions against the agenda.

compassion and blessings. 

Allah Hafez. 

With warm regards, 

Alamgir Kabir, FCA
Chairman
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M. Kamal Hossain

MESSAGE FROM THE
MANAGING DIRECTOR
I would like to express our gratefulness to the Medical professionals, Health workers, individuals 
contributing to keep total supply chain operative, Journalists and law enforcement agencies for the 
unstinted support and contribution during the course of Covid-19 which helped Bangladesh to sail 
through this global turbulence. I deeply mourn the death of individuals in the pandemic especially 

families with the courage and strength to bear the loss. 

I take this opportunity to express our deepest gratitude to our customers and business partners for 
their continued cooperation and support, the honorable members of the Board for their valuable 
suggestions and advice, and the Government and the Central Bank for their timely guidance. I thank 
the shareholders and other stake holders for their continued patronage and trust in the organization. 
I convey my appreciation to the committed staff members for their dedication and relentless effort to 
translate the vision of Southeast Bank into a reality.

I would like to express my heartfelt gratitude to the Almighty 
Allah for enabling us to achieve a sustainable growth in the 
year of the Pandemic. In 2020, the macro-economic, social and 
business landscapes have undergone substantial changes due 
to looming threat of pandemic, some of which are still 
gradually unfolding. Southeast Bank is navigating through 
these challenges and adapting to the changing socio-economic 
dynamics with great resilience owing to its strong core 
fundamentals. With business expansion strategy, strong 
network and sound client base, focused efforts to cleanse the 

Bank continues its journey towards excellence. 

The rampant spread of COVID-19 Pandemic, across borders 
and geographies, has severely impacted all sectors and all 
aspects of human lives. The Covid-19 pandemic caused 
breakdown of healthcare system, job cuts, collapse in equity 
market and simultaneous disruptions to both supply and 
demand in an interconnected world economy. Amongst 
others, the US, Europe and Latin American economies are the 
worst sufferers. The IMF, ADB and World Bank unanimously 
expressed uncertainty on the growth of the world economy. 
The IMF described the deterioration as the worst since the 
Great Depression of the 1930s.

In the backdrop of global depression and despite 
uncontrollable external factors, Bangladesh has demonstrated 
strong resilience in combating the pandemic especially in terms 

rate. Resultantly, the domestic economy expanded at 5.24% in 
FY2019-2020. The agriculture sector, strong remittance 

domestic growth. In the backdrop of enormous challenges, the 
efforts of the Government of Bangladesh to deal with these 

undertaken some crucial and effective measures to tackle the 
negative impacts of the pandemic including providing stimulus 
packages of more than Taka one lakh crore, mainly as credit 
support to the most affected and employment generating 
sectors of the country. Besides, aiming at keeping money supply 
steady and exchange rate stable, the Central Bank and 
Government of Bangladesh have also taken several pro-active 
measures, such as reduction in repo rate, reduction of cash 
reserve ratio (CRR) and increase of the advance-deposit ratio 

interest subsidy, regulatory forbearance of NPL treatment and 

etc. Overall the Government has adopted appropriate and 

and to steer the economy to a  sustainable growth trajectory.  
Southeast bank has played a major role in disbursing the fund 
under stimulus packages to the affected business segments of 
the country with a view to executing the government’s bailout 
plan. 

interest rate made it even harder for the Banks to maintain 

sustainable growth. But it is heartening to note that the core 

fundamentals of Southeast Bank continue to be strong. The 

Bank maintained its thrust on business expansion, favorable  

business mix and improving asset quality in 2020. Some of the 

key performance indicators of the Bank in 2020 are –

• The gross loans and advances of the Bank registered 

a growth of 8.59% to reach BDT 322,251.46 million 

and total deposit registered a growth of 9.20% to 

reach BDT 359,535.94 million.
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level of 8.94% in 2019 to 7.19% in 2020 due to 
capping of interest rate. However, Cost of deposits 
has been brought down from 6.52% in 2019 to 
5.31% in 2020. 

• The Bank remains adequately capitalized, with 
Capital Adequacy Ratio, under Basel III at 14.35 % as 
on December 31, 2020 against the regulatory 
requirement of 12.50% including capital 
conservation buffer of 2.50%.

• The bank has been successful in widening its 
network across Bangladesh with 135 branches 

17 Sub branches and 277 ATMs. In order to increase 
its distribution footprint and enhance the Bank’s 
ability to mobilize more deposits the Bank has 
established 17 Sub Branches in 2020.

The dedicated workforce of Southeast Bank remained at the 
forefront of the country’s battle against the Covid-19 pandemic. 
Our 2850 plus employees have exhibited true commitment and 
have walked extra mile to remain fully functional and available to 

exigency. The alternative delivery channels of the bank were also 
fully and effectively utilized. 

In order to achieve our sustainable long-term growth 
ambitions and to safeguard the interests of stakeholders, we 
put faith in prudent capital and liquidity management with 
sound risk management, high level of compliance and 
transparent corporate governance. Through continuous 
improvement of the risk management system, including 
automation of feasible process, the bank aims to ensure 
regulatory compliance as well as better return on and 
utilization of capital in line with the business objectives. 

Today, technological innovation and initiatives play a predominant 

excellent customer service. Automation has been driven primarily 
by the escalating use of Smart phones and emerging technologies 

Bank offers the best in class technology services to cater to the 
diverse requirement of its clientele. 

statements of the Bank and its subsidiaries in accordance with 
the guidelines and laws of Bangladesh Financial Reporting 
Standards (BFRSs), the Bank Companies Act & The companies 
act, the Securities and Exchange Rules, the guidelines and 
regulations of Bangladesh Bank and other regulatory 

presentation comparing with prior years’ business 
performance are adequately disclosed in Notes and 
Stakeholders’ information section of the report. 

Looking back on blissful moments gives us comfort and looking 
forward to a new season brings us growth. Now, we are at the 
cross-roads of a new phase where economic activities are 

gradually picking up. Banks however are likely to face many 
challenges at the micro and macro-levels in the post-Covid 
period. In the upcoming days our main challenges are-

• Maintaining and strengthening relationships with 
our better rated Corporates, SME clients by 
increasing our share of their non-funded businesses 
and alongside accelerating healthy credit growth. 

• Maintaining asset quality through managing the threat 
of soaring Non-Performing Loans after withdrawal of 
forbearance of NPL restriction by regulatory authority.

• Keeping the Net Interest Margin (NIM) of the Bank 

interest rate.

• The post pandemic banking scenario would 
unquestionably be different from the present and 
technology would take the dominant charge. Banks 
may have to improve the digital channels and 
e-payment gateways to carry out more transactions 
online.

Bangladesh's economic revival will not only depend on how we 
manage Pandemic and post-Covid period but also how other 
countries recover from their Covid affected economic shocks. 
Thus, the pace and sustainability of Bangladesh's recovery will 
depend on external factors to a large extent. However, we 
hope that, the continuous efforts of business expansion 
coupled with monitoring of asset quality will guide us to the 
path of sustained growth in the upcoming years.

I would like to express our gratefulness to the Medical 
professionals, Health workers, individuals contributing to 
keep total supply chain operative, Journalists and law 
enforcement agencies for the unstinted support and 
contribution during the course of Covid-19 which helped 
Bangladesh to sail through this global turbulence. I deeply 
mourn the death of individuals in the pandemic especially 

departed souls. May Allah bless their families with the courage 
and strength to bear the loss. 

I take this opportunity to express our deepest gratitude to our 
customers and business partners for their continued 
cooperation and support, the honorable members of the 
Board for their valuable suggestions and advice, and the 
Government and the Central Bank for their timely guidance. I 
thank the shareholders and other stake holders for their 
continued patronage and trust in the organization. I convey my 
appreciation to the committed staff members for their 
dedication and relentless effort to translate the vision of 
Southeast Bank into a reality.

Thank You.

M. Kamal Hossain
Managing Director
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Introduction

The Integrated Report (IR) has been prepared with the aim to 

managed its business to deliver consistent value to its 
stakeholders. An integrated report is a concise communication 
about how an organization’s strategy, governance, 
performance and prospects, in the context of its external 
environment, leads to the creation of value in the short, 
medium and long term. 

Southeast Bank Limited has already transformed its integrated 
thinking into a set of disclosures termed as Integrated Report. 
The Bank has always been proactive in its strategies in the form 
of taking into account the integrated thinking in business 
ideology and value creation. The Bank does believe in dealing 
with our clientele with the best practice of responsible banking 
along with the idea of creating sustainable value for its 
stakeholders.

Scope and Boundary of the Report

The Integrated Report covers the period from January 1, 2020 
to December 31, 2020. This report aims to provide a 
transparent and balanced appraisal of the material issues that 
faced our business during the year under review and that 
impacted our ongoing ability to create value. The Financial 
information regarding sustainable value addition has been 
presented in respective segments along with independent 

information regarding the Bank have been demonstrated 
throughout the report in different segments narrated as 

Report etc. Our Integrated Report gives a clear indication of:

- Our business model (pg. ref.25) combining different 
types of capital in the short, medium and long term;

- Strategic focus (pg. ref.32)

- Resource allocation (pg. ref.23)

- Business outlook (pg. ref.17)

- Financial, operational, environmental and social value 
creation activities (pg. ref.148)

- Risk and opportunities through risk management 
disclosures (pg. ref.133), Corporate Governance (pg. 
ref.94) and Sustainable Banking initiatives   (pg. ref.205) 

During preparation of the report there had been no material 

regarding the bank.

INTEGRATED
REPORTING FRAMEWORK

Southeast Bank Limited 
has already transformed 

its integrated thinking 
into a set of disclosures 

termed as Integrated 
Report. The Bank has 

always been proactive in 
its strategies in the form 

of taking into account 
the integrated thinking in 

business ideology and 
value creation. The Bank 

does believe in dealing 
with our clientele with 

the best practice of 
responsible banking 

along with the idea of 
creating sustainable 

value for its stakeholders.
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report to and a major communication interface with our shareholders and stakeholders, and demonstrates the relationship 
between the interdependent elements which comprise our value creation process, in compliance with the requirements of:

Materiality

The authentic and strategic interests of all our key stakeholders have been taken into account in determining information that is 
considered to be material for inclusion in this report. Southeast Bank Limited has always been vigilant in addressing the material 

our performance in the relevant parameters were disclosed considering their materiality in decision making and formulation of 
strategic directions.

Combined Assurance

The Board, with the support of the Audit and Risk Committee, is ultimately responsible for combined assurance by setting the 
direction concerning the arrangements for assurance services and functions. The assurance role providers ensure that ethics and 
e¬ffective risk management are implanted in our internal growth agenda. The bank scrutinizes the details of the reports submitted 
and assures the uniform acceptance of the report by its assurance model comprising of different independent and responsible 
authorities. We do believe that our combined assurance model creates the philosophy that is embedded in every aspect of our 
business.

We have engaged different external assurers and auditors to ensure the credibility of the report.

Financial Statements Audit  Howladar Yunus & Co., Chartered Accountants

Corporate Governance compliance Mahfel Huq & Co., Chartered Accountants

Provident Fund Financial Audit Haque Shah Alam Mansur & Co., Chartered Accountants

Risk Management Assurance Bangladesh Bank

Cash Incentive (ID) Howladar Yunus & Co., Chartered Accountants

TAX Consultant Akhter Abbas Khan & Co.

Credit Rating Agency Credit Rating Information and Services Limited (CRISL)

Chart: Combined Assurance Model of information to Stakeholders

Management
Review

Internal
Audit

External
Audit

Assurance Reporting
integrity

1991 (Amended up to 
2018)

• Bangladesh Bank 
Regulations 1994

       (Amended up to 2020)

• International 

(IAS)

• International 

laws and regulations 
of the bank
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Integrated Capital

Our integrated capitals have substantial impact on our strategic operation. The cycle of integrated thinking and reporting shall 

integrated capitals depicted below has been contributing immensely for the organization to achieve its vision to be a premier 

Integrated
Capital

Human
• Knowledge based 

functioning

• Ensuringmanagerial 
performance

• Proper allocation of duties

• Establishing excellent 
culture

Financial
• Financing and Funding 

managed from depositors 
and investors

• Strong Deposit Base
• Diversed investment 

portfolio
• Steady Interest and non- 

Interest income

Intellectual
• Knowledge Based 

functioning

Development

• Competent Core Banking 
System

Manufactured
• Large number of branches 

• Integrated Network 
providing off the centre 
services

• Convenient Mobile 
Banking and ATM services

Social

Engagement

• Strongadherence to 
Corporate Social 
Obligation

• Consistent contribution to 
the national exchequer

Natural
• Meticulous due diligence 

of Environmental checklist

• EnsuringGreen Banking 
Initiatives

• Incorporating 
Environmental Risk Rating
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Board Responsibility

The Board, along with Audit and Risk Management Committee, acknowledges the responsibility to ensure the integrity of this 
integrated report. The Board believes that all the material issues of the bank have been addressed in the report as well as 
integrated performance of the bank has been presented fairly. 

M. Kamal Hossain
Managing Director

Our brand image in the industry for our 
excellent products and services

Diverse investment portfolio with 
steady payback and ensuring asset 
quality

Preeminent trend of compliance in 
corporate governance and regulatory 
obligations

Clear divergence between Board and 
Management Functions

State of the art technologies offering 
most convenient operation

Pursuit of Disciplined Growth Strategies

Continues of innovation to diversify our 
services

KEY DRIVERS THAT CREATE VALUE TO OUR
ORGANIZATION
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Corporate Philosophy

Our corporate philosophy centers around our corporate mission, business domain and management goals. We devote our talent 
and technology to the creation of value for our stakeholders. Everyday our people bring this philosophy to life and to their work. 
Our philosophy cannot be bound by a few words or issues. Yet we narrate the followings:

Customers

Our company philosophy is simple. It is customer friendly and fully responsive to customer needs and 

leverage technology and expertise to provide the best services and convenience to the customers. We spend 

customer-base has been steadily expanding over the years.

Human Resources

do. Since they enjoy their work, it becomes easy for them to work hard. They do not follow any set model, 

So, they are a part of something noble and purposeful.

Communication

Management Team. The Senior Management Team is also open to ideas suggested by the lower level 

Control Mechanism

Our control mechanism is practiced at all levels. We strive to control the behavior of the employees. Our 

Quality and Productivity

Our philosophy is geared towards boosting productivity and maintaining a reliable high-quality service 
standard. In the process of delivery of service, co-ordination is the essence of our business. Our philosophy is 
to achieve our goals through a combination of budgetary control, pay for performance, incentive system, 
unique corporate culture etc. It continuously stresses key values.

Success

Our people work hard to succeed. Success is a good fortune. It comes from their aspiration, desperation, 
perspiration and inspiration. As our people do more, they earn more and get more. 

Building Future

Our philosophy is to make decisions today to improve performance tomorrow. We know a company which is 
successful has to continue to be successful. We do not fear our future, we shape it by our corporate conduct. 
Our hope is far greater than our fear.

CORPORATE PHILOSOPHY AND
BUSINESS MODEL
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BUSINESS MODEL CANVAS OF
SOUTHEAST BANK LIMITED

  Key Partners

 Customers
 Shareholders
 Employees
 Regulators
 Strategic Partners

 Value
 Proposition

 Complete Solution of Business
 Needs

 One Stop Service for Personal
 Banking

 Innovative Tailor-made Products
 Timely, Cost-effective & Superior

 Services
 Geographically Well-Spread

 Availability

 Customer
 Segments

 Corporate Clients
 Small & Medium Enterprises
 Non-Banking Financial Institutions
 Banks
 Individuals/Retail Clients
 Institutional Clients
 Govt. & Non-Govt. Organizations

  Key Activities

 Deposit Services
 Lending
 International Trade Services
 Remittance Service
 Treasury Solutions
 Islamic Banking Service
 Off-shore Banking

 Cost Structure

 Interest Expense
 Operating Expense
 Capital Expenditure

 Customer Care

 KYC – Know Your Customer
 Personal Visit
 Phone Call/ Email/ SMS
 Automated Services
 Special Campaign
 In-depth Analysis
 Individual Solution
 Continual Review
 Research & Development
 Receiving Feedback

  Key Resources

 Highly Professional &
 Experienced Board

 Nationwide Network
 Worldwide Correspondent

 Network
 Highly Skilled Staff
 Dedicated Service Attitude
 Wide Range of Products
 Strong IT architecture
 Strong Capital Base

 Revenue Streams

 Interest Income
 Investment Income 
 Fees, Commission etc.
 Other Operating Income

 Delivery Channels

 Branches
 ATMs
 Internet Banking 
 Mobile Banking
 Call Center
 Subsidiary Companies
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GENERAL

     I
NFORMATION

REACHING NEW HEIGHTS 27

Southeast Bank Limited  |  Annual Report 2020



REACHING NEW HEIGHTS28

Southeast Bank Limited  |  Annual Report 2020



MISSION STATEMENTS
 

 Customer Service Excellence / Prompt Customer Service.

 Sustainable growth strategy.

 High ethical standards in business.

 Steady return on shareholders’ equity.

 Innovative banking at a competitive price.

 Attraction and retention of quality human resource.

 Commitment to Corporate Social Responsibility.

VISION AND MISSION

VISION
To be a premier banking institution in 

to the national economy.
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STRATEGIC
OBJECTIVES

Maintaining a high-quality assets portfolio to 
achieve strong and sustainable returns and to 
continuously build shareholders’ value.

Maintaining adequate capital in line with risk 
appetite of the Bank.

Strengthening trust and partnerships with 
customers by focusing on the Bank’s core 
values of quality customer service, 
professionalism, teamwork and integrity.

Hiring professionals with strong background 
and knowledge.

Strengthening technologies that reduce 
operational risks and promote the 
implementation of best practices in the 
industry.

Developing innovative products and services 
that attract our targeted customers and market 
segments.

Exploring new avenues for growth and 
in line with all six core risks in banking 
operation, green banking and environmental 
risk management.

compliance processes through meeting all 
regulatory requirements and disclosures in line 
with national and international best practices 
by ensuring best internal control monitoring 
practices.

Upholding Bank’s brand image as a customer 

relationship with our customers.

Serving the society as part of our Corporate 
Social Responsibility (CSR) by giving stipends 
to poor students, distributing warm clothes to 

assistance to disadvantaged people and 
contributing to different relief funds. We also 
contribute to the society by paying taxes to the 
national exchequer timely.

Extending banking services to the un-banked 

socio-economic requirements.
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The Bank had the following plans and road-map for business success in 2020

PRIORITIES
FOLLOWED IN 2020

01

03

02

04

06

05

08

09

07

Prudent Asset Management

Going green in the future of banking
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the execution of our strategy will deliver decent returns for our shareholders, while achieving a balance between 

are set out below-

STRATEGIC
PRIORITIES

Balancing Growth with Stability

 
high governance standards and 
sustainable business practices to create 
value for our stakeholders

 Maintaining robust capital and risk 
management and compliance with the 
three pillars of Basel-III

 Preserving strong capital adequacy levels 
to support business growth in a prudent 
and disciplined manner

 Strengthening the core risks 
management and building resilience

Leading Customer Experiences

 Offering our customers intuitive and 
seamless service  

 Harnessing new technology to create 
innovative solutions for consumers

 Streamlining processes to increase 
productivity and performance and to 
enhance our customers’ satisfaction

 
inclusion and wider market penetration

Culture & Human Capital 
Management

 Fostering a culture of creativity, 
innovation and diversity with an 
emphasis on ethics, training and 
development

 Enabling our people to meet their full 
potential

 Creating stronger leadership and 
building effective relationships and 
collaboration

 Focusing on developing our people 
through continued investment in talent 
management, rotation programs and 
mentoring

Management

 
control

 Business process reengineering (BPR) in 
different Business and operational areas

 Reducing ecological footprint

 Promoting automation, paperless 
banking, e-learning etc.
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OUR CORE VALUES, CORE STRENGTHS 
& CORE COMPETENCIES

Our Values serve as a compass for our action and describe our direction.

Our Core
Values

 Integrity
 Respect
 Fairness
 Harmony
 Team Spirit
 Courtesy
 Commitment
 Service Excellence
 Insight and Spirit
 Enthusiasm for work
 Business Ethics

Core 
Competencies

 Knowledge 
 Experience and Expertise 
 Customer Orientation and Focus 
 Transparency 
 Determination 
 Zeal for Improvement 
 Pursuit of Disciplined Growth Strategies 
 Reliability

Core
Strengths

 Professionally Strong Board of Directors
 Strong Capital Base
 Transparent and Quick Decision Making
 
 
 Effective Internal Control
 Proper Risk Management
 

 Quality Customer Service
 Unique Corporate Culture
 Clean divergence Between Board and 

Management Functions
 Strong Asset Base
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CODE OF CONDUCT
AND ETHICS

A. We adhere to the following Principles in Dealing 
with Customers

 Follow strict ethical banking practices.

 Provide fair treatment to all customers, depositors 
and borrowers without any discrimination.

 Provide speedy customer service at a very 
competitive cost.

 Deal with customers in a transparent manner and 
without any hidden cost.

 Maintain strict secrecy of customer account.

 

 Deal quickly with complaints received from the 
customers. We endeavour continuously to build 
relationship of trust and understanding with our 
customers.

 Give very competitive return to the depositors on 
their investment.

 Listen to our customers and work for improvement 
of customer service as per their suggestion.

 Keep relations with customers on regular basis.

 Keep promises that we make.

 Take competitive service charges and rates.

 Discourage any sort of privilege or gift from 
customer.

B. We believe in the following Principles in Dealing 
with Shareholders

 Adequate disclosure of corporate information and 
operational results to help them take suitable 
investment decisions / options.

 Stable Dividend Policy.

 Dialogue with them and implement their 
suggestions for improvement.

 Equal treatment to all shareholders irrespective of 
their individual size of shareholding.

 Effective Risk Management.

 
reporting and records.

 Restrictions on insider trading.

C. We abide by the following Principles in Dealing 
with our Regulators

 We are transparent in operations and governance.

 We have a culture of timely compliance of 
regulatory requirements.

 We take their suggestions with utmost importance 
and implement those for improvement of our 
corporate governance standard.

 We safeguard information and do not misuse it.

D. We Conform to the following Principles in 
respect of our Employees

 We do not discriminate on grounds of religion, sex 
or race at any stage. We recruit the best on the 
basis of merit under a rigorous recruitment policy 
without any biasness or favoritism to anybody.

 We pay competitive compensation package to the 
really deserving employees.

 We care for our employees and create an 
environment to work together with dignity.

 
for each employee. No one is responsible for 
unassigned jobs.

 We have a zero tolerance for any act of dishonesty.

 We provide a congenial work environment.

 We encourage freedom to our employees to give 
opinion for both qualitative and quantitative 
improvement of the Bank.

 We take care of their health and safety.

 

 Our employees obey code of conduct.

 Professionalism, honesty, integrity and high moral 
and ethical standards are the creed of our 
employees.

Southeast Bank believes that its efforts to become a leading bank in the private sector can only 
be achieved and sustained by creating effective corporate governance, inculcating 
professionalism among its staff and strictly adhering to rules and regulations. We believe that 
our aims and objectives can only be realized fully and sustained over time by adherence to 
ethics that cannot always be built into sets of rules and regulations. This belief in ethics 
motivates the Bank in its dealings with those with whom it interacts.
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COMMITMENTS
TO CLIENTS

E. We uphold the undernoted Principles in respect 
of Society

 We believe that the Bank gets business 
sustenance from the community in which it 
operates and, therefore, it remains 
responsive to the community and the society 
in reciprocity.

 
environment-friendly.

 We provide material support for protection of 
environment.

 We give aid to the poor, helpless and natural 
calamity hit people.

 We support charitable ventures.

 We give sponsorships to sports, culture, 
education, health-care and community 
development ventures.

 We support the women as a community and 
contribute to women empowerment.

 We are keen to move fast for green banking to 
protect environment.

F. We devote to the following Principles in respect 
of National Interest

 We protect national interests.

 We refrain from prohibited business.

 We promote causes for national development.

 We support nation-building efforts from our 
position.

and Medium Scale Enterprises (SMEs), Corporates, Institutions, Government and individual clients through branches across the 

country. Our business initiatives center around the emerging demands of the market. Our commitments to the clients are as 

follows:

 Provide service with high degree of professionalism and use of modern technology. 

 Create long-term relationship based on mutual trust. 

 Respond to customer needs with speed and accuracy. 

 Share their values and beliefs. 

 Grow as our customers grow. 

 Provide products and services at a competitive price. 

 Ensure safety and security of customers’ valuable assets entrusted to us.
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Southeast Bank Limited is a second-generation bank that was 

professional banking services to the people and the business 

to the growth of the national economy.

The Bank’s glorious journey began as a Public Limited 
Company on March 12, 1995 through receiving the 

Registrar of Joint Stock Companies and Firms on that date. 
Its Banking License from the Bangladesh Bank was received 
on March 23, 1995. The Authorized Capital of the Bank 
today is BDT 15,000 million. Its Paid-Up Capital and 
Reserve reached BDT 40,372.53 million as of December 31, 
2020. The Bank has 2,859 Staff of whom 253 were 

of December 31, 2020. 

Southeast Bank was established by leading business 
personalities and eminent industrialists of the country with 
stakes in various segments of the national economy. The 
incumbent Chairman of the Bank is Mr. Alamgir Kabir, FCA, 
a professional Chartered Accountant. SEBL’s Board 

members include eminent individuals with industrial, 

members including 3 independent Directors and Managing 
Director. The Bank’s Managing Director Mr. M. Kamal 
Hossain, a creative, experienced and eminent banker of the 
country with 38 years of experience in banking to his credit. 

create and generate an environment of trust and discipline 
that encourages everybody in the Bank to work together for 
achieving the objectives of the Bank.

It has a diverse array of products and services tailored 
carefully to cater to the needs of all segments of customers. 
The bank’s operational strategies are structured to address 
the special and often complex needs of the customers. In the 

million after provision and income tax in the year 2020. The 
curve keeps soaring upward everyday making it one of the 
leading and most successful banking institutions in 
Bangladesh with a total asset base of BDT 465,293.41 million 
as of December 31, 2020.

CORPORATE
PROFILE

REACHING NEW HEIGHTS36

Southeast Bank Limited  |  Annual Report 2020



Name of the Company  : Southeast Bank Limited

Legal Status : Public Limited Company

Date of Incorporation : March 12, 1995

Company Registration No. : C-27985 (1831)/95

Date of Opening of First Branch : May 25, 1995

Authorized Capital : BDT 15,000 million

Paid Up Capital : BDT 11,889.41 million

VAT Registration No. : 000000248-0002

Chairman  : Alamgir Kabir, FCA

Vice Chairperson : Duluma Ahmed

Chairman, Audit Committee : Syed Sajedul Karim

Chairman, Nomination & Remuneration Committee : Mohammad Delwar Husain

Managing Director : M. Kamal Hossain

Company Secretary  : A.K.M. Nazmul Haider

Auditors : Howladar Yunus & Co., Chartered Accountants

Corporate Governance Compliance Auditor : Mahfel Huq & Co., Chartered Accountants

Tax Consultant : M/S. Akhter Abbas Khan & Co., Chartered Accountants 

Credit Rating Agency : Credit Rating Information and Services Limited (CRISL)

Year of Initial Public Offer : 1999

Number of Employees : 2,859

Number of Branches : 135

Number of Islamic Banking Branches : 05

Number of Ladies Branches : 02

Number of Off-Shore Banking Units : 02

Number of Sub-Branches (Uposhakha) : 17

Number of Foreign Correspondents : 649

Number of Outstanding Shares : 1,188,940,521

Face Value Per Share : BDT 10.00 

Stock Details : Dhaka Stock Exchange (DSE)
  Symbol : SOUTHEASTB, Category: A 
  Listing Date : April 12, 2000,
  Chittagong Stock Exchange (CSE) 
  Symbol : SOUTHEASTB, Category: A , Listing Date : April 24, 2000

  52-53, Dilkusha C/A (Level 2,3,4,6,16&17) 
  Dhaka-1000, Bangladesh 
  Phone: (88-02) 9571115, 7160866, 9555466, 7173793 
  Fax: + 88-02-9550093, Telex: 632425 SBANK BJ 
  SWIFT: SEBDBDDH, E-mail: info@southeastbank.com.bd 
  Website: www.southeastbank.com.bd

Investors’ Enquiry : Investors' Relations Department 
  Eunoos Trade Centre 
  52-53, Dilkusha C/A (Level-2), Dhaka-1000 
  E-mail: irdsebl@southeastbank.com.bd 
  Phone: +88 02 9567271, Mobile: +88 01700706532

Name of the Bank’s Subsidiaries : Southeast Bank Capital Services Limited 
  Southeast Exchange Company (South Africa) Pty Ltd.
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GROUP CORPORATE STRUCTURE OF
SOUTHEAST BANK LIMITED

GROUP CORPORATE

MAIN OPERATIONS

Off-Shore
Banking 

Islamic 
Banking

Conventional
Banking

Southeast Bank Ltd., a 2nd 

generation bank was 
incorporated as a Public 
Limited Company on March 
12, 1995. After receiving 
Banking License, its 1st 

branch was opened on May 
25, 1995. Presently the Bank 
has 135 Branches, 17 Sub- 
Branches & 277 ATMs 
across the Country.
A number of attractive 
Deposits and Loan products 
are available in its product 
basket. SEBL has launched 
Retail Banking, Debit Cards, 
Credit Cards, Mobile 
Banking (Telecash), Ladies 
Branches and 24/7 Call 
Centre to cater to the needs 
of all segments of customers.

Asset Size:

BDT 420,949.43 million
Deposits:

BDT 336,717.57 million
Loans & Advances:

BDT 282,481.10 million

BDT 7,194.51 million

Besides conventional 

Islamic banking Branches 
based on Islamic Shariah 
where Separate Accounting 
system is being maintained.
As a part of strategic 
business plan, Islamic 
Banking Service Desk (IBSD) 
has already been expanded 
to every conventional 
Branch.

Asset Size:

BDT 24,630.16 million
Deposits:

BDT 22,711.17 million
Investment:

BDT 18,408.80 million

BDT 527.43 million

To cater to the demand for 
off-shore banking services, 
Southeast Bank established 
two (02) Off-shore Banking 
Units (OBUs), one in DEPZ 
and the other is CEPZ. SEBL 
OBUs provide a continuum 

FC Account for 
Non-residents, Usance 
Payable At Sight (UPAS) 
Documentary Credit, Time/ 
Term Loan in Foreign 

export-import services etc. 
from 2009.

Asset Size:

BDT 19,502.78 million
Deposits:

BDT 471.14 million
Loans & Advances:

BDT 19,478.26 million

BDT 441.97 million
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HEAD OFFICE

SUBSIDIARIES CSR WING

Southeast Exchange 
Company (South 

Africa) Pty Limited

Southeast Bank Green
Foundation

Southeast Bank 
Capital Services Ltd.

To carry on Merchant 
Banking Operations in a 
structured way, the Bank 
established ‘Southeast Bank 
Capital Services Limited’ as a 
subsidiary company in 2010.

Paid up Capital:

BDT 5,500 million
Ownership Interest in Capital: 

BDT 5,489.93 million
In Percentage:

99.82%
Asset Size:

BDT 6,087.98 million

To collect remittance from 
Bangladeshi expatriates of 
South Africa for their 

through proper Banking 
Channel the Bank 
established ‘Southeast 
Exchange Company (South 
Africa) Pty Limited’ as a 
subsidiary company in 2014.

Paid up Capital:

BDT 37.94 million
Ownership Interest in Capital: 

BDT 37.94 million
In Percentage:

100%
Asset Size:

BDT 141.89 million

To carry out Corporate 
Social Responsibility (CSR) 
related   activities in an 
organized and sustainable 
manner, ‘Southeast Bank 
Green Foundation’ was 
established by the Bank.
It also runs an English 
Medium school named 
Southeast Bank Green 
School at Dhaka.

Total CSR related Expenditure 

under the Foundation in 2020:

BDT 23.46 million
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RISK MANAGEMENT

COMMITTEEEXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

COMPANY SECRETARY

BOARD SECRETARIAT

CREDIT RISK MANAGEMENT CREDIT MONITORING CHIEF RISK OFFICER CHANNEL BANKING

CREDIT CARD
DIVISION

CREDIT ADMINISTRATION
DIVISION

CORPORATE AND LARGE
LOAN

SMALL AND MEDIUM
ENTERPRISE

RETAIL OPERATION
SPECIAL ASSET

MANAGEMENT DIVISION 

CREDIT COMPLIANCE
COMMITTEE

ANTI-MONEY LAUNDERING
AND COMBATING

TECHNOLOGY SECURITY

ALTERNATIVE DELIVERY
CHANNEL DIVISION

CALL CENTER

SOUTHEAST MOBILE

(TELECASH)

INVESTORS’ RELATION
DEPARTMENT

HEAD OF BRANCHES

CORPORATE
ORGANOGRAM

BOARD OF
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY INTERNATIONAL BANKING

HUMAN RESOURCES
DIVISION

INTERNATIONAL DIVISIONINFORMATION TECHNOLOGY
SERVICE MANAGEMENT

MANAGEMENT
INFORMATION SYSTEM

ENTERPRISE SOLUTION

DISASTER RECOVERY SITE

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY
GOVERNANCE

CENTRAL TRADE SERVICES
DEPARTMENT

REMITTANCE DIVISION

CASH MANAGEMENT

TREASURY BACK OFFICE 

OFF-SHORE
BANKING DIVISION

GLOBAL SUBSIDIARY
OPERATION 

LOGISTIC AND GENERAL
SERVICES DIVISION

FINANCIAL CONTROL AND
ACCOUNTS DIVISION

CORPORATE AFFAIRS AND
CORPORATE SOCIAL

RESPONSIBILITY DIVISION

INTERNAL CONTROL AND
COMPLIANCE DIVISION

(MONITORING & COMPLIANCE)

BRANCHES AND GENERAL
BANKING DIVISION

TREASURY DIVISION

TRAINING INSTITUTE

PRIORITY BANKING DIVISION
-  ESTEEM

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT
DIVISION

REGIONAL HEADS

AUDIT AND INSPECTION TEAM

MANAGING DIRECTOR’S
SECRETARIAT

NOMINATION AND
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

SHARIAH SUPERVISORY
COMMITTEE

MANAGING DIRECTOR

DIRECTORS
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LAST 10 YEARS’
FINANCIAL INDICATORS

Authorized Capital

Paid up Capital

Reserve Fund/ Others

Total Capital (Tier-I+Tier-II)

Deposits and other accounts 

Loans & Advances

Investments

Import Business

Export Business

Foreign Remittance

Guarantee Business including ILC

Total Income

Total Expenditure

Fixed Assets 

Total Assets

Earnings per share (BDT)

Dividend 

Cash

Stock 

Net Assets Value Per Share

Return on Equity 

Return on Assets

Capital to Risk Weighted Assets Ratio

Banking

Non Banking

PARTICULARS

 15,000.00

 11,889.41

 28,483.13

 40,372.53

 359,535.94

 322,251.46

 97,073.89

 221,823.40

 176,419.60

 129,887.10 

 16,688.30

 33,539.64

 25,275.08

 8,264.56

 2,149.10

 9,714.97

 465,293.41

 1.81

10%

10%

 - 

 24.98

7.14%

0.47%

3.10%

14.35%

309

649

 31,881

 2,859

 2,381

478

 135

2020

15,000.00

11,599.42

24,493.91

36,093.33

329,250.27

296,752.96

77,310.04

248,901.33

205,907.10

138,272.00

16,470.30

36,392.61

27,409.63

8,982.98

2,508.56

9,333.66

422,312.71

2.11

10%

7.50%

2.50%

26.29

8.56%

0.62%

4.87%

11.52%

305

642

32,416

2,885

2,402

483

135

2019

 15,000.00 

10,544.93

 28,315.19 

 38,860.11 

 298,334.79 

 267,671.63 

 65,609.55 

 242,294.80 

 190,402.80 

 116,803.00 

 22,420.12 

33,739.81

 23,956.82 

 9,783.00 

 2,473.21 

 9,337.30 

 381,575.68 

 2.13 

10%

 -   

10%

 26.66 

9.17%

0.69%

5.87%

12.38%

285

644

 33,851 

2,797

2,305

492

135

2018

 15,000.00 

 9,169.50 

 24,595.63 

 33,765.13 

 269,828.08 

 234,316.72 

 62,911.04 

 215,379.77 

 167,562.98 

 95,405.43 

 16,407.09 

 27,305.90 

 18,243.60 

 9,062.30 

 1,168.63 

 9,321.80 

 339,288.05 

1.11

15%

 -   

15%

28.16

4.46%

0.37%

5.99%

10.84%

265

825

 36,038 

 2,704

2,194

510

132

2017
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 15,000.00 

 9,169.50 

 24,886.78 

 34,056.28 

 229,973.43 

 191,865.59 

 61,731.63 

 171,531.73 

 146,606.09 

 64,665.84 

 16,369.36 

 25,617.57 

 17,114.35 

 8,503.22 

 2,435.07 

 8,947.16 

 291,798.01 

 2.66 

20%

20%

28.93

9.06%

0.88%

4.89%

12.15%

 248 

 807 

 39,009 

 2,616

2,089

527

 128 

2016

 15,000.00 

 9,169.50 

 19,340.03 

 28,509.53 

 210,431.09 

 168,878.46 

 58,829.27 

 151,812.58 

 126,423.89 

 60,708.50 

 15,245.19 

 26,260.72 

 18,226.45 

 8,034.27 

 3,069.42 

 7,885.23 

 260,718.03 

3.35

15%

15%

 -   

29.67

11.86%

1.23%

4.25%

11.52%

220

811

 46,285 

 2,376

1,889

487 

122

2015

 15,000.00 

 9,169.50 

 18,292.59 

 27,462.09 

 189,472.54 

 147,070.81 

 56,378.59 

 155,691.00 

 112,137.60 

 48,740.50 

 13,603.30 

 27,667.10 

 19,377.34 

 8,289.76 

 3,836.94 

 7,913.00 

 236,608.40 

 4.18 

15%

15%

 -   

26.77

16.51%

1.67%

3.64%

12.41%

211

791

 58,169 

 2,221

1,780

441

 113

2014

 10,000.00 

 8,732.86 

 13,074.71 

 21,807.57 

 177,519.46 

 134,863.82 

 57,589.06 

 131,644.82 

 95,220.40 

 39,299.10 

 17,226.41 

 26,918.30 

 20,218.11 

 6,700.20 

 3,378.82 

 7,795.65 

 220,930.85 

 3.68 

21%

16%

5%

23.92

16.20%

1.64%

3.94%

10.90%

211

778

 65,413 

 2,118

1,704

414 

103

2013

 10,000.00 

 8,732.86 

 10,864.68 

 19,597.54 

 152,901.24 

 126,968.97 

 39,011.28 

 111,537.50 

 84,464.20 

 41,455.40 

 21,506.65 

 23,134.18 

 17,638.99 

 5,495.19 

 1,648.72 

 7,677.51 

 191,276.30 

 1.89 

15%

15%

 -   

22.66

8.42%

0.95%

4.47%

10.87%

183

691

 64,060 

 2,010

1,655

355 

94

2012

 10,000.00 

 8,317.01 

 10,683.05 

 19,000.06 

 127,178.22 

 107,288.56 

 29,846.60 

 99,509.01 

 75,982.06 

 49,544.10 

 25,673.90 

 19,931.91 

 13,846.24 

 6,085.67 

 1,912.19 

 7,373.11 

 158,078.59 

 2.19 

20%

15%

5%

23.30

10.47%

1.32%

3.51%

11.46%

161

654

 68,039 

 1,848

1,526

322 

84

2011

BDT in Million
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THE BOARD COMPOSITION,

ITS COMMITTEES AND

DIRECTORS’ PROFILE
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Mr. Alamgir Kabir, FCA
Chairman

Mrs. Duluma Ahmed
Vice Chairperson

Mr. M. A. Kashem 
Director

Mr. Azim Uddin Ahmed
Director

 Mrs. Jusna Ara Kashem
Director

Mrs. Rehana Rahman
Director

Mr. Md. Akikur Rahman
Director

Mr. Raiyan Kabir
Director

Bay Leasing & Investment Limited 
(Represented by  Mr. M. Maniruz Zaman Khan)

Director

Mr. Syed Sajedul Karim
Independent Director

Dr. Quazi Mesbahuddin Ahmed 
Independent Director

Mr. Mohammad Delwar Husain
Independent Director

Mr. M. Kamal Hossain 
Managing Director

Mr. Zakir Ahmed Khan
Advisor

BOARD OF
DIRECTORS
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COMMITTEES OF THE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive
Committee

Mr. Alamgir Kabir, FCA  Chairman

Mr. M. A. Kashem  Member

Mr. Azim Uddin Ahmed   Member

Mr. Md. Akikur Rahman   Member

Mr. Mohammad Delwar Husain Member

Mr. M. Kamal Hossain  Member

Risk
Management

Committee

Mr. Alamgir Kabir, FCA  Chairman

Mr. M. A. Kashem  Member

Mr. Azim Uddin Ahmed   Member

Mr. Syed Sajedul Karim Member

Audit
Committee

Mr. Syed Sajedul Karim Chairman

Mrs. Duluma Ahmed  Member

Mrs. Jusna Ara Kashem   Member

Mrs. Rehana Rahman   Member

Dr. Quazi Mesbahuddin Ahmed Member
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 Chairman

 Member

Mr. M. Kamaluddin Chowdhury Member

Mr. Alamgir Kabir, FCA Member

Mr. M. A. Kashem Member

Mr. Azim Uddin Ahmed Member

Mr. M. Kamal Hossain Member

Shariah
Supervisory
Committee

Nomination and
Remuneration

Committee

Mr. Mohammad Delwar Husain Chairman

Mr. Alamgir Kabir, FCA Member

Mr. Azim Uddin Ahmed Member
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Alamgir Kabir, FCA 
Chairman

Mr. Alamgir Kabir, FCA was born on December 28, 1947. He 

knowledge in Auditing, Accounting, Banking, Insurance and 
Financial Institutions both at home and abroad. 

the Executive Committee and Risk Management Committee 

Mr. Kabir started his career in the year 1969 with Rahman 
Rahman Huq and Co., Chartered Accountants, Member Firm 

Bangladesh Bank. He moved to Riyadh, Saudi Arabia in 1979 
with assignment in Saudi Accounting Bureau, Chartered 

Rowland International and Inbucon International Ltd., as 

Bangladesh in 1993 with assignment in Bangladesh 

During his stay with BSEC, he substantially contributed to 

Institution, Insurance and Capital Market related Institutions 
and others.

brother Late Shahjahan Kabir was the Founder Chairman. 

Bank and contributed to its rapid growth. 

with Banks, Insurances and Financial Institutions. He is 

many social organizations where he is working very silently 

person across the globe.

DIRECTORS’
PROFILE
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Mrs. Duluma Ahmed was born on July 7, 1947. She hails 

Mutual Food Products Limited and Mutual Milk Products 

Agencies and Mutual Logistics Service Limited. Mrs. Duluma 

joint venture between Mutual Milk Products and Arla Foods 
generously contributing to the poor and the needy section 

Europe, USA and also Australia.

Duluma Ahmed
Vice Chairperson
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M. A. Kashem
Director

Mr. M.A. Kashem

Foundation. He has served as its Chairperson thrice and was 

Committee several times.

Bangladesh (APUB) which represented all Private Universities 

ear, nose and throat services to destitute and poor patients. He 

education, distinguished philanthropist and an active social 

promoting higher Education. 

delegation to Far Eastern Countries in the year 1986. He was 

U.S.A. and Canada sponsored by the UNDP in 1987 and 

many times on his own business, led FBCCI trade delegations 
and also North South University.

organization. The Trust also awarded stipends and 
scholarships to the meritorious students during the last couple 

As a philanthropist, Mr. Kashem set up Kashem Complex at 
Darogarhat, Chhagalnaiya which contents Madrashsa, 
Masjid, Eidgah, Public Graveyard and other training Centers 

Baridhara Cosmopolitan Club Limited, Gulshan Club Limited, 

Bangladesh Diabetic Association, Dhaka, Bangladesh Red 
Crescent Society and Shishu Hospital, Chittagong.
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Mr. Azim Uddin Ahmed was born on June 30, 1940. He is a 

Committee and Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

Trading Company Limited, AD Holdings Limited and Chairman 

Departmental Store and Mutual Distribution and Silonia 

associations devoted to social work. He was the past 

Industry (FBCCI) and Bangladesh Indenting Agents 

including China and many others on Govt. and private trade 
delegations. He is a widely travelled person across the globe. 

Azim High School, Fatema Farzana Kindergarten and Azim 
Uddin Ahmed Forkania Madrasha in his village. He has 

Azim Uddin Ahmed
Director

REACHING NEW HEIGHTS52

Southeast Bank Limited  |  Annual Report 2020



Mrs. Jusna Ara Kashem was born in a very respectable 

(Pvt.) Limited.

Mrs. Jusna Ara Kashem is associated with many humanitarian 

and philanthropic organizations and is the Vice Chairperson 

Darogarhat, Feni. She is a widely travelled lady and visited 

Mrs. Jusna Ara Kashem is very much amiable in nature and a 

good social worker and she contributes to the poor and the 

Jusna Ara Kashem
Director
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Mrs. Rehana Rahman

North South University

Bangladesh)

Training College. She was married to M. Masihur Rahman, a 

who are involved in business with their mother. For her 

was awarded Begum Rokeya Shining Personality Award in 

2008 and the most dynamic women entrepreneur award in 

Rehana Rahman
Director
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Mr. Md. Akikur Rahman was born on February 15, 1945. He College and Hospital, Gusholia, Tongi, Gazipur, Bangladesh. 

Mr. Akikur Rahman is associated with Southeast Bank 

Limited since its inception in 1995 as a Sponsor.

Md. Akikur Rahman
Director
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Mr. Raiyan Kabir 

reputed Academic Institutions. He did BBA (Major in 

Australia. He was awarded Summa Cum Laude and Gold 

also achieved Dean's accreditation in Masters and in 

Central Queensland University, Brisbane, QLD, Australia.

Raiyan Kabir, a visionary, dynamic and optimistic 

in trading business whose operations encompass activities 
involve in both Financial Products and Commodities. In 

acquiring- implementation. His executive ideology linked to 
his Banking career in Bangladesh in early 2000s when he as a 

International Division, Currency Analyzer, Foreign Exchange, 

Credit and Treasury Division. He moved to Australia and 

Pre-School Orchard Pte Ltd, a company registered in 

acquired business interest in Pre-school under the Global 
Brand "MindChamps".

Digitalization. He also holds intimate people and 

global business contacts.

with Banks, Insurances, Financial and Educational 
Institutions. He attended numerous Seminars, Workshops 
and Training Programs at home and abroad. Mr. Kabir is a 
widely traveled person across the globe. Due to his excellent 
academic background and wide experience in the related 

Raiyan Kabir
Director
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Mr. M. Maniruz Zaman Khan represents Bay Leasing & 

Bank Limited. He obtained B. Com (Hons) and M. Com both in 

Secretary in Bay Leasing & Investment Limited. Prior to joining 

the Bay Leasing & Investment Limited Mr. Khan served in 

working experience. He participated in various Training 

Brahmanbaria District. He was born on 1st January, 1956.

Bay Leasing &
Investment Limited
(Represented by M. Maniruz Zaman Khan)
Director
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Syed Sajedul Karim
Director

Mr. Syed Sajedul Karim,

Southern Methodist Universities in Dallas, USA.

both at home and abroad. During his long service career, he 

New York and UN agencies based in Ethiopia and Cameroon. 

over two years. He once led a team to overview the 

Bangladesh.

Bangladesh.
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Dr. Quazi Mesbahuddin Ahmed
Director

Dr. Quazi Mesbahuddin Ahmed was born on January 18, 

another Masters degree in Economics in 1987 and a Ph.D. 

Illinois at Urbana-Champaign, USA.

21st Annual General Meeting held on April 11, 2016. He is also a 

the Bank.

Dr. Quazi Mesbahuddin Ahmed worked as Managing Director 

during September 2003 through January 2007. He was also 

the Planning Commission.

Additional Secretary, Economic Relations Division (ERD), 

th  Bangladesh Pay Commission constituted in 

Bangladesh, 2010-2021. He was consultant to producing country 

Asian Human Development Report, 2007.

meetings at home and abroad except when doing higher studies in 

1970s numerous countries around the globe and participated in 
several ministerial and some Prime Ministerial delegations abroad.

Dr. Quazi Mesbahuddin Ahmed specialises in poverty 
discourse, macroeconomic analyses, monetary economics, 

etc. He has had some selective publications in national and 
international journals.

Bangladesh Management Academy and other institutions 
during 1980s, 1990s and 2000s.

East West University during September, 2013 to December, 

2018 and always obtained outstanding evaluations by students.
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Mohammad Delwar Husain
Director

Mr. Mohammad Delwar Husain

Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) as well as 

Mr. Husain started his career as a Lecturer in Economics in the 

Government Jagannath College, Dhaka prior to joining the 

Taxation Service (PTS) Cadre in 1970. He served the 

Revenue in 2003. Besides, Government service, he also 

Limited, NB Bank Limited, Nepal and Oman International 

NBR as its Project Team Leader and also as a Facilitator in 

Alternative Dispute Resolution (ADR) in NBR.
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M. Kamal Hossain 
Managing Director

Mr. M. Kamal Hossain was born on January 01, 1958. Mr. 

Hossain had an exemplary academic background. He did his 

in 1983. He spent 18 (eighteen) years in National Bank 

Mr. M. Kamal Hossain has been serving Southeast Bank 

Limited (SEBL) as Managing Director since the 20th June, 

as Vice President and prior to his current assignment, he 

including Principal Branch.

During his 38 years long banking journey, Mr. Hossain 

gained extensive banking experience and developed wide 

comprising Import, Export, Credit, General Banking, 

Human Resources, Accounts etc. Under his visionary 

leadership, SEBL is expected to evolve as a leading 

numerous seminars, workshops and training programs at 

America (USA), United Kingdom (UK), Switzerland, Germany, 

France, Spain, Australia, Canada, Myanmar, Turkey, 

Singapore, Malaysia, Thailand, China, Saudi Arabia, Oman, 

Qatar, India, etc. Mr. Hossain is married to Ms. Manoara 

Begum and blessed with two sons and one daughter.
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Zakir Ahmed Khan 
Advisor

Mr. Zakir Ahmed Khan, Former Finance Secretary to the 

Advisor on 26 September, 2010. He carries with him vast 

Development Economics and Development Administration 

as a Hubert Humphrey North-South Fellow at the Colorado 

Mr. Khan held various senior level positions in the Ministries 

and Tourism, Cabinet Division and Bangladesh Audit and 

Accounts Department. He served as Finance Secretary and 

Secretary, Internal Resources Division and Chairman, 

and international journals. He also made several key note 

management in seminars and workshops at home and abroad.
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Arrangement

• 

• The Directors shall not take part in any discussion or vote on any contract/ 

contract/arrangement.

• 

Borrow

• 
and Bangladesh Bank.

Applicable

• The Directors must comply with all applicable laws, rules and regulations and shall 

• 

Employees

• 

• 
any client.

Customers

• 
shareholders and employees.

CODE OF
CONDUCT FOR DIRECTORS

th meeting held on December 24, 2012.

A few important items of the Code of Conduct are cited below:
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POLICY OF REVIEWING
EFFECTIVENESS OF THE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Every year the Board of Directors of Southeast Bank Limited carries out following 
reviews/evaluations of its own performance and effectiveness:

discussions on business 
proposals, governance and 
general issues.

Directors.

5) Discussing and analyzing its 

benchmark and earlier 

the Bank. Managing Director and the 
Senior Management Team 
(SMT).

objectives and long-term 
goals.

periodically to ensure they 
remain consistent with the 
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Work-Planning and Strategic Management

strategies and work-plans on annual basis. It specially 

with the determined objectives and goals and in the issues 

policy matters. It analyzes and monitors the implementation 

analytical review as incorporated in the Annual Report 

other targets as set out in its annual work-plan. It apprises the 

Credit and Risk Management

delegations are suitably made amongst the CEO and his 

implementation. It monitors compliance at quarterly intervals 

Bangladesh Bank regarding Key Risk Management. The 

Financial Management

purchase and procurement activities and accordingly 

subordinates. The decision on matters relating to 

Statement is outlined in 

compliance with Bangladesh 

Bank BRPD Circular No. 11 

dated 27 October 2013, BRPD 

Circular No. 14, dated 18 

October, 2018 as well as other 

Bangladesh Bank.

DIRECTORS’
RESPONSIBILITY

STATEMENT
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Internal Control Management

Board establishes internal control system in such a way that 
the internal audit process can be conducted independently by 
the concerned department. It reviews the reports submitted 
by its Committees especially regarding compliance with 
recommendations made in Internal and External Audit 
Reports and the Bangladesh Bank Inspection Reports as well 

Human Resources Management and Development

disciplinary action and punitive measures, human resource 

immediate two tiers below the CEO, however, rest upon the 
Board. Such recruitment and promotion are done complying 

promotion. 

regular basis.

Other Responsibilities of the Board

Alamgir Kabir, FCA
Chairman

REACHING NEW HEIGHTS66

Southeast Bank Limited  |  Annual Report 2020



DIRECTORS’ 

       
       

   REPORT
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Bismillahir Rahmanir Rahim

Dear Shareholders,

opportunity to welcome you all to the 26th Annual General 

th

1. World Economic Scenario in 2020 and outlook                      
for 2021

global economy, restricting economic activities, increasing 

uncertainties and unleashing a recession unseen since the 

Great Depression.

taken by the Government and Central Banks, global activities 

have rapidly recovered in many sectors, though some service 

activities remain impaired by physical distancing. The 

collapse in employment has partially reversed, but large 

massive policy support, the economic and social situation 

would have been calamitous. The worst has been avoided, 

According to the World Bank, the pandemic crisis is 

expected to cause global GDP to contract by 5.2 per cent 

this year but will regain growth momentum achieving 4.2 per 

Global gross domestic product (GDP) to shrink by 3.2 per 

by 4.2 per cent this year. Cumulatively, the world economy is 

expected to lose nearly $8.5 trillion in output in 2020 and 

2021 (Source: World Economic Situation and Prospects - 
2020, UN).

As many countries closed national borders and restricted 

economies. Financial markets in developed countries 
experienced extreme volatility, as uncertainties persisted. 
Central banks in developed countries responded with 
interest rate cuts and asset purchases to inject liquidity, 

risk aversion among investors triggered large capital 

large currency depreciations and tighter credit conditions. 
The unprecedented and simultaneous shock to global 
demand and supply have rendered millions unemployed in 

Tourism

A sudden drop in global tourism and travel Lockdowns, 

border closings and weakened demand have led to a drastic 

worldwide. Tourism, which employs an estimated 330 million 

people worldwide, is the hardest hit economic sector (Source: 

World Trade and Tourism Council).

Commodity prices 

Commodity prices have dropped in 2020, as the pandemic 

upended global demand and supply. Oil and commodity prices 

are likely to remain depressed in the near term, which will 

push many commodity-dependent economies, especially 

debt, closer to an economic crisis.

Money Market

Equity, bond and currency markets experienced 

uncertainties in the short-run. 

Global Outlook 2021

June 30, 2020, UN)

activities until mid-2021. 

DIRECTORS’
REPORT

2020

-4.20%

20192018201720162015

3.28%

3.14% 3.55%
2.91%

3.72%
World GDP Growth Rate
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Under these assumptions, global economic output would 

cent growth in 2021. 

Under the baseline scenario, developed countries will see 
their economic output contract by 5.0 per cent in 2020. The 
decline will be most severe in Europe, where GDP is 
projected to shrink by 5.5 per cent in 2020. 

countries will contract by 0.7 per cent in 2020. In addition to 

will see sharp declines in export revenues, remittances, 

Asian economies, exports will contract in line with supply 

demand. Amid sharp declines in commodity prices, economic 

America and the Caribbean (-5.4 per cent), Western Asia 
(-3.5 per cent) and the economies in transition in Europe and 
Central Asia (-3.5 per cent).

2. State of the Bangladesh Economy in 2020 and 
Economic Trends

slowed down our tremendous progress during last decade. 
Still Bangladesh has done an exceptional job keeping the 
downturn minimal compared to the other South Asian 
counterparts.

Economic growth slowed to 5.24 per cent in FY2019 -20, 

was 8.15 per cent in FY 2018-19.

GDP growth of the South Asian Countries comparison chart:

agriculture sector has slowed to 3.11 per cent in FY2019-20, 

industry sector grew by 6.48 per cent, which was 12.67 per 

5.32 per cent in FY2019-20 compared to 6.78 per cent in the 

and service sectors reached at 13.35 per cent, 35.36 per cent 
and 51.30 present respectively in FY2019-20 against 13.65 
per cent, 35.00 per cent and 51.35 per cent respectively in 

Per Capital GDP & Per Capital National Income

Per capita GDP and per capita national income stood 
respectively at US$ 1,970 and US$ 2,064 in FY2019-20, up 

During FY2019-20, domestic savings increased to 25.31 per 

is slightly higher than the target (5.50%).

(COVID-19) pandemic has slowed global economic activity 

coming months.

Monetary Policy

The monetary programme is based on the 8.2 per cent real 

stood at 12.64 per cent, which is slightly higher than the 
target (12.50).

4.75 per cent. The Cash Reserve Requirement (CRR) was 

2018

2018 2019 2020 2021

5.24%

7.9%

8.13%

Bangladesh’s GDP Growth

2019

5.8%

5.5%

5.65%
5.5% (projected)

2020 2021

2.30% 2.40%
5.24%

-20.50%

-9.00%

-5.50% -5.00%
-0.40%

Maldives India Srilanka Afghanistan Pakistan Nepal Bhutan Bangladesh
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advance-deposit ratio (ADR) and investment- deposit ratio 
(IDR) by 2 per cent to 87 per cent and 92 per cent 

improve liquidity in the banking system.

Credit

stood at 8.61 per cent, compared to 11.32 per cent in the 

the industrial, business and service organizations.

Export & Import

trade disputes between the United States and China, 

countries. The economic activities came to stagnant due to 

at US$ 54,784.70 million, down 8.56 percent over the 

rebound once the Corona crisis is resolved. The 
government has taken several steps as an incentive in the 

US$ 500 million and interest rate has been reduced to 2 
percent.

Manpower Export

the country's manpower exports stood at 5.31 lakh people, 

manpower exports were virtually closed. In FY2019-20, 

NRBS.

FOREX Reserve

reserves reached US$ 36.04 billion which was US$ 32.72 

remained stable.

Gov’t Initiatives

ongoing Coronavirus pandemic, extra spending on 
healthcare, emergency humanitarian assistance has been 
made. The government has already announced a stimulus 

(including cottage industries) and medium industrial 

incentives, various activities including policy support such as 

policy support to increase liquidity in the banking sector has 

government, the economy is expected to turn around.

Outlook

(Source: Asian Development Outlook 2020 (Sept, 2020), ADB)

2020–June 2021) as the external sector strengthens, while 

domestic demand. The Asian Development Bank (ADB) has 

expected to grow by 6.8 per cent riding on strong 

Meanwhile, the South Asian economy will grow at 7.1 per 
cent in the FY 2021, while the developing Asian economies 
are expected to contract by 0.7 per cent in 2021. 

subdued global economic conditions, recovery is expected to 

Prudent macroeconomic management and speedy 

key imperatives to ensure the projected recovery.

pandemic management systems, the government has 
managed the economy well with appropriate economic 
stimulus and social protection measures, ensuring basic 

and government's macroeconomic management including 

vaccines and continued emphasis on health pandemic 
management can help sustain this recovery. 
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Projection on major economic indicators

Bangladesh exports are expected to grow by 8 per cent in 

the second along with the expected upturn in the global 
economy.

Export recovery will be aided by government stimulus 

Imports are expected to grow by 5 per cent as the apparel 
sector returns to normal operations, which will require more 

equipment and materials.

Growth in agriculture is projected to rise by 3.5 per cent in 

recovery in major export markets, and expected growth in 
private investment. 

prices. 

3. An overview of the Bank

Southeast Bank Limited, a second generation private 

global economies. Currently, its Authorized Capital is BDT 
15,000.00 million and its total capital and reserve reached at 
BDT 40,372.53 million as on December 31, 2020. Its vision is 
to stand out as a premier banking institution in Bangladesh 

Bank grew by 9.20 percent to BDT 359,535.94 million and 
loans and advances by 8.59 percent to BDT 322,251.46 

Operational excellence coupled with qualitative 

the Bank. At present, the Bank has 135 branches and 2 

Sub-branches (Uposhakha) have been raised in 2020. Our 
journey towards greater operational success continues with 
increased energy and enthusiasm.

and experienced manpower. Our strengths are our close and 

business importance and global reach through our 

exchange and remittance business. Our product-basket 
encompasses Real Time Online Branch Banking, Islamic 
Banking, Merchant Banking, SME Banking, Corporate 
Banking, Dual Currency World MasterCard Credit Card, Dual 
Currency Visa Platinum Credit Card, Dual Currency Visa 
Debit Card, MasterCard Insta Prepaid Card, Visa Travel Card, 
Virtual Card, Beton Card, Beton Plus Card, Hajj Card, 

Gateway, Mobile Financial Service (MFS), Internet Banking 
Facility, ATMs, Recycler ATMs, Home Loan, Rural Home Loan, 

Loan, Education Loan Scheme, Consumer Loan, Syndicate 

retail clients, Fixed Deposit, Monthly Income Scheme, Pension 
Saving Scheme, Multi-Millionaire Gold Deposit Scheme (kept 

products and services.

employees have mastered new technology, enhanced their 
product knowledge and honed their skill to help customers 

manner.

We are pledge-bound to turn Southeast Bank into a modern 
banking institution dynamic in actions, progressive in 

service to customers. Our charted plans are aimed at 
boosting modern management, advanced technology, good 

and accountable corporate governance with the 

Southeast Bank carries out its business activities keeping in 

clients, society and the environment at large. Southeast 
Bank in all its activities and operations tries to establish 
Green Banking practice and attain a sustainable growth. The 
Bank in all its endeavors wants to assure its shareholders a 
steady and competitive return on their investment in line 
with the best among peer institutions.
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4. Capital and Reserves

2020. The Capital and Reserves (Tier-1 Capital and Tier-II Capital) stood at BDT 40,236.71 million as compared to BDT 

BDT in Million

Regulatory Capital: Consolidated Solo

Tier-1 capital

Fully Paid-up capital 11,889.41 11,889.41

Non- repayable share premium account  

 Statutory reserve 11,580.48 11,580.48

 General reserve 247.65 247.65

 Retained earnings 1,315.62 1,190.00

 Dividend equalization Reserve  

 Minority interest in subsidiaries 10.20 - 

Regulatory Adjustments  

Goodwill and all other Intangible assets 238.08 238.08

Tier-2 capital  

Subordinated debt 11,000.00 11,000.00

Regulatory Adjustments  

Regulatory Adjustments  

Goodwill and all other Intangible assets  
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6. Shareholders’ Value Enhancement

created, particularly over the long term, the share price increases and the company can pay larger cash dividends to shareholders.

7. Deposits Mix

Total deposit increased by 9.20% year on year basis in 2020 improving overall deposit mix. The existing deposit mix is keeping 

no-cost deposit to gain edge in interest spread. The bank through its dynamic retail and corporate team, has managed to build up 

a strong deposit base with appropriate cost management to gain competitive advantage in the industry.

on December 31, 2019.

Sl. No. Particulars BDT in Million
 Share in Total

   Deposits 

1 Current/Al-wadeeah current accounts and other accounts 66,850.59  18.59%

2 Bills payable 3,940.33  1.10%

3 Savings bank/Mudaraba savings bank deposits 38,060.94  10.59%

 Total 359,535.94  100%

69.72%

18.59%

1.10%

10.59%359,536

2020

329,250

2019

298,335

2018

269,828

2017

229,973

2016

Total Deposits

Deposits Mix
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8. Lending and Investment

Year Outstanding at the Growth Rate
 end of the year

2020 322,251.46 8.59%

2019 296,752.96 10.86%

2018 267,671.63 14.23%

2017 234,316.72 22.13%

2016 191,865.59 13.61%

challenges including COVID 19 pandemic in the year 2020, 

disbursement monitoring enabled the bank to expand its 
investment to the new business horizon. Consequently, the 

Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise (CMSMEs), rural 

bills, documentary credits, credit card, consumer credit etc. In 
addition, during 2020 SEBL disbursed BDT 14,928.75 million 

economy.

9. Guarantee Business

Guarantee Business (Open Ended/Close Ended) including 

Advance Payment Guarantee, Retention Bond and Security 

BDT 16,470.30 in 2019 having a positive growth 1.54%.

10. Investment Mix

against BDT 77,310.04 million in the previous year. Total 

several investment components including Treasury Bills, 
Treasury Bonds, Prize Bonds, Subordinated Bonds issued by 

Companies. The investments were kept mostly to align with 
SLR norms, as stipulated by Bangladesh Bank guidelines.

Asset Liability Committee (ALCO) is a senior level committee 
with the decision-making capacity and responsibility to 

liquidity and market risk.

management issues that may lead to 

and expected increases and decreases in required 

liabilities.

deciding on balance sheet strategy.

12. Internal Control and Compliance

Directors and Senior Management and as per prevailing 
laws, regulations and best practices. The Board always 
inspires a strong control and compliance culture at all levels 
across the Bank. Internal Control and Compliance Policies 

Management, etc.

risk management as well as internal controls. The Committee 
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Bank mentioning its review results and recommendations on 

organization.

putting in place an Internal Control System in the Bank and 

reasonableness.

activities and play a pivotal role in the Control System. ICCD 

the management.

Southeast Bank recognizes that the internal control system 

manage or mitigate the risks to an acceptable level providing 

policies, goals and objectives in generating potential returns 
to shareholders.

13. Performance of Selected Liability Products as on December 31, 2020

 Both Traditional and Islamic Banking

Type of Accounts No. of Accounts Deposit Volume

  BDT in Million

Current Deposit (CD) 114,637 17,289.43

Special Notice Deposit (SND) 12,926 42,280.76

Savings Deposit 712,394 38,060.94

Fixed Deposit Receipt (FDR) 85,833 188,691.02

BDT in Million

Traditional Banking Islamic Banking

Type of Accounts
No. of 

Accounts
Deposit 
Volume Type of Accounts

No. of 
Accounts

Deposit 
Volume

Monthly Income Scheme 1,328 1,494.46 Mudaraba Pension Savings Scheme 3,935 773.66

Monthly Savings
Scheme 49,738 5,161.03

Wage Earners Mudaraba
Pension Savings Scheme 144 46.67

Educational Savings
Schemes 6 0.52

Tijarah Mudaraba Muhor
Savings Scheme 42 17.89

Multimillionaire Gold
Deposit Scheme 985 1,299.93

Mudaraba Educational
Savings Schemes 17 4.21

Mudaraba Monthly Savings 
Scheme 3,782 405.93

130 436.82
Scheme 116 88.00

Mudaraba Monthly Income
Scheme

Pension Savings Scheme 45,414 10,152.90 Hajj Sanchay Prokolpa 3 0.86

Millionaire Deposit 
Scheme 3,950 1,741.47

Mudaraba Super Double
7 2.08

9,379 14,879.01
Mudaraba Marriage Saving
Scheme 8 0.05

Mudaraba Millionaire Deposit
Scheme 279 179.76

Wage Earner Pension
Savings Scheme 1,294 287.35

Mudaraba Pension Savings
Scheme 3,935 773.66
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14. Annual Budget and Budgetary Control

Southeast Bank regularly upgrades its budgetary techniques and processes in line with industry practice, dynamic business 

may arise in the near to medium term.

15. Financial Performance Highlights of SEBL

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                            BDT in Crore

Particulars Group %  Bank %

 2020 2019 Changes 2020 2019 Changes

   Net Interest Income                                   248.14           425.70         -42%              240.92   421.57             -43%

   Non-Interest Income             1,128.91      1,013.37          11%           1,114.25    999.55              11%

   Total Operating Income                                  1,377.06       1,439.07           -4%           1,355.17  1,421.11            -5%

   Total Operating Expenses                                                       550.60          540.77            2%             538.78   525.60               3%

   General provision                                     303.65           32.82         825%              303.65     32.82             825%

   Other provisions                   20.01           (32.41)      -162%               20.01   (32.41)           -162%

   Earnings per share                   1.81                  2.11         -14%               1.76    2.12             -17%
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million and interest expenses was BDT 1,976.91 million in the year 2020. 

investment by 27.64% in 2020 compared to 2019.

• In the year 2020, operating income was BDT 13,770.56 million and operating expense was BDT 5,506.01 million.  As 

16. Source and Utilization of Funds

Total equities and liabilities as on 31 December, 2020 stood at 

YoY. This growth was mainly attributed to the 9.20% increase in 

deposits amounting to BDT 30,285.66 million, which accounts 

respectively.

Several diverse asset components including Cash and Cash 

Equivalents, Investments, Loans, Fixed Assets and other assets 

December 31, 2020.

Particulars BDT in Million

Cash and Cash Equivalents 28,299.43

Investments 97,073.89

Loans 322,251.46

Fixed Assets 9,714.97

Other Assets 7,953.65

Total  465,293.41

Particulars BDT in Million

Subordinated bond- 3% 13,600.00

Other borrowings- 4% 18,897.68

Deposits-77% 359,535.93

Other liabilities-9% 43,545.83

Shareholders' equity- 7% 29,703.77

Non-controlling interes-0% 10.20

Total  465,293.41

6%

21%

69%

2%

of Fund

Cash and Cash Equivalents-6%

Investments-21%

Loans-69%

Fixed Assets-2%

Others Assets-2%

2%

3% 4%

77%

9%

7%

Sources of
fund

Subordinated bond-3%

Other borrowings-4%

Deposits-77%

Other liabilities-9%
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Particulars BDT in Million

Net interest income 2,481.42

Investment income 6,750.89

Commission, exchange and brokerage 3,536.22

Other operating income 1,002.03

Total Operating Income 13,770.56

26%

7%

18%

49%

2020 13,770.56 8,264.56 2,149.10 1.81 7.14%

2019 14,390.72 8,982.98 2,508.56  2.11 8.56%

2018 14,961.92 9,783.00 2,473.21  2.13 9.17%

2017 13,933.04 9,062.30 1,168.63  1.11 4.46%

2016 12,852.45 8,503.22 2,435.07 2.66 9.06%

million during the year 2020 which was BDT 2,508.56 

in 2020 while it was 8.56 percent in the previous year. 

18. Statutory Reserve

19. Adoption of IAS and IFRS

  International Accounting Standards(IAS) and International Financial Reporting Standards(IFRS) are universally 

IAS and IFRS. Consequently, International Accounting Standards (IAS) and International Financial Reporting Standards 

20. Branches Network

customers. Southeast Bank Limited, as a leading banking institution, always gives highest priority to accelerate its branch 
expansion programme to augment its customer base and provide banking services to unbanked people. It is to be 

aimed at plugging geographical gaps in their network. The Bank invests in network expansion and new technology 

Income
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Branches located at Dhaka, Chattogram and Sylhet region. At present 21 Authorized Dealer (AD) Branches are in the country. The 

hours.

Export Processing Zone.

Moreover, to provide banking service in grass-root level, Southeast Bank Limited has opened 17 Sub Branches (UpoShakha) at 
various locations in the country. These Sub Branches (UpoShakha) are operating within limited expenditure under the supervision 

21. Implementation of Basel III

 a. Common Equity Tier 1 (CET1) and 
 b. Additional Tier 1 (AT1) 

called ICAAP or Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process. With this tool the banks can assess the capital adequacy in 

capital adequacy and risk management processes. This helps the market participants to assess and understand the key 

22. Supervisory Review Process

a) Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAP) and 

b) Supervisory Review and Evaluation Process (SREP).

14.52% 14.35% 4.85%(solo) 116.37% 106.51%
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Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAP) is designed to ensure that the Bank assesses all risks to which they are or 

monitoring and managing these risks. 

mentioned in ICAAP guideline issued by Bangladesh Bank: 

change risk as well as other material risks

23. Corporate Governance

24. Minority Interest

pattern, are disclosed and redressed, in due form, if required.

25. Appointment, Retirement and Re-election of Directors

th

th

26. Loans to Directors
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28. Southeast Bank Capital Services Limited

of the company. 

of the following professionals:  

Sl No Name of the Directors Position

01 Mr. Alamgir Kabir, FCA  Chairman

02 Mr. Syed Sajedul Karim

Mr. M. Kamal Hossain

Mr. Md. Khursheed Alam

Air Cdre (Retd) Md Abu Bakar, FCA 
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29. Declaration of Dividend

th

th

30. Contribution to National Exchequer

institutions, contributes on time to the national exchequer in the 

Southeast Bank’s contributions to National Exchequer for the year 

31. Corporate Social Responsibilities

32. Acknowledgement

Sincerely, 

Alamgir Kabir, FCA 
Chairman

20202019

Contribution to
National Exchequer
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COMMITTEES OF THE
MANAGEMENT

M. Kamal Hossain, MD
Chairman

Anwar Uddin, DMD

Syed Faisal Omar, SEVP

 Md. Masum Uddin Khan, SEVP

S. M. Mainul Kabir, SEVP

Khorshed Alam Chowdhury, EVP

Mohammed Kamrul Ahsan, EVP

Khandaker Zia Hassan, EVP

Md. Abdus Sabur Khan, EVP

Khandaker Khaled Hassan, EVP

Sayma Banu, Director Training

Lt Cdr Wares-Ul-Matin (Retd), SVP

Md. Jahangir Kabir, SVP

Kamrul Islam, VP

Rasedul Islam, SAVP

Daisy Nilufar Sharmin, PhD, SAVP

Senior Management Team (SMT)
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Executive Risk Management Committee (ERMC)

Sl. No. Functional Position of the Executives

Asset Liability Committee (ALCO)

Sl. No. Name and Designation Position in ALCO

Central Compliance Committee (CCC)

Sl. No. Name and Designation Position in CCC
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Integrity Committee

Sl. No. Name and Designation Position in the Committee

Credit Risk Management Committee (CRMC)
Sl. No. Name and Designation Position in CRMC

Tender Committee

Sl. No. Name and Designation Position in TC

Procurement Committee

Sl. No. Name and Designation Position in PC
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IT Steering Committee

Sl. No. Functional Position of the Executives

Sl. No. Name and Designation Position in the Committee

Special Asset Management Committee (SAMC) for Recovery of 
Written-off Loans

Sl. No. Name and Designation Position in the Committee
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The Bank’s Code of Conduct for Senior Management Team (SMT) 
outlines the rules on conduct and decorum, established operations 
and procedures, honesty, integrity and ethics. It serves as a reference 
for the members of SMT in maintaining their sense of responsibility 
and commitment to honesty, integrity and establishes measures and 
standards to organizational discipline.

1. Honesty and Integrity: 
with honesty, integrity and fairness.

2.  It does not engage in act that 

Compliance with Laws, Rules and Regulations: It 
complies with all applicable laws, rules and 
regulations.

Dealing with the Customers: It treats the 
customers with respect and reciprocity.

It maintains 
secrecy of the Bank and its customers.

Insider Trading: No member of the Senior 

insider trading.

Gifts giving and Acceptance: None of them 

accepts any gift from Bank’s Customers or its any 

business associate.

Protection of Assets: It protects Bank’s assets 

from being damaged, pilfered or stolen.

9. Information Security: It takes reasonable care to 

disclosure and exchange.

10. Private Gain:

CODE OF CONDUCT FOR
SENIOR MANAGEMENT TEAM
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CORPORATE 

       
       

 GOVERNANCE
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risks, the audit process, and the bank’s process for monitoring compliance with laws and regulations and its own code of business 
conduct.

regarding compliance of recommendations made in internal and external audit reports and the Bangladesh Bank inspection 

of the Bank.

Alamgir Kabir, FCA
Chairman

STATEMENT OF BOARD OF
DIRECTORS ON THE RESPONSIBILITY
TO ESTABLISH APPROPRIATE
SYSTEM OF INTERNAL CONTROL 
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practices and to ensure smooth performance and sustainable 

growth of the Bank.

monitoring mechanisms to ensure adequacy as well as 

associated with its processes and adopts appropriate and 

regulatory guidelines.

test its internal control structures and procedures in 

adequacy and integrity of the system of internal control are 

as follows:

ensuring that the Bank’s operations are in line with the 

instructions and the annual budget.

According to the instructions of Bangladesh Bank, the Board 

with appropriate authorities and responsibilities in line with 

management decisions throughout the Bank while the Audit 

formulation, adequacy and integrity of the system of internal 

Board in its risk management functions as well as formulation 

and execution of the risk management strategies and policies.

established to check the compliance with policies and 

and control weakness on an ongoing basis using samples and 

Audit Committee of the Board.

responsibilities and are entrusted with utmost independence 

to Audit Committee of the Board.

thereon.

taking precautionary measures for risk mitigation as well as to 

regulatory issues.

recommendations on the strengths or weaknesses of the 

regulatory agencies also conduct their regular inspections 

to ascertain control lapses within the system.

internal control systems.

STATEMENT OF BOARD OF
DIRECTORS ON ADEQUACY OF
INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM
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regulatory authorities carried out in the calendar year as well 

accordingly. 

Committee.

policies and procedures to identify, measure, monitor and 
control the risks. Besides, an internal control structure 
assigning clear responsibility, authority and reporting 

Committee (ALCO), Central Compliance Committee (CCC), 

with senior management, internal auditors, external auditors 

internal control system.

Bangladesh Bank also rated Bank’s Internal Control and 

assurance against material misstatement or loss and it is 
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to 

Alamgir Kabir, FCA
Chairman
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Corporate Governance

term success of the company and spell out the rules and 

procedures for making corporate decisions.

Conceptual Framework

to ethical business norms and creates a culture of openness, 

order to promote the highest standard of corporate 

the Company, in what we do and in how well we perform. All 

our Stakeholders are in an exchange relationship with us. 

Each of them supplies us with important resources and in 

are updated time to time in order to comply with proper 

requirements. 

Corporate Governance Practices in the Bank

Southeast Bank Limited operates within the legal framework of 

stakeholders.

Board of Directors, Chairman and CEO 

Selection and appointment of Directors

Southeast Bank Ltd. complies with applicable guidelines of 
Bangladesh Bank’s circular, rules and regulations of the 

emphasis on the mix of knowledge, skills, experience and 

insight. As per the Bank Company Act 1991 (amended up to 

which can be extended by another two terms only in 

BSEC is obtained to comply with its requirement. All 

Structure of the Board

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
REPORT
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Roles and Responsibilities of the Board 

adopts appropriate standards to ensure that Bank conducts 

internal control,

time.

11. Purchasing or acquiring property for the Bank,

control efforts of the Bank,

Bank.

 Appointment in the Board of Directors

th Board meeting held on 

Bank furnishes necessary documents to Bangladesh Bank as 

of this report.

Retirement and Re-election of Directors

th

required information about them in Compliance with 

                       Name   Expertise                          Memberships                            Directors in

  Committee of the Board

Nil
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Adequate Representation of Non-Executive 
Directors

Independence of the Non-Executive Directors

attend all meetings of the Board and its Committee of which 

regulations.

Independent Directors’ Independence

As per existing rules and regulations, Independent 

relationship, whether pecuniary or otherwise, with the 

Bank, its top management and the Board apart from 

guidelines and Bangladesh Securities and Exchange 

Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission and 

Chairman and the CEO

the directors of the Bank and the CEO is appointed by the 

separate and independent of each other.

(Managing Director) of the Bank

Code issued by the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange 

Commission (BSEC) and Bangladesh Bank’s requirements, 

compliance requirement has been ensured by the Bank.          

Bangladesh Bank. As per the Organogram of the Bank, 

Board. It is also ensured that the independence of the 

Chairman is not hampered.

Roles and responsibilities of the Chairman of the 
Board

of the Chairman are to:

operation. 

routine affairs of the Bank. 

requirements of regulatory bodies. 

• Bring policies for Board’s deliberations and 

Annual Appraisal of Board’s Performance

performance of the Board and the shareholders also ask 

questions and make queries to the members of the Board of 

REACHING NEW HEIGHTS

Southeast Bank Limited  |  Annual Report 2020



segments.

Policy on Training of Directors

for their instant information so that they can discharge their 

different professional bodies.

Directors’ Knowledge and Expertise in Finance and 
Accounting

positions both at home and abroad. One of the Independent 

Code of Conduct for the Board of Directors

th meeting held 

Directors’ Remuneration 

attendance fee for the Board and its Committee meetings. 

meetings are also prescribed in the said circular determining 

the numbers with or without remuneration.

Board Meeting and Attendance

agenda in a prudent way and allows them to freely discuss, 

No. of meetings were held and statement of attendance of 

Related Party Transactions 

Name of Organization Relationship Nature of transaction

Southeast Exchange Company (South Africa) Pty Ltd Subsidiary Company Share Capital
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Board’s Committees and their Responsibilities 

important areas of the Bank, the Board has constituted 

i) Executive Committee

Composition of Executive Committee

requirement, no member of the Audit Committee is 

Responsibilities

generally important issues and matters in the execution 

within the power delegated to it by the Board of 

are sent to Bangladesh Bank for their information and 

ii) Audit Committee

Composition of the Audit Committee 

cannot be a member of the Audit Committee. A report of 

Chairman of the Audit Committee

management and audit both at home and abroad and 

Corporation (known as Petrobangla).

macroeconomic issues, use of foreign aid and national 

income accounts, etc.

Internal Control and Compliance Division’s 
access to Audit Committee 

has direct access to the Audit Committee and can raise 

related memos for the Audit Committee for taking 
decisions. Besides this, the Audit Committee meets the 

being present, to discuss any issue arising from the 
internal audits carried out.

Recommendation for appointment of External 
Auditors 

work done by the external auditors after the audited 

auditors for the next year.

Appointment of External Auditors 

as the External Auditors of the Bank and subsequently 
th Annual 

th

accounts of the Bank and reporting to the shareholders. 

Committee.
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Services not provided by External Auditors

iii) Risk Management Committee 

Composition of Risk Management Committee 

been formed to identify and assess risk of the Bank and 
guide management to formulate action plans for 

requirement.

Responsibilities 

credit risk, foreign exchange risk, internal control and 
compliance risk, money laundering risk, information and 
communication technology risk, operation risk, 

iv) Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
(NRC)

Composition of Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee

of the Committee are also renowned business 
personalities of the country.

Role of the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee (NRC) 

which acts independently and is accountable to the Board and 

Appointment of Managing Director (MD) or Chief 

Role and Responsibilities of the Managing Director 

the bank. 

law, rules, regulations including Bank Company Act, 

memorandums before the Board or the Committees 
formed by the Board.

except those in the two tiers below him shall rest on the 
CEO. 

measures against the staff, except those at two tiers 
below the CEO, shall rest on him, which he shall apply in 

g) Besides, the CEO shall assume any other responsibility if 
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Annual Evaluation of Performance of the Managing 
Director (CEO) of the Bank

the CEO are to meet the annual budgetary targets of the 

gradual reduction of the NPL ratio for maintaining asset 

financial performance of the Bank is placed before the 

Board based on Bank’s operational results mainly in the 

Appointment of Company Secretary (CS), Chief 

and Compliance (HIAC)

and corporate laws to carry out their assigned roles, 

responsibilities and duties.

Highlights on Central Bank Inspection in the year 
2020

SEBL from Bangladesh Bank. SEBL submitted compliances on 

said reports to Bangladesh Bank in time. Appropriate actions 

Internal Control and Risk Management 

Internal Control 

maintenance of a sound system of internal control to 

Establishment and Review of Internal Control 
System

System is included in this report. 

internally and externally

. 

Vision, Mission Statements and Strategy approved 
by the Board

Vision and Mission Statements of the Bank

adheres to them.

for use within the country and a full time car.

Bangladesh Bank.
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Business objectives and areas of business focus

Strategies to achieve business objectives

Ethics and Compliance 

Code of Conduct for Directors

Code of Conduct for Bank’s Employees 

Southeast Bank has a Code of Conduct and Ethical 

conduct and requirements of ethical principles. 

The Board’s commitment to establishing high level 
of ethics and compliance within the organization 

employees of the Bank. It has always encouraged the 

in the Bank. 

Management Committee and their responsibilities 

Senior Management Team (SMT) 

responsible and accountable to the Board for the sound and 

of senior management are clear and transparent and 

management implement business strategies, risk 

management systems, risk culture, processes and controls 

constituted:

(b) Strategic Planning Issues and

the Bank: 

i) Executive Risk Management Committee 
(ERMC)

are to identify, measure and manage the Bank’s existing 

determine risk appetite, tolerance and limits in line with 

strategic planning and formulate risk policies for 

business units etc. 

ii) Credit Risk Management Committee (CRMC)

policies of the Bank.

iii) Asset Liability Committee (ALCO) 

iv) Central Compliance Committee (CCC)

required by the regulatory authority, Central 

Compliance Committee (CCC) has been working on 

these issues in the Bank.

v) Integrity Committee 

Integrity Committee of the Bank headed by Senior 
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• Function of Integrity Committee 

but are not limited to, implementation of National 

complaint management, reporting to the regulators, 

of Bangladesh Bank regarding implementation of 

national Integrity Strategy, etc.

vi) Tender Committee 

Advances 

viii) Special Asset Management Committee (SAMC) 
for recovery of written-off loans

directly credited to the income, it is a great opportunity 

recommendations before the competent authority for 

ix) Procurement Committee

designed to ensure that the purchase of all goods, 

operation of the Bank is done in a transparent, timely and 

x) IT Steering Committee 

Disclosure of key policies with regard to 
remuneration of Directors, Senior Management and 
Employees.

remuneration package also stresses on ensuring internal and 
external pay equity.

they are responsible for dealing with customers, business 
associates and agents on behalf of the Bank. Any failure to 

 

Human Capital

Communication with Shareholders and Stakeholders 

far as possible and ensures that all stakeholders are 

Shareholders and stakeholders of the Bank may contact 
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(www.southeastbank.com.bd) 

which is linked with the websites of the stock exchanges and 

statements and other information to its shareholders. 

Notices to shareholders are also published in the daily 

newspapers and through the digital media as well. All 

ensure compliance with regulatory bodies. SEBL ensures that 

circulated national dailies, one in Bengali and one in English as 

well as in one online daily news portal and are also sent to the 

BSEC and stock exchanges. All of the Bank’s publications to 

the market are also published through the Company’s 

website.

through the report and to notify to all shareholders about the 

writing beforehand. Bank sincerely tries to ensure that all 

Environmental and Social Obligations 

human rights or consumer concerns into the business 

operations and the core strategy, all in close collaboration 

with stakeholders.

the worldwide call for reduction of global warming, SEBL is 

sides of the paper and print documents only when necessary. 

taken today would go a long way in building a greener 

Sustainable Financing

Committee also monitors all the social and ecological factors 

per guidelines of Bangladesh Bank.

Report to the Shareholders of Southeast Bank 
Limited on status of compliance on the Corporate 
Governance Code

I

of Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC) 
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Executive Committee Meetings 

st

st

Sl.
No

Name Designation

Presence of Members in the
Meetings, During their Tenure

Remuneration
Remuneration

DrawnNo. of
Meeting

held
Present Absent

Directors’ Remuneration 
st st  

2020 are appended below:

  Chairperson

Sl.
No

Name Designation

Presence of Directors in the
Meetings, During their Tenure

Remuneration
Remuneration

DrawnNo. of
Meeting

held
Present Absent
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Audit Committee Meetings

Statement of Audit Committee meetings held during the year 2020 and the attendance of members from 1st 

st

Sl.
No

Name Designation

Presence of Members in the
Meetings, During their Tenure

Remuneration
Remuneration

DrawnNo. of
Meeting

held
Present Absent

Risk Management Committee Meetings 

from 1st st

Sl.
No

Name Designation

Presence of Members in the
Meetings, During their Tenure

Remuneration
Remuneration

DrawnNo. of
Meeting

held
Present Absent
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Shareholding Pattern along with name wise details:

i. Shares held by Parent/Subsidiary/Associated Companies and other related Parties:  NIL

ii. Shareholding of the Board of Directors.

Sl. No Name Designation No. of Shares Value in BDT

  Total 243,221,599 2,432,215,990.00

Control and Compliance and their spouses and minor children.

Sl. No Designation Shareholdings as on 31.12.2020

  Company Secretary  Nil
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Sl. No Name Designation Shareholdings

   as on 31.12.2020

v. List of Shareholders holdings 10% and above shares in the Paid-Up-Capital of the Bank: NIL

vi. Disclosure about Family Domination in the Bank

to control the company unilaterally. 

vii. Free-Float Shares 
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The Board of Directors
Southeast Bank Limited

Sub: Declaration on Financial Statements for the year ended on December 31, 2020

Dear Sirs,

ability to continue as a going concern.

In this regard, we also certify that: 

st

knowledge and belief:

existing accounting standards and applicable laws.

MANAGING DIRECTOR AND
CFO'S DECLARATION
TO THE BOARD

Managing Director
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

1(1)

more than 20 (twenty).

1(2)(b)(i) who either does not hold any share in the company or holds less than 

otherwise, with the company or its subsidiary or associated 

who is not a shareholder, director excepting independent director or 

1(2)(b)(iii)

1(2)(a)

considered to the next integer or whole number for calculating 

1(2)(b)(ii) who is not a sponsor of the company or is not connected with the 
company’s any sponsor or director or nominated director or 
shareholder of the company or any of its associates, sister concerns, 
subsidiaries and parents or holding entities who holds one per cent 

basis of family relationship and his or her family members also shall not 

Condition 
No.

Remarks
(if any)

Compliance status (put  in the 
appropriate column)Title

Complied Not Complied

1(2)(d)
occurredthan 90 (ninety) days.

1(2)(b)(ix)

1(2)(c)

1(2)(b)(x)
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1(2)(e)

regulatory requirements and corporate laws and can make meaningful 

Business Leader who is or was a promoter or director of an unlisted 

listed company or a member of any national or international chamber 

th

scale, who has at least educational background of bachelor degree in 

Condition 
No.

Remarks
(if any)

Compliance status (put  in the 
appropriate column)Title

Complied Not Complied

of a listed company shall not hold the same position in another listed 

In the absence of the Chairperson of the Board, the remaining 

absence of the regular Chairperson shall be duly recorded in the 
minutes.
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Parent or Subsidiary or Associated Companies and other related 

the accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent 

A statement that the system of internal control is sound in design and 

operating results of the issuer company shall be highlighted and the 

A statement that International Accounting Standards (IAS) or 

statements and any departure there from has been adequately 

company’s ability to continue as a going concern, if the issuer company 
is not considered to be a going concern, the fact along with reasons 

A detailed discussion on related party transactions along with a 
statement showing amount, nature of related party, nature of 

management of the issuer company present fairly its state of affairs, 

A statement of remuneration paid to the directors including 

An explanation on the reasons if the issuer company has not declared 

Board’s statement to the effect that no bonus shares or stock 

Condition 
No.

Remarks
(if any)

Compliance status (put  in the 
appropriate column)Title

Complied Not Complied
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names of companies in which the person also holds the directorship 

website of the company.

changes in accounting policies and estimation, if any, clearly describing 

this Code as required under condition No.9 shall be disclosed as per 

of the meetings as well as keep required books and records in line with 

as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Secretaries of Bangladesh 
(ICSB) in so far as those standards are not inconsistent with any 
condition of this Code.

the following information to the Shareholders:

2(a)
company shall be made applicable to the composition of the Board of 

2(b) At least 1 (one) independent director of the Board of the holding 

Condition 
No.

Remarks
(if any)

Compliance status (put  in the 
appropriate column)Title

Complied Not Complied

REACHING NEW HEIGHTS112

Southeast Bank Limited  |  Annual Report 2020



2(c)

2(d)

2(e)

subsidiary company

knowledge and belief:

omit any material fact or contain statements that might be 

company’s affairs and are in compliance with existing accounting 

of knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the company 

meetings of the Board.

dissemination to the Commission and stock exchange(s).

Condition 
No.

Remarks
(if any)

Compliance status (put  in the 
appropriate column)Title

Complied Not Complied

the company and in ensuring a good monitoring system within the 

the Audit Committee shall be clearly set forth in writing.
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constituted in presence of either two members or two third of the 

presence of an independent director is a must.

Chairperson of the Audit Committee shall remain present in the 

without at least 1 (one) independent director.

Chairperson of the Audit Committee, who shall be an independent 

In the absence of the Chairperson of the Audit Committee, the 

that particular meeting, in that case there shall be no problem of 

reason of absence of the regular Chairperson shall be duly recorded in 
the minutes.

is any circumstance causing any Committee member to be unable to 

number of the Committee members to be lower than the prescribed 

Condition 
No.

Remarks
(if any)

Compliance status (put  in the 
appropriate column)Title

Complied Not Complied
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suspected or presumed fraud or irregularity or material defect 

No such 
incidence 

arose

suspected infringement of laws, regulatory compliances including 

any other matter which the Audit Committee deems necessary shall 

the year, shall be signed by the Chairperson of the Audit Committee 
and disclosed in the annual report of the issuer company.

well as a policy for formal process of considering remuneration of 

No such 
reportable 
incidence 

arose

If the Audit Committee has reported to the Board about anything 

operation and has discussed with the Board and the management that 

reporting of such matters to the Board for three times or completion 

Condition 
No.

Remarks
(if any)

Compliance status (put  in the 
appropriate column)Title

Complied Not Complied
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occurred

occurred

process

attributes and independence of a director and recommend a policy to 

CEO’s is 
determined by 

Bangladesh Bank

presence of either two members or two third of the members of the 

No such 

occurred
meeting, the reason of absence of the regular Chairperson shall be 

report with recommendation to the Board:

Condition 
No.

Remarks
(if any)

Compliance status (put  in the 
appropriate column)Title

Complied Not Complied
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share of the company they audit at least during the tenure of their 

not hold any shares in the said company:

website as required under the listing regulations of the concerned 
stock exchange(s).

the stock exchange.

9(1)
Accountant or Secretary (Chartered Accountant or Cost and 

9(2)

in the annual general meeting.

has complied with these conditions or not.

and determine their selection, transfer or replacement and 

its annual report.

Condition 
No.

Remarks
(if any)

Compliance status (put  in the 
appropriate column)Title

Complied Not Complied
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REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SOUTHEAST BANK LIMITED ON 
COMPLIANCE ON THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

We have exa he Corporate Governance Code by 
Bank Limited (the company) for the year ended on 31 December

BSEC/CMRRCD/2006

Governance Code.

opinion;

ial 

and

highly 

Md. Abdus Satter Sarkar, FCA, FCMA 

Place: Dhaka Mahfel Huq & Co.
Dated: May 11, 2021 Chartered Accountants
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Sl
No

RemarksCompliance
Status

Particulars

th October 

the Board of 
SEBL

1 Formation of Board of Directors

obtained.

1.1 Appointment of New Directors 

1.4 Appointment of Alternate Directors

to Bangladesh Bank.

original director’s probable returning date from abroad should be sent to Bangladesh Bank 

Bangladesh Bank immediately after his return.

(c) Any loan defaulter or any person who is not eligible to become a director as per any rules 

included in any kind of committee constituted by the board.

be applicable to the alternate director. 

Compliance with Bangladesh Bank’s Guidelines on
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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2. Depositor Director

3. Information regarding Directors

after the appointment or release of director.

(c) Banks should display a list of directors in the website and update it on a regular basis.

4. Responsibility of the Board of Directors

4.1 Responsibilities and Authorities of the Board of Directors

(a) Work Planning and Strategic Management

(b) Credit and Risk Management

monitor the compliance of the guidelines of Bangladesh Bank regarding key risk 
management.

(c) Internal Control Management 

quarterly basis the reports of the Audit Committee submitted before it regarding 
compliance status of suggestions and recommendation of inspection report of Internal 

(d) Human Resources Management and Development

directors shall be included in the selection committees for recruitment and promotion to 

recruitment and promotion.

proposals, and to the adoption of modern electronic and information technologies and the 

these programs incorporated in its annual work plan.

Sl
No

RemarksCompliance
Status

Particulars
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(e) Financial Management

Bangladesh Bank.

or operational and routine affairs of the bank.

of Board.

5.1 Executive Committee

No
Compliance
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No
Compliance
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auditors.

No
Compliance
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7. 

8. 

No
Compliance
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1 

2 

a bank.

profession.

4 

payable.

No
Compliance

th rd 
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evaluation report to Bangladesh Bank.

11 

No
Compliance
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Bangladesh Bank.

resignation.

No Consultant 

st

No
Compliance
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CERTIFICATE OF SENIOR
MANAGEMENT TEAM (SMT)
REGARDING THE EFFECTIVENESS
OF INTERNAL CONTROL POLICY,
PRACTICE AND PROCEDURE
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banking.

th

REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
(COMPOSITION, ROLE, MEETING,
ATTENDANCE, ETC.)

1. 

2. 

4. 

Bangladesh Bank.

the Bank and its regulators. 
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reporting.

standards adopted by the Bank. 

plan.

auditors. 

approval. 

portfolio. 

to the Board. 
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forgeries in the Bank. 

reported irregularities at the earliest.
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Bank.   

for ensuring safe and sound operations. Considering the 

the Board.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND
COMPLIANCE

and

Control

Control
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evaluation is done by the business lines and internal audit 

of Board. 

Management

Defense 

ongoing basis

Division 
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and adequately

Head of Audit and Inspection Unit

Audit Cell - 1
Regular Inspection

Managing Director  

Head of ICCD

Audit Committee of the Board

Audit Cell - 3
IT Inspection

Compliance
Internal Audit

Compliance
External Audit 

Audit Cell - 2
FEX Inspection

Head of
Compliance Unit

Head of
Monitoring Unit
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1 

2 

4 

REPORT OF THE
RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

against different risks.

th

Board.

basis. 

the regulatory bodies. 
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EVALUATION OF THE QUARTERLY
FINANCIALS BY THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE & BY THE BOARD

4th Qtr. 4th Qtr. rd Qtr. rd Qtr. 2nd Qtr. 2nd Qtr. 1st Qtr. 1st Qtr.

 to  to to to to to to to

Cash

Other assets

Other liabilities

Total shareholders' equity
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portfolio.

REPORT OF THE BANK’S
SHARIAH SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE
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CORPORATE BANKING

 e

 

 

 

 

 

 

Bank. 
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Bangladesh Bank and other prevailing rules and regulations 

of Bangladesh Bank and other regulatory authorities. During 

and for appropriate evaluations of their proposals. This 
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Performance in 2020

year end.
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   in million)
million)
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CMSME, AGRI-CREDIT AND
FINANCIAL INCLUSION
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Capabilities

Collateral

Data

Operations
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Finance 

other reasons 

guidelines of Bangladesh Bank and other stakeholders.
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industry.

entrepreneurship.  
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RETAIL BANKING

 Crore  
  

No. of Clients 
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GLIMPSES OF SOME PROJECTS FINANCED
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BY SOUTHEAST BANK LIMITED
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ISLAMIC BANKING
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INTERNATIONAL
BUSINESS OPERATIONS
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portal.
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Amount Amount Amount

4

4

114

2  2

15525 1

Amount Amount Amount

14.44
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Since inception in 2009, the Bank is operating its Off Shore 
Banking business through two Off-shore Banking Units 
(OBUs) located in Dhaka Export Processing Zone (DEPZ) and 
Chattogram Export Processing Zone (CEPZ). OBU is 
considered one of the most important strategic business 

import and export business. Despite numerous challenges 
supporting export business. Regardless, 2020 was a 

Off-shore Banking Division of the Bank offers 
following products and services to valued clients 

units of Export Processing Zones (EPZ) and 
Economic Zones (EZ)

OFF-SHORE
BANKING OPERATIONS

2020 Growth % 2020 Growth % 2020 Growth %

 
2020  2019  

Growth 
in %  In USD 

  In USD 
 

Total Deposits & Borrowing     -  
      

     

Business Performance of Off-shore Banking Division
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foreseeable future.

the customers:

 Foreign Exchange Desk

Money Market Desk

Market Desk ensures optimum fund management and 

interest rate scenario of the market, this desk in 

inter-bank market. 

when the deposit and lending rate were capped from the 

Bank rate and slower credit growth due to ongoing pandemic 

Fixed Income Desk 

considerable amount of income for the bank.

TREASURY MANAGEMENT 

In the year 2020, both pandemic and 

for deposit and lending have made 
the job of Treasury very challenging. 

Especially interest rate risk 
management became the center of 

the crux along with optimum 
liquidity management. 
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Asset Liability Management Desk 

risk management. The Committee consists of the Managing 

Director & CEO, as the Chairman of the Committee and 

balance sheet parameters of the bank are discussed and 

following: 

assets and the liabilities.

the bank.

competition, potential target markets etc. for 

expansion of the business.

shrink) to cope with the changing situation in the 

meetings etc.

Foreign Exchange Desk

major currencies in the interbank market. The FX Desk of 

exchange gain for the bank. 

central bank. The exchange rate is expected to remain stable 

with declining imports in the backdrop of robust remittance 

Southeast Bank is one of the leading banks in Bangladesh in 

export-import business and a trusted name to the expatriate 

trading using trading platform. 

Corporate Service Desk 

to ensure maximum utilization of the fund of the corporate 
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Southeast Bank is one of the major contributors of the 

different foreign exchange houses in 2020. This remittance, 

FOREIGN REMITTANCE

Bangladesh reached a new 
record in remittance in the last 

Covid-19 pandemic, the 
country received remittance 
worth $18.21 billion in the 

9.6% higher than that of 
previous year.

2,598

2,151

1,833

1,638

1,452 1,505 1,964 2,079

1,093

2,102
2,051
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processing time. Southeast Bank also ensures excellent 

maintained with different branches of Southeast Bank.  

among the Bangladeshi expatriates. Taking into account the 

able to send large ticket transactions to their kith and kin 
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of Card in online purchases. To make the online purchase 

under the card number. The idea is to read the essential 

Credit Card for females. The Card is designed to suit the 

another Credit Card; it is more than that.  

that minimizes the risk of fraudulent use at the POS terminal 

deals are found online. One can shop online at popular sites, 

transactions risk- free. The Bank issues and processes Card 

the Card while purchasing earns 

reward points. Reward points can be redeemed for an annual 

fee based on the number and amount of purchase. 

CARD BUSINESS

SEBL Cards are enriched with the best features 
along with the state-of-the-art technology and 
good customer service. Southeast Bank has been 
issuing Cards since the year 2005 and has been 
adopting the latest technologies and attributing 
newer features to meet the ever-changing 
demands. Covid-19 Pandemic has made the Cards 
the safest and easiest ways of payment for every 
formal and informal transaction like shopping at 
the store and paying online.

2020 2020
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VISA Dual Currency Debit Card and VISA 
International Debit Card 

enables customers to transact with local and international 
merchants for shopping, entertainment, dining, treatment and 

VISA Instant Dual Currency Debit Card 

Real time Interbank Fund transfer though ATM and 
Internet Banking using NPSB Channel

ATM EMV Acquiring 

for card-present transactions. Through incorporation of 

Deployment of Antimalware Solution for ATM & 
Recycler ATMs

ALTERNATIVE
DELIVERY CHANNEL

Alternative delivery channel (ADC) has 
enabled the Bank to serve the customers 
beyond regular Banking hours. The Bank 

is providing 24/7 service through its 
established delivery channels, like ATM, 

Recycler-ATM, Internet Banking, 
E-Commerce Gateway etc. ADC team is 

relentlessly working for further 
expansion of delivery channels, 

improvement of quality of service and 
introduction of new services.
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Card less Cash Withdrawal by Telecash Wallet 
Holders from SEBL ATMs and Recycler ATMs 

ATMs and Recycler ATMs 

round the clock. The bank has reached the landmark of 200 

Debit Card Number 

Internet Banking

for the customers to meet their banking needs. 

To expand foot print in modern banking, the bank is going to 

Online CDM (Cash Deposit Machine) 

The Bank is going to launch Online CDM (Cash Deposit 

round the clock.

Card less Deposit Facility at Recycler ATM and 
Online CDM (Cash Deposit Machine) 

make real time cash deposit of different denominations. Card 

enhancement.

Upcoming ADC Services in the year of 2021 
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CREDIT RISK MANAGEMENT IN
SOUTHEAST BANK LIMITED

prepared and updated in line with Bangladesh Bank 

national economies to close for weeks and months at a time, 

populations. There is much more epidemiological work to do, 

being lifted and businesses restarting, lending institutions are 

and access to reliable data. 

Bangladesh Bank has declared numerous stimulus funds for 

professionals, farmers, ultra-small business etc. 

a.  Credit Marketing

Branches and Uposhakhas located at different corners all 

b.  Credit Approval

Risk management in banking is 

development and execution of a plan to 
deal with potential losses”. Usually, the 

focus of the risk management practices in 
the banking industry is to manage an 

institution’s exposure to losses or risk and 
to protect the value of its assets. In 

alignment of this principle, Southeast Bank 
has adopted a comprehensive Credit Risk 

Management Policy with high risk 
management standards to ensure that the 

risk factors are properly recognized, 
evaluated and appropriate measures are 

taken to mitigate those risks. 
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c.  Credit Administration

such as pre-disbursement, disbursement, post-disbursement 
& ongoing administration of Credit Portfolio of the Bank. 

following responsibilities:

 Credit Monitoring

 Compliance & Reporting

of the credits right from its sanction and continues its 

concentration risks, geographical distribution, down 

d. Credit Risk Mitigation

compliance with all legal formalities, completion of all 

are other risk mitigating factors like netting agreements and 

mitigation includes cash, residential, commercial and 

procedures. For mitigation of credit risk Bank also uses 

which is applicable.

e.  Credit Recovery

branches.
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control and management, the Bank has been able to build up 

manage our risks well, within our risk appetite and 
well-structured control frameworks. Risk management 
guidelines are therefore an important facet of our sustainable 

Risk Management System

Management;

Risk Management Process

decision-making.

PRACTICES OF
RISK MANAGEMENT

RISK
MANAGEMENT

APPROACH

Indentify Assess

ReviewControl

Risk management in SEBL encompasses 

to risk factors that form part of the 

that risk and return are inseparable in any 
investment. It is the prime objective of the 

Bank to manage its risks appropriately 
ensuring safe trade-off between risk and 

return. A robust approach to risk 
management enables the Bank to identify, 

assess, control and review the control 
process, whilst also enabling 

business strategies.
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Risk Management and Basel-III Implementation

the Bank is also compliant with maintaining different ratios 

Capital Management

limits. Capital planning also helps assessing strategic choices 

and other mechanisms.

Role of the Board of Directors

guidance, critical risk elements are highlighted in the Board 

Risk Management Committee (BRMC). The main concern of 

Steps of Risk Management Process in the Bank:

Monitor
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The Bank is committed to ensure the best corporate 

Financing (TF). 

Central Compliance Committee (CCC), comprising of 

Transaction Monitoring, etc. 

and are being used for combating the threats. 

PREVENTION OF
MONEY LAUNDERING

Southeast Bank Limited is 
pledge-bound not to allow its 

banking channel to be used by any 
criminal, terrorist, terrorist group or 

network of terrorists to carry out 
subversive activities or militancy in 

the country and elsewhere. 
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inherent risks.

banking to bring a greater number of unbanked people under 

the banking umbrella, the Bank introduced MFS (Mobile 

Besides, a few new softwares as well as enhanced 

functionalities of the existing Software for automation and 

BoardPac Software for conducting paperless Board 

automatic charge deduction application for account 

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY (IT)
AND CYBER SECURITY

These days Banking industry mostly 
depends on Information Technology to 
provide services to its customers. IT is 
helping the banking sector to improve its 

services offered to customers. Through 
using IT, business processes are being 
automated, effective management 
decisions are being taken and banking 
services are being provided on real time 
basis with least cost and efforts. 
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been taken so far to this effect are described below:

a few experienced manpower

with a dedicated team has been established

implemented for safe access to email and internet and 

to ensure safe access of the authorised users and the 
users PCs are restricted to access to internet 

REACHING NEW HEIGHTS

 |  Annual Report 2020



condition and so on.

banks act as custodians of the assets of the general public and 

acceptable limit.

Industry Scenario of NPL

deteriorate during 2020.

because Central Bank suspended the routine exercise of 

Limited

Southeast Bank follows the rules and regulations of loan 

the core business priorities of Southeast Bank is to curb 

STATEMENT OF
NON-PERFORMING LOAN

Non-performing loan (NPL) 
refers to loans or advances 
which are in default or close 
to being in default. The 
Central Bank of Bangladesh 
has established a loan 

combining qualitative and 
quantitative factors of loans 
and advances in the context 
of our country.
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 Amount 
 BDT in Million

NPL Ratio

Different ratios of nonperforming loans of the Bank as of 

Provisioning

performing loans including off-balance sheet items and 

kept against the loans etc. to meet the unexpected losses. 

Loan Write-Off

million of its loans.

Recovery of NPLs and Written-Off Loans

Standard
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substantial capitalization. Our capitalization makes us 

resilient and ensures that we are well positioned to meet 

our business. 

Capital Planning Process

ensure:

 Balanced risk adjusted performance 

The starting point for the capital plan is the annual budget 

incorporates assumptions about the future shape and 

appetite framework using a range of stress scenarios 

The following key factors are considered in 
preparing capital plan:

Process (SRP) team, Senior Management Team (SMT) and 

how much capital the Bank needs, when the capital will be 

raised, methods of raising capital, the pricing of the capital and 

capital plan and ensures that the capital position exceeds the 

appetite of the Bank.

CAPITAL PLAN

SEBL has strong capital planning 
processes and practices for 
establishing capital goals, 
determining appropriate capital 
levels and maintaining capital 
contingency plans in accordance 
with the policy. The Bank is 
adequately capitalized and has 

concern even under adverse 
conditions. 
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Capital Management

capital management policies and practices are to support its 

shape the approach that the Bank applies regarding capital 
management: 

the short and medium term, while maintaining the 

• Ensure that, under stress scenarios, the Bank 

from the risks due to deterioration of 
macroeconomic conditions

• Optimize capital use through appropriate allocation 
of capital among the businesses based on the 

appetite 

Capital Requirement under Basel III

the central bank. The Bank has been compliant with the 

and to strengthen the capital base further, the Bank is 

the Bank is able to accumulate additional capital through the 

able to manage the demand for capital through management 

factors.
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CREDIT RATING

STABLE

st

st

CRISL RATING  2018       2019

Long Term AA        AA

Short Term ST-2       ST-2 

conditions.
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RISK MANAGEMENT &

      C
ONTROL FRAMEWORK
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within our Board-determined risk appetite, we are mindful of 

The Bank considers risk management as a core job beside its 

risk and reward in our business, and continue to build and 
enhance the risk management capabilities that assist in 

Risk Management Vision 

will seek to obtain assurance that the controls relied on to 

Risk Management framework to support the ongoing 
monitoring of controls.

Risk Management Framework

assesses, measures, manages, monitors, reports and controls 

Risk Appetite 

set, monitor and enforce appropriate risk limits. 

Risk Mitigation

mitigate risks; risk taking decision is taken considering 

These are the controls and actions put in place to reduce the 
likelihood of the risk occurring, or minimize the impact of 
the risk if it does occur. The Bank has an internal control 

which- 

potential risks 

regulations, and also with internal policies. 

Risk Reporting

management committees. Complementing regular risk 

senior management, the Risk Committee, and the Board, as 

Anwar Uddin

REPORT ON RISK MANAGEMENT
FRAMEWORK, MITIGATION
METHODOLOGY AND RISK REPORTING
BY CHIEF RISK OFFICER (CRO)
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paragon importance. 

knowledge about risks, risk appetite, limit and tolerance of 
the institute. 

RISK STRATEGY AND RISK APPETITE

monitors, and reports all risks in line with the risk appetite set 

reporting structures, documentation and management of 

within the set risk appetite.

RISK MANAGEMENT PROCESS

is a process of a series of multi-steps that, when undertaken in 

Steps of Risk Management Process in a Banking 
Organization:

RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK 

management framework is robust and its risk management 

THE RISK MANAGEMENT AT BOARD LEVEL

Committee are responsible for risk management and 
operations of the Bank.

THREE LINES OF DEFENCE

principles and guidelines are implemented and creates and 

approach to risk management on the concept of three lines of 

the risk owners and control functions. 

RISK MANAGEMENT IN
SOUTHEAST BANK LIMITED
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Business Unit, 
Management/ 

Branches

Owns the risks and is 
responsible for 

reporting and 
managing them and 

ensuring that the right 
controls and 

assessments are in 
place to mitigate them.

1st Line of
DEFENCE

Business Unit, 
Management/ 

Branches

Owns the risks and is 
responsible for 

reporting and 
managing them and 

ensuring that the right 
controls and 

assessments are in 
place to mitigate them.

2nd Line of
DEFENCE

3rd Line of
DEFENCE

Risk Management 
Division of Head 

guidelines for 

and guidance in 
relation to the risk, and 

risk management.

Internal Audit

assurance of the 

and operational 

management 
framework and control 

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

BOARD RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE (BRMC)

Board Risk Management Committee (BRMC) is formed for 

Management Committee (ERMC).

EXECUTIVE RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE (ERMC)

Committee (ERMC) comprising of CRO (as the Chairman), 

regarding risk issues.

CHIEF RISK OFFICER (CRO)

management structure in the Bank, the role and 

RISK MANAGEMENT DIVISION

(CRO). The main functions of the department are managing 

assisting in the implementation of all aspects of the risk 
function.

taken decisions of ERMC and BRMC from concerned 

preparing memo on related issues, monitoring and following up 
of implementation status of the decisions of meeting minutes, 

monitoring the associated risks through concerned 
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Southeast Bank’s risk management framework and its robust network chart is given below:
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to withstand losses during periods of stress conditions. The 

framework consists of three pillars: 

for credit, market and operational risk;

The purpose of this disclosure report is to set out how 

Bank. 

disclosure of the risks to which it is exposed, both on and 

off-balance sheet. The disclosure framework has the 

following components: 

B. Capital Structure 

D. Credit Risk 

G. Market Risk 

A. SCOPE OF APPLICATION

a.  Qualitative Disclosures

Southeast Bank Capital Services Limited

Southeast Exchange Company (South Africa) Pty Limited

b. Quantitative Disclosures

liabilities of these subsidiaries are consolidated with the 

DISCLOSURE ON RISK BASED
CAPITAL ADEQUACY (BASEL III)
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B.  CAPITAL STRUCTURE

a) Qualitative Disclosures

and gone-concern capital is the capital which will absorb 

interest in subsidiaries etc. Tier-2 capital is composed of 

Capital requirement rules

ongoing basis: 

higher. 

b) Quantitative Disclosures                                                                                               BDT in Million

Regulatory Capital: Consolidated Solo

Tier-1 capital  

1)   Common Equity Tier-1 Capital (CET-1)  

   Retained earnings  

Regulatory Adjustments  

2)   Additional Tier-1 Capital (AT-1)

3)   Total Tier-1 capital (1+2)  

Tier-2 capital  

Subordinated debt  

Regulatory Adjustments  

4)   Total Tier-2 capital  

Regulatory Adjustments  

Total eligible capital (3+4)

24,805.28

15,567.25

40,372.53

--

24,669.45

15,567.25

40,236.71
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C. CAPITAL ADEQUACY

a) Qualitative Disclosures

b) Quantitative Disclosures                    BDT in Million

              Capital Adequacy Consolidated Solo

 

D. CREDIT RISK

a) Qualitative Disclosures

in accordance with agreed term.

1. Credit Approval

been prepared and updated in line with Bangladesh 

DMD, and Branch Manager). 

2. Credit Administration

stages such as pre-disbursement, disbursement, 

post-disbursement & ongoing administration of Credit 
Portfolio of the Bank.

following responsibilities:

a) Documentation and Disbursement 

b) Credit Monitoring

c) Compliance & Reporting

3. Credit Monitoring

etc. 
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monitoring of the credits right from its sanction and 

concentration of the credit portfolio of the bank is 

risks, geographical distribution, down gradation along 

4. Credit Assessment and Grading

customers. Proper introduction, photographs of the 

practical experiences are of paramount importance 

on the nature of credit.

lending exposures of the banks in excess of Bangladesh 

banks to implement Credit Risk Grading (CRG) for 
borrowing clients for all exposures. Till then CRG was 

instead of just one template for all the sectors. To ensure 

selected considering the size of exposures of banks in 
these industries:  

9. Ship building 

Construction 

Trade
& 

Commerce

&

Processing

Industry                                          Service
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5. Credit Risk Mitigation

other risk mitigates like netting agreements and other 

for risk mitigation includes - cash, residential, 
default, a practice called risk-based pricing. 

Quantitative and Qualitative indicators and associated weights:

Details indicators under these categories and associated weights are furnished below: 

Credit Risk Ratings Scores

mentioned below: 

QUANTITATIVE INDICATORS QUALITATIVE INDICATORS

SL Parameters Weights SL Parameters Weights

0 e erage 0% 0 Performance Beha ior 0%

02 i uidit  0% 02 Business and ndustr  Risk 0 %

0 Pro tabilit  0% 0 Management Risk 0 %

0 Co erage % 0 Securit  Risk %

0 Operational Ef cienc  0% 0 Relationship Risk 0 %

0 Earning ualit 0 % 0 Compliance Risk 02%

Total 0% Total 0%

Excellent  

Rating FeaturesScores
Aggregate

• Borrower has well established strong market share. 

Marginal  

prospects of the borrower. 

Unacceptable
management problems exist. 

Good  

• Borrower is well established and has strong market share. 
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loan agreements: 

purchasing credit insurance. 

reducing the amount of credit extended, either in 
total or to certain borrowers. 

borrowers (or kinds of borrower) face a high 

concentration risk.  

6. Past Due and Impaired Credit

date, the amount of unpaid installment(s) will be treated 

Bangladesh Bank from time to time.

7. Base for Provision

collaterals are the followings:

• Deposit with the same bank kept under lien 
against the loan

under lien,

Bangladesh Bank. 

balance calculated as the greater of the following two 
amounts:

of eligible collateral; and

8. Eligible Collateral

The following collaterals are included as eligible 

ornaments pledged with the bank.

commodities kept under control of the bank

building mortgaged with the bank

less, of the shares traded in stock exchange.

Dealers.

Particulars
Short Term 
Agri. Credit

Consumer Financing

SMEF
Loans to

BHs/MBs/SDs
All other

CreditOther than
HF, LP, CC 

HF LP CC

Standard .0% 2% % 2% 2% 0.2 % 2% %

SMA - 2% % 2% 2% 0.2 % 2% %

SS % 20% 20% 20% 20% 20% 20% 20%

DF % 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

B/L 00% 00% 00% 00% 00% 00% 00% 00%
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9. Subjective Judgment

Considering the nature and performance of a loan, the 

non-performing loans. 

b) Quantitative Disclosures

and the following table shows our gross exposure in each 

a Cash 

b

c

d Claims on Corporate

e Claims on SME

f Claims under Credit Risk Mitigation

g
Claims categorized as retail portfolio (excluding SME, Consumer finance and 

h

i

j

k

past due claim

the past due claim

the past due claim

20% of outstanding amount

against is no less than 20% of outstanding amount

l Capital Market Exposure

m
not listed in the Stock Exchanges (other than those deducted from capital) held
in banking book

n

o

p

i) Claims on GoB & BB

ii) Staff loan

iii) Claims on Offshore Banking Unit

Total

Sl Particulars Consolidated Solo

453,397.76 456,066.99

BDT in Million
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c) Geographical distribution of exposures
BDT in Million

 Regions                Exposure

 Dhaka  

 Chattogram  

 Rajshahi  

 Region Based Khulna  

 Rangpur  

 Barisal  

 Total 

  Domestic 

d) Major Industry wise distribution of exposures (Industrial Loan)
BDT in Million

Real Estate industries 

Textile industries 

Cement & Ceramics industries 

Ship Breaking & Ship Building industries 

Pharmaceuticals industries 

 Total 

e) Residual contractual maturity breakdown of the whole portfolio
BDT in Million

On demand 

 Total 

f) Major Industry type amount of impaired loans
BDT in Million

Consumer Credit 

 Total 

320,368.16

242,445.32

320,368.15

9,939.76
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g) Gross Non-Performing Assets (NPAs)
    BDT in Million

 Opening balance 

 Reductions 

 Closing balance 

 Opening balance 

Closing balance 

E. EQUITIES: DISCLOSURES FOR BANKING BOOK POSITIONS

a) Qualitative Disclosures

b) Quantitative Disclosures

BDT in Million

 
Particulars

 Consolidated Solo

 Cost Price Market Price Cost Price Market Price

c) For Banking Book Equity
BDT in Million

 Particulars Consolidated Solo

d) For Banking Book Equity
BDT in Million

 Particulars Consolidated Solo

-

-

-
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e)
BDT in Million

Particulars
 Capital Requirement

 Consolidated Solo

F. INTEREST RATE RISK IN THE BANKING BOOK (IRRBB)

a)  Qualitative Disclosures

shock.

b) Quantitative Disclosures

Earnings perspective:

BDT in Million

 Up to 12 Month  Percentage changes in Net interest income and
 (Cumulative Gap) interest rate re-pricing impact

 

G. MARKET RISK

a) Qualitative Disclosures

View of the Board of Directors on trading/investment activities

REACHING NEW HEIGHTS
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H. OPERATIONAL RISK

a) Qualitative Disclosures

Views of the Board of Directors on system to reduce 

Operational Risk

but excludes strategic and reputation risk. The Bank 
manages these risks through a control-based 

authorization is kept independent and transactions are 

Performance Gap of Executives and Staffs

Methods used to measure Market Risk

for a particular scenario. For measuring interest risk 

Mark to Market (MTM) method. For measuring foreign 

calculating capital charge against market risks for 

Market Risk Management System

and Foreign Exchange Risk Management under the core 

risk management guidelines. 

interest rate risk management framework.

Foreign Exchange Risk Management: Foreign exchange 

 Risk Management and reporting is based on 

global best practices

limit, deal-wise trigger limits, Stop-loss limit, 

strategies to attain business goals

b) Quantitative Disclosures

The capital requirements for:
BDT in Million

Particulars Consolidated Solo

Foreign exchange risk  

Total  

0.00

2,076.40

0.00

1,306.13
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Therefore, it arranges trainings on a regular basis for its 

knowledge to work for the organization with high ethical 

Policies and processes for mitigating operational risk

The Bank has adopted policies which deal with managing 

norms for its customer dealings and other banking 

Approach for calculating capital charge for 

operational risk

compute capital charge against operational risk under 

I. LIQUIDITY RATIO

a) Qualitative Disclosures

Views of the Board of Directors on system to reduce 
Liquidity Risk

Board of Directors.

Methods used to measure Liquidity Risk

being used which are as follows:

the mismatch of assets and liabilities in different 

and liabilities

Liquidity Risk Management system

b) Quantitative Disclosures

The capital requirements for:
BDT in Million

Particulars Consolidated Solo

Calculation of Capital Charge for Operational Risk (Consolidated)

Basic Indicator Approach
BDT in Million

Year Gross Income (GI) Average GI 15% of Average GI

Total GI 49,461.57   
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J. LEVERAGE RATIO

a) Qualitative Disclosures

Views of the Board of Directors on system to reduce 
excessive leverage

bank funds its assets with borrowings rather than 

prudential controls are needed to ensure that the 
organization maintains a balance between its debt and 

understand and a non-risk-based measure.

Approach for calculating exposure

which includes its balance sheet exposures and certain 

off-balance sheet exposures.

Bank:

adjustments 

risk mitigation purchased is not considered to 
reduce on-balance sheet exposure.

Policies and processes for mitigating Liquidity risk

Bangladesh Bank.

b) Quantitative Disclosures
BDT in Million

Particulars Amount
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K. REMUNERATION

a) Qualitative Disclosure

Information relating to the bodies that oversee 

remuneration:

committee comprising of few members of the Senior 

committee. The remuneration committee is the main 

posted outside Bangladesh.

Information relating to the design and structure of 

remuneration processes:

better result. Changes were also made in annual 

package.

appropriate authorities.

Description of the ways in which current and future 
risks are taken into account in the remuneration 
processes:

determining these risks. The measures focus on the 

etc. are used for measuring the risks.

package.

could create impact on the remuneration.

Description of the ways in which the Bank seeks to 
link performance during a performance 
measurement period with levels of remuneration:

Decisions about promotion, granting of annual 

b) Quantitative Disclosures

The capital requirements for:
BDT in Million

Particulars   Consolidated Solo

On balance sheet exposure  

Off balance sheet exposure  

Total exposure after deduction  
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Description of the ways in which the Bank seek to adjust remuneration taking into account of longer-term performance:

The Bank does not seek to adjust remuneration taking into account the longer-term performance. 

Description of the different forms of variable remuneration that the Bank utilizes and the rationales for using these 
different forms

special and technical nature of the job they perform.

b) Quantitative Disclosure:

Number of meetings held by the main body overseeing remuneration 

remuneration was paid to the members

Number of employees having received a variable remuneration award 219 employees received a variable remuneration in the year 2020

remuneration:

Not Applicable

Total amount of outstanding deferred remuneration and retained Not Applicable

explicit adjustments

Not Applicable

implicit adjustments

Not Applicable

Number and total amount of guaranteed bonuses awarded during the 

year

No payment was paid as severance

show:

- deferred and non-deferred.

Particulars Amount (in Million Taka)

Fixed                      Total= 177.92

Variable  

Non- deferred 

Total amount of outstanding deferred remuneration, split 
into cash, shares and share-linked instruments and other 
forms. Total amount of deferred remuneration paid out in 

Not Applicable

year 

No amount was paid as sign-on awards 

166.78

11.14

0.00

177.92

177.92
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SUSTAINABILITY APPRAISAL

AND IN
TEGRATED  

REPORTING    
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SUSTAINABILITY
APPRAISAL AND
INTEGRATED
REPORTING 

Way Forward to Achieve 

208-209

Whistle Blower Policy 217
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progress so far, we fully appreciate that there is always more 

that can be done. We seek to create long-term value for our 

stakeholders in a sustainable way. We believe that generating 

This aligns with our corporate value of being purpose-driven 

and our desire to make a difference beyond banking to touch 

real people, real businesses and real lives. 

We understand sustainability to mean responsible corporate 

social activities for long term, economically positive result in 

consideration of key societal and environmental aspects. We 

component of our business and by practicing sustainability as 

an integral leadership and management responsibility, in 

addition to taking key sustainability aspects into 

consideration in our business activities.

Sustainability Strategy of Southeast Bank: 

Responsible Banking

We seek to conduct our business in a fair and responsible 

manner by ensuring that we only offer products and services 

customers’ information from cyber-attacks and illicit usage. 

and corruption. We are committed to advancing responsible 

promoting sustainable development.

Responsible Corporate Citizenship

As a good corporate citizen, we are conscious about 

managing our direct environmental footprint and seek to 

Creating Social Impact

We seek to create social impact by championing social 

entrepreneurship in Bangladesh and through our staff 

volunteerism movement, “People of Purpose”.

Employer of Choice

We are committed to providing an inclusive work 

environment where every employee can develop 

professionally and personally.

As society continues to increase its expectation for 

businesses to deliver solutions sustainable for our planet, we 

see opportunities to offer banking solutions that can help 

meet those expectations. We are encouraged by how the 

advancement of technology opens up viable banking 

same time allow us to do more for the communities we 

operate in.

SUSTAINABILITY REPORT-AT A GLIMPSE

Responsible
Banking

Creating
Social Impact

Employer of
Choice

Responsible
Corporate
Citizenship
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CSR Policy of Bank

business practices that are based on ethical values, 

compliance with legal and regulatory requirement and 

respect for people, communities and the environment. We 

are responsible for the totality of our impact on people and 

responsibility is about addressing the needs of all the 

stakeholders in a way that advances our business and makes a 

positive and meaningful contribution to the society.

contributes our support to the society in which we live and 

operate. By this policy, we contribute our small bit of backing 

in sustaining the society that gives us the business 

encompasses our customers, employees, shareholders, 

suppliers, business associates and the society as a whole. We 

endeavor to achieve our objectives in the area of corporate 

social responsibility in the following manner:

in projects for economic development of the 

country;

maintaining sound management;

offering top-quality and high-value- added products 

and services;

to the employees and creating a congenial 

workplace;

performance at a competitive cost;

and environment protection;

of the society;

relevant laws and regulations of all regulatory bodies;

healthcare etc.;

relationship of understanding, trust and credibility;

regulations and working for healthy development of 
the society;

within the Bank;

existence;

Southeast Bank Green Foundation (SEBGF)

frameworks, it has succeeded in undertaking a number of 

Donation to the Prime Minister’s Relief and Welfare 
Funds

victims on humanitarian ground. At the call of necessity, 

Educational Scholarship

brilliant learners coming from poor families in the pursuit of 

education at different levels. The process of selecting 

different levels selected from educational institutions across 

students at different levels.

REPORT ON CORPORATE
SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
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Southeast Bank Green School

was set up in 2013 for the children of families with moderate 

adjacent buildings located in the midst of a number of housing 

30 teachers are putting their relentless efforts to impart 

Support for Educational Institutions

for the nation, we supported educational institutions in 

Support for Medical Treatment

We get our business sustenance from the society in which we 

operate. We stand by the poor people distressed by serious 

cause.

Support for promotion of law and order in the 
country

assisted different bodies in their longing for maintenance of 

million for the purpose.

Donation to different Bodies/Institutions

and institutions to pursue charitable ventures, environment 

Total CSR Expenditure

protect wildlife habitat, curb effect of climate change and 

improve conditions of families and communities. We promote 

green living and green banking.

million for education, sports, art, culture, promotion of 

national heritage, improvement of the condition of autistic 

assistance to disadvantaged people, donation for national 

disaster-victims, help for poor peoples’ medical treatment of 

serious diseases, community development, relief operation, 

winter-clothes for the cold-hit poor people, etc.

202020192018

241.77

20172016

CSR Expenditure
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challenges including those related to poverty, inequality, climate, environmental degradation, prosperity, peace, and justice. 

With a target date set for 2030, the clock is ticking for the 193 countries signed up to meet the deadline. According to the Business and 

and generate 380 million jobs, much of this in developing countries.

A need for innovative thinking and sustainable innovation

of energy resources, encouraging e-mail-based communication and web-based activities, reducing use of paper, introducing 

biometric attendance system, etc. 

WAY FORWARD TO ACHIEVE
SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT
GOALS (SDGS) 
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SDG PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

1) No poverty
investing

2) Zero hunger

3) Good health and well-being

4) Quality education

5) Gender equality

6) Clean water and sanitation

7) Affordable and clean energy

8) Decent work and economic growth

9) Industry innovation and infrastructure
environmental criteria for lending decisions

10) Reduced inequalities

11) Sustainable cities and communities

12) Responsible consumption and production

13) Climate action

14) Life below water Financing ecological services

15) Life on land Financing ecological services

16) Peace, justice and strong institutions

17) Partnership for the Goals

While we do not underestimate the challenge, we look forward to embracing it head on to do our part in contributing to this 
important global agenda.
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contribution to the economic sector of the country. The Bank 

has been playing a vital role in the economy by providing 

credit for businesses and at the same time collecting deposits 

from general public through different types of depository 

sub-branches operating nationwide has been contributing 

formulates its business strategies in conformity with the 

economic policies. The Bank is committed to building 

relationships with the community within which it operates. 

introducing breakthrough digital banking services to all 

through its exclusive product branded as “Telecash”. The 

product has enabled the people of all classes living both in 

their doorsteps.

sector; remittances sent by migrant workers, growth in the 

growth; and the government's safety net programmes.

Bangladesh is the second largest apparel exporter of western 

expanding its foreign exchange operation. The Bank 

million in total import and total export respectively for the 

year 2020. Bangladesh with increase in the number of 

migrant workers, there has been considerable increase in the 

Agriculture sector witnessed remarkable progress, despite 

continued loss of arable land. There has been a sharp increase 

in food grain production during the last four decades. This 

increase has been made possible as a result of a liberalized 

input market and expansion of irrigation, encouraging 

farmers to adopt the new seed-fertilizer technology, which is 

role in promoting economic growth, poverty reduction, and 

good health and well-being, clean water and sanitation, 

preservation of life on land and below water, affordable and 

renewable clean energy, quality education, green technology 

exchequer in the form of corporate tax, withholding tax, 

million as corporate tax to the national exchequer.

national economy through its existing sustainable business 

strategies and also through devising innovative products and 

services with modern technologies in days to come.

CONTRIBUTION TO
NATIONAL ECONOMY
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SOUTHEAST BANK
GREEN FOUNDATION

01. Mr. Alamgir Kabir, FCA

02. Mr. M. A. Kashem

03. Mr. Azim Uddin Ahmed

04. Mr. Yussuf Abdullah Harun, FCA

06. Mr. Zakir Ahmed Khan

07. Mr. M. Kamal Hossain
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stakeholders as well as to the communities in which it works 

compliance and best practices as required by Bangladesh 

this initiative, the bank considers all the social and 

environmental factors in its normal banking operations with 

environment, habitats, resources, and society.

In-House Environmental Management

for building awareness and consciousness for environmental 
issues. The Bank has introduced a monthly newsletter to 
distribute among the employees of the Bank to create green 
awareness providing attention to the following aspects:

Save Paper Save Trees (Every ton of paper involves 17 trees).

• Purchase recycled paper.

• Print on reusable sheets.

• Print multiple pages on single sheet of paper.

• Print only the pages required.

• Preview documents before printing.

GREEN BANKING INITIATIVES -
ENVIRONMENTAL AND
SOCIAL OBLIGATIONS

Making the Banking Business “Green” 
refers to how sustainable a bank is in 

its entirety, not just its lending 
operations.
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• Plant or help plant more trees and preventing the cutting of the existing ones, contribute towards the making of a healthy 

planet at no extra cost.

are preserved.

dioxide emissions a year.

of the electricity and last ten times longer.

transformers continue to draw power, even when they're off or not charging anything, as long as they're plugged in.

• Turn off the tap while brushing teeth and of course after use. 

Automation towards Green Banking

The Bank uses the latest technology to provide various banking services through online platform leading to green banking 
operations.

Year No. of Accounts No. of On-line Branches Total Number of MFS Accounts
 using Internet Banking

Green Training and Capacity Building

academy by local and foreign trainers. Besides, good number of employees were sent abroad to participate in different workshops 

and training conducted by internationally renowned organizations. 
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To convince a client to “go green”, the Bank itself practices 
what it preaches. The Bank has adopted and implemented a 

carbon footprint of the Bank.

initiatives:

- As per Bangladesh Bank directives, a separate 

environmental and social issues has been formed.

management, conducted by local and foreign trainers 
have been arranged for the employees of different 
capacities.

in credit proposals and they play an important role in 

lending decision making.

sustainable development.

reduction in consumption of energy

internet-conferencing has been introduced, where 

possible.

- The employees have been apprised of and trained on 

equipment, lighting and air conditioners.

Banking etc.

ENVIRONMENT
RELATED INITIATIVES
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quality of service the Bank provides. To sustain and grow 

the employees are the most differentiating factors which 

crucially depends on the attitude and skill set of the 

employees interacting with the customers. The Bank takes 

appropriate strategies to attract, manage, develop and 

we develop a proper manpower planning approach keeping 

in mind the ongoing need of human resources in the medium 

to the long term.

The Bank believes that employees remain our most valued 

resource and our continued success depends on the 

attributes of human capital such as knowledge building, 

experience and skills sharing because these have a clear 

impact on organizational outcome and can build a long-term 

competitive advantage. We strive to create a congenial 

atmosphere for upholding the highest principles of ethical 

and professional conduct of the employees.

We believe that the education and training of the employees 

increase knowledge base, ability to work, resolve problems 

and carry out innovation. The Bank makes investment on 

since training is a tool to equip the human resources with 

adequate knowledge and skill besides shaping their behavior 

and attitude. This enables the employees to keep their 

knowledge updated as well as sharpen the skills. Total 101 

numbers of employees have been trained on different 

2020.

Human Resource by Demographics

The average age group of human resource of the Bank is 

30-39. We have a pool of energetic and adaptive workforce 

of different age to render quality services to the customers 

who look for prompt, value added and cost-effective 

services. The Bank believes that the beauty of age diversity 

in the workplace lies in the fact that every generation brings 

a different set of skills, experiences, expectations and styles 

which improve our overall performance and brand value.

 Age Group Total (%)

 Below 30 288 10.07

 Total 2,859 100.00

New Employment

The Bank recruits young, energetic, dynamic and 

self-motivated individuals as fresh and lateral entrants in 

every year considering the business needs through different 

phases of assessment tests. We believe that the diverse 

workforce has the ability to innovate, develop wide-ranging 

expertise and create impactful networks. And when our 

employee operates in an inclusive and open corporate 

culture, we deliver cutting-edge ideas, products and services 

to our clients. The diversity of our workforce, including 

different skills, mindsets, knowledge and experience of our 

employees, gives us a better understanding of our clients' 

function, united in our dedication to serving all of our 

entrants and 24 were lateral entrants.

Besides, as part of Bank’s commitments to the community in 

universities were given opportunity to complete their 

internship program in the Bank during the year 2020.

Human Resource Accounting (HRA)

The Bank considers its human resource as the most crucial and 

resource accounting measures the value of human resources 

keeping two focal points -costs incurred for the recruitment, hiring, 

familiarizing, training, development and maintenance and the 

cost and  

REPORT ON HUMAN CAPITAL
AND HR ACCOUNTING
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weaknesses of the human resources. All this information 
helps us in planning and making the right decisions about 
human resource management. 

it prevents misuse of human resources, increases human 

asset productivity, improves morale, job satisfaction, 

performance, motivation and creativity, etc. The Bank 

strives for continuous development of its human resources 

and considers any expenditure incurred on human resource 

Particulars  2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Gender Diversity

at the workplace is a working environment wherein females have equal opportunities as males in recruitment, promotion, 

  2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

 No. of  No. of  No. of  No. of  No. of
 Employees % Employees % Employees % Employees % Employees %

Male

Female

Total 2,616  2,704  2,797  2,885  2,859

Corporate Organogram

component of this organization for effectiveness of operations to gain competitive advantage. The corporate organogram depicts 
vividly the superior and subordinate relationship and it shows the lines of authority, accountability, responsibility and lines of 

will report to whom and ensure that the responsibilities are being allocated, activities are being performed and management 
authority is being exercised in a way as needed.

0.0027                    0.0038                    0.0020                   0.0020                              0.0004
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atmosphere where everyone shares a sense of belongingness 

and devotes themselves to perform their responsibilities with 

utmost sincerity. All employees are bound by a strong bond of 

their cohesive effort to bring about success. The Bank always 

gives due importance to the views and opinions of the 

employees and encourages constructive feedback towards 

We welcome innovative ideas, concepts and thoughts from 

the employees and involve them in decision making process. 

Participatory management motivates the employees to meet 

employees are the biggest assets of the Bank and 

participatory management is an effective strategy to retain 

them in the organization.

The Bank believes that two-way communication plays an 

their best and tries to strengthen the organization to improve 

higher degree of enjoyment at work place that drives them to 

ensures tremendous improvement in work culture within the 

organization as well as increase in its productivity.

The Bank has a Whistle Blower Policy to prevent and detect 

incidents of fraud or misconduct and to protect the Bank 

from potential threat as well as to implement the essence and 

encourages and allows employees to report in good faith 

information about the whistleblower other than to the 

Blower Policy.

POLICY TO ENCOURAGE
EMPLOYEES TO PARTICIPATE
IN MANAGEMENT

WHISTLE
BLOWER POLICY
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VALUE ADDED STATEMENT
The value-added statement for the Bank shows how the value is created and distributed among different stakeholders of the 

Particulars 

Income from Banking Services:

 33,539.64  36,392.61 
Less: Cost of Services & Supplies

Audit Fee 1.86  1.90 

 22,493.60  24,780.29 
Value Added by the Banking Services 11,046.04  11,612.32 
Add: Non-banking income -  - 
Less: Provision for loans and advances/investments

 (5,108.68)  (4,578.76) 
Value Added 5,937.36  7,033.56 
Distribution of Value Addition

Expansion & Growth:

 5,937.36 100% 7,033.56 100%

2020 Taka % %2019 Taka

Wealth Distribution of 2019 Data in %Wealth Distribution of 2020 Data in %

34.97

20.02
16.96

10.29

11.88
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ECONOMIC VALUE ADDED
STATEMENT

20202019

 2,928.22

2018

 1,848.47

2017

 1,838.86

2016

Economic Value Added                                                                                                                                                                                                    

Particulars 2020 2019

in 2020

in 2019
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MARKET VALUE ADDED
STATEMENT

Market Value Added                                                                                                                                                             

Particulars 2020 2019

  

 8,023.32

 11,186.79

 3,827.81
 2,912.90

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
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COMMUNICATION TO

    S
HAREHOLDERS AND  

       
       

   STAKE HOLDERS    
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COMMUNICATION
TO SHAREHOLDERS
AND STAKEHOLDERS 

 228-229

Vertical Analysis 232-233

REACHING NEW HEIGHTS222

 |  Annual Report 2020



Throughout the year we communicate with Shareholders in the following ways:

Availability of information for Investors’ about Southeast Bank Limited

Investors’ Enquiries

sent to the following address:

Investors’ Relation Department

Web Address : www.southeastbank.com.bd

COMMUNICATION TO
SHAREHOLDERS
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shareholders. To ensure equal treatment to all shareholders, the bank created various mechanisms, such as:

attend and vote on their behalf. The proxy forms which are in accordance with the standard format are sent along with 
the annual report.

important information for the shareholders’ meetings are not changed abruptly to the disadvantage of the shareholders.

connected or related transactions and abides by good corporate governance principles, including the rules and 

consideration to approve such transactions.

at any other time when it believes it needs to be done in the best interest of shareholders.

informed regarding resolution of the complaint. 

SEBL follows the following principles in dealing with the Investors:  

 Fair treatment;

 Timeliness in the resolution of investors’ complaints;

 Friendliness with all investors and all investor segments;

 Protection of investors’ interest;

How we know about Investors' Complaints:

 An investor can make a written complaint through a letter.

recorded.

 We have 3 designated persons who look after the investor grievances within a timeframe.

must be apprised of it as soon as it is received.

REDRESSAL OF INVESTORS’
COMPLAINTS
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Purpose of the Dividend Policy

Process of distribution of dividend

a. Manner and Payment procedure of Cash 
Dividend

the declared cash dividend payable for the concern 
year shall be kept in a separate bank account of 

account of the entitled shareholder as available in 

the shareholder in paper form, through Bangladesh 

transfer or any electronic payment system as 
recognized by the Bangladesh Bank.

from a stock broker or a merchant banker or a 

portfolio manager for the margin client, shall pay off 

separate bank account of the merchant banker or 

information or not possible to distribute cash 

system, shall issue cash dividend warrant and shall 
send it by post to the shareholder.

sponsor, director, shareholder, foreign portfolio 

compliance with the rules or regulations in this 
regard;

b. Manner and Payment procedure of Stock 
Dividend

days of declaration or approval or record date, as the 

provisions of cªweavb 46 of the wW‡cvwRUwi (e¨envwiK) cªweavbgvjv, 

2003 for issuance of bonus shares. 

undistributed or unclaimed stock dividend or bonus 

shares and shall also follow the under mentioned 

procedures for ensuring the rightful ownership.

entitled shareholder;

dividend or bonus shares shall not be transferred in 

any manner except for the purpose of allotting the 

bonus shares as and when the allottee approaches 

terms of shares accrued on such undistributed or 

unclaimed stock dividend or bonus shares shall be 

his entitlement, credit the bonus shares lying with 

allottee, or issue bonus shares to the allottee, as 

unclaimed stock dividend or bonus shares shall 

remain suspended till the rightful ownership claim 

of the shareholder is established.

DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION
POLICY
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Compliance Report regarding Dividend Distribution 

days of completion of dividend distribution as well as publish 

the compliance report in its website. 

Forfeiture of unclaimed cash or stock dividend

dividend till the claim becomes barred by the law of land in 

force. 

Transfer to the Fund for unpaid or unclaimed or 
unsettled cash dividend 

from the date of declaration or approval or record date, as the 

shall provide detailed information to the manager of the Fund 

during transfer of cash dividend as directed or prescribed by 

Provided further that if any shareholder claims his cash 

dividend after transfer of such dividend to the Fund, within 

of the Fund to pay off such dividend from the Fund and the 

manager of the Fund shall pay off such cash dividend to the 

claimant in accordance with the provisions and procedures as 

Transfer to the Fund for unpaid or unclaimed or 
unsettled stock dividend 

declaration or approval or record date, as the case may be, 

provide detailed information to the manager of the Fund 

during transfer of stock dividend or bonus shares as directed 

Provided further that if any shareholder claims his stock 

dividend or bonus shares after transfer of such dividend or  

of the Fund to pay off or transfer such stock dividend or 

manager of the Fund shall pay off or transfer such stock 

accordance with the provisions and procedures as directed 

Tax matters

Tax will be deducted at source as per applicable tax laws and 

Review 

The policy would be reviewed on an annual basis or as and 

approved by the Board.  

Maintaining detail information of the shareholders 
for proper distribution of cash dividend or stock 
dividend

phone number, email and address of the shareholder for the 

purpose of proper distribution of cash dividend or stock 

in a year for the purpose of proper distribution cash dividend 

Disclosure of the policy

website of the Bank.

Summary of  Unclaimed Dividend

As of 31.12.2020 total amount of unclaimed dividend is 
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BDT In Million

Particulars
Group Bank

2020 2019 Change (%) 2020 2019 Change (%)

Performance During the Year

Non -

Year End Financial Position

Total Assets

Ratios (%)

Non -performing loans

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

2,481.42

11,289.14

2,149.10

 97,073.89 

 29,703.77 

 

1.81 

 7.06

 24.98

10,133.72

14,390.72

8,982.98

 77,310.04 

 30,499.46 

 422,312.71 

 

2.11

 6.27 

 26.29 

 13.30 

-

 2,409.23 

 8,163.91 

 320,368.16 

 

1.76

6.27 

 14,211.13 

 74,484.39 

 329,797.46 

 30,418.84 

 

2.12 

 6.17 

 26.22 

 13.30 

-
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KEY FINANCIAL DATA
AND RATIOS

Particulars  2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

BALANCE SHEET MATRIX            

INCOME STATEMENT MATRIX 

CAPITAL MATRIX           

CREDIT QUALITY            

11,889.41

28,483.13

29,703.77

97,073.89

9,714.97

420,116.44

19,769.08

11,289.14

2,149.10

 28,139.28 

 9,939.76 

 3,301.06 

 20,226.77 

 931.26 

BDT in Million
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Particulars  2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

FOREIGN EXCHANGE BUSINESS        

OPERATING PROFIT RATIOS 

PERFORMANCE RATIOS            

DIVIDEND & RIGHTS ISSUE        

SHARES INFORMATION MATRIX       

OTHER INFORMATION            

221,823.40

176,419.60

129,887.10

 14.66

 0.73 

-

-

 1,188.94 

 1.81 

 31,881.00 

7.06

24.98

649

BDT in Million
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HORIZONTAL ANALYSIS
Particulars 2020(%) 2020 2019(%) 2019 2018(%) 2018 2017(%) 2017 2016(%) 2016

PROPERTY AND ASSETS                    

Cash                    

                    

Investments                    

182,661.82

Total assets    145% 422,312.71  131% 381,575.68  116% 339,288.05  100% 291,798.01 

Liabilities                    

Deposits and other accounts                     

 

226,108.26 173,438.93 

Total Deposit   143% 329,250.27 130% 298,334.79 117% 269,828.08 100% 229,973.43

Other liabilities    186% 37,144.69 161% 32,102.46 131% 26,044.63 100% 19,919.38 

Total liabilities   159% 366,394.96 132% 330,437.25 118% 295,872.71 100% 249,892.81 

 Capital/shareholders' equity                    

Total shareholders' equity    115% 30,499.46  106% 28,116.66 97% 25,823.65 100% 26,523.56 

Balance Sheet BDT in Million

 3,474.37 

 2,108.72 

 2,208.91 

 83,226.36 

 14,498.94 

 9,714.97 

 465,293.41 

18,897.68 

 13,600.00 

 3,940.33 

 38,060.94 

 359,535.93 

 43,545.83 

 435,579.44 

11,889.41 

 29,703.77 

 10.20 

 465,293.41 

 17,143.77 

 31,398.29 

 -   

 138,737.25 

159%

156%

219%

189%

112%

159%

-

122%
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Particulars 2020(%) 2020 2019(%) 2019 2018(%) 2018 2017(%) 2017 2016(%) 2016

Operating Income                    

    124% 5,407.74 119%   5,178.92  112%   4,870.74  100%   4,349.23 

BDT in Million

107%

127%

159%

60%

88%

 19,769.08 

 2,481.42 

 1002.03

 13,770.56 

 877.91 

 164.21 

 10.41 

 2.69 

 1.86 

 786.68 

 1,437.48 

 5,506.01 

 4,198.16 

 827.47 

 119.16

 80.96 

 5,108.68 

 3,155.88

 1,006.73 

 2,149.10 

 1.81 
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VERTICAL ANALYSIS

Particulars 2020(%) 2020 2019(%) 2019 2018(%) 2018 2017(%) 2017 2016(%) 2016

PROPERTY AND ASSETS                    

Balance with Bangladesh Bank and its agent banks

Balance with other banks and financial institutions                    

Investments                 

Loans and advances/investments                    

Non - banking assets   -                 -                      -                               -                      -                    -                      -                            -   

LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL                    

Liabilities                   

Deposits and other accounts                     

Capital/shareholders' equity                    

Total shareholders' equity    7% 30,499.46  7% 28,116.66  8% 25,823.65  9% 26,523.56 

Balance Sheet BDT in Million

 3,474.37 

 

2,108.72 

 2,208.91 

 83,226.36 

 14,498.94 

 9,714.97 

  

 18,897.68 

 13,600.00 

 3,940.33 

 38,060.94 

 11,889.41 

 29,703.77 

 10.20 

 17,143.77 

 31,398.29 

 -   

 -   

6%
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Particulars 2020(%) 2020 2019(%) 2019 2018(%) 2018 2017(%) 2017 2016(%) 2016

Operating Income                    

borrowings etc.

   12% 4,257.00 15%   5,199.94  15%   4,027.69  16%   4,207.21

   40% 14,390.72 44% 14,961.92  51% 13,933.04  50% 12,852.45

   15% 5,407.74 15%   5,178.92  18%   4,870.74  17%   4,349.23 

   25% 8,982.98 29%   9,783.00  33%   9,062.30  33%   8,503.22 

Provision for loans and advances/investments                   

Provision for diminution in value of investments

BDT in Million

7%

41%

16%

25%

15%

9%

6%

19,769.08

2,481.42

1002.03

13,756.13

877.91

164.21

10.41

2.69

1.86

786.68

1,437.48

5506.01

8,264.56

4,198.16

827.47

119.17

80.96

5,108.68

3,095.20

1,006.73

2149.10
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SEGMENT INFORMATION
Agriculture

Sector wise Investment

Revenue Sources

Expenditure Mix

Area wise Loan

Division Wise Loan

and brokerage

Provision

Tax

Khulna

Barisal

Net interest income

and brokerage

income
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GRAPHICAL PRESENTATION

Market Price Per Share

2020

13.30

2019201820172016

Price Earning Ratio

7.06

2020

6.16

2019

6.66

2018

17.42

2017

7.06

2016

Earnings per share

1.81

2020

2.16

2019

2.13

2018

1.11

2017

2.66

2016

Total Assets

2020

422,313

20192018

339,288

2017

291,798

2016

20202019

267,672

2018

234,317

2017

191,866

2016 202020192018

269,828

2017

229,973

2016

Loans and Advances Deposits
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Import Business

221,823

2020

248,901

2019201820172016

Operating Income

13, 771

2020

14,391

2019

14,962

2018

13,933

20172016

2020

8,983

2019

9,783

2018

9,062

20172016

Profit Before Tax

2020

4,404

2019

4,669

2018

4,182

20172016

20202019201820172016

29,704

2020

30,499

2019

28,117

201820172016

Dividend Shareholders' Equity
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Return on Equity

20202019201820172016

Return on Average Assets

20202019201820172016

Non Performing Loan

20202019201820172016

Investment 97,074

2020

77,310

20192018

62,911

2017

61,732

2016

Export Business

176,420

20202019

190,403

20182017

146,606

2016

Operating Expense

202020192018

4,871

2017

4,349

2016

Total Provision 

202020192018

4,880

2017

3,213

2016

Profit After Tax

2,149

20202019

2,473

2018

1,169

20172016
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Shares held by Directors in 2020

Market Price Information

Ownership Composition – 2020
Name of the Category  Number of Shares  % to total Shares  

irectors and ponsors  3 8,817,886  30.18 

nstitutions and nvestor A  olders  421,218,288  3 .43 

eneral Public  408,904,347  34.39 

TOTAL  1,188,940,521  100.00 

Sl. No. Name of the Directors Designation Shares

1 r. Alamgir Kabir, F A hairman 26,709,202

2 rs. uluma Ahmed Vice hairperson 24,743,1 9

3 r. .A. Kashem irector 26,330,640

4 r. Azim ddin Ahmed irector 33,0 1,923

rs. usna Ara Kashem irector 23,779,48

6 rs. ehana ahman irector 24,433,788

7 r. d. Akikur ahman irector 31,764,46

8 r. aiyan Kabir irector 24,4 8,937

9
Bay easing  nvestment imited 

epresented by r. . aniruz Zaman Khan
irector

27,9 0,000 

10 r. yed ajedul Karim ndependent irector -

11 r. Quazi esbahuddin Ahmed ndependent irector -

12 r. ohammad elwar usain ndependent irector -

13 r. . Kamal ossain anaging irector -

Total Shares: - 243,221,599

Months
DSE CSE Total 

Volume on 
DSE & CSEMonth High Month Low Total Volume Month High Month Low Total Volume

20- an 13. 0 12.10 12,739,849 13.40 11. 70 647, 90 13,387,439

20-Feb 13.60 12.20 10,446,899 13. 0 12.60 607,104 11,0 4,003

20- ar 12.70 10.30 18,390,777 12.90 10.80 2, 93 18,943,370

20-Apr - - - - - -

20- ay 11.60 11.30 694,443 - - 694,443

20- un 11.30 11.30 803,006 11.40 11.40 24,076 827,082

20- ul 11. 0 11.30 13,779,442 11. 0 11.40 618,86 14,398,307

20-Aug 14.80 11.30 108,039,6 3 14. 0 11.40 3,308, 84 111,348,237

20- ep 14.00 12.70 37,1 7,712 14.40 12.70 929, 2 38,087,237

20- ct 13.10 12.10 2 ,203,4 9 13.40 12.00 686,778 2 ,890,237

20-Nov 12.90 12.20 23,7 3,028 13.30 12.10 738,434 24,491,462

20- ec 12.80 12.40 29,180, 07 13.00 12.20 1,036,097 30,216,604

REACHING NEW HEIGHTS238

 |  Annual Report 2020



FINANCIAL
CALENDAR-2020

th  

Interim Financial Statements 

For the 1st 

For the 2nd

For the 3rd

Financial Calendar 2021 

26th

Interim Financial Statements 

For the 2nd

For the 3rd

Date
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STAKEHOLDERS’
ENGAGEMENT PROCESS
Our relationship-activity with Stakeholders:

The following table discusses various aspects of stakeholders, their engagement process and our responses:

Our
Stakeholders

Mode of
Engagement

Frequency of
Engagement

Methodologies used for
FeedbackTheir Priorities

awareness

 Frequently
 

 At times 
 As and when required

 As and when required

 Frequently
 Any time

services

 Flexibility in offerings

 Timely disposal

 Prescribed Form.

branches.

diligence

pricingCustomers

 Annually
 Annually
 As and when required

 As and when required
 As and when required
 Quarterly

 Business ethics 

 Assets Quality

shareholders are addressed
 Periodical dialogue 

drives

Shareholders

Bangladesh Bank
 As and when felt 

necessary 
 As and when required
 As and when required
 Within deadlines

 As and when required

 Proper compliance with 

 Timely payment of all 
regulatory dues.

 Timely reporting 
 Timely holding of 

meeting and 
implementation of 
decisions.

regulatory requirements

Bank
 Time consciousnessRegulators

 Adherence to proper 
procurement regulations 
while maintaining a good 
business relationship with the 
service providers.  

 As and when needed  Transparency  
 Timely payment of their 

bills.
procurement policy

principles 
Business
Associates

Friendly Projects
 Awards to entrepreneurs for 

outstanding performance in 
sustainable development and 
protection of environment.

promote citizens’ welfare

protection of environment

 Annually

 As and when required

 As and when felt 
necessary

 As and when decided

 Transparency 

disaster managements, 
environmental protection

Business
Associates

Program

 Website

developments in the business 
sector

 Team building through 
development of cross-cutting 
working groups

as when felt necessary
 As and when required

 As and when 
necessitated

 Periodically

with performance
 Whistle blowing process
 Training and workshop 

program.

considering industry scenario.

development program.

Employees
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SOUTHEAST BANK
OUTLOOK 

Products and Services 243-244

Central Monitoring System - Round the Clock 245

Call Center 24X7 245

Media Highlights 246-247

Caring for the Employees  248

Southeast Bank Staff Welfare Trust 249

Career Development Program 250

Environment- Responsive Bank 251

Southeast Bank Green School 252
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Service Excellence in Action 254
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Uposhakhas and ATMs 255-270

REACHING NEW HEIGHTS242

Southeast Bank Limited  |  Annual Report 2020



PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

ISLAMIC BANKING
DEPOSIT PRODUCTS

Mudaraba Savings Account

Al-Wadiah Current Deposit Account

Mudaraba Short Notice Deposit

Mudaraba Monthly Savings Scheme

Mudaraba Monthly Income Scheme

Mudaraba Pension Savings Scheme

Mudaraba Multimillionaire
Gold Deposit Scheme (MGDS)

Mudaraba Wage Earners Pension Saving Scheme

Mudaraba Millionaire Deposit Scheme

Mudaraba Term Deposit Receipt

VALUE ADDED
SERVICES

Student File 

Locker Service

Senior Citizen Scheme 

Passport Endorsement

Individual Remittance (Inward and Outward)  

Internet Banking Service

Call Centre (7X24)

Mobile Banking Services (Tele Cash)

RETAIL BANKING
SERVICES

SEBL Home Loan

SEBL Personal Loan

SEBL Car Loan

SEBL Express CashCONVENTIONAL BANKING
DEPOSIT PRODUCTS

Savings Account (SB)

Current Deposit Account (CD)

Short Notice Deposit (SND)

Fixed Deposit Receipt (FDR)

Monthly Savings Scheme (MSS)

Monthly Income Scheme (MIS)

Pension Savings Scheme (PSS)

Millionaire Deposit scheme (MDS)

Multimillionaire Gold Deposit Scheme (MGDS)

Wage Earners Pension Savings Scheme (WEPSS)

Anonya™ Savings Account     

Bichokkhon™ Savings Account

ESTEEM™ (Priority Banking Service)

School Banking

Taroka™

Nokkhotro™

Royal Savings “Savings Account”     

Savings Fast “Savings Account” 

CARD
SERVICES

Southeast Credit Card

Southeast Virtual Card

Southeast Travel Card

Southeast Hajj Card

Southeast Prepaid Card /INSTA Prepaid Card

Southeast Express Card

Southeast Personalized Debit Card

Southeast My Remit Card

Student Debit Card

Quick Read Card

LOAN
PRODUCTS

Southeast Shopan

Southeast Shikhor

Southeast Shuprova

Southeast Shopnil

Southeast Agri. Loan
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SERVICES PROVIDED BY
OFF-SHORE BANKING UNIT

Foreign Currency Deposit Account of Non-residents 

Export-Import services to Type-A industrial units
of Export Processing Zones (EPZ) and Economic
Zone (EZ). 

Financing Usance Payable at Sight (UPAS)
Documentary Credit 

Short Term Foreign Currency Loan to ADs for
purchase of Export Bills in Foreign Currency 

Foreign Currency Term Loan to eligible resident
industrial units for non EPZ/EZ and EPZ/EZ clients.

EXPORT
SERVICES

Documentary Credit:
a. Advising Export Documentary Credit
b. Transferring Export Documentary Credit
c. Opening Back- to-Back Documentary Credit
 (Local & Foreign)

Foreign Documentary Bills Collection:
a. Documents Against Payment (D/P)
b. Documents Against Acceptance (D/A)

Pre-shipment Finance: Packing Credit 

Post-shipment Finance:
a. Foreign Documentary Bills Purchase (FDBP)
b. Purchase/Discounting Export Bills (Local)
c. Export Development Fund (EDF) from
 Bangladesh Bank
d. Cash Incentive from Bangladesh Bank

IMPORT
SERVICES

Documentary Credit:
a. Opening Import Documentary Credit
 (Local and Foreign)

 Foreign Correspondent Banks
c. Arranging Discounting through Foreign
 Correspondent Banks

Post Import Finance:
a. Loan Trust Receipt (LTR)
b. Time Loan
c. Term Loan

Documentary Collection services:
a. Documents Collections against
 Payment (D/P)
b. Documents Collections against
 Acceptance (D/A)

Issuing Shipping Guarantee

FOREIGN CURRENCY (FC)
ACCOUNT SERVICES

Resident Foreign Currency Account (RFCD)

Non-Resident Foreign Currency Account (NFCD)

Non-Resident Taka Account (NRTA)

Exporter’s Retention Quota (ERQ) Account

Non Resident Investor’s Taka Account (NITA)

CORPORATE
LOAN

Working Capital Finance

Term Finance

Project Finance

Syndication & Club Finance

Work Order Finance

Real Estate Finance 

Trade Finance

Commercial Finance

Export Finance

Loan to NBFI

TREASURY PRODUCTS
Money Market Products

Call Money

Term Money

Re-purchase Agreement (Repo)

Reverse Repo

Foreign Exchange Swap

Fixed Income Products

Treasury Bond to Inter-Bank

Treasury Bond to Individual Investors

Treasury Bond to Corporate Investors

Subordinated Bond

Foreign Exchange Products

Spot in Major Currency Pairs

Forward Contract

Placement in USD
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Central Monitoring System (CMS), a unique initiative 
of Southeast Bank Limited has been introduced to 
ensure the physical safety & security system and also 
supervision of service quality of its Branches across 
the country. CMS is manned 24X7 for ensuring 
continuous monitoring of all branch activities. It is to 
be noted that CMS of the Bank was installed ahead of 
Bangladesh Bank directives making it mandatory for 
all the Banks.

Activities of the Central Monitoring System (CMS) 
are following:

- To facilitate virtual branch visit for the 
Branch Supervisors and Bank Management.

- To serve periodical reports to the 
management as per their requirement 
regarding safety & security and Service 
Quality of the branches.  

- To ensure Service Quality.  

- To assist investigation agencies.

and organizational image.

CENTRAL MONITORING SYSTEM –
ROUND THE CLOCK

Picture

CALL CENTER 24X7
Southeast Bank Call Center has been providing sustainable quality services to its valuable customers via phone, email & live chat 

round the clock. Contact Number of Call Center for local caller is 16206 and overseas caller is 09613116206. Now it has become 

the most popular service wing for Bank’s valuable 

customers to meet their day to day banking needs. 

acceptability of call centre. Call Center received around 

0.48 million calls in the year 2020 which is 103% higher 

than the number of calls in 2019. Customers may email 

at client.care@southeastbank.com.bd to avail round 

the clock service at their convenience. We have 

extended the range of valuable services from our Call 

Centre such as Card activation, Card/PIN 

Replacement Request, E-commerce/ Foreign part 

enable request, EMI Conversion Request, MRP 

redemption, Card cheque book activation & 

requisition. Live Chat service has also been 

among the banks in Bangladesh. 
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mvD_B÷ e¨vs‡Ki evwl©K mvaviY mfvq jf¨vsk †NvlYv
mvD_B÷ e¨vsK wjwg‡U‡Wi 25Zg evwl©K mvaviY mfv MZKvj eyaevi wWwRUvj cøvUd‡g©i gva¨‡g AbywôZ nq| e¨vs‡Ki †Pqvig¨vb 
AvjgMxi Kwei, GdwmG mfvcwZ‡Z¡ AbywôZ mfvq fvBm †Pqvicvimb `yjygv Avn‡g` I cl©‡`i cwiPvjK GgG Kv‡kg, AvwRg 
DwÏb Avn‡g`, wg‡mm †Rvmbv Aviv Kv‡kg, wg‡mm †invbv ingvb, †gv. AvwKKzi ingvb Ges ¯^Zš¿ cwiPvjK ˆmq` mv‡R`yj Kwig, 

†NvlYv I 2019 mv‡j mgvß wnmve eQ‡ii wbixwÿZ Avw_©K cÖwZ‡e`b Aby‡gvw`Z nq|
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Southeast Bank ensures a safe and secure workplace for its 
employees. We encourage everyone to think of their safety 
and health not only during emergencies, but also to see the 
value of health and wellness in their everyday lives. The Bank 

to promote a healthy lifestyle of the employees of the Bank. 
The Doctor provides free consultations to the employees for 

bulletins to keep our employees abreast of news and updates 
on any safety issue in the workplace. The Health Care Center 

which is used on separate schedules by both male and female 
employees.

SEBL has Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with 
Evercare Hospital, Asgar Ali Hospital, Uttara Crescent 

Hospital, Gulshan Clinic, Farazy Hospital Limited, Farazy 
Dental Hospital & Research Centre, Dhaka and Park View 
Hospital, Chattogram to facilitate different types of health 
checkup facility and cabin services at corporate discount 
price for the employees, employees’ dependent family 
members. Moreover, SEBL employees also get priority 
medical services in terms of collecting blood sample, 
consultation services from medical consultants, ambulance 
services etc.  For cases of injuries or ill health in the 
workplace, the Bank provides clinic services with Doctor. 
Besides, in case of emergency, we provide transport from 
workplace to hospital (if needed). The Bank takes care of its 
employees and their welfare because they are and always will 
be our greatest asset.

Empowering women through education, employment and 

self-development expedites the economic growth of the 

nation. Nevertheless, it is challenging, Southeast Bank 

Limited believes in the spirit of women empowerment. SEBL 

The Bank has two specialized Ladies Branches at Dhanmondi 

with prioritized service for women clients. SEBL has special 

featured savings product viz. “Anonya” to facilitate daily 

banking activities for women. Additionally, the Bank has 

dedicated SME product viz. “Shuprova” to assist women 

enabling them to pursue their entrepreneurial dreams with 

card facility named “Anupoma” with the spirit of women 

empowerment. 

The Bank believes in the spirit of equal employment 

opportunities since the inception. SEBL recruits young, 

energetic, self motivated and educated females with 

promising career opportunities.  

CARING FOR THE EMPLOYEES

HEALTH AND SAFETY

EMPOWERING WOMEN
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professionals who work with utmost zeal and commitment 
towards achieving the Bank’s vision of becoming the 

and generate an environment based on mutual trust and 
respect/discipline that encourages and motivates everyone 
in the Bank to work together and achieve service excellence 
in every sphere of banking operations.

Since inception of the Bank, the employees are enjoying 

an incentive for posting better result for the Bank. 

In order to ensure enhanced staff welfare, the Bank has 
setup "Southeast Bank Staff Welfare Trust" under the Trust 
Act 1882 along with the Societies Act 1860. There are 7 
(seven) members in the Board of Trustees with Mr. M. Kamal 
Hossain, Managing Director as the Chairman of the Board.

The Trust serves the greater interest and welfare of the 

employees of the Bank in accordance with true spirit and 

cardinal principles. The Trust ensures no discrimination to 

any employee of the Bank on account of ethnicity, origin, 

gender, language, religion, etc. The 1st Annual General 

Meeting (AGM) of Southeast Bank Staff Welfare Trust was 

held virtually by using digital platform on Thursday, the 26th 

November 2020 at 03:00 p.m. Mr. M. Kamal Hossain, 

Chairman, Southeast Bank Staff Welfare Trust presided 

over the meeting.

The Bank provides transportation facilities to the 

employees up to the position of First Assistant Vice 

working days in Dhaka City. 

The Bank plans to include additional areas of staff welfare 

within the purview of "Southeast Bank Staff Welfare Trust"

SOUTHEAST BANK
STAFF WELFARE TRUST
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Human resource is our primary asset and we consider it as the 
most important contributing factor to our sustained growth. 
Accelerating professional development of employees has been 
an essential component of Southeast Bank’s human resource 
agenda over the last few years. We believe that nurturing 
talent and polishing skills of our employees are essential to get 
the best out of them.

Training provides us with the opportunity to build up a skilled 
and knowledge-based human resource for our Bank. Training 

training program ensures consistent development of skills, 
sharing of mutual experience and knowledge and promotion 
of innovation and creativity among the employees.

Southeast Bank Training Institute, established in 1995 has 
been meeting the training needs of all employees throughout 
the Bank, with the support of trained resource persons from a 
pool of internal trainers as well as experts from outside the 
Bank. 

In drawing up training programs the Institute gives 
importance to the following issues:

• Training Needs Analysis

• Feedback from the senior level management and 
the trainees

• Training curricula of local peer banks.

• Training programs followed by reputed banks 
outside the country.

As banking is fast moving towards digitalization in a holistic 
manner, the way training is provided must also go hand in 
hand with this development. Since the beginning of this year, 
efforts have been made to introduce e-learning in various 
forms through launching a project captioned “Human 
Resource Development: New Dimensions” which is 

scheduled to be completed by March, 2021. About 90% of 
the work of the project has already been completed. The 
Institute has already developed new software to provide 

class-room based training. Now training can be delivered and 
received at anytime and anywhere with least cost through the 
use of sophisticated digital platform.

Following training programs have already been completed 
during the year through the use of digital technology:

i. 15 prerecorded audio/video tutorials on important 
subjects and subject wise questions and answers on 
important operational banking issues have already 

ii. Preparations have been completed for 16 
workshops on important subjects for executive 

iii. Reformed the training calendar and developed a 
three-year training calendar following best 
practices; both national and international.

iv. E-exam software is ready to be launched shortly for 
occasionally evaluating the knowledge and skill 

v. 25 courses were offered using Zoom through which 

vi. 16 courses were undertaken physically in the 

vii. The Training Institute hopes to further widen the 
use of technology to provide e-learning and also 
maximize the use of traditional classroom-based 
training as much as possible.

CAREER DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM
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As per Environment and Social Risk Management (ESRM) 
guideline of Bangladesh Bank, the Bank has already 
incorporated Environmental, Social and Climate Change 

decision process. To identify and measure different E&S risks, 
the bank uses auto generated Environmental and Social 

Environmental and Social Risk Assessment, prescribed by 
Bangladesh Bank. 

During credit appraisal process, we primarily focus on 
following environmental and social impacts of the activities of 
any borrower:

ENVIRONMENT - RESPONSIVE BANK

Environmental Aspects

Social Aspects

Air pollution 

Water (surface & ground) 
contamination 

Land pollution

Noise generation 

Disturbance to biodiversity 

Disturbance to natural 
drainage 

Wastage of natural resources
Community health and safety
Disturbance to community 
movement 
Involuntary resettlement 
Adverse impact to indigenous 
community 
Gender discrimination 
Child labor exploitation 
Risk on physical cultural 
resources
Grievance mechanism
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Southeast Bank Green School, a brain child of Mr. Alamgir 

Kabir, FCA, the Chairman of Southeast Bank Limited is a 

noble venture of the Bank. The dream project started its 

promising journey since 2013 at Adabor, Mohammadpur, 

Dhaka to provide quality English Medium education to the 

children of middle class families at affordable cost.

We have a rich faculty with 30 devoted teachers who are 

involved in creating such talented, dedicated, and 

enthusiastic individuals under Edexcel British Curriculum 

from Pre – Play to O’ level.

Being merged with the international standard curriculum, the 

educators also focus to help the students in every aspect of 

their individual development through exciting extracurricular 

activities.

The session 2020 – 2021 has been a massive challenge for all 

the educational sectors globally due to Corona pandemic. For 

dealing with this unfamiliar situation along with lockdown 

activity, SEBGS has prompted new examples of educational 

innovation. In almost heroic fashion, the teachers have 

learned entirely new ways of teaching and have launched 

distance learning programs through online platform for the 

session of 2020 - 2021. Students' major assessments have 

also moved online, with a lot of trial and error, while many 

assessments are being replaced with other approaches.

who is guiding us constantly with their valuable knowledge 

and experience to upgrade the school management system 

and the quality of the education as well. Besides, this 

committee plays a vital role behind the formulation and 

implementation of the school policies through their valuable 

advices and supports.

SOUTHEAST BANK
GREEN SCHOOL

Mr. Alamgir Kabir, FCA Chairman, Southeast Bank Limited & Southeast Bank Green Foundation Chairman

Prof. Suraiya Begum  Former Principal, College of Home Economics, Dhaka & former member,  Member
 Bangladesh Public Service Commission

Mr. Zakir Ahmed Khan Adviser, Southeast Bank Limited; former Secretary, Government of the People’s  Member
 Republic of Bangladesh

Prof. Shaheen Ahmed Former Principal of Bangladesh International School and College and also  Member
 Former Principal at College of Home Economics, Dhaka Member

Prof. Dr. Feroza Sultana Former Principal, College of Home Economics, Azimpur, Dhaka. Member
  
Mrs. Saleha Begum Ex. D.G, Comilla BARD, Comilla. Member 

Syeda Nasrin Akhter Principal, Southeast Bank Green School. Member
  Secretary

SCHOOL MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
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TeleCash Mobile Financial Services (MFS) of the Bank has 
completed six years of its journey with the business strategy 
of exploration of the niche market. The core objective of 

customer base (especially those who belong to the marginal 

comply with the core objective, TeleCash has been continuing 
a digitization project for the members of Micro Finance 
Institutions (MFI) for the last two years. Microcredit 
disbursement among the members of MFIs and collection of 
instalments from them through a digital manner is the key 
proposition. Simultaneously the expansion of its 
cluster-based business (i.e., various bill payment service 
facilities) is continuing. Moreover, TeleCash is getting ready 

to avail interoperability facility among MFS Operators 
through the NPSB channel of Bangladesh Bank. The 
interoperability feature will be the revolutionary milestone 

of digital Bangladesh.

Availability of updated, robust, and trendy technical 

infrastructure is the key parameter of digitization. The Bank is 

in the migration stage of its existing TeleCash MFS System to 

a robust one for capacity building. The objective is to 

introduce innovative services for the customers on a regular 

interval for the sustainability of TeleCash as well as achieve 

customer satisfaction by ensuring instantly secured 

transactions

FINANCIAL INCLUSION
MOBILE BANKING SERVICES –
TELECASH

TM
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SERVICE EXCELLENCE
IN ACTION

We resolve customer complaints fairly, consistently and 
promptly. Every branch has a dedicated “Customer Service 
and Compliant Management Desk” for dispute resolution. 
Customers can lodge complaints in person or through other 
available means such as letter, telephone, facsimile and email. 
Compliant Lodgment Forms are available at all our branches. 
We deal quickly with complaints received from the clients. 
We seek ideas and suggestions of the clients on how we can 
serve them better. The customers can give their valuable 
feedback through Service Quality Forms available at all 
branches under sealed envelope. The branches send the 
sealed envelopes containing Service Quality feedback 

customer opinion. The opinion/feedback of the customers 
are scrutinized and widely discussed in the monthly 
Management Committee meeting and necessary steps are 

taken for improvement of customer service. 

ensure service excellence. Supervisors periodically visit the 
branches to monitor various performance areas including 
quality of customer service of the branches. In the 
Managers’ Conferences, different aspects of branches are 
elaborately reviewed and necessary steps taken for further 
improvement of the service quality of the bank. As part of 
off-site supervision, the supervisors can monitor their 
respective branches’ activities through Central Monitoring 
System (CMS)-(a state of art technology) which has been 

Circular No.07 dated July 05, 2015, Southeast Bank is the 
pioneer among peer banks, to set-up this technological 
solution in order to become compliant and disciplined.

Service Excellence is one of the core values of 
Southeast Bank Limited. The Bank focuses on 
providing fast and high-quality customer service with 
state-of-the-art technology. Various methods have 
been adopted such as, 24X7 Call Center, Central 
Monitoring System (CMS), Web Chat Service to 
provide customer service in the most hassle-free 
way. Short code 16206 is now used round the clock 
24X7 to address telephonically the business needs 
and queries of the clients.  Through CCTV, all the 

introduced customer service through Web Chat.  It 

queries.
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DISTRIBUTION
NETWORK

BRANCHE’S

135
ATM’S

277

UPOSHAKHA’S

17

REACHING NEW HEIGHTS 255

Southeast Bank Limited  |  Annual Report 2020



BRANCHES
DHAKA DIVISION

Aganagar Branch (Rural) 
Hassan Market (1st Floor),
Aganagar, Keranigonj, Dhaka 
Phone: 7772516, 7761133 
FAX: 88 - 02 - 7761155

Balivadra Branch (Rural) 
Vhandari Latif Super Market,
Balivadra Bazar, Ganakbari, 
Thana: Ashulia, Dhaka 
Phone: 7789994,7789993

Banglamotor Branch
"Rupayan Trade Centre" 
114, Kazi Nazrul Islam Avenue 
(1st & 2nd Floor), Dhaka
Phone: +88 02 9352123,
9352124, 48315129

Agargaon Branch 
Plot # E-4/B (1st Floor)
Agargaon Administrative Area,
Shere-E-Bangla Nagar,
Mohammadpur, Dhaka - 1207 
Phone: 88-02-8181851-5 
Fax: 88-02-8181856

Balla Branch (Rural) 
Mouza & Union: Balla 
P.S.: Kalihati, Dist.: Tangail 
Phone: 01705403798

Bangshal Branch
14/3, North South Road, Dhaka
Phone: 9583342, 9583343,
7121248, 7121251,
9567163 
Fax: 88 - 02 - 9567164

Ashulia Bazar Branch
"Shahid Sona Mia Plaza",
Bangabandhu Road,
Ashulia, Dhaka

Banani Branch
Plot #71, Block #B, 
Kamal Ataturk Avenue,
Banani, Dhaka
Phone: 9859518, 9859987,
9841629, 8826487
Fax: 88-02-9841960

Bashundhara Branch 
Plot-142, Block-B, 
Bashundhara R/A, Baridhara,
Dhaka -1212
Phone: 8431034-5, 8431031,
8431032 
Fax: 88-02-8431033

Ashulia Branch (Rural) 
Helim Shopping Complex,
(Opposite Fantasy Kingdom),
Ashulia, Dhaka 
Phone: 7788440, 7788420 
Fax: 88-02-7788441

Banasree Branch 
Twin Tower, Plot No.13, Block-C,
Banasree Main Road,
Banasree R/A,
Rampura, Dhaka-1219
Phone: 88-02-8399141,
8399143 
Fax: 88-02 8399142

Bhulta Branch (Rural)
Bhulta Bus Stand, 
Union: Golakandail,
Thana: Rupgonj, Narayanganj 
Phone: 01755-637195

Ati Bazar Branch (Rural) 
Mouza: Ati, Union: 
Sakta Thana: Keranigonj, Dhaka 
Phone: 88-02-55103281,
55103282 
Fax: 88-02-55103280

Bandura Branch (Rural) 
Puraton Bandura Bazar, 
Mouza: Puraton Bandura,
Union : Bandura, 
Thana : Nawabgonj, Dhaka 
Phone: 01730-781278

Corporate Branch 
Eunoos Trade Centre
(Ground Floor), Plot #52-53,
Dilkusha C/A, Dhaka-1000
Phone: 9567764,
9551444, 9554447, 
9564878, 9588692, 9565201 
Fax: 88-02-9571424
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Dakhin Khan Branch (Rural) 
"Faisal Mansion" 
Shah Kabir Mazar Road, 
Mouza: Uttar Khan Union: 
Dakhin Khan Adarsha
Union Parishad, 
Dakhin Khan, Dhaka 
Phone: 01755-637193

Ghior Branch (Rural) 
Mouza+Union: Ghior,
Upazila : Ghior Dist.: Manikganj 
Phone: 01705403799

Imamganj Branch 
Bhuiyan Market, 
163/2, Metford Road, Dhaka 
Phone: 7314801, 7316423, 
7318567, 7316644 
Fax: 88-02-7318567

Dhanmondi Branch 
Navana New Berry Place (1st Floor), 
4/1/A, Mirpur Road, 
Sobhanbag, Dhaka 
Phone: 48111808, 48111832,
58150104, 48112193, 58151242
Fax: 88-02-9111427

Gopaldi Branch (Rural) 
Gopaldi Bazar, Union: Sadasadi 
Thana: Araihazar, 
Dist.: Narayanganj 
Phone: 01755-637194

Islampur Branch
Royal Tower (2nd Floor) 
4, Ahsan Ullah Road,
Islampur, Dhaka 
Phone: 0257394570,
0257396174, 
0257394538, 0257394589

Dhanmondi Ladies Branch 
"Rupayan Khan Plaza" 
Plot # 500/A (Old), 18 (New)
Road # 7, Dhanmondi R/A Dhaka 
Phone: 9663924, 9663925,
9663992, 
9663960, 9663970

Gulshan Branch
OTOBI Center (2nd Floor), 
Plot-12, Block–CWS (C), 
Gulshan South Avenue,
Gulshan-1, Dhaka-1212
Phone: 8802-222283401-5
8802-222283491-5,
8802-222295012 
Fax: 88-02-9883495

Joydebpur Branch (Rural) 
Holding-235, Block-K,
Shib Bari More,
B.I.D.C Road,
Gazipur Pauroshova,
Joydebpur, Gazipur 
Phone: 01755594194

Donia Branch (Rural) 
"Chowdhury Complex"
(1st & 2nd Floor) 440-441,
Noyapara, Donia, 
Jatrabari, Dhaka-121236
Phone: 7547955, 7548055 
Fax: 7548122 

Hasnabad Branch (Rural) 
"Roky Tower", Hasnabad,
Mouza: Ekuria Union: Subatta,
Thana: Keranigonj, Dhaka 
Phone: 01730-781277

Joypara Branch (Rural) 
Begum Aysha Shopping Complex
(1st Floor), Holding # 222,
Joypara Pourasava, Dohar, Dhaka
Phone: 06223 - 56040, 
06223 -56041, 06223 - 56042 
Fax: 06223 - 56040

Faridpur Branch 
Nilima Tower - Khaleque Tower, 
Mujib Sarak, Upazila: 
Faridpur Sadar, Faridpur 
Phone: 01708-481079

Hemayetpur Branch (Rural)
Hemayetpur Super Market
(2nd Floor), Mouza: Kulashur,
Union: Tetuljora, Savar, Dhaka 
Phone: 01755594190

Kakrail Branch 
"Toma Tower",  

(VIP Road), Kakrail, Dhaka 
Phone: 9356115, 9356116,
9340852,9340853 
Fax: 88 - 02 - 9355990

Kalibari Branch (Rural) 
Sobur Market,
Duptara Adorsha Bazar 
Sattabhandi Bhuiyan Para (Kalibari) 
Thana: Araihazar, Narayanganj 
Phone: 01934448901

Le Meridien Branch
"Finance Square", 
Le Meridien Hotel

Commercial Block, 79/A,
North Nikunja, Khilkhet, Dhaka 
Phone: 01700-706530

Mirpur Branch 
Simpletree, Plot # 01, Road # 08, 
Block - C Section-06, 
Mirpur Housing Estate
Pallabi, Dhaka 
Phone: 9029568-69 
Fax: 88-02-9029572
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Kamrangirchar Branch 
"Elham Square",
Rony Market Road,
Mouza: Char Kamrangirchar,
Thana: Kamrangirchar, Dhaka 
Phone: 9667410, 9667393 
Fax: 9667428

Madanpur SME / Krishi Branch 
Ekata Samabay Super
Market (2nd Floor),
Mouza: Chandpur,
Union: Madanpur, 
Bandar, Narayanganj 
Phone: 01730-727289

Moghbazar Ladies Branch 
"Hall Mars", 66 (Old) Outer
Circular Road 05 (New) 
Shahid Sangbadik Salina Parvin 
Sarak Boro Mogbazar, Dhaka
Phone: 01934448905

Kapasia Branch (Rural) 
Akter Market Kapasia
Main Road,
Mouza: Banarhowla, 
Thana: Kapasia, Gazipur 
Phone: 01766-673597

Madhabdi Branch (Rural) 
(1st Floor), Mouza: Par Kashipur, 
Madhabdi Pauroshava,
Thana: Narsingdi, Narsingdi 
Phone: 9446125, 9446127 
Fax: 02 - 9446126 

Mohakhali Branch
"Bay's" (1st Floor), 
50 Mohakhali C/A, Dhaka
Phone: 02222282527,
02222285710, 02222285711
Fax-02-9885711

Kawran Bazar Branch 
Jamuna Bhaban (1st Floor) 
2, Kawran Bazar C/A,
Dhaka-1215
Phone: 9136112, 8189738-40 
Fax: 88 - 02 - 9136510 

Malibagh Branch
ABN Tower,
45, Siddheswari
Circular Road, Dhaka
Phone: 01787694948

Mohammadpur Branch 
Axis Delvista (1st Floor), 
7/1, Block-A, Aurongajeb Road, 
Mohmmadpur Housing Estate, 
Mohammadpur, Dhaka 
Phone: 8129649, 8129604, 
8158571, 9101254 
Fax: 88-02-9119583

Konabari Branch (Rural) 
Plot # A-147/148, BSCIC I/R, 
Vunion: Konabari, 
P.S. Joydebpur, Gazipur
Phone: 9298840 
Fax: 88-02-9298837

Mawna SME / Krishi Branch 
Mawna Bazar Road (1st Floor), 
Sreepur Pauroshava, Ward# 8, 
Thana: Sreepur, Gazipur 
Phone: 01730-727286

Monipur Bazar Branch (Rural) 
"Isha Chowdhury Tower", 
Mouza: Bokran Monipur, 
Union: Bhawal Gor, 
PS.: Gazipur Sadar, Gazipur. 
Phone: 01934-448920

Motijheel Branch
(Islamic Banking) 
125, Motijheel C/A, (1st Floor), 
Motijheel, Dhaka-1000
Phone: 9567286, 9567202, 
9567303, 9567262 
Fax: 88 - 02 - 9567701 

New Elephant Road Branch
Kazi Bhaban 39,
New Elephant Road,
(1st & 2nd Floor),
Dhanmondi, Dhaka-1205
Phone: 9674588, 9674327,
9674324-5 
Fax: 88-02-9674588

Mouchak Branch
Karnaphuli Point (1st Floor), 
70 Shaheed Sangbadik 
Selina Parveen Sarak,
Malibagh, Dhaka-1217
Phone: 8333347, 8333676, 
8333678, 8333679 
Fax: 88 - 02 - 8333348

New Eskaton Branch 
Chowdhury Center,  23/Ka,
New Eskaton Road (1st Floor), 
Ramna, Dhaka-1000
Phone: 48320953, 9340001,
48321774, 48310176, 9340796 
Fax: 88-02-9362177

Rajbari Branch 
"Saleha Akkas Tower" 
237, Binodpur (College Road), 
Thana: Rajbari Sadar Rajbari,
Rajbari, Phone:  01934448903

Rokeya Sarani Branch
"Kusholi Bhaban", 
238/1, West Kafrul Rokeya Sarani, 
Thana: Sher-E-Bangla Nagar, 
Mirpur, Dhaka 
Phone: 9103246,
9103247, 9103249 
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Munshigonj Branch
"B.M Complex" (1st Floor), 
House # 55, Jubillee Road, 
Thana: Munshigonj, Munshigonj, 
Phone: 01755594192

Pragati Sarani Branch 
The Pearl Trade Center,
Cha-90/3 (1st Floor),
Pragati Sarani, Badda, Dhaka 
PABX: 02-58810707-9
Phone: 02-58810705,
                 58810706

Rupnagar Branch
"Rangan", Plot-14, Road-11,
Rupnagar Residential Area,
Mirpur Housing Estate,
Mirpur, Dhaka 
Phone: 8051981 
Fax: 8051965

Narayanganj Branch 
26-29, S.M. Maleh Road,
Tan Bazar, Narayanganj 
Phone: 7648201, 7648202, 
7648203, 76342331 
Fax: 88 - 02 - 7648200

Principal Branch 
1, Dilkusha C/A, Dhaka – 1000
Phone: 9563101, 9550081 
Fax: 88-02-9551575

Sarulia Branch 
Samsul Haque Nilu
Shopping Complex,
Thana : Demra, Dhaka 
Phone: 01730-792169

R. K. Mission Road Branch 
Nir Chhayabithi, 
53, 53/1, R. K. Mission Road,
Dhaka 
Phone: 02-57165223,
02-57165224; 
Fax: 02-57165222

Narsingdi SME / Krishi Branch 
"Islam Plaza" (1st Floor) 
1, Maddha Kanda Para,
Sadar Road, 
Narsingdi Pauroshava, Narsingdi 
Phone: 029452082,
029452080, 029452081

Satmasjid Road Branch 
ADC Empire Plaza (1st & 2nd Floor),
Plot#183 (Old) 91 (New),
Road# 22 (Old) 12/A (New),
Satmasjid Road, Dhanmondi, Dhaka .
Phone: 8191167, 8191168, 
8191170, 8191171 
Fax: 88-02-8191169 

Savar Branch (Rural) 
Plot # A -109, Bazar Road (1st Floor),
Pauroshava & P.S.: Savar, Dhaka 
Phone: 7743691, 7743692, 
7743693, 7743694 
Fax: 88-02-7743690

Tongi Branch (Rural)
8/B, Anarkoli Road (1st Floor),
Tongi Bazar, Gazipur 
Phone: 9816647, 9816648, 
9816650, 9816651 
Fax: 88 - 02 - 9816649

Singair Branch (Rural)
Mob.: 01934-448918
Singair New Market, 
Holding No.: 2/2, Kansha Road, 
P.S.: Singair, Manikganj 
Phone: 01934-448918

Shyamoli Branch 
ASA Tower (2nd Floor), 
23/3 & 23/14, Bir Uttam 
A.N.M. Nuruzzaman Sarak,
Shyamoli, Mohammadpur,
Dhaka-1207
Phone: 02-9128988, 58157155 
Fax: 88-02-48110799

Tangail SME / Krishi Branch 
Noor Plaza, 263 Main Road,
Tangail Sadar, Tangail-1900 
Phone: 01713-081580

Uttara Branch 
‘‘ARRHAMS’’, Plot-79, Sector-7
Azampur, Uttara, Dhaka-1230
Phone: 58952538, 8932026,
58953680, 58953591 
Fax: 88 - 02 - 58953781
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Abutorab Branch (Rural)
"Kazi Market", Mouza:
Modho Moghadiya,
Union: 11 No. Moghadiya,
Upazila: Mirsharai, Chattogram 
Phone: 01700-706529

Agrabad Branch 
Faruk Mahal Avenue,
93, Agrabad Commercial Area,
Chattogram. 
Phone: 031-713097, 713098,
713094, 713095, 721151, 
721152, 721153 
Fax: 880-31-713096

Baraiyarhat Branch 
"Alam Tower" (1st Floor),
Holding # 139 (1)/139,
Mashjid Road, Baraiyarhat,
Upazila: Mirsharai, Chattogram 
Phone: 01700-706528

CHATTOGRAM DIVISION

Chowdhury Hat SME /
Krishi Branch 
"Halim Mansion", (1st Floor), 
Chowdhury Hat, Thana: Hathazari,
Chattogram.
Phone: 880-31-2584006, 2584007 
Fax: 880-31-2584005

Fatikchari Branch (Rural) 
"Mir Jahanara Complex", (1st Floor), 
College Road (Bibirhat), 
Thana: Fatikchari, Chattogram.
Phone: 030-2256316, 2256317 
Fax: 030-2256315

Bashurhat Branch (Rural)
Ayesha Motaleb New Market,
Holding # 428, Main Road,
Thana: Companyganj, Noakhali 
Phone: 03223-56415, 56461 
Fax: 03223-56430

Brahmanbaria SME /
Krishi Branch
Sikder Plaza, 1001,
Dr. Faridul Huda Road,
Brahmanbaria Pourashava 
Brahmanbaria 
Phone: 01713-081613

CDA Avenue Branch
(Islamic Banking) 
Ali Villa, 1640/1861 (New), 
CDA Avenue, East Nasirabad,
Panchliash, Chattogram 
Phone: 031-652150, 654875,
2552385, 2552386 
Fax: 031-2552387

Halishahar Branch
House # 03, Block-G, 
Port Connecting Road, 
Halishahar Housing Estate, 
Halishahar, Chattogram 
Phone: 031-716826, 2526183,
2526184, 727949 
Fax: 031-727949

Chakaria Branch (Rural)
"Society Jame Mosque Complex", 
Mouza: Chiringa, Thana: Chakaria,
Dist.: Cox's Bazar 
Phone: 01755-594195

Chhagalnaiya Branch
(Islamic Banking) 
Mir Shopping Complex (1st Floor),
Chhagalnaiya Bazar, 
Chhagalnaiya, Feni
Phone: 03322-78302, 78432 
Fax: 03322-78302

Cox's Bazar Branch
(Islamic Banking) 
Asha Shopping Complex 430-431, 
Bazar Ghata (1st Floor), Cox's Bazar 
Phone: 0341-63406, 51053 
Fax: 0341-64742

Cumilla Branch
359/328, Jhawtala,
1st Kandir Paar, 
Thana: Kotwali, Cumilla 
Phone: 081-64278, 64279, 
64280, 61322 
Fax: 081-61321 

Hathazari SME / Krishi Branch
S.A. Shopping Complex Hathazari 
Bus Stand, Rangamati Road, 
Thana: Hathazari, 
Chattogram 
Phone: 01713-065977

Jubilee Road Branch 
Haji Golam Rasul Market, 
96 Jubilee Road, Chattogram 
Phone: 031-611712, 635265,
611713, 611714, 611715, 
635245, 635246
FAX: 88-031-611716
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Chowmuhani Branch (Rural) 
Hossain Market, D.B Road, 
Chowmuhani Pauroshava, 
Thana: Begumganj, Noakhali 
Phone: 0321-53534, 
53535, 54018 
Fax: 0321-54018

Feni Branch 
Surma Sadan, (1st and 2nd Floor), 
176,177 and 178 Trunk Road, 
P.S.: Feni Sadar, Feni
Phone: 0331-63004, 62884, 
61362, 61852 
Fax: 0331-62884

Khatunganj Branch
410/411, Khatunganj, Chattogram 
Phone: 031-2863594, 621934,
620166, 620167, 620516 
Fax: 880-031-620517

Companigonj Branch (Rural) 
"Saudia Manjil" (1st & 2nd Floor), 
Mouza: North Tirish, 
Union: 15 No. Nobipur (West), 
Nabinagar Road,
Thana: Muradnagar, Cumilla 
Phone: 59004, 59011 
Fax: (08026) 59017

Haidergonj Branch (Rural) 
Gazi Super Market 
Haidergonj Bazar, 
Upazila : Raypur, Laxmipur 
Phone: 01766673599

Kotwali Branch 
"Equity Anitri" (1st Floor)
Holding # 32, 
Shahid Sohrawardy Road,
Kotwali, Chattogram 
Phone: 031-632750-52 
Fax: 031-632753 

Mia Bazar Branch (Rural) 
Haji Siraj Mansion 
Mouza: Ashrabpur, 
Union: 2 No. Ujirpur
Thana: Chauddagram, Cumilla. 
Phone: 01766-665140

Momin Road Branch 
"Equity Central", 
42-43, Momin Road, Chattogram.
Phone: 031-2857345,
2857346, 2857347, 2857348 
Fax: 031-2857349

Parshuram Branch (Rural) 
"Mazumder Market", Main Road, 
Ward # 05,
Pourasava: Parshuram, 
PS.: Parshuram, Feni 
Phone: 03324-56075, 56074

Potherhat Branch (Rural) 
"Khaiz Ahmed Shopping Centre" 
(1st Floor), 
Thana: Raujan, Chattogram 
Phone: 031-2573214,
031-2573216 
Fax: +88-031-2573215 

Shebarhat SME / Krishi Branch 
Shebarhat Bazar, 
Chowmuhani Sarak (1st Floor), 
Thana Shenbag, Noakhali. 
Phone: 01713-065972

Silonia Bazar Branch (Rural) 
"Razzak Market",
Feni-Maizdi Road, 
Union: Joylaskar, 
P.S.: Dagonbhuiyan, Feni 
Phone: 01708481074

Lohagara SME / Krishi Branch 
Mostafa City Center, 
Mouza: Amirabad, 
Thana: Lohagara, 
Union: Amirabad, Chattogram 
Phone: 0303-456623 
Fax: 0303-456624

Madambibir Hat Branch (Rural)
Madambibir Hat Union, Bhatiary, 
P.S.:Sitakunda, Chattogram 
Phone: 031-2781001, 2781003,
2781004, 2781005
Fax: 031-2781002

Oxygen More Branch 
Holding 405, Kulgaon Chattogram
City Corporation 
Oxygen More, 
Thana: Bayezid Bostami, 
Dist: Chattogram 
Phone: 01730727281

Pahartali Branch 
Hajrat Taiyabia Complex, 
Holding # 801 (New), D.T. Road,
Alongkar Mour, Pahartoli, Chattogram 
Phone: 031 - 2771001-4
Fax: 031 - 2771005

Sonagazi SME / Krishi Branch 
Holding # 431, 
Ward # 4, Mouza: Char Ganesh 
Pauroshava & Thana: Sonagazi,
Feni 
Phone: 01713081600

Teknaf Branch (Rural) 
Alo Shopping Complex,
K K Para, Main Road Pourashova: 
Teknaf, Thana: Teknaf Cox's Bazar 
Phone: 0342-675027,
0342-675059 
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Bandar Bazar Branch
(Islamic Banking)
Karim Ullah Market, (1st Floor),
Bandar Bazar, Sylhet 
Phone: +880 821 721243, 
+880 821 714017 
Fax: +880 821 714085

Chouhatta Branch
Manru Shopping City,
Plot# 4953/4943 (1st Floor),
Chouhatta Mirboxtola Road,
Chouhatta, Sylhet 
Phone: 0821-720726, 720277 
Fax: 0821 - 720276

Moulvibazar Branch
Jarif Tower 
199/2, M. Saifur Rahman Road,
Moulvibazar 
Phone: 0861-53727, 53728, 53729 
Fax: 88-0861-53730

Beanibazar SME / Krishi Branch
"Panchakhanda Haragovinda
High School Market", 
Beanibazar - Sylhet Road, 
Beanibazar, Sylhet. 
Phone: 01713-081527

Hetimgonj Branch (Rural) 
Khoyruganj Jame Masjid
Market Complex (1st Floor),
Hetimgonj Chourasta,
Thana: Golapgonj, Sylhet 
Phone: 0821-841471, 841472 
Fax: 0821-841473

Pathantula Branch
Haque Mansion of Modina Market, 
Holding No. 704, Pathantula 
Ward No. 8, Thana: Jalalabad,
Sylhet. 
Phone: 0821-724545, 724300 
Fax: 0821-724300 

Biswanath SME / Krishi Branch
Haji Monir Uddin Market (1st Floor), 
Natun Bazar, Biswanath, Sylhet 
Phone: 08224-56205 
Fax: 08224-56205

Kulaura Branch (Rural)
Aziz Roushan Shopping Center
and Garden City,
Pouroshova: Kulaura,
Thana: Kulaura, Moulvibazar Bazar 
Phone: 08624-56208 
Fax: 08624-56208 

Shahjalal Uposhahar Branch 
Plot # 07, Block# D, Main Road, 
Shahjalal Uposhahar, Sylhet 
Phone: 0821-713052,
713057, 713062, 811655 
Fax: 0821-711820

Charkhai Branch (Rural)
Anisha Complex 
Mouza: Kamar Gram, 
Union: 2 No. Charkhai 
Thana: Beanibazar, Sylhet. 
Phone: 01766-665141

Laldighirpaar Branch 
Mubarak Tower, 1794/1788,
New Market, Sylhet 
Phone: 0821-710955, 
715382, 710218 
Fax: 821-710102

Tazpur SME / Krishi Branch 
Tazpur Bazar, Mouza: Boraya, 
Union: 8 no Tazpur, 
Thana: Balagonj, Sylhet
Phone: 01713-065904

SYLHET DIVISION
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Ishwardi Branch 
"Adib Rana Plaza" 994/930 &1017, 
Station Road, Ishwardi, Pabna 
Phone: 01787678778

Chuadanga Branch 
"Brothers Tower", 
Thana Road, Pourasava: Chuadanga, 
PS.: Chuadanga Sadar, Chuadanga 
Phone: 01934448917

Natore Branch 
"Lily Plaza", Holding No.: 838,
Kanaikhali, Pourasava: Natore 
P.S.: Natore Sadar, Natore 
Phone: 01712803701

Chapainawabganj Branch 
8, Boro Indara More, 
Thana: Chapainawabganj Sadar, 
Chapainawabganj 
Phone: 01730727283

Pabna Branch 
"Khairul Tower" 116,
Mawlana Mohammed Ali Road 
(Narikel Bagan Road), 
Thana: Pabna Sadar, Pabna 
Phone: 0731-65027, 65059

Dumuria Branch (Rural) 
R.R. Plaza, Mouza: Araji Sajiyara 
Union: 11 No. Dumuria 
PS.: Dumuria, Khulna 
Phone: 01705403796

Jashore SME / Krishi Branch 
11, R.N. Road, 
Thana: Kotwali, Jashore 
Phone: 01713065973

Baneshwar Branch (Rural) 
Al-Haj Amzad Hossain Market, 
Shibpur, Baneshwar, 
Thana: Puthia, Rajshahi 
Phone: 01766673596

Bogura Branch 
Bhandari Monzil, (2nd Floor), 
776-777 Barogola, Bogura 
Phone: 051-68083, 68084,
68085, 68086 
Fax: 051-51939

Naogaon Branch
Kazi Habibur Rahman Market, 
301, Old Hospital Road,
(Bridge Mour), 
Naogaon Sadar, Naogaon 
Phone: 0741-63397, 63286, 
63397, 61274 
Fax: 0741-61831

Rajshahi Branch 
Plot # 447, Mangol Bhaban, 
Alupatti Mour, 
P.O. Ghoramara, P.S.: Boalia,
Rajshahi 
Phone: 0721-812203, 812204, 
812205, 812206, 812207 
Fax: 0721 - 812207

Sirajganj Branch 
Basak Plaza 947-948, 
Shaheed Suharawardy Road 
Sirajganj 
Phone: 01766-665142

RAJSHAHI DIVISION

KHULNA DIVISION
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Satkhira SME / Krishi Branch 
5896, Palash Pole (1st Floor), 
Shahid Nazmul Sarak 
(Satkhira Bus Stand), 
Thana: Satkhira Sadar, Satkhira 
Fax: 0471-63569 

Khulna Branch 
Haji Hanif Complex (1st Floor),
12 & 13, Khan Jahan Ali Road,
Khulna 
Phone: 041-730606, 731406,
731306, 731606 
Fax: 880-41-731506

Kushtia Branch 
Aneek Tower, 295,
Nowab Sirajuddoula Road, 
PS.: Kushtia Sadar, Kushtia 
Phone: 01709633284

Rupdia Bazar Branch (Rural) 
"Bhowmik Super Market", 
12 No. Norendrapur 
PS.: Jashore Sadar, Jashore

Sir Iqbal Road 
"Noor Jahan Plaza" 
155, Sir Iqbal Road, 
Kotwali, Khulna 
Phone: 01755637192

Barishal Branch 
54, Sadar Road (1st Floor), 
Kotowali, Barishal 
Phone: 0431-2176601,
2176602, 2176603, 2176604 
Fax: 0431-64056  

BARISHAL DIVISION

MYMENSINGH DIVISION

Muktagacha Branch 
Rabeya Momtaz Tower (1st Floor),
574 Mymensingh-Tangail Main Road
(Old Bus Stand), Muktagacha,
Mymensingh,
Phone: 01700-702113

Sherpur Branch 
Muslim Market,
166, Shahid Bulbul Sarak,
Munshi Bazar,
Pourasava: Sherpur
Thana: Sherpur Sadar, Sherpur
Phone: 01705403797

Mymensingh Branch 
"Minar Complex",
09 Mukti Joddha Sarani
(Choto Bazar)
Thana: Kotwali Sadar,
Mymensingh 
Phone: 091-62916,
62813, 62830
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Dinajpur Branch 
808/837, Ganesh Tola Jail Road, 
Thana: Dinajpur Sadar, Dinajpur 
Phone: 0531-52025, 26 
Fax: 0531-52024 

Rangpur Branch 
“CANOPUS” (1st Floor), 
39/7, Dhap Jail Road,
Rangpur City Corporation,
Rangpur
Phone: 0521-64672, 64673,
64778, 64779
Fax: 0521-64780

RANGPUR DIVISION

Off-shore Banking Unit, DEPZ 
Zone Service Building No.1, 
Room No.77 (3rd Floor), 
Dhaka EPZ, Ganak Bari,
Savar, Dhaka 
Phone: 7788628, 7788629

Off-Shore Banking Unit, CEPZ 
Zone Service Complex (1st Floor), 
East Wing North Chattogram EPZ,
Chattogram 
Phone: 031-740780 
Fax: 031-740779

OFF-SHORE BANKING UNIT

UPOSHAKHAS
Adabor Uposhakha 
PC Culture Housing Society, 
Holding No-13, Road No-06 
Block-Kha, Adabar, Dhaka

Banti Bazar Uposhakha 
Araihazar, Narayanganj

Green Road Uposhakha 
R H Home Center, 74/B/1, 
Green Road, Dhaka

Gulshan North Avenue Uposhakha 
1st Floor, Navana Nasrin Casabella
Plot # 2-A, North Avenue 
Gulshan, Dhaka

Khilgaon Taltola Uposhakha 
Kopotakkha JF Tower, Holding-551/C, 
Khilgaon Taltola 
Khilgaon, Dhaka 

North Shahjahanpur Uposhakha 
Manama FR Heights, 
Holding-202, 
North Shahjahanpur, Dhaka

Rabindro Sarani Uposhakha 
Shahazadi Plaza, House # 39, 
Road # 18, Sector # 3, 
Uttara, Dhaka

Rampura Uposhakha 
Ali Tower, Holding-17/2, 
DIT Main Road,
East Rampura, Dhaka

West Mothertek Uposhakha 
Bondhon Tower,
Holding No-97/A, 
97/A-1, West Madartek,
Shabujbag, Dhaka

Akbarshah Uposhakha 
Subarna Heaven, 
Holding-A/39,
Road-01, CDA Akbarshah, 
Chattogram 

Chawkbazar Uposhakha
KB Plaza, Holding # 172/232,
Chatteshwari Road, 
Chawkbazar, Chottogram.

Halishahar Housing Estate 
Uposhakha 
Holding-6, Road-1, 
Block-A, Lane-6
Halishahar Housing Estate,
Halishahar, Chottogram

Keramotia Bazar Uposhakha 
Tanjir Fashion Market, 2nd Floor,
125, Main Road,
Kachari Pukur, Sonagazi, Feni. 

Patenga Uposhakha 
Noorjahan Complex
Holding # 1690/24/13, 
Katgar More
Patenga, Chottogram

Rahattar Pul Uposhakha
Forid Mansion, 
K. B Aman Ali Road,
Chanda Pukur Par, 
Rahattar Pul, Chattogram
  
S.S K Road Uposhakha 
Star Market, 2nd Floor, 
941-943, Shahid Shahidullah Kaisar 
Road, Feni 

Abdul Hamid Road Uposhakha
2nd Floor, 256, Abdul Hamid Road
Ward # 02, Pabna Pauroshava
Thana: Pabna Sadar, Pabna
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Corporate ATM
Eunoos Trade Centre (Ground Floor), 
52-53, Dilkusha C/A, Dhaka-1000

Uttara -ATM-1- Sector 1
House #1, Road #11, Sector #1, Uttara, 
Dhaka-1230

Gulshan ATM-1
House #82 CES (F), 1, Gulshan Avenue 
Dhaka
  
Banani ATM-1
Plot #71, Block #B, Kamal Ataturk 
Avenue, Banani, Dhaka
 
Dhonia ATM-1
Chowdhury Complex” (1st & 2nd Floor) 
440-441, Noyapara, Donia, Jatrabari, 
Dhaka – 1236 

Mouchak ATM-1
Karnaphuli Point (1st Floor), 
70 New Circular Road, Malibagh, 
Dhaka

Madobdi ATM
(1st Floor), Madhabdi Pauroshava, 
Thana: Narsingdi, Dist: Narsingdi

Savar ATM
Plot # A -109, Bazar Road (1st Floor), 
Pauroshava & P.S.: Savar, Dhaka

Basundhara ATM-1
Plot#142, Block# B, Bashundhara R/A, 
Baridhara, Dhaka -1212

Hemayetpur ATM
Hemayetpur Super Market (2nd Floor), 
Thana: Savar, District: Dhaka

Ashulia ATM
Helim Shopping Complex, (Opposite 
Fantasy Kingdom), Ashulia, Dhaka

Joypara ATM
Begum Aysha Shopping Complex 
(1st Floor), 222, Joyapara Pourasava, 
Dohar, Dhaka

Konabari ATM
Plot # A-147/148, BSCIC I/R, Union: 
Konabari, P.S. - Joydebpur, Gazipur
Basundhara ATM-2, NSU

North South University Campus ATM 
Booth Plot 15, Block-B, Bashundhara, 
Dhaka-1229 

Narayanganj ATM
53/2 S.M. Maleh Road, Tanbazar, 
Narayangonj
  
Uttara - ATM-2, Sector 14
Plot No: 20, Road No: 12,
Sector No: 14, Uttara Residential 
Model Town, Dhaka-1230

Principal-ATM-2,  ACS Textile
ACS Textiles (Bangladesh) Limited, 
Tetlabo, Word No: 03, 
P.O: Parabo, 
P.S: Rupgonj, Narayanganj

Elephant Road-ATM-1, 
Concord Arcadia Shopping Mall, 
Plot No. 1 & 2, Road No: 04, 
Dhanmondi, Dhaka

Kawran Bazar-ATM-2, 
Green Road - Comfort Hospital
167, Green Road, Dhaka

Bhulta ATM-1
Bhulta Bus Stand, Union: Golakandail, 
Thana: Rupgonj, Dist.: Narayanganj

Dokkhinkhan ATM
Faisal Mansion, Shah Kabir Mazar 
Road, P.S # Dakshin Khan, Dhaka
  
New Eskaton ATM-1
Chowdhury Center, 23/Ka, New 
Eskaton Road (1st Floor), Ramna, 
Dhaka-1000

Mohammadpur ATM
Axis Delvista (1st Floor), 
Holding No:7/1, Block - A, 
Aurongajeb Road, Mohmmadpur 
Housing Estate, Mohammadpur, Dhaka

Principal ATM-1
1, Dilkusha C/A, Annex Building Hotel 
Purbani International, 
Motijheel, Dhaka
  
Aganagar ATM
Din Complex, Kodomtoli Circle, 
Keranigonj, Dhaka

Principal-ATM-03, 
Pirjongi Shah Mazar, Motijheel Coloney 
Jamee Masjid Complex Market, Shop 
No# 08, 
Pirjongi Shah Mazar, Outer Circular 
Road, Dhaka.

Elephant Road, ATM-2, Hatirpool
149/1, Elephant Road 
(Presently- Dr. Kudrat-e-Khuda Road), 
Dhaka

Tangail ATM
Noor Plaza, Holding # 263, Main Road, 
Tangail-1900

Satmasjid Road ATM-2
ADC Empire Plaza, Holding No# 91, 
Road No# 12/A, Satmasjid Road, 
Dhanmondi, Dhaka

New Eskaton-ATM-2
Boro Mogh Bazar, Shitol Bhaban, 
625, Boro Moghbazar, 
Red Crescent Road, Ramana, Dhaka

Kapasia ATM
Akhter Market, Kapasia Main Road, 
Village: Kapasia, Mouza: Banar Hawla, 
Union: Kapasia, Kapasia Thana, Dhaka

New Eskaton-ATM-3,
“Farr Ceramics”, Noulapara Mouza No: 
2 No Borkhan, Monipur, 
Union: Vaoalergor, Gazipur Sadar 
Thana, Gazipur

Hasnabad ATM
Rocky Tower, Mouza Name: Ekuria, 
Union Name: Subatta, Keranigonj 
Thana, Dhaka

Kamrangirchar ATM
Rony Market Bhaban (Ground Floor), 
648-649, Rasulpur, Market Road, Ward 
No. 56, Kamrangirchar Thana, Dhaka

Rupnagar ATM
“Rangan”, Plot # 14, Road # 11, 
Rupnagar Residential Area, Mirpur 
Housing Estate, Mirpur, Dhaka

Principal Br.-ATM-4, 
Business faculty, DU Campus
Administrative Building, Faculty of 
Business Studies, University of Dhaka

ATM’s
DHAKA DIVISION
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Bhulta-ATM-2
Panchrukhi Bazar, Araihazar
MP Tower Building, Panchrukhi Bazar, 
Araihazar Thana, District: Narayangonj

Ashulia Bazar ATM
“Shahid Sonamia Plaza”, Ashulia Bazar, 
Bangobondu Road, Ashulia Union, 
Ashulia Thana, Dhaka 

Kalibari ATM
“Sabur Market”, Dhuptara Adarsha 
Bazar, Kalibari, Thana: Araihazar, 
District: Narayangonj

Balivhadra ATM
“Vhandari Latif Super Market”, 
Village: Balivhadra Bazar, 
Mouza: Ganakbari, 
Thana: Ashulia, Dhaka

Mirpur ATM
"Simpletree” Plot # 01, Road # 8, 
Section # 6, Mirpur, Pallabi, Mirpur 
Dhaka

Tongi ATM
“Kazi Market”, 8/B, Anarkoli Road, 
Gazipur City Corporation, Tongi, 
Gazipur

Rajbari ATM
“Saleh Akkas Tower”, Binodpur (College 
Road), Rajbari Sadar Thana, Rajbari.

Malibagh ATM
“Fakhr-E-Nur ABN Tower”, 
45, Siddeswari Circular Road, 
Ramna, Dhaka.

Joydebpur, ATM-2
“OK Tower”, F-214/10, Hakkani 
Housing Society, Rajbari-Jourpukur 
Road, Joydebpur Thana, Gazipur

Balla ATM
Balla, Mouza: Balla, Union: Balla, 
Thana: Kalihati, District: Tangail

Ghior ATM
Ghior, Union: Ghior, Thana: Ghior, 
District: Manikganj

Dhanmondi ATM-2 
"Navana Newbury Place", 
Road/Holding No.4/1/A, Subhanbagh, 
Mirpur Road, Kalabagan, Dhanmondi, 
Dhaka

Wari ATM
4/2 Joykali Mondir, 
Wari, Dhaka

Imamganj ATM
Bhuiyan Market, 163/2, Metford Road, 
Dhaka 

Agargaon ATM
248-1/G, West Agargaon, 
Sher-e-Bangla Nagar, Dhaka

Singair ATM
“Singair New Market”, 02/02, Kansha 
Road, Singair Bazar, Singair 
Pauroshava, Upazilla/Thana: Singair, 
Manikganj

Madanpur ATM
Ekata Samabay Super Market, Thana: 
Bandar, District: Narayanganj

Segun Bagicha ATM
Segun Bagicha Concord Apartment, 5, 
Segun Bagicha, Ramna, Dhaka
  
Ati Bazar Branch premises ATM
Mouza: Ati, Union: Sakta 
Thana: Keranigonj, Dist.: Dhaka

Bangshal Branch ATM Booth
House #5, Road # Bangshal Lane, P.S # 
Kotowali, Dhaka-1100

Uttara Sector# 13
House# 50, Gareeb-e-Nawaz Road,
Sector# 13, Uttara, Dhaka
  
WAPDA Road Rampura
56, West Rampura, WAPDA Road, 
Dhaka

Khilgaon, Taltala
House# 566/C, Khilgaon, Taltala, 
Dhaka

Shyamoli Branch ATM 
ASA Tower of 23/3 and 23/14, Bir 
Uttam A.N.M Nuruzzaman Sarak, 
Shyamoli, Mohammadpur, Dhaka-1207

Adabor ATM
“Baitul Aman Housing Society” 
House-533, Road-11, 
Adabor, Dhaka

Tejgaon Recycler ATM
Shop #12, Govt. Hockers Market, 
Tejgaon, Dhaka

Darussalam Recycler ATM 2
11, Darussalam Road, Mirpur-1

Narinda Recycler ATM
98/1 Narinda Road, Dhaka
Tejkunipara Recycler ATM

105, Tejkunipara (Awlad Hossain 
Market), Tejgaon

Azimpur Recycler ATM
209/Ka/2, Lalbagh Road, Azimpur 
(Beside New Graveyard)

Fulbaria Recycler ATM
9/5-GA, Ananda Bazar, Fulbaria Road, 
Dhaka

Sabuj-Kanan Recycler ATM 
43/13, Sabuj Kanan, Atish Dipankar 
Road, Dhaka

Kalshi Recycler ATM
House# 2, Block # F, Sangbadik R/A, 
Kalshi Main Road, Mirpur, Dhaka-1216

Lalbagh Recycler ATM
House 27/A/8/2 Dhakeshwari Road, 
Lalbagh, Dhaka

Azimpur Chapra Mosjid Recycler 
ATM
44/H Bely Garden, Azimpur Road, 
Dhaka

DMC Recycler ATM
31, Dhaka Medical Road Side City 
Corporation Market

Kawran Bazar Recycler ATM
3/C, HAK Tower, 
Kawran Bazar, Dhaka

Kalachandpur Recycler ATM
KA-12, Kalachandpur, Gulshan, 
Dhaka-1212

Noapara, Dakhin Khan Recycler ATM
64 Noapara, Dakhin Khan, S M 
Mozammal haque Road Dhaka-1230

Zoo Road Recycler ATM
Plot-66, Zoo Road, Shumi Tower, 
Mirpur.

Mirbag Recycler ATM
10/I/1, Mirbag chourasta, Magbazar, 
Dhaka-1217

Mirpur Sector 6 Recycler ATM
House #1/2, Road # 15, Block # D, 
Sector # 6, Mirpur-6, Dhaka-1216

Shahjahanpur Recycler ATM
Holding No-876, Shahjahampur, 
Shantinagar Dhaka-1217
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Arambagh Recycler ATM
188/1, Arambagh, 
Motijheel, Dhaka

Commerce College Road Recycler 
ATM
Saction- 2, Block- A, Road No- 5, 
Punarbashan Plot No- 72, Mirpur 
Housing Estate, Dhaka.

Malibagh DIT Road Recycler ATM
GM Mansion, 480, Malibagh, DIT Road, 
Dhaka-1217

Vatara Recycler ATM
Shajid Plaza, House/ Plot - 20, 
Madani Avenue, Noya Bari (100 ft), 
Vatara, Gulshan.

New Elephant Road Recycler ATM
234/Ka, New Elephant Road, New 
Market, Dhaka-1205
 
Banasree Avenue Road Recycler 
ATM
H-361, Banasree, Dhaka

Mohakhali-Amtoli Recycler ATM
H-32/1, Amtoli, Mohakhali, Dhaka 

Dhaka Uddayan Recycler ATM
Block -, Hazi Dil Mohammad Avenue, 
Plot - 13/1, Dhaka Uddayan, 
Mohammadpur, Dhaka - 1207

Nakhalpara Recycler ATM
272, Nakhalpra, Tejgaon, 
Dhaka-1215

Marma Composite Ltd ATM
Tongabari, Ashulia,
Savar, Dhaka 

R. K. Mission Road Recycler ATM
141/A, RK Mission Road, Gopibag, 
Dhaka-1203

Gulshan Branch Recycler ATM
OTOBI Center, Plot # 12, Block–CWS 
(C), Gulshan South Avenue, Gulshan-1, 
Dhaka-1212

Maksons Spinning Mills Ltd ATM 
Maksons Spinning Mills Ltd, B-Bangla, 
Gouripur, Ashulia Bazar, Savar, Dhaka

Chawk Bazar Recycler ATM
16, Water works road, 
Chawk Bazar, Dhaka

Gazirchat, Ashulia Recycler ATM
Dakkhin Gazirchat, Uttar 
Gazirchat-1349, Ashulia, Dhaka

CHATTOGRAM 
DIVISION

Halishahar ATM
House # 03, Block - G, Port Connecting 
Road, Halishahar Housing Estate, 
Halishahar, Chittagong

Agrabad ATM
Jahan Building, 59, Agrabad 
Commercial Area, Chittagong

Oxygen Moor ATM
405, Kulgao, Oxygen More, Biozid 
Bostami, Chittagong

Potherhat ATM
Khaiz Ahmed Shopping Centre” (1st Floor) 
Thana: Raujan, 
District: Chittagong

Jubilee Road ATM
Haji Golam Rasul Market, 
96 Jubilee Road, Chittagong

CDA Avenue ATM 1 & 2
Ali Villa, 1640/1861 (New), CDA 
Avenue, Asian Highway, East 
Nasirabad, Thana - Panchliash, 
Chittagong

Chakaria ATM
“Society Jame Mosque Complex”, 
Mouza: Chiringa, 
Chakaria Pauroshova,
Thana: Chakaria, Cox’s Bazar

Hathazari ATM
S. A. Shipping Complex Hathazari Bus 
Stand, Ranganati Road, Plot # 14238, 
hana: Hathazari, Chittagong

Bashurhat ATM
Kabirhat Road, Basurhat Bazar, 
Basurhat Pourusava, 
PS: Companygonj, Noakhali

Companygonj ATM
Saudia Manjil (1st & 2nd Floor), 
Nobipur (West), Nabinagar Road, 
Thana: Muradnagar, Comilla’

Chowdhury Hat ATM
S.N. Tower, Dadaram Sharok Road, 
Chowdhury Hat Bazar

Chowmuhani ATM
Hoque Tower, Bank Road, 
Chowmuhani, Noakhali

Cox's Bazar ATM-1
M&M Shopnaloy, Plot# A-12, 
Kolatoli, Main Road, Cox’s Bazar

Mia Bazar ATM
Hazi Siraj Mansan, Mouza: Ashrabpur, 
Union: 02 No Ujirpur, Chowddrogram 
Thana, Comilla, Haidergonj,

Laxmipur ATM
Kazi Super Market, Haidergonj Bazar, 
Mouza-Char Ababil, 
Union-Char Ababil, Raipir, Laxmipur

Fatikchari ATM
Mir Jahanara Complex, College Road, 
Bibirhat, Dag No: 7622, 
Khatian No: 4989, JL-51, 
Mouza : North Dhurung, 
Thana: Fatikchari, Chittagong

Madambibir Hat ATM
Madambibir Hat Union, Bhatiary, 
P.S.: Sitakunda, Dist. :Chittagong

Shebarhat ATM
Jahanara & Sons Market, Village/ Area: 
Raja Rampur, Dag No: 3181, Khatian 
No: 998 JL-420, Mouza: Raja Rampur, 
Union : 7 No Mohammadpur, Senbagh 
Thana, Noakhali

Teknaf ATM
“Alo Shopping Complex’, Holding No: 
P.C-177,K.K Para, Main Road, Teknaf 
Pauroshova, Ward No # 03, Thana: 
Teknaf, Cox’s Bazar

Chhagalniya-ATM 
“Tareque Memorial Hospital Complex”, 
Dhaka-Chittagong old Main Road 
(Banshpara), Thana: Chhagalniya, Feni

Cox's Bazar-ATM-2, 
“Coral Reef Mannan Plaza”, Holding No: 
569, Main Road, Bazar Ghata, Sadar 
-Cox’s Bazar Thana, Cox’s Bazar.

Momin Road, Ctg ATM
“Equity Central”, Holding No: 42-43, 
Momin Road, Thana: Kotwali, 
Chittagong

Gunabati ATM
Gunabati Bazar”, Thana: Choddogram, 
District: Comilla

Kotwali, ctg ATM
“Equity Anitri”, Holding No: 32, Hossain 
Shahid Sarwardi Road, Kotwali, 
Chittagong.
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Chagalniya Branch ATM
“Mir Shopping Complex”, 
Chhagalnaiya Bazar, 
P.S.: Chhagalnaiya, Feni.

Khatungonj Branch ATM
Zaynab Tower, Holding # 46, Thana: 
Kotwali, Chittagong.

Sonagazi Branch ATM
Holding # 431, Mouza: Char Ganesh, 
Thana: Sonagazi, Feni

Silonia Bazar Branch ATM
BKB Building, Silonia Bazar, 
Dagonbhuiyan, Feni.

Feni Branch ATM 
Liberty Super Market of Feni 
Pourashava, Feni, Abu Torab

Branch ATM
“Kazi Market”, Upazila: Mirsharai, 
Chittagong.

Karamotia Bazar Recycler ATM
Karamotia Bazar, Meher Ali Mistri Bari, 
Vill: Charshahavikari, 
PO-Kacharipukur, PS-Sonagazi, Feni, 

Halishahar Uposhakha Recycler ATM
Holding # 6, Road # 1, Block # A, Lane # 
6, Halishahar Housing Estate, 
Halishahar, Chattogram.

Cumilla Branch ATM
623, Jhawtala, Cumilla

Lohagora Recycler ATM
Best Chodhury Plaza 
(Beside Chattogram-Cox’s Bazar 
Highway), Lohagara, Chattogram.

Akbarshah Uposhakha Recycler ATM
Subarna Heaven, Holding-A/39, 
Road-01, CDA Akbarshah, Chattogram

Sarker Hat Bazar Recycler ATM
Sarker Hat Bazar, Hathazari, 
Chattogram

SYLHET DIVISION

Patantula -ATM 
Jalalabad Ragib-Rabeya Medical 
College and Hospital, Road: 
Sunamgonj, Pathantula, Sylhet -3100 
under the supervision of Pathantula 
Branch, Sylhet

Shahjalal Uposhar ATM
Block# D, Main Road, Shahjalal 
Uposhahar, Sylhet

Moulvibazar ATM
Jarip Tower, Holding No: 199/2, Road 
No: 59, Central Road (Saifur Rahman 
Road), Moulvibazar Pourashava, 
Thana : Moulvibazar, Moulvibazar

Laldigirpar-ATM, VIP Tower
VIP Tower, Plot No: 3714, Ward No: 
13, Sylhet City Corporation, Kotwali 
Than, Sylhet 

Chowhatta-ATM
Kazirtula Main Road
Mujibur Rahman Complex, Holding No: 
1469, 1470, 1471, 1472, Kazirtula 
Main Road, Ward No: 17, Sylhet City 
Corporation, Kotwali Than, Sylhet

Kulaura ATM
Aziz Rowshon Shopping Center & 
Garden City, Holding No: 0334-00, 
Ward No: 03, Kulaura Pourashava, 
Kulaura Thana, District: Moulvibazar.

Pathantula Branch Premises ATM
Haque Mansion of Modina Market, 
Holding No. 704, Pathantula Ward No. 
8, sylhet City Corporation, Thana; 
Jalalabad, Dist : Sylhet
  
RAJSHAHI DIVISION

Chapainawabgonj ATM
“Sarker Tower”, Holding # 59,60 & 61, 
Kalitola 1st Lane (Jhilim Road), Boro 
Indira Moor, Chapainawabganj 
Municipality, Thana: Chapainawabganj 
Sadar, Chapainawabganj

Bogra ATM-1

Naogaon ATM
Shahid Matiul Isalm Poura Market, 
Naogaon Pourashava, Thana: Naogaon 
sadar, Dist.: Naogaon

Rajshahi ATM-1, Laxmipur
Holding No: 634, Sher-Sha Road, 
Laxmipur, Rajshahi

Bogra ATM-2, 
Rangpur Road, Bogra
288/325, 289/326, Jamil Shopping 
Center, Borogola, Rangpur Road, Bogra

Baneswar ATM
“Alhaj Amjad Hossain Market”, 
Village: Kolahata, Mouza: Shibpur, 
Union: Baneswar, Thana: Potia, 
District: Rajshahi

Rajshahi-ATM-2, 
Uposhahar New Market, Rajshahi
Holding No: 10, Ward No: 14, Rajshahi 
City Corporation, Boalia Thana, 
Rajshahi

Rajshahi-ATM-3
Greater Road, Rajshahi
Greater Road, Ward No: 13, Rajshahi 
City Corporation, Boalia Thana, 
Rajshahi 

Rajshahi-ATM-4, 
Natore Road, Rajshahi
Rokeya Bhaban, Holding No: 219, 
Natore Road, Ward No: 22, Rajshahi 
City Corporation, Boalia Thana, 
Rajshahi

Pabna ATM
Khairul Tower, Maowlana Mohammad 
Ali Road (Narikel Bagan Road), Ward 
No: 03 (Shibrampur), 
Pabna Porosuva, Pabna Sadar Thana, 
District: Pabna

Iswardi ATM
Holding # 994/930 & 1017, 
Ishwardi Porosova, Ishwardi Thana, 
District: Pabna

Sirajganj Branch Premises 
“Basak Plaza” Holding # 947-948, 
Suhrawardi Road, P.S.: Sirajganj, 
Dist.: Sirajganj

KHULNA DIVISION

Khulna ATM

12 & 13, Khan Jahan Ali Road, 
Khulna

Sir Iqbal Road ATM
155, Sir Iqbal Road, Khulna

Satkhira ATM
Palash Pole (Ground Floor), Shahid 
Kajal Sarak (Satkhira Bus Stand), 
Satkhira Pouroshova, 
Satkhira, Satkhira

Jessore ATM
11, R.N. Road, Thana: Kotwali, 
Dist.: Jessore

Rupdia ATM
Bhoumik Super Market, Rupdia Bazar, 
Vill: Zirat, Union: 14 no Narendropur, 
Jessore
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Dumuria ATM
"R.R. Plaza", Mouza: Araji Sajiara, Union: 
11 No. Dumuria Union, 
Thana: Dumuria, District: Khulna.

Kahishpur Jute Mills ATM 
Khalishpur Jute Mills Ltd. Khalishpur, 
Khulna

Eastern Jute Mills ATM
Eastern Jute Mills Ltd. Atra Industrial 
Area, Khulna

Kushtia ATM
Aneek Tower, 295, Nowab Sirajuddoula 
Road Ward # 03, Pauroshava : Kushtia 
P.S.: Kushtia Sadar, Dist.: Kushtia

Chuadanga ATM
“Brothers Tower”, Holding # 0686-06, 
Thana Road, Chuadanga Pauroshava, 
Ward # 03, Thana: Chuadanga Sadar, 
District: Chuadanga

APBN, Khulna ATM 
3, Armed police battalion (APBN), 
Shiromoni, Khulna

Dharmotola Bazar Recycler ATM
Dharmotola Bazar, Arabpur Union, 
Jashore Sadar, Jashore

Digholia Upojilla More Recycler ATM
Digholia Upojilla More, Khulna

BARISHAL DIVISION
Barisal-ATM-1,
Birsreshta Captain Mohiuddin Jahangir 
Sarok (Nazirerpool), Barisal City 
Corporation, Kotwali, Barisal

Natun Bazar Recycler ATM 
Natun Bazar, M College Road, 
159/1,60, Barishal City Corporation, 
Barishal-8200

Barisal Univertsity ATM Booth
SH Tower-1, Opposite to the Main 
Gate of Barishal University

RANGPUR DIVISION

Dinajpur ATM
Holding # 880/837, Ganesh Tola Jail 
Road, Dinajpur Municipal Corporation, 
Ward # 3, Thana: Dinajpur, Dinajpur

Rangpur ATM
Shah Murad Complex, RK Road, 
Medical Moor, Rangpur

Rangpur Branch ATM
“Canopus”, Dhap Jail Road Mouza: 
Voghi, Rangpur City Corporation, 
Kotwali, Rangpur

RFL Rangpur ATM
Pran RFL group at Lalchandpur, 
Gangachora, Rangpur, Near Vinnya 
Jagat Amusement Park

Chowdhurani Recycler ATM, 
Pirgacha
Chowdhurani, Pirgacha, Rangpur

MYMENSINGH 
DIVISION
Mymensignh ATM
Minar Complex, Holding No: 09, 
Moktijodda Sarani (Choto Bazar), 
Mymensingh Porosuva, Kotwali Sadar, 
Mymensingh

Crown Wears ATM
Crown Wears (Pvt.) Limited, Zamirdia, 
Bhaluka, Mymensingh.

Muktagacha ATM
Al-haj Hasan Jamal Complex, 
Atani Bazar, Muktagacha Pourashava
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Opinion

Changes in Equity, and consolidated and separate Cash Flow Statements for the year then ended, and notes to consolidated and 

year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as explained in Note 2.1.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those 

standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated and Separate Financial 

Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group and the Bank in accordance with the International Ethics 

Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code), Bangladesh Securities and 

the IESBA Code and the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Bangladesh (ICAB) Bye-Laws. We believe that the audit evidence 

Key Audit Matters

separate opinion on these matters.

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SOUTHEAST BANK LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

The process of estimating provision for loans and advances 

associated with credit risk is judgmental and complex. While 

estimating such provision certain judgmental factors need to 

be considered including:

• Future business performance of the borrower;

• Key assumptions relating to the further business 

performance of the borrower;

• The market value of the collateral; and

• Ability to repossess the collateral; and

• Recovery rates.

Furthermore, these provisions are processed manually using 

the voluminous data extracted from the IT system of the 

Bank and following the instructions of Bangladesh Bank (the 

central bank of Bangladesh) issued from time to time.

We tested the design and operating effectiveness of key 

controls focusing on the following:

• Tested the credit monitoring and provisioning 

process;

warning and default warning indicators; and

• Reviewed the adequacy of transfer of interests to 

the Income account appropriate approvals in line 

with the Bangladesh Bank’s guideline.

Our substantive procedures in relation to the provision for 

loans and advances portfolio comprised the following:

• Reviewed the adequacy of the companies general 

1.   Measurement of provision for Loans and Advances

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

Howladar Yunus &Co.
House-14 (Level 4 & 5) Road-16A, 
Gulshan-1, Dhaka-1212,Bangladesh
T: +880 2 58815247

Chartered Accountants
Member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd
Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL) and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each member firm is a
separate legal entity. Services are delivered independently by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL
and its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.

grantthornton.com.bd

REACHING NEW HEIGHTS 273

Southeast Bank Limited  |  Annual Report 2020



Due to the high level of judgment involved and using some 

manual process in estimating the provision for loans and 

advance, we considered this to be a key audit matter.

Interest amounting to Taka 4,131.55 million were 

transferred to Income account with the approval of the 

Board based on the recommendations of the Board Audit 

Committee in compliance with BRPD Circular No. 56, dated 

December 10, 2020, and an additional 1% Special general 

provision COVID-19 has been maintained amounting to 

Taka 1,161.70 million in line with the direction of said 

circular.

At the year end, the Group and the Bank reported total loans 

and advances of BDT 322,251 million (2019: BDT 296,752 

million) and BDT 320,368 million (2019: BDT 295,015 

million) respectively and the Bank reported provision for 

loans and advances of BDT 23,863 million (2019: BDT 

18,773 million). 

• Assessed the methodologies on which the 

provision amounts based, recalculated the 

provisions, and tested the completeness and 

accuracy of the underlying information;

• Finally assessed the appropriateness and 

presentation of disclosures against relevant 

accounting standards and Bangladesh Bank 

guidelines; and

• Reviewed the grounds for recommendations for 

approvals in cases of transfer of interests to the 

Income account.

Treasury Bonds require judgment and complex estimates.

In the absence of a quoted price in an active market, the fair 

value of T-Bills and T-Bonds is determined using complex 

valuation techniques which may take into consideration 

direct or indirect unobservable market data and complex 

pricing models.

We tested the operating effectiveness of key controls 

Bills and Treasury Bonds.

We tested a sample of the valuation models and the inputs 

used in those models using a variety of techniques. Applied in 

the circumstances.

Finally, we have assessed the appropriateness and 

presentation of disclosures against relevant accounting 

standards and Bangladesh Bank guidelines.

The Bank has recognized deferred tax liabilities for 

deductible temporary differences that it believes are 

recoverable.

The Bank has reported net deferred tax liabilities to a total 

of BDT 312 million (2019: 403 million) as at 31 December 

2020.

liabilities as their recoverability is dependent on forecasts of 

We obtained an understanding of the Group and the Bank's 

key controls over the recognition and measurement of 

deferred tax liabilities and the assumptions used in 

estimating the Group and Bank’s future taxable income.

We also assessed the completeness and accuracy of the data 

used for the estimations of future taxable income.

We involved tax specialists to assess key assumptions, 

controls, recognition, and measurement of DTA’s.

Finally, we assessed the appropriateness and presentation of 

disclosures as per IAS 12 Income Tax.

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

2. Valuation of Treasury Bill and Treasury Bond

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

3. Measurement of Deferred Tax Assets

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

An instinct for growth
TM
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We focused on legal and regulatory matters because the 
Group and the Bank operate in a legal and regulatory 

similar risks arising from disputes and regulatory 
proceedings. Such matters are subject to many uncertainties 

These uncertainties inherently affect the amount and timing 

other contingent liabilities. 

We obtained an understanding of the Group and The Bank’s 
key controls over the legal provision and contingencies 
process.

We enquired to those charged with governance to obtain their 

matters.

We enquired of the Bank’s internal legal counsel for all 

internal notes and reports. We also received formal 

We assessed the methodologies on which the provision 
amounts are based, recalculated the provision, and tested the 
completeness and accuracy of the underlying information.

We also assessed the Bank’s provisions and contingent 
liabilities disclosure.

Our audit procedures have a focus on IT systems and 
controls due to the pervasive nature and complexity of the IT 
environment, the large volumes of transactions processed in 
numerous locations daily and are reliance on automated and 
manual with automated (IT Dependent) controls.

We have focused on Data management, user access 
management, and developer access to the production 
environment and changes to the IT environment. Among 
others, these are key to ensuring the operating effectiveness 
of manual with automated control and automated controls.

We also concentrated on formal security administration 
policies and procedures to determine whether they are 
approved, comprehensive, up-to-date, and bank-wide 
communicated.

We tested the design and operating effectiveness of the 
Bank’s IT access controls over the information systems that 

Controls (Logical Access, Changes in management, and 
aspects of IT Operational Controls). This included testing 
that requests for access to systems were appropriately 
reviewed and authorized.

We tested the Bank's periodic review of access rights and 
reviewed requests of changes to systems for appropriate 
approval and authorization.

We performed the Tests of IT General Controls to evaluate 
the Application Development and Database, Hosting 
Platforms, and segregation of incompatible duties relevant 
to application and database change management. 

The Bank has invested in equity shares of its subsidiaries 
namely Southeast Bank Capital Services Limited and 
Southeast Exchange Company (South Africa) Pty Limited. As of 
31 December 2020, the carrying value of these investments are 
BDT 5,534 million (2019: BDT 5,532 million).

statements of the Bank, we have considered the recoverable 
value of the Bank’s investments in Southeast Bank Capital 
Services Limited and Southeast Exchange Company (South 
Africa) Pty Limited stated at cost.

Management has conducted impairment assessment and 
calculated recoverable value of its subsidiary Southeast Bank 
Capital Services Limited and Southeast Exchange Company 
(South Africa) Pty Limited in accordance with IAS 36.

We have reviewed management's analysis of impairment 
assessment and recoverable value calculation of subsidiaries 
in accordance with IAS 36: Impairment of Assets.

We have analyzed the appropriateness of the value in use 
model, the key assumptions used in the model, the reasonably 
possible alternative assumptions, particularly where they had 
the most impact on the value in use calculation.

6. Carrying value of Investments in Subsidiaries by the Bank

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

4.  Legal and Regulatory matters

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

5. IT Systems and Controls

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
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Other Information

Management of the Bank is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all of the information in the 

is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report.

any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the annual report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate 

the matter to the board of directors of the bank.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated and Separate 

Financial Statements and Internal Controls

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. The Bank Companies Act, 1991(as amended up to date), and 

the Bangladesh Bank Regulations require the Management to ensure effective internal audit, internal control, and risk 

management functions of the Bank.

The Management is also required to make a self-assessment on the effectiveness of anti-fraud internal controls and report to 

Bangladesh Bank on instances of fraud and forgeries.

Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to Going Concern and using the going 

concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group and the Bank or to cease operations or has 

no realistic alternative but to do so.

Recognition and measurement of interest income has 

involvement of complex IT environment.

We identify recognition of interest income from loans and 

advances as a key audit matter because this is one of the key 

performance indicators of the Bank and therefore there is an 

inherent risk of fraud and error in recognition of interest by 

We tested the design and operating effectiveness of key 
controlsover recognition and measurement of interest on 
loans andadvances.

We performed test of operating effectiveness on 
automatedcontrol in place to measure and recognize 
interest income.

We have also performed substantive procedure to check 
whetherinterest income is recognized completely and 
accurately.

We assessed the appropriateness and presentation of 
disclosure against relevant accounting standards and 
Bangladesh Bank guidelines.

7.   Recognition of interest income from loans and advances

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

An instinct for growth
TM
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will 

always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, 

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout 

the audit. We also:

due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 

from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 

appropriate in the circumstances.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 

disclosures made by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit 

on the Group’s and the Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we 

are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated and separate 

evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group and 

the Bank to cease to continue as a going concern.

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

supervision, and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 

regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to 

bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, 

in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse 

An instinct for growth
TM
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Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In accordance with the Companies Act 1994, the Securities and Exchange Rules 1987, the Bank Companies Act 1991 (as 

amended up to date), the Financial Reporting Act 2015, and the rules and regulations issued by Bangladesh Bank, we also 

report that:

(i) we have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for 

(ii) to the extent noted during the course of our audit work performed on the basis stated under the Auditor’s Responsibility 

statements of the Bank and considering the reports of the Management to Bangladesh Bank on anti-fraud internal 

statements and internal control:

statements appeared to be materially adequate;

(b) nothing has come to our attention regarding material instances of forgery or irregularity or administrative error and 

exception or anything detrimental committed by employees of the Group and its related entities.

Company (South Africa) Pty Limited has been audited by Pinaki & Company, Chartered Accountants, and G. L. PALMER 

(iv) in our opinion, proper books of accounts as required by law have been kept by the Group and the Bank so far as it 

appeared from our examination of those books;

statements;

the report are in agreement with the books of account and returns;

(vii) the expenditures incurred were for the purpose of the Bank’s business for the year;

up in conformity with prevailing rules, regulations, and accounting standards as well as related guidance issued by 

Bangladesh Bank;

(ix) adequate provisions have been made for advance and other assets which are in our opinion, doubtful of recovery as 

explained in Note21.1 and 21.5.1(A).

(x) the information and explanations required by us have been received and found satisfactory;

(xi) we have reviewed over 80% of the Risk-weighted Assets of the Bank and spent over 5,200 person hours; and

(xii) Bank maintained Capital to Risk-weighted Asset Ratio (CRAR) as explained in note 22.8.

Howladar Yunus & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: N/A

Md. Jahidur Rahman FCA
Partner
Enrolment No: 860
Dated : Dhaka, May 09, 2021
DVC No: 2105090860AS469823
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Southeast Bank Limited and its Subsidiaries
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET 
As at 31 December 2020

Particulars Note
Amount in Taka

2020 2019

PROPERTY AND ASSETS

Cash 4

In hand (including foreign currencies) 3,474,367,542 3,664,880,130

Balance with Bangladesh Bank and its agent banks

(including foreign currencies) 17,956,897,600 18,954,911,247

21,431,265,142 22,619,791,377

5

In Bangladesh 2,108,724,666 5,568,594,836

Outside Bangladesh 2,550,530,377 1,903,702,998

4,659,255,043 7,472,297,834

Money at call and on short notice 7 2,208,907,300 4,739,531,100

Investments 8

Government 83,226,359,543 62,409,764,654

Others 13,847,533,919 14,900,277,916

 97,073,893,462 77,310,042,570

Loans and advances/investments 10

Loans, cash credit, overdrafts etc./investments 307,752,518,862 278,757,951,276

Bills purchased and discounted 14,498,943,318 17,995,011,999

322,251,462,180 296,752,963,275

12 9,714,971,217 9,333,658,015

Other assets 14 7,953,654,253 4,084,430,822

Non-banking assets -                             -

Total assets 465,293,408,597 422,312,714,993

LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL

Liabilities

16

Subordinated bond 13,600,000,000 10,200,000,000

Other borrowings 18,897,676,319 13,701,399,879

32,497,676,319 23,901,399,879

Deposits and other accounts 18
Current/Al-wadeeah current accounts and other accounts 66,850,581,819 48,260,613,039

Bills payable 3,940,333,929 4,095,294,208

Savings bank/Mudaraba savings bank deposits 38,060,936,493 30,416,845,985

250,684,079,440 246,477,520,709

359,535,931,681 329,250,273,941

Other liabilities 20 43,545,833,362 38,651,506,648
Total liabilities 435,579,441,362 391,803,180,468

Capital/shareholders' equity

Paid up capital 22.2 11,889,405,210 11,599,419,720

Statutory reserve 23 11,580,478,928 10,969,433,607

Revaluation reserve 24 4,672,526,139 4,248,271,218

Other reserve 25 247,650,000 247,650,000

Foreign currency translation reserve 26 (1,919,103) (8,779,606)

Retained earnings 27 1,315,624,550 3,443,466,969

Total shareholders' equity 29,703,765,724 30,499,461,908

Non-controlling interest 29 10,201,511 10,072,617
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity 465,293,408,597 422,312,714,993
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Southeast Bank Limited and its Subsidiaries
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
As at 31 December 2020

Particulars Note
Amount in Taka

2020 2019

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ITEMS

Contingent liabilities

Acceptances and endorsements 30.1 51,087,802,689 48,407,681,253

Letters of guarantee 30.2 17,143,765,567 16,773,718,041

Irrevocable letters of credit 30.3 37,175,740,943 27,936,453,209

Bills for collection 30.4 31,398,294,693 28,576,944,200

Other contingent liabilities 30.5 1,931,650,000 1,454,224,000

Total contingent liabilities 138,737,253,892 123,149,020,703

Other commitments

Documentary credits and short term trade-related transactions - -

Forward assets purchased and forward deposits placed - -

Undrawn note issuance and revolving underwriting facilities - -

Undrawn formal standby facilities, credit lines and other commitments - -

Total other commitments - -

Total off-balance sheet items including contingent liabilities 138,737,253,892 123,149,020,703

Chairman Director Managing Director

Signed in terms of our separate report of even date

Dhaka, May 09, 2021

Director

Md. Jahidur Rahman FCA, Partner, Enrolment No: 860
Howladar Yunus & Co., Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: N/A

DVC No: 2105090860AS469823 
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Southeast Bank Limited and its Subsidiaries
CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
For the year ended 31 December 2020 

Particulars Note
Amount in Taka

2020 2019

32 22,250,494,583 26,258,882,397
34 (19,769,075,898) (22,001,885,612)  

2,481,418,685 4,256,996,785
36 6,750,891,038 5,288,975,155
38 3,536,221,661 3,859,609,254
40 1,002,030,956 985,139,688

11,289,143,655 10,133,724,097
Total operating income (A) 13,770,562,340 14,390,720,882

42 2,065,978,613 2,175,294,624
44 877,905,601 1,083,363,119

1,592,300 1,998,326
46 164,212,014 174,546,805
48 157,197,505 165,746,039
50 10,407,000 11,072,000
51 2,688,060 3,468,248
53 1,860,327 1,904,078

Depreciation and repair 54 786,680,346 534,629,560
Other expenses 56 1,437,484,585 1,255,718,774
Total operating expenses (B) 5,506,006,351 5,407,741,573

8,264,555,989 8,982,979,309
21.1

3,036,463,600 328,228,000
1,161,700,000

827,466,570 4,255,025,727
5,025,630,170 4,583,253,727

21.7 (117,063,786) 319,600,000
21.5 200,114,466 (324,100,000)

5,108,680,850 4,578,753,727
3,155,875,139 4,404,225,582

58
    Current 1,097,476,351 2,640,055,033

(90,700,000) (744,386,000)
1,006,776,351 1,895,669,033
2,149,098,788 2,508,556,549

2,148,969,893 2,508,554,444
128,895 2,105

2,149,098,788 2,508,556,549

Appropriations 
23 611,045,321 875,280,042

611,045,321 875,280,042
Retained surplus during the year 1,538,053,467 1,633,276,507

64 1.81 2.11

Signed in terms of our separate report of even date

 Chartered Accountants

DVC No: 2105090860AS469823 
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Particulars Note
Amount in Taka

2020 2019

Southeast Bank Limited and its Subsidiaries
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT 
For the year ended 31 December 2020

A.

Interest receipts in cash 23,644,616,711 30,341,281,159
Interest payments (21,368,661,048) (20,768,783,904)

217,922,423 252,697,447

Fees and commission receipts in cash 38 3,536,221,661 3,859,609,254
472,250,468 917,012,200

Cash payments to employees (2,076,385,613) (2,186,366,624)

Cash payments to suppliers (147,155,289) (183,212,580)

Income taxes paid (2,898,827,100) (2,198,773,052)
60 2,835,060,215 1,491,866,968
62 (2,508,769,642) (2,649,462,049)

1,706,272,786 8,875,868,818

1,703,677,101 932,751,633
(1,350,930,471) (744,452,229)

(28,691,285,943) (29,289,880,807)

Other assets   (1,544,473,813) 206,061,988
5,196,276,440 2,489,699,536

31,847,082,912 29,472,714,367

Other liabilities    2,480,944,520 1,599,560,682
9,641,290,746 4,666,455,169

11,347,563,532 13,542,323,987

B.

43,189,016,529 96,834,627,415
(60,046,683,607) (96,739,944,762)

(675,162,052) (340,168,614)
4,074,615 17,150,306

(17,528,754,515) (228,335,655)

5,000,000,000                         
(1,600,000,000) (1,600,000,000)

(869,956,479)                         
(183,986,326) (133,379,383)

2,346,057,195 (1,733,379,383)

(3,835,133,788) 11,580,608,949

5,474,771 (11,294,912)

F. 48,392,991,767 36,823,677,730

G. 44,563,332,749 48,392,991,767

4 3,474,367,542 3,664,880,130

4 17,956,897,600 18,954,911,247
5 4,659,255,043 7,472,297,834

Money at call and on short notice 7 2,208,907,300 4,739,531,100
Treasury bills 9.1.1 16,258,372,264 13,555,450,056
Prize bond 9.1.1 5,533,000 5,921,400

44,563,332,749 48,392,991,767
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Southeast Bank Limited
BALANCE SHEET 
As at 31 December 2020

Particulars Note
Amount in Taka

2020 2019

4.1

3,474,365,889 3,664,640,436

17,956,897,600 18,954,911,247

21,431,263,489 22,619,551,683

6
2,108,724,666 5,568,594,836

2,427,007,183 1,762,989,139

4,535,731,849 7,331,583,975

Money at call and on short notice 7 2,208,907,300 4,739,531,100

9

83,226,359,543 62,409,764,654

Others 10,957,893,063 12,074,625,437

94,184,252,606 74,484,390,091

11

305,869,215,552 277,020,101,321

14,498,943,318 17,995,011,999

320,368,158,870 295,015,113,320

13 9,182,672,927 8,754,955,398

Other assets 15 13,171,388,605 9,485,465,483

 

Total assets 465,082,375,646 422,430,591,050

17

Subordinated bond 13,600,000,000 10,200,000,000

18,897,676,319 13,701,399,879

32,497,676,319 23,901,399,879

19

66,764,534,952 48,807,799,671

3,940,333,929 4,095,294,208

38,060,936,493 30,416,845,985

251,134,079,440 246,477,520,709

359,899,884,814 329,797,460,573

21 43,104,754,236 38,312,892,783

435,502,315,369 392,011,753,235

Paid  up capital 22.2 11,889,405,210 11,599,419,720

23 11,580,478,928 10,969,433,607

24 4,672,526,139 4,248,271,218

25 247,650,000 247,650,000

28 1,190,000,000 3,354,063,270

29,580,060,277 30,418,837,815

465,082,375,646 422,430,591,050
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Southeast Bank Limited
BALANCE SHEET 
As at 31 December 2020

Particulars Note
Amount in Taka

2020 2019

Acceptances and endorsements 30.1 51,087,802,689

30.2 17,143,765,567

30.3 37,175,740,943

30.4 31,398,294,693

30.5 1,931,650,000

138,737,253,892

Other commitments

Total other commitments
138,737,253,892

48,407,681,253

16,773,718,041

27,936,453,209

28,576,944,200

1,454,224,000

123,149,020,703

123,149,020,703

Signed in terms of our separate report of even date

 Chartered Accountants

DVC No: 2105090860AS469823 
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Southeast Bank Limited
PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT 
For the year ended 31 December 2020

Particulars Note
Amount in Taka

2020 2019

33 22,219,789,107 26,242,459,146
35 (19,810,562,829) (22,026,807,868)

2,409,226,278 4,215,651,278
37 6,702,952,777 5,251,583,015
39 3,450,713,908 3,764,992,196
41 988,848,766 978,908,443

11,142,515,451 9,995,483,654
Total operating income (A) 13,551,741,729 14,211,134,932

43 2,038,615,950 2,142,216,378
45 862,560,078 1,061,295,939

1,592,300 1,863,455
47 163,733,970 173,691,923
49 156,210,729 164,420,208
50 10,407,000 11,072,000
52 2,568,060 3,292,248

1,000,000 1,000,000
55 735,994,461 478,520,196

Other expenses 57 1,415,151,724 1,218,608,648
Total operating expenses (B) 5,387,834,272 5,255,980,995

8,163,907,457 8,955,153,937
21.1

3,036,463,600 328,228,000
1,161,700,000

827,466,570 4,255,025,727
5,025,630,170 4,583,253,727

21.7.1 (117,063,786) 319,600,000
21.5 200,114,466 (324,100,000)

5,108,680,850 4,578,753,727
3,055,226,607 4,376,400,210

59
    Current 1,050,000,000 2,600,000,000

(90,700,000) (744,386,000)
959,300,000 1,855,614,000

2,095,926,607 2,520,786,210

Appropriations 
23 611,045,321 875,280,042

611,045,321 875,280,042
Retained surplus during the year 1,484,881,286 1,645,506,168

65 1.76 2.12

Signed in terms of our separate report of even date

 Chartered Accountants

DVC No: 2105090860AS469823 
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Southeast Bank Limited
CASH FLOW STATEMENT 
For the year ended 31 December 2020

Particulars Note
Amount in Taka

2020 2019

A.

Interest receipts in cash 23,613,911,235 30,324,857,908
Interest payment (21,470,027,181) (20,475,695,465)

158,163,234 189,895,835
Fees and commission receipts in cash 39 3,450,713,908 3,764,992,196

472,250,468 917,012,200

Cash payments to employees (2,049,022,950) (2,153,288,378)

Cash payments to suppliers (146,168,513) (181,886,749)

Income taxes paid (2,881,973,987) (2,074,350,417)

61 2,779,701,420 1,485,635,723
63 (2,479,508,845) (2,604,170,083)

1,448,038,790 9,193,002,769

 

1,703,677,101 932,751,633

(1,286,942,094) (744,452,229)

(28,545,832,588) (29,602,357,424)

Other assets   (891,378,600) 222,071,583

5,196,276,440 2,543,908,363

31,663,849,413 30,034,109,210

Other liabilities    2,081,195,427 950,459,975

9,920,845,099 4,336,491,110
11,368,883,889 13,529,493,878

B.

43,189,016,529 96,794,627,414

(60,046,683,607) (96,739,944,762)

(672,193,202) (271,637,583)

4,074,615 17,150,306

(17,525,785,664) (199,804,625)

5,000,000,000

(1,600,000,000) (1,600,000,000)

(869,956,479)

(183,986,326) (133,379,383)

2,346,057,195 (1,733,379,383)

(3,810,844,580) 11,596,309,870

(1,385,732) 8,844,086

F. 48,252,038,214 36,646,884,258

G. 44,439,807,902 48,252,038,214

4.1 3,474,365,889 3,664,640,436

4.1 17,956,897,600 18,954,911,247
6 4,535,731,849 7,331,583,975

Money at call and on short notice 7 2,208,907,300 4,739,531,100
Treasury bills 9.1.1 16,258,372,264 13,555,450,056
Prize bond 9.1.1 5,533,000 5,921,400

44,439,807,902 48,252,038,214
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Southeast Bank Limited and its Subsidiaries
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 Reporting entity 

1.3 Islamic Banking 

 

 

 Annexure-G, G.1, and G.2

 

Annexure-H, H.1 and H.2. 
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Appendix - A. 

Appendix - B. 

REACHING NEW HEIGHTS290



 IFRS: 

 Bangladesh Bank: 

 IFRS: 

 Bangladesh Bank: 

 IFRS: 

 Bangladesh Bank: 

 IFRS:

 Bangladesh Bank: 
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 IFRS: 

 Bangladesh Bank: 

 IFRS:

 Bangladesh Bank:

 IFRS: 

 Bangladesh Bank: 

statements 
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 IFRS: 

 Bangladesh Bank: 

x) Financial guarantees 

 IFRS: 

 Bangladesh Bank: 

 IFRS: 

 Bangladesh Bank: 

 IFRS: 

 Bangladesh Bank: 

 IFRS: 

 Bangladesh Bank: 

 IFRS: 

 Bangladesh Bank: 

 IFRS:
 Bangladesh Bank: 

 IFRS: 

 Bangladesh Bank:

 IFRS: 
 Bangladesh Bank:
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 IFRS: 

 Bangladesh Bank: 

 IFRS: 

 Bangladesh Bank: 

i) Internal control  

ii)  Risk management 

iii) Internal audit 
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2.4 Functional and presentation currency 
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2.6 Reporting period 

2.9 Liquidity statements 

 e Other assets Realizations/ amortizations

Annexure-B and Annexure-B.1 
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   Pty Ltd

•

•

•

•

 •

 •

3.1.4 Transactions eliminated on consolidation
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3.2 Foreign currency 

3.2.1 Foreign currency transactions 

3.2.2 Foreign operations 
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Initial 
recognition Valuation Method

Cost
amortisation concept)

Cost

Cost At cost

Cost amortisation concept)

Cost At cost

Cost

Shares (unquoted)* Cost the last audited balance

Shares (quoted) * Cost
balance sheet date 
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Particulars Rate

General provision on:

s 2%

Provisions for Short term Agricultural and Micro-Credits

3.3.4 Fixed assets and depreciation 

 Recognition and measurement 
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Land Nil

Electrical appliances 20%

Computer 20%
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3.5.1 Authorized capital 

3.5.2 Paid up capital
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or

3.7.4 Fees and commission income 
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3.11.2 Gratuity Fund 
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3.15 Tax expense 

•

•

•

3.15.3 Tax exposures 
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3.19 Risk management 
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3.19.4 Money Laundering Risk 
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 IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts
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   Double A 

3.24 Operating segments 

Annexure-I

3.26 Materiality and aggregation 

3.29 General 
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Particulars Note
Amount in Taka

2020 2019

4

4.1 3,474,365,889 3,664,640,436

1,653 239,694

3,474,367,542 3,664,880,130

4.1 17,956,897,600 18,954,911,247

21,431,265,142 22,619,791,377

4.1

Local currency 3,416,744,106 3,605,548,057

57,621,784 59,092,379

3,474,365,889 3,664,640,436

Local currency 14,058,719,811 18,229,852,932

 3,368,838,231 291,691,563

17,427,558,041 18,521,544,494

Local currency 529,339,559 433,366,753

17,956,897,600 18,954,911,247

21,431,263,489 22,619,551,683

4.2

4.2.1 a)

12,843,562,580 16,507,223,865

13,321,885,169 16,732,475,519

Surplus 478,322,589 225,251,654

832,915,600 1,155,277,695

864,936,884 1,398,101,826

Surplus 32,021,284 242,824,131
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Particulars Note
Amount in Taka

2020 2019

4.2.2 a)

42,484,493,480 39,017,074,590

86,020,253,005 65,518,845,332

Surplus 43,535,759,525 26,501,770,742

Cash in hand 3,278,653,055 3,400,969,000

528,837,820 432,860,426

478,322,589 225,251,654

31,784,961,354 15,658,489,282

49,943,945,187 45,795,353,970

5,533,000 5,921,000

86,020,253,005 65,518,845,332

1,145,258,950 1,155,277,695

1,719,715,284 1,457,367,131

Surplus 574,456,334 302,089,436

Cash in hand 195,712,834 264,507,000

61,000 36,000

32,021,284 242,824,131

1,491,920,000 950,000,000

1,719,715,118 1,457,367,131

5

6 2,108,724,666 5,568,594,836

474,214,410 622,941,348

2,582,939,076 6,191,536,184

474,214,410 622,941,348

2,108,724,666 5,568,594,836

6 2,427,007,183 1,762,989,139

223,145

123,523,194 140,490,714

2,550,530,377 1,903,702,998

4,659,255,043 7,472,297,834

6

6.1 2,108,724,666 5,568,594,836

6.2 2,427,007,183 1,762,989,139

4,535,731,849 7,331,583,975
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Particulars Note
Amount in Taka

2020 2019

6.1 In Bangladesh

16,076,275 7,576,275

68,025,912 54,359,540

5,700 5,700

5,001 5,001

310,818 310,818

77,186,347 19,444,775

13,577

62,019,267 33,431,985

2,910,485 1,012,476

5,501 5,501

38,703,502 21,491,284

14,626 10,494,634

13,420,553 12,054,707

430,630 15,767,169

5,322,683 2,804,587

12,043,347 18,863,525

9,011,345 16,880

1,823,226

49,570,551 45,192,739

3,008,107

7,011,700

550,000 550,000

(5,395,879) (9,313,930)

3,568,242 2,096,010

70,986,661 25,384,311

50,160,589 25,585,450

479,763,491 294,164,716

30,690 30,690

1,148,058 1,148,058

26,799 26,799

8,602,114 8,355,164

24,145,104 220,796,878

30,008,411 29,072,531

63,961,176 259,430,120

1,000,000,000

500,000,000

200,000,000

1,000,000,000

2,700,000,000

1,465,000,000 1,465,000,000

IDLC Finance Limited 250,000,000

100,000,000 100,000,000

500,000,000

1,565,000,000 2,315,000,000

2,108,724,666 5,568,594,836
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Particulars Note
Amount in Taka

2020 2019

6.2 Outside Bangladesh

681,848,854 149,899,156

151,133,051 44,143,750

49,426,229 70,709,236

119,627,105 92,584,903

26,100,567 54,375,563

230,255,476 248,392,506

1,258,391,281 660,105,115

106,655,046 48,318,227

1,620,829 1,478,825

2,178,309

11,649,764 145,806,434

38,656,167 3,474,431

116,749,326 31,348,847

165,244,900 11,796,933

150,309,132 18,249,482

8,510,824 449,276

7,313,170 6,113,182

9,516,743 32,653,875

19,448,121 5,539,844

15,364,064 39,045,170

96,854,282 62,206,141

58,281,536 50,403,858

16,708,506 17,194,896

19,244,552 1,264,967

103,477,516 102,923,021

9,119,388 19,892,956

150,838,132 8,417,708

1,493,346 2,002,608

35,104,049 479,696,009

14,763,170 14,607,335

9,515,030

1,168,615,902 1,102,884,024

2,427,007,183 1,762,989,139

 

6.3

On demand 2,970,731,849 2,316,583,975

Not more than three months 1,095,000,000 4,715,000,000

More than three months but not more than six months 370,000,000 300,000,000

More than six months but not more than one year

100,000,000

4,535,731,849 7,331,583,975
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Particulars Note
Amount in Taka

2020 2019

7 Money at call and on short notice

 200,000,000

 300,000,000

11,300,000 11,300,000

 400,000,000

11,300,000 911,300,000

620,000,000 750,000,000

 180,000,000

30,000,000 280,000,000

650,000,000 1,210,000,000

169,600,800 169,800,000

 254,700,000

 424,500,000

 849,000,000

21,200,100 241,031,100

169,600,800 254,700,000

424,002,000  

424,002,000 169,800,000

 254,700,000

339,201,600  

1,547,607,300 2,618,231,100

2,208,907,300 4,739,531,100

8

9 83,226,359,543 62,409,764,654

83,226,359,543 62,409,764,654

9 10,957,893,063 12,074,625,437

2,889,640,856 2,825,652,479

13,847,533,919 14,900,277,916

97,073,893,462 77,310,042,570

9

81,734,439,543 61,459,764,654

1,491,920,000 950,000,000

83,226,359,543 62,409,764,654

10,283,132,489 10,339,853,093

674,760,574 1,734,772,344

10,957,893,063 12,074,625,437

94,184,252,606 74,484,390,091
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Particulars Note
Amount in Taka

2020 2019

9.1 on entional Banking

9.1.1 Go ernment Securities

Treasury Bills

91 days Treasury ills HTM  498,337,813
364 days Treasury ills HTM  1,883,582,793
91 days Treasury ills HFT  2,334,936,450
182 days Treasury ills HFT 5,052,769,456 5,893,904,000
364 days Treasury ills HFT 12,590,916,009 2,462,939,000

17,643,685,464 13,073,700,056
Add  Re erse repo ith other ba s (at boo  alue)  481,750,000
Less  Repo ith other ba s (at boo  alue) 1,385,313,200  
Less  Assured Repo ith an ladesh a  Others (at boo  alue)   

16,258,372,264 13,555,450,056

Prize Bonds 5,533,000 5,921,400

Bangladesh Bank Bills   

5,533,000 5,921,400

2 ears GT  HTM 535,288,396 535,622,350
5 ears GT  HTM 6,335,068,544 9,321,865,808
10 ears GT  HTM 22,133,179,111 15,533,082,040
15 ears GT  HTM 9,494,158,959 8,341,430,864
20 ears GT  HTM 10,661,463,640 8,712,742,194
Remeasured 10 years GT  HTM 784,786,539 968,690,110
2 ears GT  HFT 9,464,764,925 3,000,489,000
5 ears GT  HFT 2,891,498,744 472,231,200
10 ears GT  HFT 3,084,117,996 504,068,373
15 ears GT  HFT 18,598,023 15,242,704
20 ears GT  HFT 67,609,403 104,057,515

65,470,534,279 47,509,522,158

Add Re erse repo ith other ban s (at boo  alue) 388,871,040

Less  Assured Repo ith an ladesh a  Others (at boo  alue)

-
  

65,470,534,279 47,898,393,198

81,734,439,543 61,459,764,654

9.1.2 Others

Shares in listed companies 3,622,962,577 2,979,683,180
Shares in un listed companies 610,169,912 610,169,912

onds 6,050,000,000 6,750,000,000

10,283,132,489 10,339,853,093

9.2

9.2.1
an ladesh Go ernment Islamic bond 1,491,920,000 950,000,000

1,491,920,000 950,000,000

9.2.2 Others
Shares in listed companies 674,760,574 1,734,772,344

674,760,574 1,734,772,344

9.3

Held or tradin  (HFT) 31,790,494,354 15,664,410,682

Held to maturity (HTM) 51,435,865,189 46,745,353,972

Other securities 10,957,893,063 12,074,625,437

94,184,252,606 74,484,390,091

REACHING NEW HEIGHTS316



Particulars
Amount in Taka

2020 2019

9.4

On demand 5,533,000 5,921,400
Not more than three months 21,615,967,000 7,030,500,000
More than three months but not more than one year 20,479,923,151 18,230,498,779
More than one year but not more than e years 25,029,200,000 20,549,900,000
Ab e e years 27,053,629,455 28,667,569,912

94,184,252,606 74,484,390,091

9.5

9.5.1
2020 2019

ost price Market price Market price 
Taka Taka Taka

Treasury ills 16,157,460,074 16,258,372,264 13,555,450,056
an ladesh Go ernment Treasury ond 65,976,320,907 65,470,534,279 47,898,393,198

Prize onds 5,533,000 5,533,000 5,921,400
82,139,313,981 81,734,439,543 61,459,764,654

Islamic Banking

an ladesh Go ernment Islamic ond 1,491,920,000 1,491,920,000 950,000,000

83,631,233,981 83,226,359,543 62,409,764,654

9.5.2
2020 2019

Market price ost price ost price
Taka Taka Taka

Shares in listed companies 4,054,870,764 3,622,962,577 2,979,683,181
Shares in un listed companies 610,169,912 610,169,912 610,169,912

4,665,040,676 4,233,132,489 3,589,853,093

Islamic Banking

Shares in listed companies 376,072,066 674,760,574 1,734,772,344
376,072,066 674,760,574 1,734,772,344

9.6
2020 2019

Market price ost price ost price
Shares in listed companies (A) Taka Taka Taka

a s and N FI 664,721,084 1,223,039,612 1,511,214,269
Insurance Companies 3,159,007,267 2,329,880,239 76,805,098
Fuel and Po er Companies 52,106,650 91,622,259 286,553,627
Mutual Fund 324,500,000 250,000,000 293,475,095
Manu acturin   Other 230,607,828 403,181,041 2,546,407,435

4,430,942,830 4,297,723,151 4,714,455,525

2020 2019
Net ook alue ost price ost price

Shares in un listed companies (B) Taka Taka Taka

a s and N FI 54,183,820 54,183,820 54,183,820
Others 555,986,092 555,986,092 555,986,092

610,169,912 610,169,912 610,169,912
Total in estment o  shares ( A 4,907,893,063 5,324,625,437

5,041,112,742 4,907,893,063 5,324,625,437

REACHING NEW HEIGHTS 317



9.7

Market price
Taka  Taka  Taka 

1 Asia Insurance Limited 441,873,709 149,557,533 292,316,176
2 318,081,616 653,582,763 (335,501,147)
3 93,357,588 179,957,274 (86,599,686)
4 58,825,548 98,541,933 (39,716,385)
5 4,659,833 12,382,964 (7,723,131)
6 2,712,473,725 2,167,939,742 544,533,983
7 233,837,524 361,894,155 (128,056,631)
8 324,500,000 250,000,000 74,500,000
9 14,587,343 36,946,327 (22,358,984)

10 5,586,328 8,548,797 (2,962,469)
11 49,860,365 64,878,145 (15,017,780)
12 15,251,405 22,470,307 (7,218,901)
13 11,325,265 17,966,918 (6,641,653)
14 19,444,356 27,605,420 (8,161,064)
15 9,060,000 21,082,720 (12,022,720)
16 10,323,040 14,044,434 (3,721,394)
17 13,726,650 21,016,635 (7,289,985)
18 Premier Cement Mills Ltd 33,322,535 57,393,541 (24,071,007)
19 26,883,175 75,212,724 (48,329,549)
20 147,601 17,769 129,831
21 29,320,000 49,522,904 (20,202,904)
22 WATA Chemical Limited 4,495,224 7,160,147 (2,664,923)

4,430,942,830 4,297,723,151 133,219,679

9.8

Minimum Maximum
outstanding outstanding outstanding

Taka Taka Taka
2020

Securities sold under repo
i) 678,420,400 2,956,824,000 35,230,582
ii) 247,479,500 4,246,048,400 961,590,984

i)
ii) 190,237,680 3,017,055,960 239,063,517

2019

Securities sold under repo
i)
ii) 444,229,650 1,495,833,500 42,820,865

i)  
ii) 149,747,280 3,295,576,303 545,786,635

2020 2019
Note Taka Taka

10

11 305,869,215,552 277,020,101,321
1,883,303,310 1,737,849,955

307,752,518,862 278,757,951,276

307,752,518,862 278,757,951,276

11 14,498,943,318 17,995,011,999
14,498,943,318 17,995,011,999

322,251,462,180 296,752,963,275

SL. 
no. required) 

2020
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Particulars Note
Amount in Taka

2020 2019

11 Loans and ad ances/in estments

Loans, cash credit, o erdra ts etc /in estments 11 1 305,869,215,552 277,020,101,321
ills purchased and discounted 11 13 14,498,943,318 17,995,011,999

320,368,158,870 295,015,113,320

11.1 Loans, cash credit, o erdra ts etc./In estments

In Bangladesh
on entional Banking

Demand loan 10,097,756,451 7,552,334,097
Time loan 22,443,048,758 25,540,530,841
Term loan 134,795,492,539 122,264,512,516
Term loan SRE P (  Pre ance) 386,116,793  
A ricultural credit Term 1,258,672,742 1,378,470,597
A ricultural credit Time 2,043,619,990 2,137,269,292
A ricultural credit OD 212,798,430 212,368,194
Consumer credit scheme 659,186 2,499,669
Car loan 117,512,495 128,130,055
Personal loan 375,489,923 429,677,902
Home loan 2,089,458,741 1,759,308,096
Rural Home Loan 163,264,484 166,236,275
Loan a ainst  LTFF 358,051,598 266,398,553
Loan a ainst GTF 59,471,612 67,897,772
Cash credit and erdra ts 52,536,496,200 59,487,080,257

ills A ainst Letter o  Credit ( LC) 75,523,011 225,239,563
Loan re ance housin  sector 12,371,131 13,599,386
Loan a ainst Trust Receipt (LTR) 10,033,953,523 13,402,596,278
Ad ances pac  credit (PC) 1,826,804,451 2,639,826,146
Loan a ainst orei n bills 7,495,711 126,345,398
House buildin  loan sta 333,686,011 375,527,605
Term Loan Express Cash 4,575,366  
Di ital de ice  9,766
Export De elopment Fund (EDF) 29,253,347,054 19,057,302,226
Loan a ainst cash incenti e 116,853,027 30,545,174
Loan credit card 2,237,169,632 2,158,063,208
Sta  Loan  Car 293,249,641  

sance Payable at Si ht ( PAS) 3,753,240,723  

Loans and Ad ances against OVI 19 BB Stimulus package  
Term loan om NGO Re ance 2,072,129,569  
Term loan A ricultural  57,571,427  

erdra t WCSP Other then CMSME ( PD 8) 1,452,289,136  
erdra t CMSME (SMESPD 2) 3,762,183,076  

RMG Salary re ance 5,127,208,360  
Pac  Credit   REFIN ( PD 9) 417,704,774  

287,775,265,564 259,421,768,866

Islamic Banking
336,092,550 888,481,948
344,922,440 392,827,368

70,635,449 82,921,352 
6,299,491 22,294

868,783,132 1,057,138,547
70,293,069 82,261,921

9,672,346 13,548,440
760,722,200 674,178,978

3,109,336,413 3,371,439,522
136,935,362 110,999,291

12,951,127
12,164,459,343 10,924,512,794

200,618,889  
2,228,178  

18,093,949,988 17,598,332,455
305,869,215,552 277,020,101,321

Outside Bangladesh   
305,869,215,552 277,020,101,321
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Particulars Note
Amount in Taka

2020 2019

11.2 Per orming loans and ad ances/in estments

Gross loans and ad ances/in estments 320,368,158,870 295,015,113,320

Non pe ormin  loans and ad ances/in estments (9,939,755,293) (14,375,292,023)

310,428,403,577 280,639,821,297

11.3 Maturity ise grouping o  loans and ad ances/in estments

On demand 42,961,370,104 42,270,540,000

Less than three months 57,083,663,137 75,701,460,000

More than three months but less than one year 93,582,681,979 79,967,800,000

More than one year but less than e years 83,298,521,306 57,748,700,000

More than e years 43,441,922,343 39,326,613,320

320,368,158,870 295,015,113,320

11.4 oncentration o  loans and ad ances/in estments

Ad ances to allied concerns  directors  

Ad ances to chie  executi e and other senior executi es 148,827,204 153,220,739

Advances to customers' group:
Ad ances to lar e and medium industries 228,351,312,127 202,681,057,418

Ad ances to small and cotta e industries 14,094,004,625 14,362,857,301

Commercial Loans 39,517,386,857 42,230,548,118

Consumer Credit 5,071,136,407 4,726,846,322

O shore a  Loans 19,478,341,589 18,539,053,971

Other loans and ad ances 13,707,150,061 12,321,529,451

320,368,158,870 295,015,113,320

etails o  large loan/in estments

11.5

% o  % o  

total total

 loan Taka  loan Taka

A riculture 1 20% 3,843,409,443 1 37% 4,033,802,812

Industrial (Manu acturin ) 50 50% 161,770,004,160 50 62% 149,337,701,819

Industrial (Ser ices) 14 38% 46,073,077,916 14 54% 42,881,572,826

Export Financin 10 80% 34,602,234,676 8 41% 24,824,640,074

Commercial Loans 12 33% 39,517,386,857 14 31% 42,230,548,118

Consumer Credit 1 58% 5,071,136,407 1 60% 4,726,846,322

Other

a) O shore a  Loans 6 08% 19,478,341,589 6 28% 18,539,053,971

b) Finance to N FIs 0 35% 1,113,249,140 0 46% 1,355,234,453

c) Loans to Capital Mar et 0 58% 1,863,905,128 0 58% 1,715,987,471

d) Miscellaneous 2 20% 7,035,413,554 1 82% 5,369,725,453

100.00% 320,368,158,870 100.00% 295,015,113,320

20192020

Annexure-D.
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Particulars Note
Amount in Taka

2020 2019

11.6 Industry-wise loans and advances (Industrial Loan)

Ready Made Garment industries Loan (RMG)   72,696,885,226 61,487,892,563
Real Estate industries 21,606,831,526 19,751,975,037
Textile industries 19,660,231,806 16,615,783,585
Agro-Based Industries 15,493,461,576 15,545,115,456
Cement & Ceramics industries 7,663,691,539 6,474,774,052
Ship Breaking & Ship Building industries 5,174,195,826 5,693,618,007
Pharmaceuticals industries 1,721,848,237 1,755,866,651
Other Industries 98,428,171,015 89,718,889,369

242,445,316,752 217,043,914,719

11.7 Category-wise Small Medium Enterprise loans and advances (SME)

Service sector 19,536,064,638 20,289,091,212
Trading sector 27,410,027,421 27,285,989,052
Industrial sector 51,521,117,384 55,423,330,633

98,467,209,444 102,998,410,897

11.8 Geographical location-wise allocations of loans and advances

% of % of 
total total
 loan Taka  loan Taka

Urban:
Dhaka region 76.96% 246,549,343,968 76.75% 226,421,370,679
Chittagong region 13.96% 44,717,035,885 13.94% 41,121,892,238
Rajshahi region 1.68% 5,373,025,866 1.83% 5,395,407,509
Sylhet region 1.04% 3,316,484,036 1.21% 3,576,063,473
Khulna region 0.50% 1,612,061,435 0.51% 1,499,150,540
Rangpur region 0.42% 1,356,283,882 0.28% 828,896,439
Barisal region 0.08% 260,537,093 0.08% 240,402,709
Mymensingh region 0.15% 492,138,511 0.14% 399,513,382

94.79% 303,676,910,677 94.74% 279,482,696,969

Rural:
Dhaka region 3.37% 10,809,670,326 3.27% 9,641,368,796
Chittagong region 1.43% 4,594,710,299 1.56% 4,597,897,002
Rajshahi region 0.01% 48,036,658 0.02% 61,396,883
Sylhet region 0.17% 533,208,038 0.17% 504,462,078
Khulna region 0.22% 705,622,872 0.25% 727,291,592

5.21% 16,691,248,193 5.26% 15,532,416,351
100.00% 320,368,158,870 100.00% 295,015,113,320

11.9 Classi cation of loans and advances

% of % of 
total total
 loan Taka  loan Taka

Standard including staff loan 94.07% 301,368,798,084 92.28% 272,243,244,240
Special Mention Account (SMA) 2.83% 9,059,605,493 2.85% 8,396,577,057

96.90% 310,428,403,577 95.13% 280,639,821,297

Sub-standard 0.10% 323,191,147 0.13% 375,565,881
Doubtful 0.11% 355,835,893 0.09% 270,814,840

Bad/loss 2.89% 9,260,728,254 4.65% 13,728,911,301

3.10% 9,939,755,293 4.87% 14,375,292,023
100.00% 320,368,158,870 100.00% 295,015,113,320

2020 2019

20192020
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Amount in Taka

2020 2019

11.10 Particulars of loans and advances

i) Debts considered good in respect of which the bank is fully secured; 266,641,789,276 241,985,581,080

ii) Debts considered good for which the bank holds no other security

than the debtors' personal security; 18,194,426,708 10,912,630,334

iii) Debts considered good secured by the personal liabilities of one

or more parties in addition to the personal security of the debtors; 36,908,770,557 42,116,901,906

iv) Debts adversely classi ed; provision not maintained -

v) Debts due by directors or of cers of the bank or any of them

either severally or jointly with any other persons; 648,756,013 387,917,332

vi) Debts due by companies or rms in which the directors or of cers

of the bank are interested as directors, partners or managing agents 

or, in case of private companies, as members; - -

vii) Maximum total amount of advances, including temporary

advances made any time during the year to directors or managers

or of cers of the bank or any of them either severally or jointly

with any other persons; 648,756,013 387,917,332

viii) Maximum total amount of advances, including temporary advances

granted during the year to companies or rms in which the directors 

of the bank are interested as directors, partners or managing agents

or, in case of private companies, as members; - - 

ix) Due from banking companies; - - 

x) Classi ed loans/investments for which interest has not been charged:

(a)  Increase/(decrease) of provision (speci c) 1,983,146,600 8,281,727,000

      Amount of debts written off (Principal Amount) 2,504,385,038 10,310,926

      Amount realised against the debts previously written off 472,250,468 917,012,200

(b)  Provision against the debt classi ed as

      bad/loss at the date of balance sheet 4,689,667,262 6,862,579,457

(c)  Amount of interest charged in suspense account 10,741,106,029 9,294,042,050

xi) Loans written off:

-   Current year 2,960,354,546 13,459,101

    Cumulative to-date 13,420,758,231 12,230,294,841

Less: Amount realised against the debts previously written off 472,250,468 917,012,200

Less: Amount interest waiver during the year 229,878,371 852,878,956

Balance as at 31 December 12,718,629,392 10,460,403,685

-  The amount of written off loans

    for which lawsuit led 12,718,629,392 10,460,403,685
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11.11 Particulars of required provision for loans and advances/investments

For loans and advances/
Investments:

(other than small enterprises,

 loans for professional, consumer

account) 202,299,793,583 202,299,793,583 1% 2,021,080,225 1,725,104,445

Small and medium enterprise 88,200,959,789 88,200,959,789 0.25% 220,502,403 226,569,026

Loan to BHs/MBs/SDs against 1,863,905,128 1,863,905,128 2% 37,278,103 34,319,749

shares

Housing and loan for 2,376,921,556 2,376,921,556 2% 24,411,382 21,420,059

professional

2,580,631,642 2,580,631,642 2% 51,612,636 67,751,293

3,398,083,096 3,398,083,096 1%-5% 33,980,831 23,731,410

Staff loan 648,503,290 648,503,290 1% 6,485,033 3,871,200

Special Mention Account (SMA) 9,059,605,493 9,059,605,493 0.25%-5% 86,273,639 71,157,703

2,481,624,252 2,173,924,885

Sub-standard 323,191,147 86,399,067 5%-20% 8,412,855 18,461,143

Doubtful 355,835,893 113,537,958 5%-50% 24,115,222 57,920,285

Bad/loss 9,260,728,254 4,689,667,262 100% 4,689,667,262 6,862,579,457

320,368,158,869 315,318,007,863 4,722,195,339 6,938,960,885

Required provision for loans and advances (A) 7,203,819,591 9,112,885,769

Total provision maintained (B) 23,862,771,455 18,773,255,000

Excess provision as at 31 December (C=B-A) 16,658,951,864 9,660,369,231

Status

2019

Outstanding Base for % of Required Required 
as at 31 December 2020 provision required provision provision

Taka Taka provision Taka Taka

2020
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Particulars Note
Amount in Taka

2020 2019

11.12 Listing of assets pledged as security/collaterals

Nature of the secured assets

Shares & Securities 1,356,423,781 1,689,122,454

Merchandise 3,796,029,023 857,232,999

Machinery with other xed asset and cial obligation 5,747,670,965 4,167,920,849

Real estate with cial obligation 262,256,290,181 238,673,761,651

Financial obligation only 10,253,853,322 7,145,293,503

)cte tisoped knab ,setacifitrec sgnivas ,seicilop ecnarusnI(

Miscellaneous-

i) Crops/stock of crops hypothecation 154,619,808 250,625,273

ii) Guarantee of individuals/institutions 23,766,917,006 34,355,140,556

ii) Others 13,036,354,784 7,876,016,035

320,368,158,870 295,015,113,320

11.13 Bills purchased and discounted

Conventional Banking

In Bangladesh 3,319,661,045 3,585,216,294

Outside Bangladesh 10,864,431,380 14,048,336,097

14,184,092,425 17,633,552,391

Islamic Banking

In Bangladesh 297,970,077 337,062,325

Outside Bangladesh 16,880,817 24,397,284

314,850,894 361,459,608

14,498,943,318 17,995,011,999

11.14 Maturity grouping of bills discounted and purchased

Within one month 12,040,043,318 6,096,700,000

More than one month but less than three months 2,456,100,000 8,849,911,999

More than three months but less than six months 2,800,000 3,048,400,000

More than six months --

14,498,943,318 17,995,011,999

11.15 Information about restructured loan as per Bangladesh Bank's BRPD Circular no. 4 dated 29 January 2015.

Loans amounting to Tk. 3,103.80 million (outstanding Tk. 2,522.30 million as on 31 December 2020) of Keya Group, Gulshan Branch, 

Dhaka have been restructured by extension of validity of Term Loan for 12-years & conversion of demand loan into 06-years Term Loan 

and reported as SMA as per Bangladesh Bank's guidelines. Accordingly, 2% provision has been made.
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Particulars Note
Amount in Taka

2020 2019

12

Cost:

Southeast Bank Limited 13 12,120,614,334 11,448,421,132

Southeast Bank Capital Services Limited 817,942,354 816,073,827

Southeast Exchange Company (South Africa) Pty Ltd 16,416,583 15,316,260

12,954,973,271 12,279,811,219

Less: Accumulated depreciation

Southeast Bank Limited 13 2,937,941,407 2,693,465,734

Southeast Bank Capital Services Limited 293,688,455 246,002,900

Southeast Exchange Company (South Africa) Pty Ltd 8,372,192 6,684,570

3,240,002,054 2,946,153,204

Written down value at the end of the year 9,714,971,217 9,333,658,015

13

Cost:

Land 5,797,426,007 5,797,426,007

Buildings 1,989,886,963 1,989,886,963

1,381,364,685 1,421,217,386

15,674,809 15,557,289

Computer 533,119,148 309,141,176

Electrical appliances 1,561,868,349 1,438,573,817

ATM Booth 665,452,937 324,137,305

Motor vehicles 175,821,436 152,481,189

12,120,614,334 11,448,421,132

Less: Accumulated depreciation

Buildings 641,572,118 585,392,846

675,761,738 712,788,895

11,854,565 10,989,673

Computer 216,695,538 161,083,126

Electrical appliances 1,045,404,854 955,186,841

ATM Booth 225,499,889 166,056,528

Motor vehicles 121,152,704 101,967,825

2,937,941,407 2,693,465,734

Written down value at the end of the year 9,182,672,927 8,754,955,398

Details are shown in 

14 Consolidated other assets

Southeast Bank Limited 15 13,171,388,605 9,485,465,483

Southeast Bank Capital Services Limited 316,564,237 126,836,034

Southeast Exchange Company (South Africa) Pty Ltd 1,947,689 4,267,272
13,489,900,531 9,616,568,789

Less:

Investment in subsidiary:

In Bangladesh 5,489,930,000 5,489,930,000

Outside Bangladesh 44,211,055 42,207,967

5,534,141,055 5,532,137,967

Intercompany balance 2,105,223 -

7,953,654,253 4,084,430,822
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Particulars Note
Amount in Taka

2020 2019

15 Other assets 13,171,388,605 9,485,465,483        

15.1

i) Investment in shares of subsidiary companies:
   - In Bangladesh 15.3 5,489,930,000 5,489,930,000
   - Outside Bangladesh 15.4 44,211,055 42,207,967

ii) Stationery, stamps, printing materials, etc. 38,500,279 50,176,317
iii) Advance rent and advertisement 58,643,430 294,913,787
iv) Interest accrued on investment but not collected, 

commission and brokerage receivable on shares 
and debentures, and other income receivables 4,565,919,217 1,563,924,636

v) Security deposits 5,004,494 4,923,619
vi) Preliminary, formation and organisational expenses,

renovation, development and prepaid expenses 814,629,677 953,725,582
vii) Suspense account 28,346,846 40,140,155
viii) Right to use (ROU) assets 979,340,395 207,595,018
ix) Others 1,146,863,212 837,928,403

13,171,388,605 9,485,465,483

15.2 Non-income generating other assets

i) Stationery, stamps, printing materials, etc. 38,500,279 50,176,317
ii) Advance rent and advertisement 58,643,430 294,913,787
iii) Suspense account 28,346,846 40,140,155
iv) Preliminary, formation and organisational expenses,

renovation, development and prepaid expenses 814,629,677 953,725,582
940,120,232 1,338,955,841

15.3 Investment in shares of subsidiary company 
in Bangladesh

Cost 5,489,930,000 5,489,930,000
Provision for impairment loss -                          -                         

5,489,930,000 5,489,930,000
15.4 Investment in shares of subsidiary companies 

outside Bangladesh

Cost 44,211,055 82,704,302
Provision for impairment loss -                          (40,496,336)

44,211,055 42,207,967

15.5 Particulars of required provision for other assets 

  Base for 
provision 

Rate (%) Taka

2020
Legal expenses for defaulting borrowings 10,186,097 50% 5,093,048

Legal expenses for defaulting borrowings 126,815,106 100% 126,815,106

Others 143,957,797 100% 143,957,797

Protested bills 11,124,435 100% 11,124,435

Required provision on other assets 286,990,387
Total provision maintained 288,796,914
Excess provision 1,806,527

Base for
provision

Rate (%) Taka

2019
Legal expenses for defaulting borrowings 21,555,745 50% 10,777,872

Legal expenses for defaulting borrowings 97,954,681 100% 97,954,681

Others 105,957,797 100% 105,957,797

Protested bills 5,987,140 100% 5,987,140

Required provision on other assets 220,677,490
Total provision maintained 228,796,914
Excess provision 8,119,424
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2020 2019

16
institutions and agents 

Subordinated bond:
Southeast Bank Limited 17 13,600,000,000 10,200,000,000

13,600,000,000 10,200,000,000
Other borrowings:
Southeast Bank Limited 17 18,897,676,319 13,701,399,879
Southeast Bank Capital Services Limited - - 

18,897,676,319 13,701,399,879
Less: Inter company balance eliminated - - 

18,897,676,319 13,701,399,879
32,497,676,319 23,901,399,879

17
and agents

Subordinated Bond 17.2.ii 13,600,000,000 10,200,000,000
Other borrowings                                                                                                                                                                                            17.2.i+17.3 18,897,676,319 13,701,399,879

32,497,676,319 23,901,399,879

17.1
and agents

In Bangladesh 17.2 21,465,144,279 11,820,129,879
Outside Bangladesh 17.3 11,032,532,040 12,081,270,000

32,497,676,319 23,901,399,879

17.2 In Bangladesh

i. Secured:
18,456 11,344,643

185,569,746 60,380,122
147,776,659 119,993,843

555,556 3,888,884
Scheme from Bangladesh Bank 2,000,000 - 

22,387 22,387
BD Pre-Finance Under Sreup 382,735,500 - 
Borrowing from Pubali Bank Limited - 424,500,000
Bangladesh Bank Islamic Bond - 1,000,000,000

COVID-19 Salary RMG 2,715,047,000 - 
3,362,801,095 - 

664,192,765 - 
401,685,115 - 

2,740,000 - 
7,865,144,279 1,620,129,879

ii. Unsecured:
Subordinated Bond
Rupali Bank Limited 2,100,000,000 1,350,000,000
Sonali Bank Limited 1,500,000,000 1,850,000,000
Agrani Bank Limited 3,120,000,000 2,060,000,000
Pubali Bank Limited 810,000,000 1,070,000,000
Mercantile Bank Limited 800,000,000 100,000,000
Saudi-Bangladesh Industrial and Agricultural Investment Company Ltd. 40,000,000 80,000,000
Sadharan Bima Corporation 160,000,000 180,000,000
Uttara Bank Limited 120,000,000 160,000,000
Dhaka Bank Limited 450,000,000 600,000,000
National Life Insurance Limited 1,450,000,000 1,100,000,000
Janata Bank Limited 1,300,000,000 1,400,000,000
Delta Life Insurance Co. Limited 250,000,000 250,000,000
Eastern Bank Limited 1,000,000,000 - 
Square Pharmaceuticals Limited 500,000,000 - 

13,600,000,000 10,200,000,000
Total (iii=i+ii) 21,465,144,279 11,820,129,879
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17.3 Outside Bangladesh
Secured

Borrowing from Commercial Bank of Qatar (CBQ) 254,401,200 1,485,750,000
Borrowing from RAK BANK, UAE 958,244,520 849,000,000
Borrowing FM SCB SINGAPORE 2,968,014,000 2,249,850,000
Borrowing FM EIB, UAE 1,475,526,960 721,650,000
Borrowing from ADCB,UAE 508,802,400 679,200,000
Borrowing from DBS Bank Ltd - 1,146,150,000
Borrowing from Noor UAE - 577,320,000
Borrowing from FGB, UAE 466,402,200 551,850,000
Borrowing FM NMB Bank, Nepal - 849,000,000
Borrowing from caixa Bank, s.a., spain 678,403,200 - 
Borrowing from FM Habib Bank AG 373,121,760 - 
Borrowing from HDFC BANK, Hong Kong 424,002,000 1,273,500,000

8,106,918,240 10,383,270,000
Unsecured - 

Borrowing from Global Climate Partnership Fund S.A. 1,696,008,000 1,698,000,000
Borrowing from ADB 1,229,605,800 - 

2,925,613,800 1,698,000,000

11,032,532,040 12,081,270,000

17.4 Maturity grouping of borrowings

Repayable on demand --
-

 
Repayable within one month 424,800,000
Over one month but within six months 5,650,967,418 9,259,600,000
Over six months but within one year 24,846,708,901 2,795,600,000
Over one year 2,000,000,000 11,421,399,879

32,497,676,319 23,901,399,879

18 Consolidated deposits and other accounts

Current/Al-wadeeah current accounts and other accounts 

Southeast Bank Limited 66,764,534,952 48,807,799,671
Southeast Bank Capital Services Limited 110,261,276 75,754,716

66,874,796,228 48,883,554,387
Less: Inter company balance eliminated 24,214,410 622,941,348

66,850,581,819 48,260,613,039
Bills payable

Southeast Bank Limited 3,940,333,929 4,095,294,208
Southeast Bank Capital Services Limited - - 

3,940,333,929 4,095,294,208
Savings bank/Mudaraba savings bank deposits

Southeast Bank Limited 38,060,936,493 30,416,845,985
Southeast Bank Capital Services Limited - - 

38,060,936,493 30,416,845,985

Southeast Bank Limited 251,134,079,440 246,477,520,709
Southeast Bank Capital Services Limited - - 

251,134,079,440 246,477,520,709
Less: Inter company balance eliminated 450,000,000 - 

250,684,079,440 246,477,520,709

359,535,931,681 329,250,273,941

19 Deposits and other accounts

Current/Al-wadeeah current accounts and other accounts
Current/Al-wadeeah current deposits 14,631,129,902 12,879,444,883
Foreign currency deposits 2,658,297,921 2,222,988,779
Sundry deposits 19.1 49,475,107,129 33,705,366,009

66,764,534,952 48,807,799,671
Bills payable

Payment order issued 3,936,386,516 4,091,346,795
Demand draft 3,947,413 3,947,413

3,940,333,929 4,095,294,208

Savings bank/Mudaraba savings bank deposits 38,060,936,493 30,416,845,985

185,307,272,285 187,900,462,477
Special notice/Mudaraba special notice deposits 42,280,757,873 34,377,295,823
Scheme deposits 20,162,300,947 19,254,588,903
Interest payable on FDR/Scheme 3,383,748,334 4,945,173,506

251,134,079,440 246,477,520,709
359,899,884,814 329,797,460,573
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Amount in Taka

2020 2019

19.1 Sundry deposits

Margin under letter of credit 3,771,935,431 2,690,660,855
Margin against IBP 58,638,498 817,604
Margin against FBP 104,093,699 78,719,028
Margin under letter of guarantee 1,460,567,929 1,423,074,985
Margin against time loan to issue pay order 65,571,214 94,034,584
Deposit held against FDBP/IDBP, export bills etc. 73,234,063 13,864,686
FC held against EDF L/C and LTFF/GTF 30,111,738,188 20,010,347,997
Accounts payable 1,017,058 569,107
Telegraphic transfer 913,716 983,716
Margin on acceptance 12,610,041,349 8,713,253,792
Export proceeds awaiting disposal 654,314,769 361,340,932
Remittance awaiting disposal 7,341,384 6,978,203
Others 555,699,831 310,720,520

49,475,107,129 33,705,366,009

19.2 Deposits from banks and others

Inter-bank deposits 19.3 9,683,266,276 6,169,084,156
Other deposits 350,216,618,538 323,628,376,417

359,899,884,814 329,797,460,573

19.3 Inter-bank deposits

AB Bank Limited 54,030 54,143
Agrani Bank Limited - 500,000,000
Al-Arafa Islami Bank Limited 1,625,506,362 749,040,064
Bank Asia Limited 2,000,000,345 - 
Citibank N.A. 39,861,604 455,863,053
Dutch Bangla Bank Limited 2,500,000,000 100,000,000
EXIM Bank Limited 483,513 5,191,092
First Security Islami Bank Limited 165,717 164,791
IFIC Bank Limited 273,191 268,662
Islami Bank Bangladesh Limited 8,769,024 8,607,582
Meghna Bank Limited 860 3,501,780
Mercantile Bank Limited 4,241,535 5,342,095
Mutual Trust Bank Limited 646,057 713,862

NCC Bank Limited - 200,000,000
NRB Commercial Bank Limited 31,807,087 24,108,748
Prime Bank Limited - 1,000,000,000
Pubali Bank Limited 750,000,000 - 
State Bank of India 300,000,000 - 
Sonali Bank Limited - 3,000,000,000
Shahjalal Islami Bank Limited 7,465,982 105,431,394
Standard Chartered Bank 200,000,000 - 
Social Islami Bank Limited(SIBL) 3,344,508 335,533
The City Bank Limited 10,646,463 10,461,357
United Commercial Bank Limited 1,000,000,000 - 
Uttara Bank Limited 1,200,000,000 - 

9,683,266,276 6,169,084,156

19.4 Sector-wise deposits

Government 10,099,476,538 10,307,116,456
Deposit money banks 9,683,266,276 6,169,084,156
Other public 21,535,957,358 25,926,853,338
Foreign currency 2,245,720,330 21,882,296,084
Private 316,335,464,312 265,512,110,538

359,899,884,814 329,797,460,573
19.5 Unclaimed Deposits and valuables

Payment Order 2,079,973 2,682,163
2,079,973 2,682,163
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19.6 Analysis of residual maturity grouping of deposits
Inter-bank deposits:

Payable on demand 1,650,400,000 865,500,000
Within one month 6,700,000,000 300,000,000
More than one month but less than six months 1,332,866,276 5,003,584,156
More than six months but less than one year - - 
More than one year but less than ve years - - 
More than ve years but less than ten years - - 

9,683,266,276 6,169,084,156
Other Deposits:

Payable on demand 10,800,000,000 7,800,600,000
Within one month 46,054,200,000 44,203,400,000
More than one month but less than six months 81,140,853,724 79,027,325,844
More than six months but less than one year 85,516,880,000 70,710,990,000
More than one year but less than ve years 107,702,800,000 102,836,600,000
More than ve years but less than ten years 19,001,884,814 19,049,460,573

350,216,618,538 323,628,376,417
359,899,884,814 329,797,460,573

20 Consolidated other liabilities

Southeast Bank Limited 21 43,104,754,236 38,312,892,783
Southeast Bank Capital Services Limited 405,889,783 306,169,676
Southeast Financial Services (UK) Ltd - 323,309
Southeast Exchange Company (South Africa) Pty Ltd 37,294,566 32,120,880

43,547,938,585 38,651,506,648
Less: Inter company balance eliminated 2,105,223 -

43,545,833,362 38,651,506,648

21 Other liabilities

Provision for loans and advances/investments 21.1 23,862,771,455 18,773,255,000
Interest suspense account 21.2 10,741,106,029 9,294,042,050
Provision for taxation 21.3 2,891,305,423 4,814,160,997
Obligation under nance lease 21.4 - 868,030
Lease Liabilities (Right of Use Assets) 21.4.1 652,822,368 132,956,073
Accrued expenses 14,091,799 20,738,308
Interest payable on borrowings 403,740,977 501,780,157
Accounts payable-Bangladesh Bank 28,186,890 66,346,869
Accounts payable-others 1,214,240,145 1,209,485,335
Provision for diminution in the market value of share 21.7.1 126,200,000 684,270,141
Other provisions 21.5.1 1,263,023,180 1,062,908,714
Unearned income 228,560,194 334,006,098
Branch adjustment 21.6 513,771,775 393,145,849
Withholding tax 1,163,934,002 1,023,929,163
Provision for audit fees 1,000,000 1,000,000

43,104,754,236 38,312,892,783

21.1 Provision for loans and advances/investments

A. General 
Balance as at 1 January 529,628,000 3,321,400,000
Add: Provision made during the year
           On standard loans and advances/investments etc. 3,021,347,663 354,251,868
           On Special Mention Account (SMA) 15,115,937 (26,023,868)

3,036,463,600 328,228,000
Add: 1% General provision due to COVID-19 1,161,700,000 - 
Add: Transfer from retained earnings 2,487,616,855 - 
Less: Transfer to speci c provision (3,579,410,600) (3,120,000,000)
Less: Provision no longer required - - 
Balance as at 31 December 3,635,997,855 529,628,000

B. Speci
Balance as at 1 January 18,243,627,000 9,961,900,000

Less: Fully provided debt write off during the year (2,504,385,038) (10,310,926)
Add: Recoveries of amounts previously written off 472,250,468 917,012,200
Add: Speci c provision for the year 827,466,570 4,255,025,727
Add: Transfer from general provision 3,579,410,600 3,120,000,000
Add: Transfer from Interest Suspense 296,806,000 - 
Less: Recoveries and provisions no longer required - - 
Less: Interest waiver during the year (688,402,000) - 

Net charge to Pro t & Loss A/C 1,983,146,600 8,281,727,000
Balance as at 31 December 20,226,773,600 18,243,627,000

C. Total provision on loans and advances/investments (A+B) 23,862,771,455 18,773,255,000
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Deferred tax is calculated using the tax rates expected to apply in the periods in which the assets will be realised or the liabilities settled, 

based on tax rates and laws enacted,  by the balance sheet date. Following are the descriptions for each individual item of the deferred 

tax that are recognised by the Bank as a temporary difference with expected time of realisation.

Revaluation reserve of land

gain which is the same amount of revaluation gain whether recovered through use or sale.  Hence a taxable temporary difference arises 

against which the Bank recognises deferred tax liabilities. However, the outstanding amount of deferred tax will be automatically 

released with the disposal of the assets.

21.2 Interest suspense account

Balance as at 1 January 9,294,042,050 5,995,927,271
Add: Amount transferred to "interest suspense" account during the year 4,103,475,368 6,583,128,290

13,397,517,418 12,579,055,561
Less: Amount of interest suspense recovered during the year 2,069,153,651 3,086,779,100

Amount written off during the year 455,969,508 3,148,175
Interest waiver during the year 131,288,230 195,086,236

2,656,411,389 3,285,013,511
Balance as at 31 December 10,741,106,029 9,294,042,050

21.3

Provision for current tax 21.3.1 2,579,162,503 4,411,136,490
Deferred tax liabilities 21.3.2 312,142,920 403,024,507

2,891,305,423 4,814,160,997

21.3.1

Provision
Balance as at 1 January 13,985,654,808 14,079,760,869

Settlement/adjustments for previous years - (2,694,106,061)

Provision made for the current year 21.3.1.1 1,050,000,000 2,600,000,000

(A) Balance as at 31 December 15,035,654,808 13,985,654,808

Balance as at 1 January 9,574,518,318 10,194,273,962
Paid during the year 2,881,973,987 2,074,350,417
Settlement/adjustments for previous years - (2,694,106,061)
(B) Balance as at 31 December 12,456,492,305 9,574,518,318

(A-B) Net balance as at 31 December 2,579,162,503 4,411,136,490

21.3.1.1 Provision made for the current year

Provision made during the year 1,050,000,000 2,600,000,000
Less: Excess provision adjustment for prior years - -                         

1,050,000,000 2,600,000,000        

21.3.2

Deferred tax liabilities are attributable to the following:

Revaluation reserve of land 615,761,213 615,761,213
Revaluation reserve of buildings 125,911,051 125,911,051
Fixed assets- except land and revaluation reserve
of buildings 21.3.3.1 (437,382,640) (352,382,640)
Revaluation reserve of HTM securities 21.3.3.2 10,372,677 10,840,095
Revaluation reserve of HFT securities 21.3.3.3 4,647,619 4,361,789
Deferred tax on right of use assets 21.3.3.4 (7,167,000) (1,467,000)

312,142,920 403,024,507

REACHING NEW HEIGHTS 331



Particulars Note
Amount in Taka

2020 2019

Revaluation reserve of buildings

Buildings are depreciable assets. Its revalued carrying amount will be recovered through use and this will generate taxable income which 
exceeds the depreciation that will be allowable for tax purposes in future periods. As a result taxable temporary difference will arise.

Tax Ordinance 1984. Hence a temporary difference arises due to the different depreciation rates and methodology against which the 
Bank recognizes deferred tax. This is an ongoing item as there is a difference between the tax depreciation rate and the accounting 
depreciation rate. However, the outstanding amount of deferred tax will be automatically released with the expiry of the economic useful 
life of the assets.

Revaluation reserves of HTM and HFT securities

Deferred tax relating to unrealised interest on the revaluation of Held to Maturity (HTM) and Held for Trading (HFT) securities is 

securities. The deferred tax recognised against this will be fully reversed at the maturity of all related securities.

Right of use assets (IFRS-16)

apart from low value and short term leases are brought on balance. SEBL recognize a ROU asset which is depreciated in a straight line 
and a lease liability which is discounted under the effective interest method. Resulting in a depreciation and interest expense rather than 
a rent expense (unde IAS 17). This will typically result in higher lease expenses during the early years of the lease and causes the value of 
the ROU asset and lease obligation to diverge over the duration of the lease contract. The depreciation and interest expenses are not 

has been recognized. However, the outstanding amount of deferred tax will be atomically released with the expiry of the lease term.   

21.3.3 Movement of deferred ta  liabilities

Balance as at 1 January 403,024,507 1,144,993,875
Provision made for deferred tax liabilities

Charged to pro t and loss account (90,700,000) (744,386,000)
Charged to revaluation reserve 4,031,290 3,177,347

(86,668,710) (741,208,653)
316,355,797 403,785,222

Adjustment made during the year for revaluation reserve (4,212,877) (760,715)
Balance as at 31 December 312,142,920 403,024,507

21.3.3.1 Deferred ta  on ed assets- e cept land and revaluation reserve of buildings 

Balance as at 1 January (352,382,640) 390,536,360
Charge to pro t and loss account (85,000,000) (742,919,000)
Balance as at 31 December (437,382,640) (352,382,640)

21.3.3.2 Deferred ta  on revaluation reserve of HTM securities

Balance as at 1 January 10,840,095 7,662,748
Add: Charge to revaluation reserves 3,385,534 3,177,347
Less: Adjustment during the year (3,852,951) -
Balance as at 31 December 10,372,677 10,840,095

21.3.3.3 Deferred ta  on revaluation reserve of HFT securities

Balance as at 1 January 4,361,789 5,122,503
Add: Charge to revaluation reserves 645,756 - 
Less: Adjustment during the year (359,925) (760,714)
Balance as at 31 December 4,647,619 4,361,789

21.3.3.4 Deferred ta  on right of use assets*

Balance as at 1 January (1,467,000) -
Addition during the year (5,700,000) (1,467,000)
Adjustment during the year - -
Balance as at 31 December (7,167,000) (1,467,000)

21.4 Obligation under lease labilities
Balance as at 1 January 868,030                1,291,340
Addition during the year
Interest charge during the year

868,030                1,291,340
Adjustment during the year (868,030)                  (423,310)

- -
- -

Balance as at 31 December                   868,030-
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21.4.1 Lease Liabilities Right of use (ROU) Assets

Balance as at 1 January 132,956,073 -
Addition during the year 665,527,166 169,602,073
Interest charge during the year 37,457,425 10,134,250

835,940,664             179,736,323
Adjustment during the year 183,118,296 46,780,250
Balance as at 31 December 652,822,368 132,956,073

21.5

Provision for other assets 21.5.1 (A) 60,000,000 65,000,000

Provision for good borrowers 21.5.1 (B) - - 

Provision for off-balance sheet exposures 21.5.1 (C) 119,155,200 (389,100,000)

Start-up fund 21.5.1 (D) 20,959,266 - 

200,114,466 (324,100,000)

21.5.1 Other Provisions

A) Provision for other assets

Balance as at 1 January             228,796,914 233,735,000

Addition during the year               60,000,000                65,000,000

            288,796,914 298,735,000 

Adjustment during the year (69,938,086)-

Balance as at 31 December             288,796,914 228,796,914 

B) Provision for good borrowers
Balance as at 1 January               22,011,800 22,011,800 

Addition during the year                               -   -   

              22,011,800 22,011,800 

Adjustment during the year -   -   

Balance as at 31 December               22,011,800 22,011,800 

Balance as at 1 January 812,100,000 1,201,200,000

Provision made during the year 119,155,200 - 

931,255,200 1,201,200,000
Adjustments made during the year - (389,100,000)

Balance as at 31 December 931,255,200 812,100,000

D) Start-up fund

Balance as on 1 January -   -   

              20,959,266 -   

Balance as at 31 December 20,959,266 - 

Total other provisions (A+B+C+D)          1,263,023,180 1,062,908,714 

21.6 Branch adjustment (credit)

General accounts debit 602,839,225 1,345,879,151

General accounts credit 1,116,611,000 1,739,025,000

513,771,775 393,145,849

Debit Credit Debit Credit

Upto 3 months 646                      1,297                     602,839,225            1,116,611,000         

Over 3 months but within 6 months -                       -                         -                           -                           

Over 6 months but within 1 year -                       -                         -                           -                           

Over 1 year but within 5 years -                       -                         -                           -                           

646                      1,297                     602,839,225            1,116,611,000         

No. of unrespondent entries Unrespondent entries (Taka)

balance sheet date. However, the un-respondent entries of 31 Dec 2020 are given below:
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21.7 Consolidated provision for diminution in value of investments

Southeast Bank Limited 21.7.1 (117,063,786) 319,600,000
Southeast Bank Capital Services Limited - - 
Balance as at 31 December (117,063,786) 319,600,000

21.7.1 Provision for diminution in value of investments

Balance as at 1 January 684,270,141 799,726,500
Adjustments made for loss of sales of shares during the year (441,006,355) (435,056,359)
Provision made during the year (Charge to the pro and loss) (117,063,786) 319,600,000
Balance as at 31 December 126,200,000 684,270,141

22 Share Capital

22.1 Authorised

Ordinary shares of Tk 10 each 15,000,000,000 15,000,000,000

22.2 Issued, subscribed and paid up

ordinary shares of Tk 10 each issued for cash 3,781,649,700 3,781,649,700

ordinary shares of Tk 10 each issued as bonus shares 8,107,755,510 7,817,770,020
11,889,405,210 11,599,419,720

22.2.1 Reconciliation of number of shares

Balance as at 1 January 1,159,941,972 1,054,492,702
Issue of bonus shares 28,998,549 105,449,270 
Balance as at 31 December 1,188,940,521         1,159,941,972         

22.3 Dividends

The following dividends were declared and paid by the Bank for the year ended 31 December.

1,159,941,972

1,188,940,521

1,054,492,700

1,159,941,972

22.3.1 Summary of unclaimed dividends

Unclaimed dividned as on 31 December 2020 was an amount of BDT 38,766,539.21 against 72,302 nos. of shareholders. 

1.00 Taka Cash dividend per ordinary share for 2020 and 1.00 Taka (Cash 0.75 and Stock 0.25 dividend) per ordinary share for 2019.  

1,500,000,000

378,164,970 

810,775,551 
1,188,940,521         

1.00 Taka (Cash 0.75 and stock 0.25 dividend) per ordinary share for 2019 and 1.00 Taka per (Stock dividend) ordinary share for 2018 

After the end of the reporting period, the following dividends were proposed by the directors. The dividends have not been provided
for and no tax consequences.  
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22.4 Share capital at a glance from inception

100,000,000

100,000,000

125,000,000

150,000,000

300,000,000

330,000,000

363,000,000

399,300,000

564,300,000

677,160,000

880,308,000

1,056,369,600

2,112,739,200

2,281,758,300

2,852,197,800

3,422,637,300

4,620,560,300

6,930,840,400

8,317,008,400

8,317,008,400

8,732,858,820

8,732,858,820

9,169,501,760

9,169,501,760

9,169,501,760

9,169,501,760

10,544,927,020

11,599,419,720

11,889,405,210

22.5 Classi ation of shareholders by holding

Number of holders

2020 2019 2020 2019

 Less than 500 shares 8,578 8,404 0.12 0.13

 501 to 5,000 shares 15,589 16,342 2.52 2.65

 5,001 to 10,000 shares 3,182 3,322 1.88 1.97

 10,001 to 20,000 shares 2,043 2,024 2.43 2.45

 20,001 to 30,000 shares 727 674 1.50 1.42

 30,001 to 40,000 shares 419 379 1.23 1.12

 40,001 to 50,000 shares 236 181 0.90 0.70

 50,001 to 1,00,000 shares 492 472 2.92 2.83

 1,00,001 to 10,00,000 shares 482 472 10.90 11.02

 Over 10,00,000 shares 133 146 75.60 75.72

31,881 32,416 100.00 100.00

Year Particulars Number of shares 
Capital amount 

(Taka) Cumulative (Taka) 

1998 20% Stock Dividend                   250,000                 25,000,000 

1995 Opening / Sponsors Capital                1,000,000               100,000,000 

1996 None                             -                                  -   

1997 25% Stock Dividend                   250,000                 25,000,000 

2001 10% Stock Dividend                   330,000                 33,000,000 

2002 10% Stock Dividend                   363,000                 36,300,000 

1999 Initial Public Offer (IPO)                1,500,000               150,000,000 

2000 10% Stock Dividend                   300,000                 30,000,000 

2004 30% Stock Dividend                2,031,480               203,148,000 

2005 20% Stock Dividend                1,760,616               176,061,600 

2003
Right Issue @ 1:2                1,650,000               165,000,000 

20% Stock Dividend                1,128,600               112,860,000 

2007 25% Stock Dividend                5,704,395               570,439,500 

2008 20% Stock Dividend                5,704,395               570,439,500 

2006
Right Issue @1:1              10,563,696           1,056,369,600 

8% Stock Dividend                1,690,191               169,019,100 

          1,386,168,000 

2011
Stock split (1:10)            748,530,756                                -   

5% Stock Dividend              41,585,042               415,850,420 

2009 35% Stock Dividend              11,979,230           1,197,923,000 

2010
Right Issue @1:2              23,102,801           2,310,280,100 

20% Stock Dividend              13,861,680 

2014 None                             -                                  -   

2015 None                             -                                  -   

2012 None                             -                                  -   

2013 5% Stock Dividend              43,664,294               436,642,940 

          1,054,492,700 

% of total holding

2016 None                             -                                  -   

2017 15% Stock Dividend            137,542,526           1,375,425,260 

2.5% Stock Dividend              28,998,549               289,985,490 2019

2018 10% Stock Dividend            105,449,270 
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22.6 Initial public offer (IPO)

22.7 Name of the Directors and their shareholdings in the year 2020

Sl. 
No.

 As at 1 January 
2020 

 As at 31 December 
2020 

1 26,057,759 26,709,202

2 24,139,668 24,743,159

3 25,688,430 26,330,640

4 32,245,779 33,051,923

5 23,199,498 23,779,485

6 23,837,842 24,433,788

7 23,551,319 31,764,465

8

-
24,458,937

9 - 27,950,000

10 - - 

11 - - 

12 - - 

13 -

178,720,295 243,221,599

Out of the total issued, subscribed and fully paid up capital of the bank 1,500,000 (after stock split: 15,000,000) ordinary shares of
Tk 100 (after stock split: Tk. 10) each amounting to Tk 150,000,000 was raised through public offering on shares in 1999.

Name of the directors Status

Mr. Alamgir Kabir, FCA Chairman

Mrs. Duluma Ahmed Vice Chairperson

Managing Director

Mr. Syed Sajedul Karim Independent Director

 Dr. Quazi Mesbahuddin Ahmed  Independent Director

 Mr. Mohammad Delwar Husain  Independent Director

Mr. M. A. Kashem Director

Mr. Azim Uddin Ahmed Director

Mrs. Jusna Ara Kashem Director

Mrs. Rehana Rahman Director

Mr. Md. Akikur Rahman Director

 Mr. Raiyan Kabir                    
(Appointed on October 28, 2020) 

Director

 Bay Leasing & Investment Limited 
(Represented by Mr. M. Maniruz 
Zaman Khan, Appointed on October 
28, 2020) 

Director

Mr. M. Kamal Hossain
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22.8 Capital to Risk weighted Assets Ratio (CRAR) of the Bank

Common equity Tier-1 capital (Going Concern Capital)
Paid up capital 22.2 11,889,405,210 11,599,419,720
Share premium - -
Statutory reserve 23 11,580,478,928 10,969,433,607
Other reserve 25 247,650,000 247,650,000
Retained earnings 28 1,190,000,000 3,354,063,270

24,907,534,138 26,170,566,597
Add: Additional Tier 1 capital - -
Less: Regulatory adjustments 238,082,042 118,436,936

A) Total common equity Tier 1 capital 24,669,452,096 26,052,129,662

Tier 2 Capital (Gone -Concern Capital)
Subordinated bond 11,000,000,000 8,600,000,000

3,635,997,855 529,628,000
General provision on off-balance sheet items 931,255,200 812,100,000
Asset revaluation reserve -  2,101,404,750
Revaluation reserve of Government securities -  22,730,860

15,567,253,055 12,065,863,610
Less: Regulatory adjustments -  2,124,135,610
Total Tier 2 capital 15,567,253,055 9,941,728,000

B) Total capital 40,236,705,151 35,993,857,662

C) Risk Weighted Assets (RWA)

Credit Risk
On-balance sheet 215,051,106,873 245,711,589,681
Off-balance sheet 24,525,321,227 30,245,839,839

239,576,428,100 275,957,429,520
Market risk 13,061,256,153 9,837,819,829
Operational risk 24,412,432,152 24,176,795,376
Total RWA 277,050,116,404 309,972,044,725

D) Required common equity Tier 1 Capital 12,467,255,238 13,948,742,013

Required Tier 1 Capital 6% (2019: 6%) of RWA) 16,623,006,984 18,598,322,683

E) Required total capital 12.50% (2019: 12.50%) of RWA 34,631,264,551 38,746,505,591

F) Surplus common equity Tier 1 Capital(A-D) 12,202,196,858 12,103,387,649

G) Surplus total capital (B-E) 5,605,440,600 (2,752,647,928)

Capital to risk-weighted assets ratio:
On common equity Tier 1 capital against standard of 

minimum 4.5% 8.90% 8.40%
On Tier 1 capital - against standard of minimum 6% 8.90% 8.40%
On total capital - against standard of minimum 12.50% (2019:12.50%) 14.52% 11.61%

22.9 Leverage Ratio of the Bank

A) Tier 1 capital considering all regulatory adjustments 24,669,452,096 26,052,129,662

B) On-balance sheet exposure 444,855,602,047 404,186,964,050
C) Off-balance sheet exposure 64,424,584,915 60,523,824,177
D) Deduction from on and off balance sheet exposure

/Regulatory adjustment 238,082,042 118,436,936
E) Total exposure (B+C-D) 509,042,104,920 464,592,351,291

Leverage ratio (A/E) 4.85% 5.61%
Liquidity coverage ratio 116.37% 154.00%
Net stable funding ratio 106.51% 113.88%

The calculation of CRAR has been done as per BRPD Circular no. 07 dated 31 March 2014 and the Basel-III guideline December 2014
vide BRPD Circular no. 18 dated 21 December 2014.
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22.10 Capital to Risk weighted Assets Ratio (CRAR) of the Group 

Common Equity Tier 1 Capital

Paid up capital 22.2 11,889,405,210 11,599,419,720

Share premium - -

Statutory reserve 23 11,580,478,928 10,969,433,607

Other reserve 25 247,650,000 247,650,000

Non- controlling interest 29 10,201,511 10,072,617

Retained earnings 27 1,315,624,550 3,443,466,969

25,043,360,199 26,270,042,913

Add: Additional Tier 1 capital - -

Less: Regulatory adjustments 238,082,042 118,436,936

A) Total common equity Tier 1 capital 24,805,278,157 26,151,605,977

Tier 2 capital (Gone- Concern Capital)

Subordinated bond 11,000,000,000 8,600,000,000

3,635,997,855 529,628,000

General provision on off-balance sheet items 931,255,200 812,100,000

Asset revaluation reserve -  2,101,404,750

Revaluation reserve of  Government securities -  22,730,860

15,567,253,055 12,065,863,610

Less: Regulatory adjustments -  2,124,135,610

Total Tier 2 capital 15,567,253,055 9,941,728,000

B) Total capital 40,372,531,212 36,093,333,978

C) Risk weighted assets (RWA)

Credit risk

On-balance sheet 211,372,679,188 241,706,678,361

Off-balance sheet 24,525,321,227 30,245,839,839

235,898,000,415 271,952,518,200

Market risk 20,764,051,363 16,849,259,139

Operational risk 24,730,786,751 24,515,099,512

Total RWA 281,392,838,529 313,316,876,851

D) Required common equity Tier 1 capital 12,662,677,734 14,099,259,458

Required  Tier 1 capital 6% (2019: 6%) of RWA 16,883,570,312 18,799,012,611

E) Required total capital 12.50% (2019: 12.50%) of RWA 35,174,104,816 39,164,609,606

F) Surplus common equity Tier 1 capital (A-D) 12,142,600,423 12,052,346,519

G) Surplus total capital (B-E) 5,198,426,396 (3,071,275,629)

Capital to risk- weighted assets ratio:

On common equity Tier 1 capital - against standard of minimum 4.5% 8.82% 8.35%

On Tier 1 capital - against standard of minimum 6% 8.82% 8.35%

On total capital - against standard of minimum 12.50% (2019:12.50%) 14.35% 11.52%

REACHING NEW HEIGHTS338



Particulars Note
Amount in Taka

2020 2019

22.11 Leverage ratio of the Group

A) Tier 1 capital considering all regulatory adjustments 24,805,278,157 26,151,605,977

B) On-balance sheet exposure 445,066,634,997 404,069,087,993

C) Off-balance sheet exposure 64,424,584,915 60,523,824,177

D) Deduction from on and off balance sheet exposure
/Regulatory adjustment 238,082,042 118,436,936

E) Total exposure (B+C-D) 509,253,137,870 464,474,475,234

Leverage ratio (A/E) 4.87% 5.63%

Liquidity coverage ratio 116.37% 154.00%

Net stable funding ratio 106.51% 113.88%

23 Statutory reserve
 

Balance as at 1 January 10,969,433,607 10,094,153,565

Addition during the year 611,045,321 875,280,042

Balance as at 31 December 11,580,478,928 10,969,433,607

24 Revaluation reserve

Revaluation reserve of land and buildings:
Balance as at 1 January 4,944,481,764 4,944,481,764

Addition during the year - - 

4,944,481,764 4,944,481,764

Deferred tax liabilities (741,672,265) (741,672,265)

Balance as at 31 December 4,202,809,499 4,202,809,499

Revaluation reserve on HTM securities:

Balance as at 1 January 27,591,740 19,118,815

Addition during the year 10,750,106 8,472,925

38,341,845 27,591,740
Adjustment during the year (6,245,560) - 

32,096,285 27,591,740

Deferred tax liabilities (14,693,046) (10,840,095)

Balance as at 31 December 17,403,239 16,751,645

Revaluation reserve on HFT securities:

Balance as at 1 January 34,593,291 151,658,839

Addition during the year 2,730,442,921 333,754,704

2,765,036,212 485,413,542

Adjustment during the year (2,306,479,668) (450,820,252)

458,556,544 34,593,291

Deferred tax liabilities (6,243,143) (5,883,217)

Balance as at 31 December 452,313,401 28,710,074

4,672,526,139 4,248,271,218

25 Other reserve

General reserve:

Balance as at 1 January 247,650,000 247,650,000

Addition during the year - - 

Balance as at 31 December 247,650,000 247,650,000
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26 Foreign currency translation reserve

Balance as at 1 January (8,779,606) (28,918,605)

(Adjustments)/addition during the year 6,860,503 20,138,999

Balance as at 31 December (1,919,103) (8,779,606)

27 Consolidated retained earnings

Southeast Bank Limited 28 1,190,000,000 3,354,063,270

Southeast Bank Capital Services Limited 71,694,142 1,423,733

Southeast Financial Services (UK) Ltd - (32,750,000)

Southeast Exchange Company (South Africa) Pty Ltd 53,930,408 80,233,629

Less: Elimination for impairment of investment in subsidiary - 40,496,336

1,315,624,550 3,443,466,969

28 Retained earnings

Balance as at 1 January 3,354,063,270 2,803,806,592

Currency translation differences (1,385,732) 8,844,087

Prior year adjustment - 100,399,123

Transfer to general provision (2,487,616,855) - 
865,060,683 2,913,049,802

Retained surplus for the year 1,484,881,286 1,645,506,168

2,349,941,969 4,558,555,970
Less:

Transfer to Southeast Bank Staff Welfare Trust - 150,000,000

Issue of bonus share 289,985,490 1,054,492,700

Cash dividend paid 869,956,479 - 
1,159,941,969 1,204,492,700

Retained earnings carried forward 1,190,000,000 3,354,063,270

29 Non-controlling interest

Paid up capital 5,500,000,000 5,500,000,000
Retained earnings 71,825,648 1,426,344
Total net assets 5,571,825,648 5,501,426,344

Non-controlling interest 0.183091% (2019:0.183091%) of net assets 10,201,511 10,072,617

30 Contingent liabilities

30.1 Acceptances and endorsements

Acceptance under Letters of Credit (LC) - other than back to back 35,151,633,948 31,298,942,846
Acceptance under Letters of Credit -back to back 15,936,168,741 17,108,738,407

51,087,802,689 48,407,681,253

30.2 Letters of guarantee

Local 16,794,284,847 16,393,957,537
Foreign 349,480,720 379,760,504

17,143,765,567 16,773,718,041

operations.

Non-controlling interest arises only for Southeast Bank Capital Services Limited, the another subsidiary is wholly owned by

Southeast Bank Limited.
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30.2.1 Balance for which the Bank is contingently liable 

in respect of guarantee issued favouring:

4,783,061 4,783,061

Government - -

62,959,115 46,929,219

Others 17,076,023,391 16,722,005,761

17,143,765,567 16,773,718,041

30.3 Irrevocable Letters of Credit (L/C)

Back to back L/C 13,067,856,366 11,002,117,710

Others 24,107,884,577 16,934,335,499

37,175,740,943 27,936,453,209

30.4 Bills for collection

Local 15,798,359,855 14,780,735,049

Foreign 15,599,934,838 13,796,209,151

31,398,294,693 28,576,944,200

30.5 Other contingent liabilities

Value of Bangladesh Sanchaypatra & others 1,931,650,000 1,454,224,000

31 Income statement

Income:

Interest, discount and similar income 26,615,905,816 30,811,600,364

Dividend income 158,163,234 189,895,835

Fees, commission and brokerage 2,259,032,362 2,201,445,993

Gains less losses arising from dealing securities 2,052,409,635 458,154,698

Gains less losses arising from investment securities 96,263,198 34,391,265

Gains less losses arising from dealing in foreign currencies 1,191,681,547 1,563,546,203

Other operating income 988,848,766 978,908,443

33,362,304,558 36,237,942,800

Interest, fees and commission 19,810,562,829 22,026,807,868

Administrative expenses 3,315,468,761 3,647,173,030

Other operating expenses 1,416,744,024 1,220,472,103

Depreciation on banking assets 655,621,487 388,335,861

25,198,397,101 27,282,788,863

Income over expenses 8,163,907,457 8,955,153,938

32

Southeast Bank Limited 33 22,219,789,107 26,242,459,146

Southeast Bank Capital Services Limited 66,805,334 35,365,624

Southeast Exchange Company (South Africa) Pty Ltd 5,387,074 7,545,394

22,291,981,514 26,285,370,165

Less: Inter company balance eliminated 41,486,931 26,487,768

22,250,494,583 26,258,882,397
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33 Interest income/pro t on investments

Interest on loans and advances (Conventional Banking):
Interest on loans and advances 20,194,541,734 23,547,858,446
Interest on placement with other banks and nancial institutions 507,110,362 798,674,353
Interest on foreign currency balances 44,766,064 145,028,315

20,746,418,160 24,491,561,114

Pro t on investment (Islamic Banking):
Pro t on investments 1,399,693,777 1,689,605,015
Pro t on placement with other banks 73,677,170 61,293,017

1,473,370,947 1,750,898,031
22,219,789,107 26,242,459,146

34 Consolidated interest paid/pro t shared on deposits 
and borrowings etc.

Southeast Bank Limited 35 19,810,562,829 22,026,807,868
Southeast Bank Capital Services Limited -                          1,565,513                

19,810,562,829 22,028,373,381
Less: Inter company balance eliminated 41,486,931 26,487,768

19,769,075,898 22,001,885,612

35 Interest paid/pro t shared on deposits and borrowings etc.

Interest paid on deposits (Conventional Banking):
Interest on deposits 16,944,363,833 18,741,377,824
Interest on borrowings 1,569,156,228 1,811,452,574
Interest on repurchase agreement (repo) 35,220,339 2,741,871
Interest on re nance 36,671,840 5,516,939
Interest on foreign bank accounts 4,009,228 5,886,244

18,589,421,466 20,566,975,453
Pro t shared on deposits (Islamic Banking):

Pro t paid on deposits 1,178,592,276 1,428,244,515
Pro t on re nance borrowings 42,549,087 31,587,899

1,221,141,363 1,459,832,414
19,810,562,829 22,026,807,868

36 Consolidated investment income

Southeast Bank Limited 37 6,702,952,777 5,251,583,015
Southeast Bank Capital Services Limited 101,935,794 72,876,814

6,804,888,571 5,324,459,829
Less: Inter company balance eliminated 53,997,533 35,484,673

6,750,891,038 5,288,975,155

37 Investment income

Interest income from Government securities 37.1 3,825,388,786 3,907,037,039
Capital gain (loss) on Government securities 37.2 1,694,589,456 474,001,394
Revaluation gain (loss) on Government securities 37.3 357,820,179 (15,846,696)
Dividend on investment in shares 158,163,234 189,895,835
Gain on sale of investment in shares 96,263,198 34,391,265
Interest income from investment in bonds 570,727,923 662,104,179

6,702,952,777 5,251,583,015

37.1 Interest income from Government securities

Interest on treasury bills - - 
Interest on treasury bonds/T&T bonds 4,826,200,210 4,458,232,675
Interest on Bangladesh Bank bills - - 

4,826,200,210 4,458,232,675

Interest expenses on treasury bills - (322,323)
Interest expenses on treasury bonds (1,000,811,424) (550,873,313)

(1,000,811,424) (551,195,636)
Net interest income from Government securities 3,825,388,786 3,907,037,039
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37.2 Capital gain on Government securities

Capital gain on treasury bills 1,379,316,459 503,768,813

Capital gain on treasury bonds/T&T bonds 646,839,972 212,532,498

Capital gain on BB bills - -

2,026,156,431 716,301,311

Capital loss on treasury bills (40,692,004) (5,490,381)

Capital loss on treasury bonds/T&T bonds (290,874,971) (236,809,536)

(331,566,975) (242,299,917)

Net capital gain on Government securities 1,694,589,456 474,001,394

37.3 Revaluation gain (loss) on Government securities

Revaluation gain on treasury bills -

Revaluation gain on treasury bonds 357,904,961 -

Revaluation gain on Bangladesh Bank bills - -

357,904,961 -

Revaluation loss on treasury bills (84,782) (15,846,696)

Revaluation loss on treasury bonds - -

Revaluation loss on Bangladesh Bank bills - -

(84,782) (15,846,696)

Net revaluation gain (loss) on Government securities 357,820,179 (15,846,696)

38

Southeast Bank Limited 39 3,450,713,908 3,764,992,196

Southeast Bank Capital Services Limited 75,000 387,500

Southeast Financial Services (UK) Ltd - 4,401,964

Southeast Exchange Company (South Africa) Pty Ltd 85,432,753 89,827,594

3,536,221,661 3,859,609,254

39

Commission and brokerage 2,259,032,362 2,201,445,993

Exchange gain (net off exchange loss) 39.1 1,191,681,547 1,563,546,203

3,450,713,908 3,764,992,196

39.1

Exchange gain from revaluation/trade of foreign currency 1,176,854,819 1,525,850,444

Exchange gain from credit card 14,826,727 37,695,759

1,191,681,547 1,563,546,203

40 Consolidated other operating income

Southeast Bank Limited 41 988,848,766 978,908,443

Southeast Bank Capital Services Limited 17,456,110 10,298,550

Southeast Financial Services (UK) Ltd - 664,535 

1,006,304,876 989,871,528

Less: Inter company balance eliminated 4,273,920 4,731,840

1,002,030,956 985,139,688

Commission, fees & Charges received against export and export related services are VAT exempted as per services code-S056 of SRO 
189-AIN/2019/46-Mushak, dated- 13 June 2019.
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41 Other operating income

Remittance fees 68,300 55,326

Service and incidental charges 84,606,590 94,984,071

Other fees - telephone and postage 44,196,619 52,660,074

Income from ATM services 43,259,693 39,103,635

Income from credit card 243,399,918 176,148,439

Income from retail banking 8,094,526 7,453,193

Other Fees - SWIFT and others 216,221,796 229,756,216

41.1 - 1,665,379

Income from telecash 7,395,770 2,662,321

Miscellaneous income 341,605,554 374,419,789
988,848,766 978,908,443

41.1

Cost:
- 4,285,782

- 892,731

Computer - 327,102

Electrical appliances - 23,242,681

ATM - 967,000

Motor vehicles - 16,119,915

- 45,835,211
Accumulated depreciation:

- 2,385,078

- 140,205

Electrical appliances - 10,984,900

ATM - 900,684

Motor vehicles - 15,939,417

- 30,350,284
Written down value - 15,484,927

- 17,150,306
- 1,665,379

42 Consolidated salaries and allowances

Southeast Bank Limited 43 2,038,615,950 2,142,216,378

Southeast Bank Capital Services Limited 13,591,240 13,775,340

Southeast Financial Services (UK) Ltd - 6,171,575

Southeast Exchange Company (South Africa) Pty Ltd 13,771,423 13,131,331
2,065,978,613 2,175,294,624

43 Salaries and allowances

Basic salary 1,062,297,814 1,058,499,854

Allowances 717,925,797 684,957,939

Bonus 165,775,305 309,814,083

Provident fund 92,617,035 88,944,502
2,038,615,950 2,142,216,378

44

Southeast Bank Limited 45 862,560,078 1,061,295,939

Southeast Bank Capital Services Limited 12,951,557 14,435,593

Southeast Financial Services (UK) Ltd - 7,188,500

Southeast Exchange Company (South Africa) Pty Ltd 6,667,886 5,174,927

882,179,521 1,088,094,959

Less: Inter company balance eliminated 4,273,920 4,731,840
877,905,601 1,083,363,119
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45 Rent, ta es, insurance, electricity etc.

Rent, rates and taxes 517,197,075 727,738,301

Insurance 249,303,802 224,724,893

Electricity and lighting 96,059,201 108,832,744

862,560,078 1,061,295,939

46 Consolidated postage, stamp, telecommunication etc.

Southeast Bank Limited 47 163,733,970 173,691,923

Southeast Bank Capital Services Limited 160,393 159,151

Southeast Financial Services (UK) Ltd - 126,671

Southeast Exchange Company (South Africa) Pty Ltd 317,651 569,060

164,212,014 174,546,805

47 Postage, stamp, telecommunication etc.

Postage 39,383,964 49,385,385

Telephone /Telex 17,925,533 17,224,826

FC Charge (Nostro) 10,553,800 5,723,162

VSAT on-line 44,040,718 41,893,216

Reuters services 2,385,002 2,620,462

Other Fees - SWIFT and others 49,444,952 56,844,872

163,733,970 173,691,923

48 Consolidated stationery, printing, advertisements etc.

Southeast Bank Limited 49 156,210,729 164,420,208

Southeast Bank Capital Services Limited 156,419 284,142

Southeast Financial Services (UK) Ltd - 302,974

Southeast Exchange Company (South Africa) Pty Ltd 830,357 738,715

157,197,505 165,746,039

49 Stationery, printing, advertisements etc.

General and of  stationery 79,008,424 88,952,597

Printing and security stationery 29,754,976 28,990,001

Publicity and advertisement 47,447,329 46,477,610

156,210,729 164,420,208

50 Managing Director's salary and fees

Basic salary 4,020,000 4,020,000

House rent 1,740,000 1,740,000

House maintenance 900,000 900,000

Leave fare concession 1,200,000 1,200,000

Utility 720,000 720,000

Special allowance 420,000 420,000

Provident Fund 402,000 402,000

Bonus 1,005,000 1,670,000

10,407,000 11,072,000
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51 Consolidated directors' fees

Southeast Bank Limited (Note 52) 52 2,568,060 3,292,248

Southeast Bank Capital Services Limited 120,000 176,000

Southeast Financial Services (UK) Limited - - 
2,688,060 3,468,248

52 Directors' fees

Directors' fees 2,376,000 2,720,000
Directors' haltage and travelling 192,060 572,248

2,568,060 3,292,248

Each Director is paid TK. 8,000/ per meeting per attendance.

53 Consolidated auditors' fees

Southeast Bank Limited 1,000,000 1,000,000

Southeast Bank Capital Services Limited 92,000 69,000

Southeast Exchange Company (South Africa) Pty Ltd 768,327 835,078
1,860,327 1,904,078

54 Consolidated depreciation and repair

Depreciation:
Southeast Bank Limited 55 655,621,487 388,335,861
Southeast Bank Capital Services Limited 47,685,555 53,005,764
Southeast Financial Services (UK) Ltd - 71,643
Southeast Exchange Company (South Africa) Pty Ltd 1,787,785 1,568,724

705,094,827 442,981,992

Repair:

Southeast Bank Limited 55 80,372,974 90,184,334

Southeast Bank Capital Services Limited 1,033,784 1,048,241

Southeast Financial Services (UK) Ltd - 83,620

Southeast Exchange Company (South Africa) Pty Ltd 178,761 331,372

81,585,518 91,647,567

786,680,346 534,629,560

55 Depreciation and repair of bank's assets

A. Depreciation:
Buildings 56,179,272 58,515,648

74,461,925 74,357,090

Professional and reference books - - 

867,615 941,920

Computer 54,940,817 31,201,120

Electrical appliances 105,227,266 108,917,252

ATM Booth 59,836,826 33,988,946

Motor vehicles 20,105,603 16,818,845

371,619,324 324,740,820

B. Repair & spare parts
6,869,459 7,003,027

31,704,310 31,358,187
Motor vehicles 2,787,610 4,056,162
Repair, maintenance and utilities 39,011,594 47,766,959

80,372,974 90,184,334

C. Depreciation on right of use (ROU) assets* 284,002,163 63,595,041

284,002,163 63,595,041
Total (A+B+C) 735,994,461 478,520,196
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56

Southeast Bank Limited 57 1,415,151,724 1,218,608,648
Southeast Bank Capital Services Limited 6,751,990 7,980,878
Southeast Financial Services (UK) Ltd - 6,623,121
Southeast Exchange Company (South Africa) Pty Ltd 15,580,871 22,506,128

1,437,484,585 1,255,718,774

57

Security and cleaning  222,555,889 204,392,878
Entertainment 53,705,694 119,332,449
Car expenses 210,983,457 210,684,805
Books and periodicals 1,706,940 1,179,594
Subscription 5,533,178 5,241,323
Donation including CSR 237,039,099 82,410,436
Travelling expenses 5,694,744 14,004,861
Finance charge on leased assets 37,585,179 10,317,712
Conveyance 11,707,695 14,732,210
Petrol,oil and lubricant 8,603,774 8,795,847
Training/seminar 1,212,822 5,810,299
Uniforms and apparels 4,209,226 4,083,895
Medical expenses 1,136,813 233,498
Gratuity and others 344,248,326 292,729,270
Professional expenses 17,182,922 26,798,638
Expenses for CIB report 131,419 162,841
IT enabled services 74,667,539 43,042,496

57.1 1,518,523 - 
Expenses regarding credit card 63,399,331 52,579,678
Expenses regarding retail banking & agriculture 43,304,593 52,441,471
Expenses regarding call centre 3,384,897 3,096,628
Expenses relating to ATM services 41,209,094 32,262,133
Expenses regarding mobile banking services-Telecash 7,964,589 4,585,765
Provision/(Adjustment) for Impairment loss from investment in subsidiary (2,003,089) 17,000,000
Others operating expenses 18,469,070 12,689,922

1,415,151,724 1,218,608,648

57.1

Cost:
8,115,208 - 

ATM 464,300 - 

Electrical appliances 14,617,251 - 

House Elec. Appliance 1,200,000 - 

Motor Vehicle 2,209,753 - 
26,606,512 - 

Accumulated depreciation:
5,448,158 - 

ATM 353,698 - 

Electrical appliances 13,482,589 - 

House Elec. Appliance 808,204 - 

Motor Vehicle 920,725 - 

21,013,374 - 

Written down value 5,593,138 - 

4,074,615 - 

(1,518,523) - 

Duty Act-2012 and rules-2016.
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Particulars Note
Amount in Taka

2020 2019

58

Current tax:

Southeast Bank Limited 59 1,050,000,000 2,600,000,000

Southeast Bank Capital Services Limited 33,329,994 25,279,358

Southeast Exchange Company (South Africa) Pty Ltd 14,146,358 14,775,675

1,097,476,351 2,640,055,033

Deferred tax:

Southeast Bank Limited 59 (90,700,000) (744,386,000)

Southeast Exchange Company (South Africa) Pty Ltd - -

(90,700,000) (744,386,000)

1,006,776,351 1,895,669,033

59

Current tax 1,050,000,000 2,600,000,000

Deferred tax (90,700,000) (744,386,000)

959,300,000 1,855,614,000

59.1

2020 % Taka

3,055,226,607

Income tax as per applicable tax rate 37.50% 1,145,709,978

Non deductible expenses 78.97% 2,412,682,485

Deductible expenses -53.38% (1,630,836,308)

Tax exempt income -26.64% (813,778,890)

Tax savings from reduced tax rates for dividend -0.91% (27,678,566)

Tax savings for capital loss -1.18% (36,098,699)

Change in taxable temporary difference -2.97% (90,700,000)

31.40% 959,300,000

2019 % Taka

4,376,400,210

Income tax as per applicable tax rate 37.50% 1,641,150,079

Non deductible expenses 39.25% 1,717,623,968

Deductible expenses -5.89% (257,726,966)

Tax exempt income -10.39% (454,918,586)

Tax savings from reduced tax rates for dividend -0.76% (33,231,771)

Tax savings for capital loss -0.29% (12,896,724)

Change in taxable temporary difference -17.01% (744,386,000)

Total income tax expenses 42.40% 1,855,614,000

60 Consolidated cash received from other operating activities

Southeast Bank Limited 61 2,779,701,420 1,485,635,723

Southeast Bank Capital Services Limited 55,358,795 5,566,710

Southeast Financial Services (UK) Ltd - 664,535

2,835,060,215 1,491,866,968
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Particulars Note
Amount in Taka

2020 2019

61 Cash received from other operating activities

Remittance fees 68,300 55,326
Service and incidental charges 84,606,590 94,984,071
Other Fees-Telephone and Postage 44,196,619 52,660,074
Income from ATM services 43,259,693 39,103,635
Income from Credit Card 243,399,918 176,148,439
Other Fees - SWIFT and others 216,221,796 229,756,216
Income from Retail Banking 8,094,526 7,453,193
Income from Telecash 7,395,770 2,662,321
Miscellaneous income 341,605,554 374,419,789
Capital gain (loss) on Government securities 1,694,589,456 474,001,394
Gain on sale of investment in shares 96,263,198 34,391,265

2,779,701,420 1,485,635,723

62 Consolidated payments for other operating activities

Southeast Bank Limited 63 2,479,508,845 2,604,170,083
Southeast Bank Capital Services Limited 21,266,143 24,153,005
Southeast Financial Services (UK) Ltd - 14,324,886
Southeast Exchange Company (South Africa) Pty Ltd 7,994,655 6,814,075

2,508,769,642 2,649,462,049
63 Payments for other operating activities

Rent rates and taxes 813,086,728 1,098,529,475
Postage 163,733,970 173,691,923
Directors' fees 2,568,060 3,292,248
Repairs 80,372,974 90,184,334
Legal expense 1,592,300 1,863,455
Audit fees 1,000,000 1,000,000
Other expenses 1,417,154,813 1,235,608,648

2,479,508,845 2,604,170,083

64 Consolidated earnings per share

2,148,969,893 2,508,554,444
Number of ordinary shares outstanding 1,188,940,521 1,188,940,521
Earnings per share (EPS) (Taka)* 1.81 2.11

65 Earnings per share

2,095,926,607 2,520,786,210
Number of ordinary shares outstanding 1,188,940,521 1,188,940,521
Earnings per share (EPS) (Taka)*

for the issue of bonus shares during the year. During the period EPS decreased due to decreased of interest income and increase of
provision for loans and advances.

1.76 2.12

66

Net Asset Value (NAV) 29,703,765,724 30,499,461,908
Number of ordinary shares outstanding 1,188,940,521 1,159,941,972
Net Asset Value (NAV) per share 24.98 26.29

67

Net Asset Value (NAV) 29,580,060,277 30,418,837,815
Number of ordinary shares outstanding 1,188,940,521 1,159,941,972
Net Asset Value (NAV) per share 24.88 26.22

68

Net Operating Cash Flow 11,347,563,532 13,542,323,987
Number of ordinary shares outstanding 1,188,940,521 1,159,941,972
Net Operating Cash Flow per share (NOCFPS)* 9.54 11.68

69 Net Operating Cash Flow per share (NOCFPS)

Net Operating Cash Flow 11,368,883,889 13,529,493,878
Number of ordinary shares outstanding 1,188,940,521 1,159,941,972
Net Operating Cash Flow per share (NOCFPS)*

*During the period NOCFPS decreased due to decrease of interest received in cash

9.56 11.66
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70 Group entities

2020 2019

99.816909 99.816909

100 100

Discontinued in 2020 100

71 General

71.1 Audit Committee

Sl. 
No.

Status in the 
committee

1 Chairman

2 Member

3 Member

4 Member

Member5

Terms of reference of the Audit Committee

Director

Independent DirectorDr. Quazi Mesbahuddin Ahmed 

Mrs. Jusna Ara Kashem

5

Member 5 5

3

GraduateDirector

Name 

Mr. Syed Sajedul Karim Independent Director

Status in the Board

Mrs. Duluma Ahmed

The academic quali cations of the members of the Audit Committee are given below:

Director

5

Chairman

B.A (Hons), MA

1 Mr. Syed Sajedul Karim 
(Independent Director)

5

4

Feature and composition

Dr. Quazi Mesbahuddin Ahmed 
(Independent Director)

Member 5 5

Mrs. Jusna Ara Kashem Member

5 5

2 Mrs. Duluma Ahmed

Mrs. Rehana Rahman Member

5

5

Ownership interest %
Name of subsidiary Country of incorporation

Southeast Bank Capital Services Limited

Southeast Financial Services (UK) Ltd

Southeast Exchange Company (South Africa) Pty Ltd

Bangladesh

England and Wales

South Africa

Graduate

B.A (Hons), M.A., MEC, MSC., Phd in
Economics

Mrs. Rehana Rahman

H.S.C

reporting, disclosure, regulatory compliance and disciplined banking operation complying with the rules and norms of banking.

The Audit Committee was last re-constituted by the Board of Directors in its 610th meeting held on October 15, 2020 in accordance 
with the Corporate Governance Code issued by BSEC on June 03, 2018 and Bangladesh Bank’s BRPD circular no.11, dated October 
27, 2013. 

Quorum
Presence of 3 (three) members including one Independent Director constitutes a quorum for holding Audit Committee meeting. The Head 
of Internal Control and Compliance attended the meetings to present the agenda. On invitation, Senior Executives of the Bank including 

queries of the Audit Committee to make its decisions fact-based. In addition, Heads of Branches, whose audit reports were placed to the 
Audit Committee were also present in the meetings to respond to the issues raised in the reports of Internal Control and Compliance 
Division and Bangladesh Bank.

i) Board shall appoint Non-Executive directors of the Bank as members of the Audit Committee excepting Chairman of the Board.

ii) Mr. Syed Sajedul Karim, in his capacity as the Independent Director, shall be the Chairman of the Audit Committee. 

iii) Presence of 03 (three) members shall form a quorum. 

iv) The quorum of the Audit Committee meeting shall require presence of at least 1 (one) Independent Director.

vi) The Company Secretary shall act as Secretary to the Audit Committee.

Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC), dated 03 June, 2018. 

viii) Mr. Zakir Ahmed Khan, Advisor of the Bank, shall remain present in every meeting of the Audit Committee as far as possible and 
shall give his advice and suggestions for improvement of Bank’s operations and strict compliance with rules of both the Bank and 
its regulators.

ix) Chairman of the Audit Committee shall remain present in the Annual General Meeting (AGM).

Charter of the Audit Committee
The Audit Committee is constituted by the Board of Directors for the primary purpose of assisting the Board in:

-  Overseeing the improvement of corporate governance standard of the company. 

-  Overseeing the Company’s system of disclosure, internal controls and procedure.

-  Overseeing Bank’s compliance with ethical standards adopted by the Bank. 

-  Making reports and recommendations to the Board.

Sl. 
No.

Position Meetings held AttendanceName 
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71.2

1 Chairman 4 4

2 Member 4 4

3 Member 4 4

4 Member 4 4

Structure of the Risk Management Committee (RMC)

Functions of the Risk Management Committee

Roles and responsibilities

Mr. Azim Uddin Ahmed

Risk Management Committee of the Board of Directors of the Bank

Feature and composition

Meetings heldSl. 
No.

Attendance 

Mr. M. A. Kashem

Mr. Alamgir Kabir, FCA

PositionName

Mr. Syed Sajedul Karim 
(Independent Director)

1 The Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Bank shall be the Chairman of the Risk Management Committee.
2 Presence of 3 (three) members in a meeting of the Committee shall form quorum.
3 The Company Secretary of the Bank shall act as the Secretary to the Risk Management Committee of the Board.

The broad functional areas of the Risk Management Committee are the following:

a Formulating and reviewing risk management policies and strategies for sound risk management.

b Monitoring implementation of risk management policies and process to ensure effective prevention and control measures.

c Ensuring construction of adequate organizational structure for managing risks within the Bank.

d Supervising the activities of Executive Risk Management Committee (ERMC).

e Ensuring compliance of Bangladesh Bank instructions regarding implementation of core risk management. 

f Ensuring formulation and review of risk appetite, limits and recommending these to Board of Directors for their review and approval.

g Approving adequate record keeping and reporting system and ensuring its proper use. 

h Holding at least four meetings in a year and more if deemed necessary. 

i Analyzing all existing and probable risk issues in the meeting, taking appropriate decisions for risk mitigation, incorporating the same 

in the meeting minutes and ensuring follow up of the decisions for proper implementation;

j Submitting proposal, suggestions and summary of BRMC meetings to the Board of Directors at least on quarterly basis.

corporate governance, internal control, green banking and environmental & climate change risks. The added roles of the Audit Committee 
include, but not limited to, the following:

ii) Monitoring choice of accounting policies and principles.

iii) Monitoring Internal Audit and Compliance process including approval of Internal Audit and compliance plan.

iv) Reviewing the Internal Audit and Compliance Report.

v) Overseeing hiring and performance of external auditors.

vi) Reviewing the Annual Financial Statements before submission to the Board for approval or adoption.

vii) Reviewing the quarterly and half-yearly Financial Statements before submission to the Board for approval.

ix) Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit functions.

x) Reviewing the Management’s Discussion and Analysis before disclosing in the Annual Report

xi) Overseeing the determination of audit fees based on scope and magnitude, level of expertise deployed and time required for  
effective audit and evaluate the performance of external auditors.

xiii) Reviewing Management Letters/ Letter of Internal Control Weakness issued by Statutory Auditors.

xiv) Reviewing the existing Risk Management Policy and procedures to improve the quality of Bank’s assets portfolio.

xv) Reviewing fund raising through Repeat Public Offering/ Rights Issue and its use and application.

xvi) Monitoring internal control process.

xvii) Maintaining oversight on regulatory compliance, ethics and whistle-blower hotlines

xviii) Reviewing Audit Committee’s own terms of reference. 

xix) Reviewing the compliance status of the Minutes of the Audit Committee Meeting. 

The Bank Company Act-1991 (Amended up to 2018), inter alia, provided for constitution of a Risk Management Committee of the 

Board of Directors of every Bank. The committee will scrutinize whether appropriate risk management measures are being put in place 

and applied and whether adequate capital and provision is being maintained against different risks. 

The Risk Management Committee was reconstituted by the Board of Directors in its 610th meeting held on October 15, 2020 in 
accordance with the BRPD circular no. 11, dated October 27, 2013 issued by Bangladesh Bank. The composition of the Risk Manage-
ment Committee in 2020 is given below:
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71.3 Related party/(ies)

Particulars of Directors of the Bank as at 31 December 

Sl.
No. 

Designation % of shares 
as at 31 Dec 2020

% of shares 
as at 31 Dec 2019

1 Mr. Alamgir Kabir, FCA Chairman 2.25% 2.25%

2 Mrs. Duluma Ahmed Vice Chairperson 2.08% 2.08%

3 Mr. M. A. Kashem Director 2.21% 2.21%

4 Mr. Azim Uddin Ahmed Director 2.78% 2.78%

5 Mrs. Jusna Ara Kashem Director 2.00% 2.00%

6 Mrs. Rehana Rahman Director 2.06% 2.06%

7 Mr. Md. Akikur Rahman Director 2.67% 2.03%

8 Director 2.06% -

9 Director 2.35% -

10 Mr. Syed Sajedul Karim Independent Director - -

11 Dr. Quazi Mesbahuddin Ahmed Independent Director - -

12 Independent Director - -

13 Mr. M. Kamal Hossain Managing Director - -

71.3.1 Related party transactions

2020 2019 2020 2019

Taka Taka Taka Taka

Share capital - - 5,489,930,0005,489,930,000

Saving & Fixed Deposit 
Account 474,214,410 622,941,348  -

-

-

-

Interest on Saving & Fixed 
Deposit Account

41,486,931 26,487,768    - -

-
Director

Money at call and on short 
notice

620,000,000 

Mr. Raiyan Kabir                 
(Appointed on October 28, 2020)

Balance outstanding
as at 31 December

Subsidiary company

Sonarpara,
Nobarun-227, Sylhet

226, Dilu Road, New Eskaton, Dhaka

Plot No.51, Road No.09, Block-F
Banani, Dhaka

73/C, Gulshan Avenue, Gulshan-1
Dhaka-1212
Plot No.51, Road No.09, Block-F
Banani, Dhaka

Apartment B/3, House No.08, Road 
No.121, Gulshan-1, Dhaka-1212

Flat No.C/3, House No.01, Road No.36, 
Gulshan-2, Dhaka-1212

Asia Insurance 
Ltd.

-
Southeast 
Financial Services 
(UK) Ltd

Subsidiary company

-

- 38,493,247-

- -

Common 
Director

Insurance coverage 105,140,072 85,933,992

73/C, Gulshan Avenue, Gulshan-1
Dhaka-1212

Southeast Bank
Capital Services
Limited

House No.10, Road No.68, Gulshan-2, 
Dhaka-1212

Flat No.C-1, House No.160, Road No.3, 
Block-A, Bashundhara R/A, Dhaka-1229

Southeast Bank Limited, Head Of ce, 
52-53 Dilkusha C/A, Dhaka-1000     

Present addressName of persons

Bay Leasing & Investment Ltd. 
(Represented by Mr. M. Maniruz 
Zaman Khan,  Appointed on 
October 28, 2020)

Mr. Mohammad Delwar Husain 

Name of 
Organization

Share capital

Transaction value for the year ended 
31 December

226, Dilu Road, New Eskaton, Dhaka

1/6, Eskaton Garden, Ramna, Dhaka

Nature of transaction

Southeast 
Exchange 
Company (South 
Africa) Pty Ltd

Share capital 44,211,055-Subsidiary company

Relationship

44,211,055

Bay Leasing & 
Investment Ltd. 
(Represented by 
Mr. M. Maniruz 
Zaman Khan)

k Complying with instructions issued from time to time by the regulatory body. 

l Analyzing all existing and probable risk issues in the meeting and taking appropriate decisions for risk mitigation. 

n Establishing standards of ethics and integrity for staff and enforcing these standards.

o Assessing overall effectiveness of risk management functions on yearly basis.

director(s)/nominated director(s) of any listed company shall hold minimum 2% (two percent) shares of the paid-up capital. Otherwise there 
shall be a casual vacancy of director".

During the year 2020, the Bank concluded business deals with the following organizations in which the directors had interest:
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71.3.2 Loans and advances to directors and their related concern

Mr. Azim Uddin Ahmed

Mrs. Duluma Ahmed

Mr. M. A. Kashem Director's daughter Credit Card 174,246.82 Regular

Mr. Azim Uddin Ahmed Director's daughter Credit Card 78,276.46 Regular

Mr. Azim Uddin Ahmed Director's son Credit Card 199.60 Regular

71.4 Events after the reporting period

71.5 Number of employees

71.6 Share trading

71.7 Pattern of Shareholding

71.8 Highlights on the overall activities of the Bank

Southeast Exchange Company (South Africa) Pty Ltd2

1

100% owned by Southeast Bank Limited

99.816909% owned by Southeast Bank Limited

Name of the Company Shareholding Structure

Southeast Bank Capital Services Limited

Sl. no.

Director

Related by

Bank 
Guarantee

Monorom Traders

Ms. Farzana Azim

Mr.Mamun Azim

StatusAmount in Taka

4,783,061.00 Regular

Ms. Sultana Kashem

Name of the directorName of party Nature of  
transaction

The Bank complies with the requirements of the section 26 (c) of the Banking Companies Act 1991 (amended upto 2018) in connection to 
the transactions executed with persons related to the Banks.

The number of employees engaged for the whole year or part thereof in 2020 who received a total yearly remuneration of Tk. 36,000 or 
above were 2,859 The total number of employees were 2,885 in 2019.

The Bank started trading its ordinary shares in Dhaka Stock Exchange (DSE) and Chittagong Stock Exchange (CSE) through CDBL from 

16 May 2004. The closing market price of the share as on 31 December 2020 was Tk. 12.50 (2019: Tk. 13.40) for each Tk. 10 per value of 

share at DSE and Tk. 12.40 (2019: Tk. 13.20) for each Tk. 10 per value of share at CSE.

158/207/Admin/80 dated 03 June 2018 issued under Section 2CC of the Securities and Exchange Ordinance, 1969, is as follows:

a) Parent/Subsidiary/Associated companies and other related parties (name wise details):

The Board of Directors in its 626th meeting held on May 9, 2021 has recommended Cash dividend @10% subject to the approval of the 
shareholders at the next Annual General Meeting.

Highlights on the overall activities of the Bank have been furnished in 

REACHING NEW HEIGHTS 353



Anne ure-A

Sl. no. Particulars 2020Currency 2019

1 Paid-up capital Taka 11,889,405,210 11,599,419,720

2 Total capital Taka 40,236,705,151 35,993,857,662

3 Capital surplus Taka 5,606,342,364 (2,752,647,928)

4 Total assets Taka 465,082,375,646 422,430,591,050

5 Total deposits Taka 359,899,884,814 329,797,460,573

6 Total loans and advances/investments Taka 320,368,158,870 295,015,113,320

7 Total contingent liabilities and commitments Taka 138,737,253,892 123,149,020,703

8 Credit deposit ratio 80.26% 81.63%

9 Percentage of classi ed loans/investments against total 
loans and advances/investments 3.10% 4.87%

10 Pro  after tax and provision Taka 2,095,926,607 2,520,786,210

11 Amount of classi ed loans/investments Taka 9,939,755,293 14,375,292,023

12 Provisions kept against classi ed loans/investments Taka 20,226,773,600 18,243,627,000

13 Provision surplus/(de cit) against classi ed
loans/investments Taka 16,658,951,864 9,660,369,231

14 Cost of fund 6.79% 8.08%

15 Interest earning assets Taka 418,109,616,400 375,140,635,872

16 Non-interest earning assets Taka 46,972,759,246 47,289,955,178

17 Return on investment (ROI) 0.52% 0.69%

18 Return on assets (ROA) [PAT/Average assets] 0.47% 0.63%

19 Income from investment Taka 6,702,952,777 5,251,583,015

20 Capital adequacy 14.52% 11.61%

Dividends

a) Stock dividends -  2.50%

b) Cash dividends 10.00% 7.50%

22 Earnings per share (restate-2019) Taka 1.76 2.12

23 Net income per share (restate-2019) Taka 1.76 2.12

24 Price earning ratio (restate-2019) Times 7.06 6.27

21

Southeast Bank Limited
HIGHLIGHTS ON THE OVERALL ACTIVITIES
As at and for the year ended 31 December 2020
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Anne ure-D

Number of clients                                  
Amount of outstanding advances (Amount  in million Taka)       
Amount of classi ed advances  (Amount  in million Taka)

Measures taken for recovery (Taka)

37
173,356.70

Nil
Nil

33
133,009.10

NIL
NIL

Client-wise break up is as follows:

Funded
Non 

funded Total Funded
Non 

funded Total

1 Abul Khair Group 182.50 4,346.40        4,528.90 161.90 747.40                   909.30 

2 ACS Textiles (Bangladesh) Limited and its 
related concern

3,017.30 2,480.50        5,497.80 2,337.50 997.90                3,335.40 

3 Bashundhara Group 4,635.30 1,850.10        6,485.40 3,768.40 714.10                4,482.50 

4 Bengal Group 2,701.60 1,790.30        4,491.90 2,781.60 1,156.90                3,938.50 

5 Capital Banani One Ltd. and its related 

concern

5,339.80 1.40        5,341.20 4,240.00 1.40                4,241.40 

6 Cassiopea Fashion Ltd. and its related 

concerns

978.60 1,038.60        2,017.20 820.70 1,960.80                2,781.50 

7 Sparrow Apparels Ltd. and its
related concerns

2,629.60 5,728.60        8,358.20 1,407.70 6,237.20                7,644.90 

8 Deshbandhu Group 7,995.70 466.70        8,462.40 7,498.30
-

503.40                8,001.70 

9 Grameen Phone Limited - 1,500.20        1,500.20 1,495.80                1,495.80 

10 KDS Group 167.00 1,493.90        1,660.90 254.50 1,443.50                1,698.00 

11 Keya Group             7,369.20        5,312.20      12,681.40       6,248.30        3,138.50                9,386.80 

12 Aaron Denim Limited and its
related concerns 

3,187.50 1,251.60        4,439.10 3,111.40 1,005.50                4,116.90 

13 Maksons Spinning Mills Ltd. 1,977.80 3,008.40        4,986.20 1,963.90 2,504.00                4,467.90 

14 Meghna Group - 4,479.60        4,479.60 - 8,133.80                8,133.80 

15 Mother Steel Ltd. and its related concerns 292.40 20.20           312.60 406.20 20.20                   426.40 

16 N. R. Group 1,086.40 3,181.80        4,268.20 1,256.90 2,462.10                3,719.00 

17 Partex Group 4,583.30 612.30        5,195.60 4,524.30 1,995.10                6,519.40 

18 S. Alam Group 4,491.80 -        4,491.80 4,247.60 -                4,247.60 

19 Yunusco (BD) Limited and
its related concerns 

1,686.00 2,152.10        3,838.10 1,476.30 1,707.90                3,184.20 

20 T. K. Group 377.00 5,266.50        5,643.50 - 4,159.00                4,159.00 

21 Rupayan Housing Estate Limited and its 

related concerns

5,780.60 20.00        5,800.60 5,434.40 30.00                5,464.40 

22 Chittagong Asian Apparels Ltd. and its related 

concerns

1,157.30 3,102.30        4,259.60 1,120.50 883.90                2,004.40 

23 Snowtex Outerwear Limited and its related 

concerns

4,405.00 4,439.70        8,844.70 3,819.40 2,869.10                6,688.50 

24 Generation Next Fashions Limited 2,505.10 1,721.60        4,226.70 2,230.00 1,734.80                3,964.80 

25 Designtex Fashions Limited and its related 

concerns

4,778.90 3,564.30        8,343.20 4,368.40 1,902.60                6,271.00 

26 Navana Group 4,634.10 14.70        4,648.80 4,352.40 17.80                4,370.20 

27 City Group - 2,360.50        2,360.50 1,090.90                1,090.90 

28 Bashundhara Oil and Gas Company Limited - 4,768.30        4,768.30 47.70 4,256.40                4,304.10 

29 KSRM Steel Plant Ltd. and its related
concerns

3,393.40 2,208.80        5,602.20 1,381.80 2,211.40                3,593.20 

30 Vertex Group 495.80 408.60           904.40 384.70 270.50                   655.20 

31 Shanin Group 1,634.60 2,261.80        3,896.40 1,574.90 2,141.10                3,716.00 

32 Masuma Khatun Textile Industries Ltd. 3,616.80 377.30        3,994.10 - -                          -   

33 Bashundhara Trading Company Ltd. and its 

related concerns

1,297.50 2,041.40        3,338.90 1,702.20 285.30                1,987.50 

34 MSA Textiles Ltd. and related concerns 515.20 3,338.30        3,853.50 - -                          -   

35 Chaity Composite Ltd. 1,628.80 1,932.60        3,561.40 - -                          -   

36 Amber Super Paper Ltd.and related concerns 1,813.20 1,826.40        3,639.60 - -                          -   

37 Envoy Textiles Limited 1,990.40 643.20        2,633.60 1,696.90 312.00                2,008.90 

Total 92,345.50 81,011.20 173,356.70 74,618.80 58,390.30 133,009.10

(Amount in million Taka)

Sl. 
no.

Name of clients
Outstanding as at 31 December 2020 Outstanding as at 31 December 2019

Southeast Bank Limited
DETAILS OF LARGE LOAN
As at 31 December 2020

Particulars
Amount in Taka

2020 2019
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A -F

1 Mr. Alamgir Kabir, FCA Chairman - - Nil

Mutual Food Products Limited Chairman

”

”

31.78%

Mutual Milk Products Limited 16.00%

Mutual Trading Co. Limited Director 12.96%

3 Mr. M. A. Kashem Director Rose Corner (Pvt.) Limited Chairman 50.00%

Mutual Food Products Limited Managing Director 44.78%

Mutual Milk Products Limited 52.00%

Mutual Trading Co. Limited Chairman & MD 71.30%

AD Holdings Limited Chairman 0.50%

5 Mrs. Jusna Ara Kashem Director Rose Corner (Pvt) Limited Director 20.00%

6 Mrs. Rehana Rahman Director
Bengal Tradeways Limited Managing Director 74.61%

CHB Building Technologies Limited Director 25.00%

7 Mr. Md. Akikur Rahman Director - - Nil

8 Mr. Raiyan Kabir Director - - Nil

9

Bay Leasing & Investment 

Limited (Represented by Mr. M. 

Maniruz Zaman Khan)

Director - - Nil

10 Mr. Syed Sajedul Karim Independent Director - - Nil

11 Dr. Quazi Mesbahuddin Ahmed Independent Director - - Nil

12 Mr. Mohammad Delwar Husain Independent Director - - Nil

13 Mr. M. Kamal Hossain Managing Director - - Nil

Sl. 

no. Name Status with the Bank

Names of ms/companies in which
interested as proprietor/ director/ 

managing agent/ guarantor/ employee/ 
partner, etc.

Position
% of 

Shareholdings

2 Mrs. Duluma Ahmed Vice Chairperson

4 Mr. Azim Uddin Ahmed Director

Southeast Bank Limited
NAMES OF DIRECTORS AND THEIR INTEREST IN DIFFERENT ENTITIES
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Particulars Note
Amount in Taka

2020 2019

Southeast Bank Limited
Islamic Banking Branches
BALANCE SHEET
As at 31 December 2020

Annexure-G

PROPERTY AND ASSETS

Cash 1
In hand (including foreign currencies) 195,712,834 263,677,174
Balance with Bangladesh Bank and its agent banks
(including foreign currencies) 865,027,350 1,398,163,335

1,060,740,184 1,661,840,509
Balance with other banks and nancial institutions 2
In Bangladesh 8,603,988 1,008,357,038
Outside Bangladesh - -                             
 8,603,988 1,008,357,038
Money at call and on short notice - -
Investments in shares and securities 3
Government 1,491,920,000 950,000,000
Others 674,760,574 1,734,772,344

2,166,680,574 2,684,772,344
Investments 4
General Investments etc. 18,093,949,988 17,598,332,455
Bills purchased and discounted 314,850,894 361,459,608

18,408,800,882 17,959,792,063
Fixed assets including premises, furniture and xtures 5 31,145,489 24,709,206
Other assets 6 2,954,193,456 1,568,842,061
Non - banking assets - -
Total assets 24,630,164,573 24,908,313,220

LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL

Liabilities
Borrowings from other banks, nancial institutions and agents 7 139,092,106 1,001,916,667

Deposits and other accounts 8
Current/Al-wadeeah current accounts and other accounts 2,131,932,637 1,817,736,376
Bills payable 99,572,422 107,742,717
Savings bank/Mudaraba savings bank deposits 2,549,946,611 2,165,717,779
Fixed deposits/Mudaraba xed deposits 17,929,720,266 17,600,583,206

22,711,171,937 21,691,780,078

Other liabilities 9 1,779,900,530 2,214,616,475
Total liabilities 24,630,164,573 24,908,313,220

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ITEMS

Contingent liabilities
Acceptances and endorsements 10.1 701,804,245 1,019,395,407
Letters of guarantee 10.2 1,245,950,472 1,039,498,731
Irrevocable letters of credit 10.3 1,107,042,699 989,534,786
Bills for collection 10.4 1,260,279,014 1,652,806,086
Other contingent liabilities -                            -
Total contingent liabilities 4,315,076,430 4,701,235,009

Other commitments
Documentary credits and short term trade-related transactions - -
Forward assets purchased and forward deposits placed - -
Undrawn note issuance and revolving underwriting facilities - -
Undrawn formal standby facilities, credit lines and other commitments - -
Total other commitments - -
Total off-balance sheet items including contingent liabilities 4,315,076,430 4,701,235,009
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Particulars Note
Amount in Taka

2020 2019

Southeast Bank Limited
Islamic Banking Branches
PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
For the year ended 31 December 2020

Annexure-G.1

11 2,058,139,012 2,196,460,816

12 (1,488,313,778) (1,572,208,021)

569,825,234 624,252,794

Commission, exchange and brokerage 13 109,738,586 164,595,346

Other operating income 14 24,400,929 30,823,172

134,139,515 195,418,517

Total operating income (A) 703,964,749 819,671,311

Salaries and allowances 15 76,293,503 79,167,097

Rent, taxes, insurance, electricity etc. 16 52,180,898 53,195,625

Legal expenses 2,000 19,500

Postage, stamp, telecommunication etc. 17 6,364,783 9,387,814

Stationery, printing, advertisements etc. 18 4,369,014 5,384,739

Depreciation and repair of bank's assets 19 7,460,809 7,169,372

Other expenses 20 29,866,778 27,784,283

Total operating expenses (B) 176,537,785 182,108,430

527,426,964 637,562,881

Provision for investments 9.1

  General provision (11,576,550) 18,896,392

(51,030,742) (21,752,232)

(62,607,292) (2,855,840)

Provision for off-balance sheet items 9.2 63,685 (27,900,626)

Provision for diminution in value of investments 9.3 (486,819,131) 164,297,424

Total provision (D) (549,362,738) 133,540,958

1,076,789,702 504,021,923
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Particulars Note
Amount in Taka

2020 2019

Southeast Bank Limited
Islamic Banking Branches
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at and for the year ended 31 December 2020

Annexure-G.2

1 Cash

In hand:

Local currency 195,415,439 263,591,680

Foreign currencies 297,395 85,494

195,712,834 263,677,174

Balance with Bangladesh Bank:

Local currency 864,936,884 1,398,101,826

Foreign currencies - - 

864,936,884 1,398,101,826

Balance with Sonali Bank Limited (as agent of Bangladesh Bank):

Local currency 90,467 61,509

865,027,350 1,398,163,335

1,060,740,184 1,661,840,509

1.1

1.1.1 a) Cash Reserve Ratio (CRR) for Islamic Banking

Required reserve (4.00% of average Demand and Time Liabilities) 832,915,600 1,155,277,695

Actual reserve held (Average daily on bi-weekly basis): 864,936,884 1,398,101,826

Surplus 32,021,284 242,824,131

b) Statutory Liquidity Ratio (SLR) for Islamic Banking

Required reserve (5.50 % of average Demand and Time Liabilities) 1,145,258,950 1,155,277,695

Actual reserve held 1,719,715,284 1,457,367,131

Surplus 574,456,334 302,089,436

Held for Statutory Liquidity Ratio of Islamic Banking:

Cash in hand 195,713,000 264,507,000

Balance with agent bank (Sonali Bank Ltd.) as per statement 61,000 36,000

Excess cash reserve 32,021,284 242,824,131

Government Securities (HTM) 1,491,920,000 950,000,000

1,719,715,284 1,457,367,131

2 Balance with other banks and nancial institutions

In Bangladesh 2.1 8,603,988 1,008,357,038
Outside Bangladesh - - 

8,603,988 1,008,357,038

Cash Reserve Ratio (CRR) and Statutory Liquidity Ratio (SLR) have been calculated and maintained in accordance with section 33 of the 
Bank Companies Act 1991, MPD Circular nos. 4 and 5 dated 1 December 2010 and MPD Circular no. 1 and 2 dated 23 June 2014 and 
10 December 2013 and DOS Circular No. 1 dated 19 January 2014 and MPD Circulars No. 1 dated 03 April 2018 and DOS Circular no 
26 dated 19 August 2019 and MPD circular No. 03 dated April 09, 2020.

The  Cash Reserve Ratio on the Shariah-based Islamic Bank's demand and time liabilities at the rate of minimum 3.50% on daily basis and 
4.00% on bi-weekly basis been calculated and maintained with Bangladesh Bank in current account and 5.50% Statutory Liquidity Ratio 
on the same liabilities has also been maintained in the form of treasury bills, bonds and debentures including excess cash reserve balance 
with Bangladesh Bank. Both the reserves maintained by the Bank are in excess of the statutory requirements, as shown below: 
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Particulars Note
Amount in Taka

2020 2019

2.1 In Bangladesh

Current account with:
Sonali Bank Limited 740 740

740 740

Short term deposits account with:
Sonali Bank Limited 1,134 1,134
EXIM Bank Limited 8,602,114 8,355,164

8,603,248 8,356,298
Fixed deposits with other banks:

Social Islamic Bank Limited - 1,000,000,000
- 1,000,000,000

8,603,988 1,008,357,038

3 Investments in shares and securities

Bangladesh Government Islamic Bond 1,491,920,000 950,000,000
Others 3.1 674,760,574 1,734,772,344

2,166,680,574 2,684,772,344
3.1 Others

Shares in listed companies 674,760,574 1,734,772,344
Shares in un-listed companies - - 

674,760,574 1,734,772,344

3.2 Investments classi ed as per Bangladesh Bank Circular

Held to maturity (HTM) 1,491,920,000 950,000,000

Other securities 674,760,574 1,734,772,344

2,166,680,574 2,684,772,344

3.3 Cost and market value of investments

3.3.1 Government securities
2019

Cost price Market price Market price 
Taka Taka Taka

Bangladesh Government Islamic Bond 1,491,920,000 1,491,920,000 950,000,000

1,491,920,000 1,491,920,000 950,000,000

3.3.2 Others (Investment in shares)
2019

Market price Cost price Cost price
Taka Taka Taka

Shares in listed companies 376,072,066 674,760,574 1,734,772,344
Shares in un-listed companies - - - 

376,072,066 674,760,574 1,734,772,344

2020

2020
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Particulars Note
Amount in Taka

2020 2019

4 Investments

Investments 4.1 18,093,949,988 17,598,332,455

Bills purchased and discounted 4.2 314,850,894 361,459,608

18,408,800,882 17,959,792,063

4.1 Investments

In Bangladesh

Demand Investment 336,092,550 888,481,948

Bai-Muajjal (Time) Investment 344,922,440 392,827,368

Bai-Muajjal Time under CCS 70,635,449 82,921,352

Bai-Murabaha-BLC 6,299,491 22,294

Bai-Murabaha-LTR 868,783,132 1,057,138,547

Bai-Salam (PACKING CREDIT) 70,293,069 82,261,921

Staff House Building Investment 22,623,473 13,548,440

Export Development Fund (EDF) against LC 760,722,200 674,178,978

Investment against Cash Incentive 202,847,067 - 

Bai-Muajjal - Investment 3,109,336,413 3,371,439,522

Murabaha - Investment 136,935,362 110,999,291

Hire purchase - Investment 12,164,459,343 10,924,512,794

18,093,949,988 17,598,332,455

Outside Bangladesh - - 

18,093,949,988 17,598,332,455

4.2 Bills purchased and discounted

In Bangladesh 297,970,077 361,459,608

Outside Bangladesh 16,880,817 - 

314,850,894 361,459,608
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Particulars Note
Amount in Taka

2020 2019

5

Cost:
28,542,486 28,029,981

81,620 81,620

Electrical Appliances 33,320,390 30,626,923

Motor Vehicles 2,620,000 2,620,000

ATM Booth 12,863,094 7,029,226

77,427,590 68,387,750

Less: Accumulated depreciation
15,725,942 15,011,205

81,619 81,619

Electrical Appliances 23,202,627 23,328,010

Motor Vehicles 2,620,000 2,183,342

ATM Booth 4,651,912 3,074,368

46,282,100 43,678,544

Written down value as at 31 December 31,145,489 24,709,206

6

i) Stationery, stamps, printing materials, etc. 521,398 576,770

ii) Advance rent and advertisement 16,642,174 25,203,392

iii) Interest accrued on investment but not collected, 

commission and brokerage receivable on shares and

debentures, and other income receivables 134,446,779 9,008,686

iv) Security deposits 69,460 69,460

v) Preliminary, formation and organisational expenses,

renovation, development and prepaid expenses 9,806,151 8,778,327

vii) Suspense account 1,422,745 1,755,520

viii) Silver --  

ix) 2,787,113,719 1,519,984,112

X) Others 4,171,030 3,465,794

2,954,193,456 1,568,842,061

7

In Bangladesh 7.1 139,092,106 1,001,916,667

Outside Bangladesh - - 

139,092,106 1,001,916,667

7.1 In Bangladesh

Secured
Borrowing against securities from Bangladesh Bank - 1,001,916,667

- 1,001,916,667

Unsecured 139,092,106 - 

139,092,106 1,001,916,667

8 Deposits and other accounts

Al-wadeeah current accounts and other accounts

Al-wadeeah current deposits 542,340,119 585,002,713

Foreign currency deposits 154,325,267 234,596,835

Sundry deposits 1,435,267,250 998,136,827

2,131,932,637 1,817,736,376

Bills payable
Payment order issued 99,438,956 107,609,251

T.T. payable 80,630 80,630

Demand draft 52,836 52,836

99,572,422 107,742,717
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Particulars Note
Amount in Taka

2020 2019

Mudaraba savings bank deposits 2,549,946,611 2,165,717,779

Mudaraba xed deposits
Mudaraba xed deposits 13,992,112,535 14,295,762,127
Mudaraba Special notice deposits 2,306,029,809 1,396,932,809
Scheme deposits 1,431,104,864 1,574,720,000
Interest Payable on FDR/Scheme 200,473,058 333,168,270

17,929,720,266 17,600,583,206
22,711,171,937 21,691,780,078

9 Other liabilities

Provision for investments 9.1 356,297,919 413,433,462

Provision for off-balance sheet exposures 9.2 30,547,974 30,484,290

Pro uspense account 745,707,136 587,803,023

Accrued expenses 147,805 862,722

Accounts payable - Bangladesh Bank 5,954 3,726

Accounts payable - others 55,544,133 4,205,700

Provision for diminution in the market value of share 9.3 298,688,508 785,507,639

Unearned income 228,560,194 334,006,098  

Withholding tax 63,733,816 58,309,815
1,779,900,530 2,214,616,475

9.1 Provision for investments

A. General provision for investments

Balance as at 1 January 131,575,141
-    

112,678,750
Provision made during the year 18,896,392

131,575,141 131,575,141
Adjustments made during the year (11,576,550) -
Balance as at 31 December 119,998,591 131,575,141

B. Speci c provision for investments

Balance as at 1 January 281,858,320 254,722,312
Recoveries of amounts previously written off 5,471,750 48,888,241
Provision made during the year - - 

287,330,070 303,610,553
Adjustments made during the year (51,030,742) (21,752,232)
Balance as at 31 December 236,299,328 281,858,320

Total provision on investments (A+B) 356,297,919 413,433,462

9.2 Provision for off-balance sheet exposures

Balance as at 1 January 30,484,290 58,384,916
Provision made during the year 63,685 - 

30,547,974 58,384,916
Adjustments made during the year - (27,900,626)
Balance as at 31 December 30,547,974 30,484,290

9.3 Provision for diminution in the market value of share 

Balance as at 1 January 785,507,639
-

621,210,215
Provision made during the year 164,297,424

785,507,639 785,507,639
Adjustments made during the year (486,819,131) - 

Balance as at 31 December 298,688,508 785,507,639
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Particulars Note
Amount in Taka

2020 2019

10 Contingent liabilities

10.1 Acceptances and endorsements

Acceptance under Letters of credit - Import 303,838,770 429,264,253

Acceptance under Letters of credit - Export 397,965,475 590,131,154

701,804,245 1,019,395,407

10.2 Letters of guarantee

Local 1,187,418,472 904,402,731

Foreign 58,532,000 135,096,000
1,245,950,472 1,039,498,731

10.2.1 Balance for which the Bank is contingently liable in respect of 

guarantee issued favouring:

- - 

Government - - 

- - 

Others 1,245,950,472 1,039,498,731

1,245,950,472 1,039,498,731

10.3 Irrevocable letters of credit (L/C)

Back to back L/C 332,530,456 427,231,858

Others 774,512,242 562,302,927

1,107,042,699 989,534,786

10.4 Bills for collection

Local 650,142,865 642,129,455

Foreign 610,136,150 1,010,676,631

1,260,279,014 1,652,806,086

11.

Demand investment 80,401,583 43,040,783

Bai-Muajjal (Time) investment 41,288,087 114,298,087

Bai-Muajjal time under CCS 6,886,992 10,032,773

Bai-Murabaha-BLC 2,109,934 1,460,707

Bai-Murabaha-LTR 105,886,879 156,847,090

Bai-Salam (PACKING CREDIT) 4,637,562 7,396,112

Staff house building investment - 166,230

Investment against cash incentive 178,180 2,046,929

Bai-Muajjal - Investment 274,050,976 321,282,687

Murabaha - Investment 10,421,092 12,071,830

Hire purchase - Investment 825,408,931 823,906,796
4,464,882 -

938,700 3,476,405

Bills purchased and discounted 39,915,457 48,771,798
360 -

72,738,111 57,816,611

- 350 
588,811,286 593,845,625

2,058,139,012 2,196,460,816
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Particulars Note
Amount in Taka

2020 2019

12.

 Mudaraba Savings Deposits (MSB) 48,426,613 280,283,575

 Mudaraba Short Term Deposits (MSTD) 38,106,712 41,775,746

 Mudaraba Fixed Term Deposits (MFDR) 1,089,196,755 1,102,246,206

2,362,511 3,938,989

43,048,772 31,587,899

267,172,415 112,375,607

1,488,313,778 1,572,208,021

13 Commission, exchange and brokerage

Commission and brokerage 93,003,066 136,412,367

Exchange gain 16,735,520 28,182,978

109,738,586 164,595,346

14 Other operating income

Remittance fees 185 47,318

Service and incidental charges 5,545,624 5,997,988

Other fees-telephone and postage 1,360,302 3,000,463

Income from retail banking 87,539 20,909

Other fees - SWIFT 8,908,965 13,074,012

Miscellaneous income 8,498,314 8,682,482

24,400,929 30,823,172

15 Salaries and allowances

Basic salary 39,618,295 42,292,688

Allowances 26,715,776 26,790,382

Bonus 6,374,211 6,400,767

Provident fund 3,585,221 3,683,260

76,293,503 79,167,097

16 Rent, taxes, insurance, electricity etc.

Rent, rates and taxes 33,212,378 34,253,316

Insurance 15,326,070 14,837,843

Electricity and lighting 3,642,450 4,104,466

52,180,898 53,195,625

17 Postage, stamp, telecommunication etc.

Postage 1,932,475 3,664,865

Telephone /Telex 187,602 258,226

VSAT on-line 1,698,890 1,700,220

SWIFT services 2,545,815 3,764,503

6,364,783 9,387,814

18 Stationery, printing, advertisements etc.

1,979,686 4,356,439

Printing and security stationery 2,385,559 1,018,300

Publicity and advertisement 3,770 10,000

4,369,014 5,384,739
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Particulars Note
Amount in Taka

2020 2019

19 Depreciation and repair of bank's assets

Depreciation:

1,343,232 1,348,659

Electrical appliances 1,653,209 1,602,590

Motor vehicles 436,658 523,996

ATM Booth 1,649,544 1,087,923

5,082,643 4,563,169

Repair:

281,555 488,715

822,624 788,790

Motor vehicles 304,597 239,189

Repair, maintenance and utilities 969,390 1,089,510

2,378,166 2,606,204

7,460,809 7,169,372

20 Other expenses

Security and cleaning  9,467,115 8,186,069

Entertainment 1,208,724 1,932,018

Car expenses 7,372,996 6,235,940

Books and periodicals 15,612 42,880

Donation Including CSR - 89,050

Travelling expenses 61,840 166,963

Conveyance 283,752 287,994

Petrol,oil and lubricant 324,451 312,575

Uniforms and apparels 127,165 101,673 

Expenses relating ATM services 445,178 380,035 

Expenses regarding retail banking 955,030 758,293

IT enabled services 349,837 316,174

Gratuity and others 8,594,651 8,720,251

Others operating expenses 660,428 254,368

29,866,778 27,784,283
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Particulars Note
2020

USD Taka Taka
2019

Southeast Bank Limited

BALANCE SHEET 
As at 31 December 2020

PROPERTY AND ASSETS

Cash
In hand (including foreign currencies) - - - 
Balance with Bangladesh Bank and its agent banks
(including foreign currencies) - - - 

- - - 
Balances with other banks and nancial institutions 3
In Bangladesh - - 558,207,179
Outside Bangladesh 137,379 11,649,764 145,806,434

137,379 11,649,764 704,013,613
Money at Call and on short notice - - 849,000,000
Investments
Government - - - 
Others - - - 

- - - 
Loans and advances 4
Loans, cash credit & overdrafts etc. 110,485,888 9,369,247,503 5,467,946,281
Bills purchased and discounted 119,209,489 10,109,012,385 13,071,107,690

229,695,377 19,478,259,888 18,539,053,971
Fixed assets including premises, furniture and xtures 5 13,965 1,184,255 1,175,649
Other assets 6 137,800 11,685,492 18,177,339
Non-banking assets - - - 
Total assets 229,984,521 19,502,779,399 20,111,420,572

LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL

Liabilities
Borrowings from other banks, nancial institutions and agents 7 206,500,000 17,511,282,600 17,990,310,000
Deposits and other accounts 8
Current accounts and other accounts 5,008,702 424,739,933 909,255,020
Bills payable - - - 
Savings bank deposits - - - 
Fixed deposits 547,210 46,403,658 41,183,492

5,555,912 471,143,591 950,438,512
Other liabilities 9 4,710,250 393,424,809 476,701,201
Total liabilities 216,766,162 18,375,851,000 19,417,449,713

Capital/shareholders' equity
Paid up capital - - - 
Statutory reserve - - - 
Other reserves - - - 
Foreign currency losses - - - 
Retained earnings 10 13,218,359 1,126,928,399 693,970,859
Total shareholders' equity 13,218,359 1,126,928,399 693,970,859
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity 229,984,521 19,502,779,399 20,111,420,572

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ITEMS

Contingent liabilities
Acceptances and endorsements - - - 
Letters of guarantee - - - 
Irrevocable letters of credit - - - 
Bills for collection 28,240,849 2,394,835,301 2,885,409,358
Other contingent liabilities - - - 
Total contingent liabilities 28,240,849 2,394,835,301 2,885,409,358

Other commitments
- - - 
- - - 
- - - 
- - - 

Total other commitments - - - 
Total off-balance sheet items including contingent liabilities 28,240,849 2,394,835,301 2,885,409,358

Documentary credits and short term trade-related transactions
Forward assets purchased and forward deposits placed
Undrawn note issuance and revolving underwriting facilities
Undrawn formal standby facilities, credit lines and other commitments

Annexure-H
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Particulars Note
2020

USD Taka Taka
2019

Southeast Bank Limited

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT 
For the year ended 31 December 2020

Annexure-H.1

Interest income 11 11,390,419 966,682,055 788,928,271

Interest paid on deposits and borrowings etc. 12 (6,566,102) (557,251,922) (604,609,082)

Net interest income 4,824,317 409,430,133 184,319,189

Commission, exchange & brokerage 13 436,232 37,022,108 40,502,351

Other operating income 13.1 189,137 16,051,700 11,479,210

625,369 53,073,808 51,981,561

Total operating income (A) 5,449,686 462,503,940 236,300,750

Salaries and allowances 14 60,032 5,094,827 4,691,388

Rent, taxes, insurance, electricity etc. 15 15,731 1,335,092 985,212 

Postage, stamp, telecommunication 16 21,376 1,814,177 1,354,717

Stationery, printing, advertisements etc. 17 4,936 418,911 201,882

Depreciation and repair of bank's assets 18 3,283 278,599 244,816

Other expenses 19 136,614 11,594,170 5,030,966

Total operating expenses (B) 241,973 20,535,776 12,508,981

5,207,713 441,968,165 223,791,769

Provision for loans and advances

General provision 9.1 110,749 9,391,600 67,941,000

- - - 

110,749 9,391,600 67,941,000

Other provisions 9.2 (21,291) (1,766,711) - 

Total provision (D) 89,458 7,624,889 67,941,000

5,118,255 434,343,276 155,850,769
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Particulars Note
2020

USD Taka Taka
2019

Southeast Bank Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
As at and for the year ended 31 December 2020

1 Status of the unit

 Off-shore Banking Unit (OBU) is a separate business unit of Southeast Bank Limited, governed under the Rules and 
Guidelines of Bangladesh Bank. The Bank obtained permission to operate OBU vide Letter No. BRPD(P-3)744(98)/ 
2008-2213 dated June 24, 2008. In the mean time as per BRPD circular # 2, dated 25 February 2019 we have already 
applied to Bangladesh Bank for conducting Off-shore banking in Bangladesh on 10 July 2019. Presently the Bank has 2 
(2019: 2) off-shore banking units - one at Dhaka Export Processing Zone and the other at Chittagong Export Processing 
Zone. 

 
(EPZ) area. OBU is free to make loans/advances to persons/institutions not resident in Bangladesh and to make 
loans/advances to Type-A (wholly foreign owned) units in the EPZs in Bangladesh. Industrial units outside the EPZs and 
Type-B and Type-C industrial units within the EPZs in Bangladesh may avail term loans in foreign currencies from OBU 
subject to compliance with the guidelines issued by the Board of Investment for borrowing abroad by industrial units 
Bangladesh.

2.1 Basis of preparation

 

in particular, Banking Regulation and Policy Department (BRPD) Circular No. 14 dated June 25, 2003, other Bangladesh 
Bank Circulars and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). 

2.2 Foreign currency

 

Taka. Assets & liabilities and income & expenses have been converted into Taka currency @ US$1 = Tk. 84.8004 (closing 
rate as at 31 December 2020) and Tk. 84.8680 (average rate which represents the year end) respectively.

2.3 Basis of Accounting

 OBU maintains its accounting records in USD from which accounts are prepared according to the Bank Companies Act, 
1991, Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standards and other applicable directives issued by Bangladesh Bank.

2.4 Functional and presentation currency

 The Financial Statements of OBU are presented in both USD and Bangladesh Taka (Taka/Tk.) except as otherwise 

information presented in USD has been rounded into two decimal points. 

3

In Bangladesh 3.1 - - 558,207,179
Outside Bangladesh 3.2 137,379 11,649,764 145,806,434

137,379 11,649,764 704,013,613

3.1 In Bangladesh

Southeast Bank Limited - - 558,207,179
Other commercial bank - - - 

- - 558,207,179

Annexure-H.2
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Particulars Note
2020

USD Taka Taka
2019

3.2 Outside Bangladesh (current account)

Standard Chartered Bank, New York 137,379 11,649,764 145,806,434

Money at call and on short notice
In bank;
Modhumoti Bank Limited - - 169,800,000
BRAC Bank Limited - - 424,500,000
Jamuna Bank Limited - - 254,700,000

- - 849,000,000

4 Loans and advances

Loans, cash credit, overdrafts etc. 4.1 110,485,888 9,369,247,503 5,467,946,281
Bills purchased and discounted 4.2 119,209,489 10,109,012,385 13,071,107,690

229,695,377 19,478,259,888 18,539,053,971

4.1 Loans, cash credit, overdrafts etc.

In Bangladesh - - - 

Outside Bangladesh 4.1.1 110,485,888 9,369,247,503 5,467,946,281
110,485,888 9,369,247,503 5,467,946,281

4.1.1 Outside Bangladesh

Time loan 44,457,405 3,770,005,755 3,167,215,087
Term loan 21,768,777 1,846,001,025 2,164,281,315
Usance Payable at Signt (UPAS) 44,259,705 3,753,240,723 - 
Advance-LTR - - 45,703,062
Loan against foreign bill - - 90,746,817

110,485,888 9,369,247,503 5,467,946,281

4.2 Bills purchased and discounted

In Bangladesh - - - 
Outside Bangladesh 119,209,489 10,109,012,385 13,071,107,690

119,209,489 10,109,012,385 13,071,107,690

5

Cost:
40,730 3,453,923 3,457,980

Electrical appliances 26,727 2,266,497 1,980,458
67,457 5,720,420 5,438,438

Less: Accumulated depreciation
31,938 2,708,337 2,510,672

Electrical appliances 21,554 1,827,827 1,752,116
53,492 4,536,164 4,262,788

Written down value as at 31 December 13,965 1,184,255 1,175,649

6 Other assets

Interest on calls and placements(USD) - - 1,747,406
Prepaid management fee GCPF - - 8,943,000
Interest  Receive Bills purchase/Discount/UPASS 135,173 11,462,756 - 
Interest  Receive Bills purchase/Discount - - 7,271,885
Insurance 97 8,227 8,154

2,397 203,303 203,542
others 132 11,206 3,352

137,800 11,685,492 18,177,339
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Particulars Note
2020

USD Taka Taka
2019

7
and agents

Borrowings from CBQ 3,000,000 254,401,200 1,485,750,000
Borrowings from CAIXABANK, S.A., SPAIN 8,000,000 678,403,200 - 
Borrowings from GCPF 20,000,000 1,696,008,000 1,698,000,000
Borrowings from RAK Bank ,UAE 11,300,000 958,244,520 849,000,000
Borrowings from FGB, UAE 5,500,000 466,402,200 551,850,000
Borrowings from ADB 14,500,000 1,229,605,800 - 
Borrowings from NBM Bank, Nepal - - 849,000,000
Borrowings from SCB, Singapore 35,000,000 2,968,014,000 2,249,850,000
Borrowings from EIB, UAE 17,400,000 1,475,526,960 721,650,000
Borrowings from FM HDFC Bank,Hong Kong 5,000,000 424,002,000 1,273,500,000
Borrowings from HABIB BANK AG 4,400,000 373,121,760 - 
Borrowings from ADCB, UAE 6,000,000 508,802,400 679,200,000
Borrowings from DBS BANK LTD. - - 1,146,150,000
Borrowings from NOOR BANK UAE - - 577,320,000

76,400,000 6,478,750,560 5,909,040,000
206,500,000 17,511,282,600 17,990,310,000

8 Deposit accounts

Current deposits 8.1 5,008,702 424,739,933 909,255,020
Fixed deposits 547,210 46,403,658 41,183,492

5,555,912 471,143,591 950,438,512

8.1 Current deposits

Current accounts 136,833 11,603,486 7,149 
Current A/C USD-Resident 4,865,280 412,577,728 351,040,692
FDD Payable - - 558,207,179
Sundry creditors 6,589 558,718 - 

5,008,702 424,739,933 909,255,020

9 Other liabilities

Accrued interest on borrowing others bank 611,381 51,845,319 77,897,989
Interest payable-CBQ Loan 3,186 270,151 9,162,576
Accrued interest on borrowing from NBM Bank, Nepal - - 5,929,440
Interest payable on RAK Bank, UAE 37,096 3,145,720 6,462,631
Interest payable on FGB, UAE 22,464 1,904,938 112,554
Interest payable on ADB 105,287 8,928,379 -
Accrued interest on borrowing from  EIB, UAE 243,412 20,641,417 21,026,265
Accrued interest on borrowing from SCB, Singapore 235,216 19,946,413 41,048,677
Accrued interest on borrowing from  CAIXABANK, S.A., 34,743 2,946,191 -
Interest payable on borrowing from HABIB BANK AG 33,064 2,803,855 -
Accrued interest on borrowing FM-HDFC Bank, Hong Kong 5,250 445,202 8,852,594
Accrued interest on borrowing from ADCB, UAE 190,752 16,175,877 31,026,848
Accrued interest on borrowing from DBS BANK LTD - - 9,004,848
Accrued interest on borrowing from NOOR BANK UAE - - 464,486
Accrued interest on FDR 1 83 81
Interest Suspense 816,131 69,208,207 78,554,500
AIT & VAT 4,487 380,457 -

9.1 2,367,782 194,782,600 185,391,000
Provision for off-balance sheet exposures 9.2 - - 1,766,711

4,710,250 393,424,809 476,701,201

9.1

Balance as at 1 January 2,257,033 185,391,000 117,450,000
Provision made during the year 110,749 9,391,600 67,941,000

2,367,782 194,782,600 185,391,000
Adjustments made during the year - - - 
Balance as at 31 December 2,367,782 194,782,600 185,391,000
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Particulars Note
2020

USD Taka Taka
2019

9.2 Other provisions

Provision for off-balance sheet exposures
Balance as at 1 January 21,291 1,766,711 1,766,711
Add: Provision made during the year - - - 

21,291 1,766,711 1,766,711
Less: Adjustments made during the year (21,291) (1,766,711) -
Balance as at 31 December - - 1,766,711

10 Retained earnings

Balance as at 1 January 8,100,104 693,970,859 529,276,000
Add/less: foreign currency translation gain/(loss) for last year - (2,771,468) 8,844,089

8,100,104 691,199,390 538,120,089
Addition during the year 5,118,255 434,343,276 155,850,769

13,218,359 1,125,542,666 693,970,859
Add/less: foreign exchange gain (loss) - 1,385,733 - 
Balance as at 31 December 13,218,359 1,126,928,399 693,970,859

11 Interest income on investment

Interest income from loans and advances 2,821,124 239,423,113 253,462,121
Interest on overdraft - - 1,548 
Interest income from bill purchased and discounted 8,524,424 723,450,843 503,231,744
Interest income calls & placement (FCY) 44,871 3,808,099 32,232,859

11,390,419 966,682,055 788,928,271

12 Interest paid on deposits and borrowings etc.

Interest on FDR 50 4,264 3,591 
Interest expense on Borrowing FM other OBU 223,021 18,927,333 - 
Interest expenses -GCPE loan 994,567 84,406,945 108,592,919
Interest on CAIXABANK, S.A., SPAIN 282,344 23,961,979 - 
Interest on CBQ loan 217,728 18,478,120 57,559,324
Interest expenses -Habib bank 33,064 2,806,090 - 
Interest expenses -RAK bank,UAE  340,726 28,916,775 38,486,128
Interest expenses -AXIS BANK LTD. 125,780 10,674,697 - 
Interest expenses FGB, UAE 227,153 19,278,017 32,642,218
Interest expenses ADB 284,953 24,183,404 15,137,946
Interest expense on -HDFC BANK, HONG 215,625 18,299,662 37,212,501
Interest expense on -SCB, Singapore 894,716 75,932,749 103,333,101
Interest expense on -EIB, UAE 527,655 44,781,005 42,355,163
Interest expense on -NMB Bank 337,139 28,612,303 21,231,266
Interest expense on -NOOR BANK UAE 203,599 17,279,074 462,184
Interest expense on -ADCB, UAE 220,295 18,695,983 41,953,358
Interest expense on - DBS BANK LTD 147,165 12,489,599 8,960,216
Interest on calls and placement 1,290,521 109,523,923 96,679,167

6,566,102 557,251,922 604,609,082

13 Commission, exchange & brokerage

Commission and other charges 436,232 37,022,108 40,502,351
436,232 37,022,108 40,502,351

13.1 Other operating income

Other income- SWIFT 57,091 4,845,207 1,923,425
Miscellaneous income 31,524 2,675,379 357,690
Rebate from trade payments 100,522 8,531,115 9,198,095

189,137 16,051,700 11,479,210

14 Salaries and allowances

Basic salary 28,307 2,402,357 2,234,271
Allowances 24,925 2,115,339 1,862,036
Provident fund contribution 2,385 202,445 218,816
Bonus 4,415 374,686 376,265

60,032 5,094,827 4,691,388
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Particulars Note
2020

USD Taka Taka
2019

15 Rent, taxes, insurance, electricity etc.

Rent, rates and taxes 13,269 1,126,138 810,776

Insurance 162 13,720 13,855

Electricity and lighting 2,300 195,235 160,581

15,731 1,335,092 985,212

16 Postage, stamp, telecommunication etc.

Postage 9,265 786,319 258,262

Internet service 2,947 250,107 253,045

SWIFT charges 5,538 469,972 479,851

FC Nostro charges 3,281 278,452 330,229

Telephone 346 29,327 33,330

21,376 1,814,177 1,354,717

17 Stationery, printing, advertisements etc.

Of ce and printing stationery 4,936 418,911 201,882

4,936 418,911 201,882

18 Depreciation and repair of bank's assets

Depreciation on own assets:

Furniture and xtures 2,366 200,771 208,640

Electrical appliances 917 77,828 36,176

3,283 278,599 244,816

19 Other expenses

Entertainment 354 30,003 49,289

Management fee GCPF 105,336 8,939,629 2,433,815

Travelling expenses and allowance - - 13,430

House maintenance (Executive ) 3,953 335,481 251,443

Repair, maintenance and utilities 4,085 346,668 71,130

Books and periodicals 56 4,764 5,380

Conveyance 553 46,912 40,346

Miscellaneous 22,278 1,890,713 2,166,133

136,614 11,594,170 5,030,966
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Southeast Bank Limited
RECONCILIATION OF NET PROFIT WITH CASH FLOWS
FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (STANDALONE BASIS)
For the year ended 31 Dec 2020

Particulars Note
Amount in Taka

2020 2019

Annexure-J

3,055,226,607 4,376,400,210

Adjustment for non-cash items:

Provision for loans and advances/investments 5,025,630,170 4,583,253,727

Provision for diminution in value of investments (117,063,786) 319,600,000

Provision for off- balance sheet items 119,155,200 (389,100,000)

Provision for others assets 60,000,000 65,000,000

Depreciation of property plant and equipment 371,619,324 371,619,324

Recoveries on Loans previously written-off 472,250,468 917,012,200

Foreign exchange gain/(Loss) (1,385,732) 8,844,087

4,074,615 17,150,306

Increase/decrease in operating assets & liabilities:

Loans and advances to customers (28,545,832,588) (29,602,357,424)

Other operating assets   (891,378,600) 222,071,583

Deposits from other banks 5,196,276,440 2,543,908,363

Deposits from customers 31,663,849,413 30,034,109,210

Others operating liabilities (2,161,563,655) 2,136,332,709

Income tax paid (2,881,973,987) (2,074,350,417)

11,368,883,889 13,529,493,878
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Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion:

Southeast Bank Capital Services Ltd. “(The Company)” which comprise the 

at 31 December 2020 and of its Financial Performance and Cash Flows for the year then ended in accordance with International 

Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs), the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Rules 1987 (Amended up to 2020), the 

Companies Act 1994, and other applicable laws and regulations.

Basis for Opinion:

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those 

of Ethics for professional Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of 

opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements: 

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Rules 1987(Amended up to 2020), 

the Companies Act 1994, and other applicable laws and regulations and for such internal control as management determines is 

whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are 

reasonable in the circumstances. 

concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 

management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Financial Statements:

high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material 

misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout 

the audit.

Registered Office:  AHSANDELL, 2/A, Mymensingh Road (2nd Floor), Shahbag, Dhaka-1000, Bangladesh.
Tel: +08802-966-0944, +8802-966-5095, Cell: +8801711-106302, +8801534-130750. E-mail: pinaki_co@yahoo.com website: www.pinaki.com.bd

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To The Shareholders of Southeast Bank Capital Services Limited
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We also: 

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than 
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal 
control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 
disclosures made by management.

ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our 

Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or 
conditions may cause Company's to cease to continue as a going concern. 

solely responsible for our audit opinion. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit 

provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding 
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements: 

According to the, Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Rules 1987(Amended up to 2020), the Companies Act 1994, and other 
applicable laws and regulations.

We also report that:

i. We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for 

ii. In our opinion, proper books of accounts as required by law have been kept by the company and so far as it appeared 
from our examination of those books; 

Income and its Cash Flows dealt with by the report are in agreement with the books of account and returns;

Pinaki Das, FCA
Senior Partner

ICAB Enrol. No: 151
Pinaki & Company

Chartered Accountants
DVC No: 2105060151AS645745 

Dhaka
Dated: 06 May 2021

 

Registered Office:  AHSANDELL, 2/A, Mymensingh Road (2nd Floor), Shahbag, Dhaka-1000, Bangladesh.
Tel: +08802-966-0944, +8802-966-5095, Cell: +8801711-106302, +8801534-130750. E-mail: pinaki_co@yahoo.com website: www.pinaki.com.bd
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Southeast Bank Capital Services Ltd.
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
as at 31 December 2020

PARTICULARS Note
Amount in Taka

31-12-2020 31-12-2019

ASSETS

A. 524,253,898 570,070,927

Property, Plant and Equipments Note- 04 524,253,898 570,070,927

B. CURRENT ASSETS 5,563,722,813 5,313,279,815

Margin Loan Note- 05 1,883,303,310 1,737,849,955

Accounts Receivable Note- 06 170,732,240 2,413,398

Advances, Deposits and Prepayments Note- 07 145,831,997 124,422,634

Investment in Quoted Shares Note- 08 2,717,040,856 2,653,052,480

Investment in Unquoted Shares Note- 09 172,600,000 172,600,000

Cash and Cash Equivalents Note- 10 24,214,410 22,941,348

Fixed Deposit With SEBL Note- 11 450,000,000 600,000,000

C. TOTAL ASSETS [A + B] 6,087,976,711 5,883,350,742

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

D. CAPITAL AND RESERVE 5,571,825,649 5,501,426,343

Share Capital Note- 12 5,500,000,000 5,500,000,000

Retained Earnings Note- 13 71,825,649 1,426,343

E. NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES - - 

- - 

F. CURRENT LIABILITIES 516,151,062 381,924,399

Margin Deposit Note- 14 110,261,276 75,754,716

Collection in Transit Note- 15 85,555,452 21,705,172

Provision for Corporate Income Tax Note- 16 152,742,137 119,412,143

Provision for Diminution in Value of Investments Note- 17 153,692,107 153,692,107

Accrued Expenses Note- 18 380,000 150,000

Other Liabilities Note- 19 13,520,090 11,210,261

G. TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES [D + E + F] 6,087,976,711 5,883,350,742

NON-CURRENT ASSETS 

Dhaka
Dated: 06 May 2021

Pinaki Das, FCA
Senior Partner

ICAB Enrol. No. 151
Pinaki & Company

Chartered Accountants
DVC No: 2105060151AS645745

 

Managing Director Chairman Director
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Southeast Bank Capital Services Ltd.
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
for the year ended 31 December 2020

PARTICULARS Note
Amount in Taka

2020 2019

25,318,403 8,877,856
3,093,069 1,695,051

198,200 143,950
9,890,451 3,716,609

Commission on Underwriting 75,000 227,500
Commission on Issue Management - 160,000
Income on Investment in Shares 42,176,605 10,075,202
Dividend Income 59,759,189 62,801,612
Interest On Fixed Deposit 41,443,750 26,393,750
Other Income Note- 20 4,274,390 4,742,940
Interest on SND Acc. 43,181 94,018

Total Income 186,272,238 118,928,488

Note- 21 13,591,240 13,775,340
Note- 22 - 1,565,513

127,219 284,142
22,400 67,446

155,896 424,756

Car Maintenance 699,640 681,395

House Service & Utilities 258,000 258,000
House Maintenance 1,432,680 1,432,680
Telephone & Postage 160,393 159,151

12,271,248 13,435,068

Other Rates & Taxes 482,800 916,620
458,199 561,281

CDBL Expenses 701,317 877,097
684,780 871,805
402,412 44,457
120,000 176,000

Fuel and Lubricant 215,450 372,950
Advertisement 29,200 - 
Audit Fees 92,000 69,000
Professional Service Charge 588,416 609,500
Corporate Expenses (Subscription) 150,000 350,000
Utilities Charges (Repair, Maintenance & Utilities) 1,033,784 1,048,241
Gratuity Expense 500,000 501,000
Training & Seminar - 11,890
Electricity & Lighting Expenses 680,309 1,000,525
Depreciation 47,685,555 53,005,764

Total Expenses 82,542,938 92,499,621

103,729,300 26,428,867
Less: Provision for Income Tax 33,329,994 25,279,358

70,399,306 1,149,509

Settlement Fees

Financial Expenses

Interest on Portfolio Loan

Misc. Contractual Services

Documentation Charge

Income:

Local Conveyances

Miscellaneous Expenses

Printing & Stationery 

Less: Expenses:

Portfolio Management Fee

Bank Charges

Entertainment

Salary & Allowances

Director Remuneration

Dhaka
Dated: 06 May 2021

Pinaki Das, FCA
Senior Partner

ICAB Enrol. No. 151
Pinaki & Company

Chartered Accountants
DVC No: 2105060151AS645745

 

Managing Director Chairman Director
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(Amount in Taka)

Balance as on 01.01.2020 5,500,000,000 - 1,426,343 5,501,426,343

Net pro Loss) for the year - 70,399,306 70,399,306

Balance as on 31.12.2020 5,500,000,000 - 71,825,649 5,571,825,649

(Amount in Taka)

Balance as on 01.01.2019 5,500,000,000 - 276,834 5,500,276,834

  Net pro Loss) for the year - 1,149,509 1,149,509

Balance as on 31.12.2019 5,500,000,000 - 1,426,343 5,501,426,343

Share  Capital
 General 
Reserve  

 Retained 
Earnings   Total 

Total Particulars Share  Capital
General 
Reserve 

Retained 
Earnings  

Particulars 

Southeast Bank Capital Services Ltd.
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

for the year ended 31 December 2020

for the year ended 31 December 2019

Managing Director Chairman Director
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Southeast Bank Capital Services Ltd.
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
for the year ended 31 December 2020

PARTICULARS
Amount in Taka

2020 2019

Cash ow from operating activities 

Cash receipt from Customer (143,000,439) 26,958,773

Cash Received from Others 101,151,464 47,155,002

Cash paid to Employee and Suppliers (32,317,554) (38,878,198)

Advances, Deposits and Prepayments (4,556,250) 267,515

Income Tax Paid (16,853,113) (34,183,146)

Margin Loan (145,453,355) 729,567,292

Margin Deposit 34,506,560 38,222,354

Advance Received for Rent - (1,125,860)

Collection in Transit 63,850,280 (1,807,194)

Net cash used by operating activities (142,672,406) 766,176,539

Cash ow from investing activities 

Investment in Quoted Shares (63,988,376) (99,856,241)

Acquisition of Fixed Asset (1,868,526) (73,824,391)

Fixed Deposite With SEBL 150,000,000 (600,000,000)

Interest on SND 43,181 94,018

Income from Dividend 59,759,189 62,801,612

Net cash provided from investing activities 143,945,468 (710,785,002)

Cash ow from ancing activities 

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Overdraft - (54,208,826)

Net Increase/(Decrease) ICB Loan- Pronodona Scheme - (1,565,513)

Net cash used in ancing activities - (55,774,339)

Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,273,062 (382,803)

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Opening Balance 22,941,348 23,324,151

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Closing Balance 24,214,410 22,941,348

Managing Director Chairman Director
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Southeast Bank Capital Services Ltd.

1.0 Legal Status and Nature of the Company

 Southeast Bank Capital Services Limited hereinafter referred to as "the Company” incorporated in Bangladesh as a public 

limited company on 23.09.2010 under the Companies Act 1994 and granted registration number C-87139/10

 The company operates its activities from Eunoos Trade Center, 52/53 Dilkusha C/A, Dhaka-1000.

1.2 Nature of Business Activities: 

 The main object of Southeast Bank Capital Services Limited is to carry on the business of merchant banking under the 

Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (Merchant Banking and Portfolio Management) Rules 1996. 

2.1  Statement of Compliance

International Accounting Standards (IAS) and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), the Bangladesh 

Securities and Exchange Rules 1987(Amended up to 2020), Companies Act 1994 and other applicable laws and 

regulations. 

2.2  Measurement Bases Used in Preparing the Financial Statements

International Accounting Standard Board (IASB). 

2.3  Going Concern

continue the operation of the company in the foreseeable future.

2.4  Components of Financial Statements:

 According to International Accounting Standard (IAS) 1, as adopted by ICAB as IAS - I "Presentation of Financial 

i) Statement of Financial Position 

iii) Statement of Changes in Equity

iv) Statement of Cash Flows and 

v) Notes to the Financial Statements.

3.0 Principal Accounting Policies: 

3.1 Cash Flow Statement

activities have been presented under Direct Method as prescribed by the Securities and Exchange Rules 1987 and 

considering the provisions of Paragraph 18(b) of IAS-7 which provides that "Enterprises are encouraged to report Cash 

Flow from Operating Activities using the Direct Method" .

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2020
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3.2  Reporting currency and Level of Precision:

Taka.

3.3

loan which were considered totally unrealizable and as such kept the same out of interest during the year.

3.4 Total Negative Equity as on 31 December 2020 is BDT 284.07 Crore (including interest) out of which a net amount of BDT 

3.5 The circular no. weGmBwm/mv‡f©Bj¨vÝ/gyLcvÎ (5g LÛ)/2019/196 dated 16 July 2020, would be considered in due course.

3.6 Others: 

a) There is no claim against the company, which has not been acknowledged as debt in the Statement of Financial 

Position. 

b) There was no contingent liability as on 31-12-2020. 

c) Figures of the previous year have been rearranged, wherever considered necessary to conform to current year's 

presentation. 

d) Investment in shares (Note: 08) has been restated in quoted and unquoted for fair presentation.
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Southeast Bank Capital Services Ltd.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
as at 31 December 2020

PARTICULARS
Amount in Taka

31-12-2020 31-12-2019

4. Property, Plant and Equipments

Written Down Value (a-b) 524,253,898 570,070,927

Cost value

Opening Balance - At Cost 816,073,827 742,249,436

Add: Addition during the year -At Cost 1,868,526 73,824,391

817,942,353 816,073,827

Less : Adjustment during the year - - 

Closing Balance (a) 817,942,353 816,073,827

Accumulated Depreciation

Opening Balance 246,002,900 192,997,136

Add: Charged during the year 47,685,555 53,005,764

293,688,455 246,002,900

Less : Adjustment during the year - - 

Closing Balance (b) 293,688,455 246,002,900

05 Margin Loan 1,883,303,310 1,737,849,955

Opening Balance 1,737,849,955 2,467,417,247

Add: During the year 2,497,285,759 1,438,193,611

4,235,135,714 3,905,610,858

Less: Received during the year 2,351,832,404 2,167,760,903

06 Accounts Receivable 170,732,240 2,413,398

BLI Securities Ltd. 21,297,650 1,221,222

AD Holdings Ltd. 10,650,550 44,671

National Securities & Consultants Ltd. - 112,605

Int. Leasing Securities Ltd. 3,171,065 1,034,900

Accounts Receivable (Others) 135,612,975 - 

07 Advances, Deposits and Prepayments 145,831,997 124,422,634

Corporate Income Tax Note- 07.1 141,275,747 124,422,634

Advance Payment For Decoration 4,556,250 - 

07.1 Corporate Income Tax 141,275,747 124,422,634

As per Last Account 124,422,634 90,239,488

Add: Addition during the year (Advance Income Tax) 16,853,113 15,930,950

141,275,747 106,170,438

Add: Paid by Pay order for the year 2015-16 - 16,152,196

Add: Paid by Pay order for the year 2019-20 - 2,100,000

141,275,747 124,422,634

Less : Adjustment during the year - - 

Details of Property, Plant and Equipments and Depreciation as on 31 December 2020
are shown in the annexed Schedule - A. This is arrived at as follows: 

NOTES
NO.
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Southeast Bank Capital Services Ltd.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
as at 31 December 2020

PARTICULARS
Amount in Taka

31-12-2020 31-12-2019
NOTES

NO.

08 Investment in Quoted Shares Note- 08.1 2,717,040,856 2,653,052,480

Openinig Balance 2,653,052,480 2,553,196,239

Add: Net investment during the year 63,988,376 99,856,241

08.1 The total amount is invested as under:

Exim Bank Ltd. 118,114,786 118,114,786

Prime Bank Ltd. 98,023,641 92,692,776

City Bank Ltd. 46,962,061 -   

IFIC Bank Ltd. - 39,843,728

Trust Bank Ltd 6,757,536 5,491,750

Dhaka Bank Ltd 19,225,068 19,225,068

Pubali Bank Ltd 10,678,829 10,678,829

Bay Leasing & Investment Ltd. 382,935,045 382,935,045

National Life Insurance Co. Ltd. 1,462,000,069 1,462,000,069

Asia Insurance Co. Ltd. 168,881,662 39,043,100

Delta Life Insurance Co. Ltd. 69,679,950 77,446,334

GPH Ispat 7,442,540 13,423,697

KDS Accessories Ltd. - 5,206,470

Western Marine Shipyard Ltd. 18,267,021 16,390,126

Runner Auto Mobiles Ltd. - 540,450

Eastland Insurance Company Ltd. 69,873,047 -

BBS Cables 13,242,212 14,978,451

Mobil Jamuna Ltd. - 7,918,849

Phoenix Insurance 60,063,787 -

GBB Power Ltd. 8,554,118 12,157,161

United Power Goneration & Distribution Cr. - 8,539,303

Barka Power Ltd. 20,782,817 26,621,347

Mozaffar Hossain Spining Mills Ltd. - 13,208,578

Khulna Power Company ltd. 9,671,227 10,795,841

Argon Denims Ltd. 9,572,078 13,082,641

Queen South Textile Ltd. - 6,180,863

Dominage Sreel Building Systems Ltd. 17,187 -

Esquire Knit Composit Ltd. 944,145 944,145

Orion Pharma Ltd. - 17,430,133

AFC Agro Biotech Ltd. 25,186,743 25,186,743

Active Fine Chemicals Lyd. 2,697,032 13,358,729

Silco Pharmaceuticals Ltd. - 39,837

BSCCL - 12,709,104

Boshundhora Paper Mills Ltd. - 13,788,460

Meghna Petrolem 5,182,540 -

Con dence Cement Ltd. 14,593,107 19,756,818

ADN Telecom Ltd. - 569,040

Heidelberg Cement Ltd. 7,722,742 15,025,917

Unique Hotels & Resorts Ltd. 20,191,273 20,191,273

Robi Axita Ltd. 1,412,530 -

Beximco Ltd. - 50,617,769

ACI Formulations - 9,141,395

C & N Textiles - 10,106,933
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Southeast Bank Capital Services Ltd.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2020

PARTICULARS
Amount in Taka

31-12-2020 31-12-2019
NOTES

NO.

FAS Finance & Investment 7,943,936 16,790,971

Uttara Finance 8,747,696 10,490,793

Energypac Power Generation Ltd. 5,000,000 - 

Shasha Denims Ltd. 2,588,100 6,687,857

Sea Pear Beach Resort 17,764 37,300

Nurani Dyeing &Sweater Ltd. 8,580,180 9,957,338

Olympic Industries - 3,559,149

Ring Shine Textile Ltd. 493,695 107,540

Delta Brac Housing Finance Ltd. 4,649,683 - 

New Line Clothing 345,009 39,974

2,717,040,856 2,653,052,480

09 Investment in Unquoted Shares 172,600,000 172,600,000

VIPB(Non Listed) 3,500,000 3,500,000

Lub-rref (BD) Ltd. 127,500,000 127,500,000

BD Thai Food & Beveridge Ltd. 41,600,000 41,600,000

10 Cash and Cash Equivalents 24,214,410 22,941,348

Cash in hand - - 

Cash at bank Note - 10.1 24,214,410 22,941,348

10.1 Cash at Bank 24,214,410 22,941,348

Southeast Bank Ltd -CD A/C- 1100007409 81,875 82,565

Southeast Bank Ltd -SND-13100000785 14,089,085 13,959,877

Southeast Bank Ltd -Al- Wadiah A/C- 11100006778 10,043,450 8,898,906

11 Fixed Deposite With SEBL 450,000,000 600,000,000

FDR-Southeast Bank Ltd. (Corporate Br.) 450,000,000 600,000,000

11.1 Fixed Deposite With SEBL 450,000,000 600,000,000

Opening Balance 600,000,000

Add: During the year 280,000,000 -

-

 

880,000,000 - 

Less: Encashment during the year 430,000,000 - 

12 Share Capital

Authorised Capital

600,000,000 shares of TK. 10/- each 6,000,000,000 6,000,000,000

Issued and Subscribed Capital

550,000,000 shares of TK. 10/- each 5,500,000,000 5,500,000,000

Paid up Capital

550,000,000 shares of TK. 10/- each 5,500,000,000 5,500,000,000

13 Retained Earnings 71,825,649 1,426,343

Opening Balance 1,426,343 276,834

Add: Pro Loss) during the year 70,399,306 1,149,509
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Southeast Bank Capital Services Ltd.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2020

PARTICULARS
Amount in Taka

31-12-2020 31-12-2019

Amount in Taka

2020 2019

NOTES
NO.

14 Margin Deposit 110,261,276 75,754,716

Opening Balance 75,754,716 37,532,362

Add: During the year 498,010,577 297,501,997

573,765,293 335,034,359

Less: Paid during the year 463,504,017 259,279,643

15 Collection in Transit 85,555,452 21,705,172

Opening Balance 21,705,172 23,512,365

Add: Received during the year 3,281,772,797 3,343,242,338

3,303,477,969 3,366,754,703

Less: Paid during the year 3,217,922,517 3,345,049,531

16 Provision for Income Tax 152,742,137 119,412,143

Opening Balance 119,412,143 94,132,785

Add: Addition during the year 33,329,994 25,279,358

152,742,137 119,412,143

Less : Adjustment during the year - - 

17 Provision for Diminution in Value of Investments 153,692,107 153,692,107

Opening Balance 153,692,107 153,692,107

Add:/(Less): During the year - - 

18 Accrued Expenses 380,000 150,000

CDBL Bill 288,000 80,000

Audit Fee 92,000 69,000

News paper Bill - 1,000

19 Other Liabilities 13,520,090 11,210,261

Accounts Payable (Others) 1,098,763 1,904,774

IPO Application Fund 11,921,327 8,805,487

Provision for Gratuity 500,000 500,000

20 Other Income 4,274,390 4,742,940

Rental Income 4,273,920 4,731,840

Miscellaneous Income 470 11,100

21 Salary & Allowances 13,591,240 13,775,340

Salary & Allowances 9,949,800 9,735,600

Festival Bonus 997,720 962,020

Incentive Bonus - 454,760

Leave Fare Concession 2,064,960 2,064,960

Provident Fund Contribution 578,760 558,000

22 Financial Expenses - 1,565,513

Interest on ICB Loan - 1,565,513
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Financial Statements of 
SOUTHEAST EXCHANGE COMPANY

(SOUTH AFRICA) PTY LTD.
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Country of incorporation and domicile South Africa

Nature of business and principal activities Facilitator of funds remittance 

Directors Alamgir Kabir 

M Kamal Hossain

Registered of e and Business address 9 Dolly Rathebe Road

Corner Mint Road

Fordsburg

Johannesburg

2092

Tax reference number 9084402180

Holding company 

incorporated in Bangladesh 

Bankers Standard Bank of South Africa

Southeast Bank Limited

First National Bank

ABSA Bank

Nedbank

Auditors GL Palmer and Company 

Registered Auditors 

Level of Assurance 

Preparer 

IA Seedat CA(SA)

Issued 29 January 2021

applicable requirements of the South African Reserve Bank

SOUTHEAST EXCHANGE COMPANY (SOUTH AFRICA) PTY. LTD.
Annual Financial Statements For The Year Ended 31 December 2020

GENERAL INFORMATION
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Opinion

company) Set out on pages 10 to 21 which comprise the Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2020 and the 

then ended in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standard for Small and Medium-sized Entities and the 
requirements of the Companies Act 71 of 2008.

Basis for opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing. Our responsibilities under those standards 

are independent of the company in accordance with the Independent Regulatory Board for Auditors Code of Professional 

accordance with other ethical requirements applicable to performing audits in South Africa. The IRBA Code in consistent with the 
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International 

our opinion. 

Key audit matters

statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion of these matters. 

We have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our report.

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the 

Detailed Income Statement,  which we obtained prior to the date of this report. The other information does not include the annual 

form of assurance conclusion thereon.

in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed on the other information 

are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the shareholder of Southeast Exchange Company (South Africa) (Proprietary) Limited

6 on 1st Avenue, Dunvegan
Edenvale, Johannesburg, 1609
PO Box 220, Bruma 2026
Docex 9 Eastgate
E-mail: info@glpalmer.com
Tel: (+27-11) 616-0721/31
Fax: (+27-11) 616-0736G.L. PALMER AND COMPANY

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS (SA)

PARTNERS: KP Christou   MM Zackey
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Responsibilities of the directors for the Annual Financial Statements

International Financial Reporting Standard for Small and Medium-sized Entities and the requirements of the Companies Act 71 of 

statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
the directors either intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the Annual Financial Statements

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable 
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the International 
Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and 

As part of an audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

*

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is 
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 
disclosures made by the directors.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors' use of the going concern basis of accounting and based on the audit 

disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the 

going concern. 

*

fair presentation.

GL PALMER AND COMPANY
Registered Auditors
KP Christou (CA) SA
Partner
Johannesburg
29 January 2021
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Alamgir Kabir M Kamal Hossain

Bangladesh

The directors are required by the Companies Act 71 of 2008,  to maintain adequate accounting records and are responsible  for  

Financial Reporting  Standard  for  Small  and Medium-sized  Entities. The  external  auditor  is  engaged  to  express  an  

Medium-sized Entities and are based upon appropriate accounting policies consistently applied and supported by reasonable and 
prudent judgments and estimates.

company and place considerable  importance on maintaining a  strong control environment. To  enable  the  directors to meet  
these  responsibilities, the  board sets  standards  for  internal  control  aimed  at reducing  the  risk  of  error  or  loss  in  a  cost  

accounting procedures and adequate segregation of duties  to ensure an acceptable  level of  risk. These controls are monitored  

business  is conducted in a manner that in all reasonable circumstances is above reproach. The focus of risk management in the  
company is  on  identifying,   assessing,   managing  and  monitoring  all  known  forms  of  risk  across  the Company. While operating 
risk cannot be fully eliminated, the company endeavours to minimize it by ensuring that  appropriate  infrastructure, controls,   
systems  and  ethical  behavior  are  applied  and  managed  within predetermined procedures and constraints.

The directors are of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by management, that the system of internal  

material misstatement or loss. 

operational existence for the foreseeable future.

by the board on 29 January 2021.

SOUTHEAST EXCHANGE COMPANY (SOUTH AFRICA) PTY. LTD.
Annual Financial Statements For The Year Ended 31 December 2020

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES AND APPROVAL
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SOUTHEAST EXCHANGE COMPANY (SOUTH AFRICA) PTY. LTD.
Annual Financial Statements For The Year Ended 31 December 2020

DIRECTORS' REPORT

(Proprietary) Limited  for the year ended 31 December 2020.

1.    Nature of business 

Southeast Exchange Company (South Africa) (Proprietary) Limited was incorporated and operates in South Africa with interests in the 

facilitator of funds remittance industry.

There have been no material changes to the nature of the Company's business from the prior year.

- sized Entities and the requirements of the Companies Act 71 of 2008. The accounting policies have been applied consistently compared to 

the prior year.

3.   Share capital

There have been no changes to the authorised or issued share capital during the year under review (2019-No Change).

4.    Control over unissued shares 

The unissued ordinary shares are the subject of a general authority granted to the directors in terms of section 38 of the Companies Act 71 

of 2008. As this general authority remains valid only until the next AGM, the shareholder will be asked at that meeting to consider an ordinary 

resolution placing the said unissued ordinary shares under the control of the directors until the next AGM.

5.    Dividends

A dividend of R10 619 236 was declared and paid to the shareholder during the year under review (2019-R6 250 000)

Number of SharesParticulars
2020 2019

Authorised                                                                                                                                
Ordinary shares issued at R1 each    4 000 4 000 

Number of SharesR
2020 20192020 2019

Issued                                                                                                                                 
Ordinary shares of R1 par value                             120 120 120 120
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6.   Directors

Directors

Alamgir Kabir
M Kamal Hossain

7.    Directors' interests in contracts 

affected the business of the company.

8.    Property,  plant and equipment 
There was no change in the nature of the property,  plant and equipment of the Company or in the policy regarding their use.

At 31 December 2020 the company's investment in property plant and equipment amounted to R1 406 362 (2019- R1 438 615) of which 

R317 322 (2019 - R1 069 414) was added in the current year through additions.

9.     Special resolutions 

were made by the company during the period covered by this report .

10.  Events after the reporting period
The directors are not aware of any material event which occurred after the reporting date and up to the date of this report.

11.  Going concern 
On 11 March 2020, the World Health Organization declared the outbreak of the corona virus (COVID-19) as a global pandemic. As a result, 

economic uncertainties have arisen and consumer spending has reduced thereby affecting local and international trade. Whilst these events 

have had an impact on the company's operations to date, there will be further implications on the company's results of operations if the 

weakened economic environment continues.

estimated.

are not aware of any new material changes that may adversely impact the company. The directors are also not aware of any material 

non-compliance with statutory or regulatory requirements or of any pending changes to legislation which may affect the company.

12.  Litigation statement 
The Company is not currently involved in any claims or lawsuits,  which individually or in the aggregate,  are expected to have a material 

adverse effect on the business or its assets. 

13.   Auditors

At the AGM,  the shareholder will be requested to reappoint GL Palmer and company as the independent external auditors of the company 

SOUTHEAST EXCHANGE COMPANY (SOUTH AFRICA) PTY. LTD.
Annual Financial Statements For The Year Ended 31 December 2020

DIRECTORS' REPORT
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14.   Secretaries 

The company secretaries are GLP Secretarial Services CC.

Postal address 
PO Box 220

Bruma

Johannesburg 

2026

Business address
6 on 1st Avenue

Dunvegan

Edenvale

1609

SOUTHEAST EXCHANGE COMPANY (SOUTH AFRICA) PTY. LTD.
Annual Financial Statements For The Year Ended 31 December 2020

DIRECTORS' REPORT
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2020

Assets 

Non-current Assets 

Property  plant and equipment 1 406 362 1 438 615

Current Assets 

Trade and other receivables 4 984 425 2 784 089

Current tax receivable 240 703

Cash and cash equivalents 1 695 1333 21 141 488

21 935 758 24 166 280

To  Assets 23 342 120 25 604 895

Equity and es 

Equity 

Share capital 120 120

on-distributable reserve 6 632 059 6 632 059

Retained income 10 189 912 13 619 236

16 822 091 20 251 415

Lia es 

Non-Current Lia es 
84 674 178 846Instalment sale obligations

Current Lia es 

Trade and other payables 5 790 180 4 801 107

Instalment sale obligations

2

3

4

5

6

7

6 119 063 123 527

Current tax payable 526 112 -

-

                    

Dividend tax payable - 250 000

6 435 355 5 174 634

To  Lia es 6 520 029 5 353 480

To  Equity and Lia es 23 342 120 25 604 895

SOUTHEAST EXCHANGE COMPANY (SOUTH AFRICA) PTY. LTD.
Annual Financial Statements For The Year Ended 31 December 2020

Figures in Rand Note 2020 2019
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STATEMENT OF  COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
SOUTHEAST EXCHANGE COMPANY (SOUTH AFRICA) PTY. LTD.
Annual Financial Statements For The Year Ended 31 December 2020

Figures in Rand Note 2020 2019

Revenue 8 16 705 117 15 559 052

Operating expenses (7 780 224) (7 719 409)

Operating pr 8 924 893 7 839 643

Investment revenue 9 1 053 363 1 306 939

Finance costs 10 (22 232) (49 991)

Pr  efore taxation 9 956 024 9 096 591

Taxation 11 (2 766 112) (2 559 297)

Pr  for the year 7 189 912 6 537 294

Other comprehensive income - -                    

To  Co prehensive  for the year 7 189 912 6 537 294
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Non-

reserve 

RetainedFigures in Rand 

B e at 01 January 2019 120 6 632 059 13 331 942 19 964 121

Pro  or the year - -  6 537 294 6 537 294

Other comprehensive income - -  -  -  

To  rehensive  for the period - -  6 537 294 6 537 294

Dividends -  -  

-  

(6 250 000) (6 250 000)

To  Changes -  (6 250 000) (6 250 000)

B e at 01 January 2020 120 6 632 059 13 619 236 20 251 415

Pro  or the year -  7 189 912 7 189 912

Other comprehensive income -

-

-

-

 -  -  -  

- -  7 189 912 7 189 912

Dividends -  (10 619 236) (10 619 236)

To  Changes -  (10 619 236) (10 619 236)

B e at 31 Dece r 2020 120 6 632 059 10 189 912 16 822 091

ote 5

To  rehensive  for the year 

STATEMENT OF  CHANGES IN EQUITY 
SOUTHEAST EXCHANGE COMPANY (SOUTH AFRICA) PTY. LTD.
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STATEMENT OF  CASH FLOWS
SOUTHEAST EXCHANGE COMPANY (SOUTH AFRICA) PTY. LTD.

Figures in Rand Note 2020 2019

Cash ows fro  operating activities 

Cash generated om operations 13 8 063 205 2 727 255

Interest income 1 053 363 1 306 939

Finance costs (22 232) (49 991)

Tax paid 14 (1 999 297 (2 883 333)

Net cash fro  operating activities 7 095 039 1 100 870

Cash ows fro  investing  activities 

Purchase o  property,  plant and equipment 2 (317 322) (1 069 414)

Cash ows fro  nancing activities 

Movement in instalment sale obligation (98 636) (87 189)

Dividends paid (10 869 236) (6 000 000)

Net Cash ows fro  nancing activities (10 967 872) (6 087 189)

To  cash ove  for the year (4 190 155) (6 055 733)

Cash at the beginning o  the year 21 141 488 27 197 221

To  cash at end of the year 4 16 951 333 21 141 488

15
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impairment losses.

 Property, Plant & equipment is initially measured at cost. 

1.2 Leases

lessee. All other leases are operating leases.

payments are not on that basis, or

Any contingent rents are expensed in the period they are incurred. 

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
SOUTHEAST EXCHANGE COMPANY (SOUTH AFRICA) PTY. LTD.

Ite Depreciation Method Average use  fe

Leasehold improvements Straight line 5 years 

Motor vehicles Straight line 10 years 

O e equipment Straight line 3 years 

Computer equipment Straight line 3-5 years 
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Financial instruments are initially measured at the transaction price (including transaction costs except in the initial 

Commitments to receive a loan are measured at cost less impairment.

Consideration  paid or received shall be recognised directly in equity.

1.5 Revenue

1.6 Foreign exchange

Foreign currency transactions

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
SOUTHEAST EXCHANGE COMPANY (SOUTH AFRICA) PTY. LTD.
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1.7 Tax

the reporting date.

and unused tax credits.

Tax expenses

event that resulted in the tax expense.

1.8 Borrowing costs

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
SOUTHEAST EXCHANGE COMPANY (SOUTH AFRICA) PTY. LTD.
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2.    Property,  and equip ent 

Cost Cost Accu u ed
depreciation

Accu u ed
depreciation

Computer equipment  747 065  (460 619)  286 446  6 88 896  (344 452)  344 444 

Leasehold improvements  1 580 256  (838 634)  741 622  1 356 582 (647 743)  708 839 

Motor vehicles  399 987  (65 262)  334 725  399 987 (37 254)  362 733 

O e equipment  142 724  (99 155)  43 569  107 245  (84 646)  22 599 

To 2 870 032 (1 463 670) 1 406 362 2 552 710 (1 114 095) 1 438 615

Re iation of property,  and equip ent - 2020

Computer equipment 344 444 58 169  (116 167) 286 446

Leasehold improvements 708 839 223 674  (190 891) 741 622

Motor vehicles 362 733 -  (28 008) 334 725

O e equipment 22 599 35 479  (14 509) 43 569

1 438 615 317 322 (349 575) 1 406 362

Re iation of property,  and equip ent - 2019

Opening Additions Depreciation

Opening Additions Depreciation

Computer equipment 103 307 319 021  (77 884) 344 444

Leasehold improvements 110 002 730 782  (131 975) 708 839

Motor vehicles 399 209 -  (36 746) 362 733

O e equipment 28 401 19 611  (25 413) 22 599

640 919 1 069 414 (272 018) 1 438 615

Property,  and equip ent he  as security

The ollo ing asset have bee secured long-term borro ings 

Motor vehicles 334 725 362 733

Motor vehicles are held under a nce lease.

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SOUTHEAST EXCHANGE COMPANY (SOUTH AFRICA) PTY. LTD.
Annual Financial Statements For The Year Ended 31 December 2020

Figures in Rand 2020 2019

20192020
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3.        Trade and other receiv s 

Accrued income 7 388 40 512

Cash in transit  4 643 920 2 313 580

Deposits  194 919 194 919

Prepayments  138 198 228 198

Sundry debtors  - 6 880

 4 984 425 2 784 089

4.      Cash and cash equiv ents

Cash and cash equivalents consist o

Cash on hand  289 39 949

Bank balances  16 951 044 21 101 539

 16 951 333 21 141 488

5.        Share 

Authorised

4000 Ordinary shares issued at R1 per share 4 000 4 000

Issued

120 Ordinary shares issued at R1 per share 120 120

6. 

ithin one year  119 063 123 527

-In second year to th year inclusive  99 219 226 466

 218 282 349 993

Less  uture nce charges  (14 545) (47 620)

Present va e of n u  ease pay ents  203 737 302 373

on-current liabilities  84 674 178 846

Current liabilities  119 063 1 23 527

 203 737 302 373

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SOUTHEAST EXCHANGE COMPANY (SOUTH AFRICA) PTY. LTD.
Annual Financial Statements For The Year Ended 31 December 2020

Figures in Rand 2020 2019
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7.     Trade and other es

Trade payables  5 518 162 4 466 309

Value added tax  128 694 1 16 479

 135 000 131 000

Other payables  8 324 87 319

 5 790 180 4 801107

8.     Revenue

Exchange gain income 7 084 305 4 329 975

Online charge 489 679 584 699

9 131 133 10 644 378

16 705 117 15 559 052

9.     

Interest revenue 

Bank 1 049 386 1 306 939       

SARS 3 977

1 053 363 1 306 939

10.   Finance costs

137 13 236

Interest paid 19 94

Finance charges 22 076 36 661

22 232 49 991

11. Taxation

Major onents of the tax expense

Current Taxation 

 tax - year 2 766 112 2 559 297 

Re iation of the tax expense

Reconciliation bet een accounting pro  and tax expense.

Accounting pro 9 956 024 9 096 591

Tax at the applicable tax rate o  28% (2018  28%) 2 787 687 2 547 045

Tax effect of adjus ents on tax  
on-deductible expenses 824 1 9 717

Temporary d erences (22 399) (7 465)

2 766 112 2 559 297

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SOUTHEAST EXCHANGE COMPANY (SOUTH AFRICA) PTY. LTD.
Annual Financial Statements For The Year Ended 31 December 2020

Figures in Rand 2020 2019
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SOUTHEAST EXCHANGE COMPANY (SOUTH AFRICA) PTY. LTD.
Annual Financial Statements For The Year Ended 31 December 2020

Figures in Rand 2020 2019

12.   Auditors' re ration

Fees 141 513 131 000

Adjustment or previous year 8 722 13 644

150 235 144 644

13.   Cash generated fro  operations

Pro  be ore taxation 9 956 024 9 096 591

Adjus ents for:

Depreciation 349 575 271 719 

Interest received (1 053 363) (I 306 939) 

Finance costs 22 232 49 991

Changes in working 

Trade and other receivables (2 200 336) (1 517 096) 

Trade and other payables 989 073 (3 867 011)
 8 063 205 2 727 255

14.  Tax paid

Balance at beginning o  the year 240 703 (83 333) 

Current tax or the year recognised in pro  or loss (2 766 112) (2 559 297) 

Balance at end o  the year

Dividends

(250 000)

(10 619 236)

-   

(10 869 236)

-  

(6 250 000)

250 000

(6 000 000)

526 112 (240 703) 

(1 999 297) (2 883 333) 

16.  Directors' re ration

15.  Dividends paid

17.  Re ed parties

Re onships

Holding compan Southeast Bank ed

Re ed party nces

s ed in Trade Pay s regarding re ed parties

Southeast Bank Limited 5 437 456 4 466 303

o emoluments re paid to the directors or any individuals holding a prescribed o e during the year (2019 - il).

R ated party a ances and transactions with entities over which the co pany has contro  joint contro  or signi ant in uence
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Revenue

Commissions and transaction ees 9 131 133 10 644 378

Exchange gain income 7 084 305 4 329 975

Online charges 489 679 584 699

8 16 705 117 15 559 052

Other 

Interest received 9 1 053 363 1 306 939

Expenses (Refer to page 22) (7 780 224) (7 719 409)

Operating pr 9 978 256 9 146 582 

Finance costs 10 (22 232) (49 991) 

Pr  efore taxation 9 956 024 9 096 591 

Taxation 11 (2 766 112) (2 559 297) 

Pr  for the year 7 189 912 6 537 294 

The supplementary ormation presented does not orm part o  the annual ncial statements and its unaudited

DETAILED INCOME STATEMENT
SOUTHEAST EXCHANGE COMPANY (SOUTH AFRICA) PTY. LTD.

Figures in Rand Note 2020 2019
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Figures in Rand Note 2020 2019

Operating expenses

119 450 114 936

Advertising 19 673 38 638

Assets under R 7 000 11 717 54 246

12 150 235 144 644

Bank charges 610 873 1 642 401

Cash carrying charges 1 188 185 1 080 605

Cleaning 1 067 1 256

Commission paid 120 633 84 379

Compliance cost 8 625 -  

Computer expenses 9 512 -  

-  

Depreciation 349 575 271 719

Donation -  12 000

Employee costs 2 692 799 2 274 480

Entertainment 63 237 76 971

Insurance 133 450 89 567

Lease rentals on operating lease 1 094 454 753 459

Motor vehicle expenses 14 871 20 437

Municipal expenses 75 903 53 324

7 584

55 503 580

Opening costs - CT branch -  76 270

Petrol and oil 53 098 13 517

Postage 3 963 6 200

Printing and stationery 142 691 89 315

Repairs and maintenance 34 954 57 397

5 278 5 565

Security 679 199 434 537

-  1 110

58 149 92 367

-  1 740

Travel - local 19 732 109 094

Travel - ove rseas 55 814 118 655

7 780 224 7 719 409

DETAILED INCOME STATEMENT
SOUTHEAST EXCHANGE COMPANY (SOUTH AFRICA) PTY. LTD.
Annual Financial Statements For The Year Ended 31 December 2020
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AD

ALCO

ATM

BB

B/L

BAS

CRR

CRG

CSR

CPI

CDBL

CBS

CRISL

DEPZ

DP

EPS

EPZ

FY

GDP

GRI

HOB

IT

IMF

IAS

IPO

LC

SMT

OBU

IR

POS

PV

RMG

ROA

ROE

R&D

SAFA

SME

SOP

SLR

RMA

SEBCSL

SEFSL

SEECPL

Asset Liability Committee

Automated Teller Machine

Bad/Loss

Bangladesh Accounting Standards

Cash Reserve Requirement

Credit Risk Grading

Corporate Social Responsibility

Consumer Price Index

Central Depository Bangladesh Limited

Dhaka Export Processing Zone

Depository Participants

Earnings Per Share

Export Processing Zone

Fiscal Year (July to June)

Gross Domestic Product

Global Reporting Initiative 

International Monetary Fund

International Accounting Standards

Senior Management Team

Integrated Reporting

Present Value

Readymade Garments

Return on Assets 

Return on Equity

Research and Development

Small and Medium Enterprise

Standard Operating Procedure

Statutory Liquidity Ratio

Relationship Management Application

Southeast Bank Capital Service Limited

Southeast Financial Services (UK) Limited

TERMINOLOGY
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STANDARD DISCLOSURE

       
       

       
      C

HECKLIST
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SAFA CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
DISCLOSURE CHECKLIST

reporting

are required to be held)

by the external auditors

2. VISION, MISSION AND STRATEGY

3.  AUDIT COMMITTEES 

3.1 Appointment and Composition

employees and retain external counsel

individual members disclosed in the annual report

3.2 Objectives & Activities

taken

1.  BOARD OF DIRECTORS, CHAIRMAN AND CEO

Page No.

94

96

96

96

96

96-97

100

97

97

97, 104-105

103

29

30

30-32

98, 129-131

98, 129-131

129

96

98

98

105

129-131
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4. INTERNAL CONTROL AND RICK MANAGEMENT

system is monitored by the Board, Audit Committee or Senior Management 

5. ETHICS AND COMPLIANCE

6. REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

directors, but should also include some executive directors) 

employees 

7. HUMAN CAPITAL

training and development, grievance management and counselling

8. COMMUNICATION TO SHAREHOLDERS & STAKEHOLDERS

and other stakeholders

9. ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL OBLIGATIONS

129-131

91

133

92-93

135-136

135-136

33-35

63, 88, 101

101

217

99

215-216

40-41

223

102-103

103, 206-207

206-207

Page No.
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INTEGRATED REPORTING
CHECKLIST

1. ELEMENTS OF AN INTEGRATED REPORT 

which it operates.

 The organization’s:
 culture, ethics and values
 
 principal activities and markets

competitive rivalry)

 

 

 
 
 
 
 Societal issues, such as population and demographic changes, human rights, health, poverty, collective 

values and educational systems
 

planetary limits are approached
 
 

1.2 Governance 

ability to create value 

Policies 
• 
• 

Page No.

1-3,

4-18,33

91-137
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understands, takes into account and responds to their legitimate needs and interests. Stakeholders are the groups 

• Stakeholder engagement methodology 

model 

An integrated report needs to provide insight about the resources and the relationships used and affected by the 
organization, which are referred to collectively as the capitals and how the organization interacts with the capitals to 
create value over the short, medium and long term 

business operations. 

An integrated report should describe the organization’s business model 

• Inputs 

• Business activities 

• Outputs 

• Outcomes 

Page No.

240

23

25
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Inputs

Business activities 

segmentation, delivery channels and marketing) 

initiatives such as process improvement, employee training and relationships management. 

Outputs

depending on their materiality. 

• Both positive outcomes (i.e., those that result in a net increase in the capitals and thereby create value) and 

negative outcomes (i.e., those that result in a net decrease in the capitals and thereby diminish value). 

An integrated report needs to explain the extent to which the organization has achieved its strategic 
objectives for the period and what are its outcomes in terms of effects on the capitals? 

implications, and the methods and assumptions used in compiling them 

legitimate needs and interests 

Page No.

25

227
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ability to create value over the short, medium and long term, and how is the organization dealing with them 
and effectiveness of the system of internal controls. 

risk rating) 

An integrated report should describe it strategic direction (Where does the organization want to go and how 
does it intend to get there) 

• The strategies it has in place, or intends to implement, to achieve those strategic objectives 

• The resource allocation plans it has to implement its strategy 

change 

the capitals, and the risk management arrangements related to those capitals 

strategy to give it a competitive advantage 

allocation plans. 

in pursuing its strategy, and what are the potential implications for its business model and future 
performance? 

medium and long term 

likely to arise. 

Page No.

183-201

30-32

69-83
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1.9 Basis of preparation and presentation 

integrated report 

3.1 Conciseness 

An integrated report should be concise. 

Avoids highly generic disclosures. 

material error 

estimation process are explained. 

Page No.

69-83

21-24

21-24

21-24

21-24
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The information in an integrated report should be presented: 

• On a basis that is consistent over time 

ability to create value over time. 

 Using benchmark data, such as industry or regional benchmarks 

body). 

An integrated report should show a holistic picture of the combination, interrelatedness and dependencies 
between the factors that affect the organization’s ability to create value over time. 

• Content elements 

• Past, Present & Future 

An integrated report should disclose information about matters that substantively affect the organization’s 
ability to create value over the short, medium and long term

3.6 Assurance on the Report 

• The policy and practice relating to seeking assurance on the report, 

the assurance providers 

Page No.

227-229

21-24

21-24

21-24
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SAFA STANDARD
DISCLOSURE CHECKLIST

Clarity and presentation:

 Vision and Mission

 Overall strategic objectives 

 such risks 

 Social Responsibility Initiatives (CSR) 

 Environment related Initiatives 

 Environmental & Social Obligations 

 Integrated Reporting 

 Changes in accounting policies/Changes in accounting estimates  

 employed

 units 

 Segment Revenue 
 Segment Results 
 Turnover 

 Comprehensive related party disclosures  

Page No.

29

30

33

36

38, 49

14-17

18-20

183-187

18, 67

248

83

206-207

214

212-213

21-24

289-310

234, 378

340

352

345

279
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 Consolidated Financial Statement (CFS)  

 Audit Committee (Composition, role, meetings, attendance, etc.) Internal Control & Risk Management  

 Ethics and Compliance  

 Human Capital  

 Communication to Shareholders & Stakeholders 

 Risk Mitigation Methodology  

 Earnings per Share  

 Return on Shareholders Fund  

 Total Revenue

 EPS 

 Shareholders Fund 

 Property Plant & Equipment 

 Long Term Liabilities/Current Liabilities  

 Price earnings ratio 

 Capital Adequacy Ratio 

 Return on Capital Employed 

 Debt Equity Ratio 

Page No.

281

283

335

282

273

290

289

129

101

104

215

223
223

224

139

137

238-240

183-201

238

238

224

235-237

230-231

279, 284

281, 286
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 Government as Taxes  

 Shareholders as dividend  

 Employees as bonus/remuneration  

 Retained by the entity  

 Economic value added  

 Cover and printing including the theme on the cover page  

 Human Resource Accounting 

 Any other good additional disclosures  

CD, Tier I and Tier II Bonds  

 Statutory Liquidity Reserve (Ratio) 

 Return on Average Asset 

 Cost / Income Ratio 

 Capital Adequacy Ratio 

 Cash Reserve Ratio / Liquid Asset Ratio 

 Dividend Cover Ratio 

 Disclosure under regulatory guidelines  

Page No.

218-220

215

180

176-177

176-177

355

228-229

330

290

316

256-270
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Compliance Checklist in Line with the Companies Act, 1994  

a

Risks and concerns

Basel- III and Risk Management Report.

c

d

Gain or Loss

The Bank did not make any extra-ordinary Gain or Loss in 2020.e

party transactions should be disclosed in the annual report 

through any others instruments 

g

maintained 

l

h

shall explain about the variance on their Annual Report

i

k

given under internal control and compliance report and Directors 

report.

o

Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in 

estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment 

m

International Accounting Standards (IAS)/Bangladesh Accounting 

Standards (BAS)/ International Financial Reporting Standards 

(IFRS)/Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standards (BFRS), as 

adequately disclosed 

n

a going concern.

p

b

Remuneration to directors including independent directors Discussed in the Corporate Governance Reportj
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Given in separate statement in page no 42.r

The Bank has been declaring dividend every year.s

The Bank has been declaring dividend every year.t

a) Parent/Subsidiary/Associated Companies and other related 

Executives; d) Shareholders holding ten per cent (10%) or more 

Discussed in the Corporate Governanceu

v

be explained 

Responsibility and Evaluation.

q
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IMPORTANT FINANCIAL INDICATORS
WITH QUANTITATIVE AND
QUALITATIVE FACTORS

 Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR)  

 Internal Capital Generation Ratio  

 Leverage ratio  

 Large Loan Exposure  

 Return on Average Assets (ROAA)  

 Return on Average Equity (ROAE)  

4. Liquidity & Funding Liquid Assets Ratio  

 Loan to Deposit Ratio  

 Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR)  

 Dividend yield  

 Capital Appreciation  

 Short Term   

 Long Term   

 Apps based Services  

 Internet Banking  

 Cash Deposit Machines (CDM)  

 Call Centers Services  

8. Corporate Governance

 Single Family Domination  

 Free Float  

 Audit Committee Led by Independent Director  

 Sustainable Financing/ Green Banking Initiatives  

 Sustainable/Integrated Reporting  

 Gender Diversity  

 Training and Development Spending  

 Direct and Indirect Tax  

Page No.Area

337

80

337
337

177

320

148

141

229

14

14

146

80

80

176

180

20

20

253
168

167

245

105

106
107
105

106

273
212

21
215

304

216

216

207

206

83
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MEMORY OF 25TH (VIRTUAL) ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The 25th

EVENTS 2020
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Note:
a.  

b.  
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Eunoos Trade Centre
52-53, Dilkusha Commercial Area,
Dhaka-1000, Bangladesh

 

 

Eunoos Trade Centre
52-53, Dilkusha Commercial Area,
Dhaka-1000, Bangladesh
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SOUTHEAST BANK LIMITED
Registered Office : Eunoos Trade Centre
  52-53, Dilkusha C/A (Level 2,3,4,6 & 16), Dhaka-1000, Bangladesh
Phone : +88 02 9571115, 9576415, 9555466 & 9578324
SWIFT : SEBDBDDH
E-mail : info@southeastbank.com.bd
Website : www.southeastbank.com.bd


